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Part |

Item 1. Business
General

Unless otherwise indicated by the context, we heddrms “GE” and “GECC" on the basis of consolmtadescribed in Note 1 to the consolidated finahsiatements in Part Il, Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” of this ForrK Report. Also, unless otherwise indicated by thetext, “General Electric” means the parent comp&sneral Electric Company (the Company).

General Electric’s address is 1 River Road, SchtadgcNY 12345-6999; we also maintain executivéceff at 3135 Easton Turnpike, Fairfield, CT 068281

We are one of the largest and most diversifiedastfucture and financial services corporationfiénworld. With products and services ranging fraroraft engines, power generation, oil and gas
production equipment, and household appliancesetdical imaging, business and consumer financingradhastrial products, we serve customers in moae tH00 countries and employ approximately
305,000 people worldwide. Since our incorporatiod892, we have developed or acquired new techiesl@mnd services that have broadened and changsitlemably the scope of our activities.

In virtually all of our global business activitiesg encounter aggressive and able competition.dnyninstances, the competitive climate is charae@érby changing technology that requires contiguin
research and development. With respect to manufagtoperations, we believe that, in general, veeaare of the leading firms in most of the majorsitlies in which we participate. The businesses in
which General Electric Capital Corporation (GEC@yages are subject to competition from varioussygfdinancial institutions, including commerciariks, thrifts, investment banks, broker-dealers,
credit unions, leasing companies, consumer loarpeniies, independent finance companies and finasroganies associated with manufacturers.

On February 22, 2012, we merged our wholly-owndssiliary, General Electric Capital Services, IGECS), with and into GECS’ whollgwned subsidiary, GECC. The merger simplified auaricia
services’ corporate structure by consolidatingriirial services entities and assets within our deggion and simplifying Securities and Exchange @ussion and regulatory reporting. Upon completion
of the merger, (i) all outstanding shares of GE@@mon stock were cancelled, (i) all outstandingGSEcommon stock and all GECS preferred stock helithd Company were converted into an
aggregate of 1,000 shares of GECC common stock(ii@nall treasury shares of GECS and all outstagcreferred stock of GECS held by GECC were chenteAs a result, GECC became the
surviving corporation, assumed all of GECS'’ rightsl obligations and became wholly-owned directlyt®yCompany.

Because we wholly-owned both GECS and GECC, thgenavas accounted for as a transfer of assets brtarities under common control. Transfers ofassets or exchanges of shares between
entities under common control are accounted fhisiorical value, and as if the transfer occurrethe beginning of the period.

Prior to January 28, 2011, we also operated a nuegiigoany, NBC Universal, Inc. (NBCU). Effective dany 28, 2011, we held a 49% interest in a mediigyethat includes the NBC Universal

businesses. On February 12, 2013, we entered indégi@ement to sell our remaining 49% common eduigrest to Comcast Corporation, as well as th€NBloors in 30 Rockefeller Center, for $18.1
billion. The sale is expected to be completed feyehd of the first quarter of 2013.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This document contains “forward-looking statemertshat is, statements related to future, not ga&nts. In this context, forward-looking statensesften address our expected future business and
financial performance and financial condition, arfign contain words such as “expect,” “anticipat&tend,” “plan,” “believe,” “seek,” “see,” or “wl.” Forward-looking statements by their nature
address matters that are, to different degree®rtaic. For us, particular uncertainties that caxddse our actual results to be materially diffetean those expressed in our forward-looking statets
include: current economic and financial conditiansjuding volatility in interest and exchange sateommodity and equity prices and the value ddrfiial assets; potential market disruptions orrothe
impacts arising in the United States or Europe fo@welopments in sovereign debt situations; theawhpf conditions in the financial and credit masken the availability and cost of General Electric
Capital Corporation’s (GECC) funding and on outigbto reduce GECC's asset levels as plannedirtipact of conditions in the housing market and upleyment rates on the level of commercial and
consumer credit defaults; changes in Japanese mendiehavior that may affect our estimates of lighfior excess interest refund claims (GE Monepal®); pending and future mortgage securitization
claims and litigation in connection with WMC, whidhay affect our estimates of liability, includinggsible loss estimates; our ability to maintain cunrent credit rating and the impact on our fugdin
costs and competitive position if we do not dotke;adequacy of our cash flows and earnings aret etinditions which may affect our ability to payr quarterly dividend at the planned level or to
repurchase shares at planned levels; GECC's atilipay dividends to GE at the planned level; dility to convert pre-order commitments into ordete level of demand and financial performance of
the major industries we serve, including, withamtifation, air and rail transportation, energy geiien, real estate and healthcare; the impaatgidlation and regulatory, investigative and legal
proceedings and legal compliance risks, includirgiinpact of financial services regulation; ouritallocation plans, as such plans may changeaffiedt planned share repurchases and strategic
actions, including acquisitions, joint ventures aigbositions; our success in completing annoumi@atsactions and integrating acquired busineskesntpact of potential information technology otada
security breaches; and numerous other matterstioinad, regional and global scale, including thoe political, economic, business and competitiseure. These uncertainties may cause our actual
future results to be materially different than taexpressed in our forward-looking statements. &luesertainties are described in more detail in Pé&em 1A. “Risk Factors” of this Form 10-K Repo
We do not undertake to update our forward-lookitagesnents.

Operating Segments

Segment revenue and profit information and addiidinancial data and commentary on recent findmesults for operating segments are provided éShgment Operations section in Part Il, ltem 7.
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” and in Noté®@the consolidated financial statements in Rattdm 8. “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.

Operating businesses that are reported as segimehide Power & Water, Oil & Gas, Energy Managem@wiation, Healthcare, Transportation, Home & Biesis Solutions and GE Capital. Net
earnings of GECC and the effect of transaction&éen segments are eliminated to arrive at totada@itgated data. A summary description of each ofoperating segments follows.

On February 22, 2012, we merged our wholly-owndsbiliary, GECS, with and into GECS’ wholly-ownedsidiary, GECC. Our financial services segment,@ipital, continues to comprise the
continuing operations of GECC, which now include thn-off insurance operations previously held arahaged in GECS. Unless otherwise indicated, nefeeto GECC and the GE Capital segment in
this Form 10-K Report relate to the entity or seghaes they exist subsequent to the February 22 grger.

Effective October 1, 2012, we reorganized the forBreergy Infrastructure segment into three segmeitswer & Water, Oil & Gas and Energy Managemexwit\ae began reporting these as separate

segments beginning with this Form 10-K Report. Wée aeorganized our Home & Business Solutions segimetransferring our Intelligent Platforms busia¢o Energy Management. Results for 2012
and prior periods in this Form 10-K Report are régabon this basis.
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We also continue our longstanding practice of glimg supplemental information about the businessttgn GE Capital.
Power & Water

Power & Water (19.2%, 17.4% and 16.6% of consodidaevenues in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively)eader in the field of development, implemeataand improvement of products and
technologies that harness resources such as wingas and water to produce electric power.

Our operations are located in North America, Eurdysa, South America and Africa.

Power & Water serves power generation, indusmiaernment and other customers worldwide with petgland services related to energy production. 8il@as turbines and generators that are used
principally in power plants for generation of ekéty and for industrial cogeneration and mechahdrive applications. We are a leading provideinbégrated Gasification Combined Cycle (IGCC)
technology design and development. IGCC systemgerbnoal and other hydrocarbons into synthetictgasis used as the primary fuel for gas turbinesombined-cycle systems. IGCC systems
produce fewer air pollutants compared with tradiéibpulverized coal power plants. We sell stearhifgs and generators to the electric utility indpand to private industrial customers for cogetien
applications. We offer wind turbines as part of mmewable energy portfolio, which also includelsuistechnology. We also sell aircraft engine detiixes for use as industrial power sources. Nuclear
reactors, fuel and support services for both nedviastalled boiling water reactors are offered tigio joint ventures with Hitachi and Toshiba. Wevpde our customers with solutions to meet theirds
through a broad portfolio of aftermarket servidesluding equipment upgrades, long-term maintenaeceice agreements, repairs, equipment instaflatimnitoring and diagnostics, asset management
and performance optimization tools, remote perforceatesting and Dry Low NOx (DLN) tuning. We continto invest in advanced technology developmentifibprovide more value to our custom
and more efficient solutions that comply with toastrict environmental regulations.

Power & Water also offers water treatment solutifamsndustrial and municipal water systems inchglthe supply and related services of specialtynit&s, water purification systems, pumps, valves,
filters and fluid handling equipment for improvitige performance of water, wastewater and procestsmsg, including mobile treatment systems and bhegidn processes.

On February 1, 2011, we completed the acquisitfdbresser, Inc., which broadened the product pbetfeith technologies for gas engines.

Power & Water is party to revenue sharing progrémasshare the financial results of certain aerivdéve lines. These businesses are controlleddweP & Water, but counterparties have an agreed
share of revenues as well as development and canpproduction responsibilities. At December 31120uch counterparty interests ranged from 16%9% of various programs; associated
distributions to such counterparties are accoufueds costs of production.

Worldwide competition for power generation produatsl services is intense. Demand for power geeraiglobal and, as a result, is sensitive teet@nomic and political environment of each country
in which we do business. The balance of regionavgt and demand side management are importantéaci@valuate as we plan for future development.

For information about orders and backlog, see tgntent Operations section in Part Il, tem 7. “Mgeraent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Ctiadiand Results of Operations” of this Form
10-K Report.

Oil & Gas
Oil & Gas (10.3%, 9.2% and 6.3% of consolidatecermies in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively) hel@d gas companies make more efficient and suaitée use of the world's energy resources.

Our operations are located in North America, Eurdysea, Australia, South America and Africa.
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Oil & Gas supplies mission critical equipment foetglobal oil and gas industry, used in applicatispanning the entire value chain from drilling andhpletion through production, liquefied naturasg
(LNG) and pipeline compression, pipeline inspectimd downstream processing in refineries and pleémical plants. The business designs and manuéacsurface and subsea drilling and production
systems, equipment for floating production platfeymompressors, turbines, turboexpanders, higlspreseactors, industrial power generation andadportfolio of auxiliary equipment.

To ensure that the installed base is maintainedogpiptely, our service business has over 40 sergénters and workshops in the world's main oilgaslextraction and production regions. The busines
also provides upgrades to customers’ machinesg ul@latest available technology, to extend pradocapability and environmental performance. Wse provide pipeline integrity solutions, sensor-
based measurement, inspection, asset conditiontonioigi, controls, and radiation measurement sahsti®il & Gas also offers integrated solutions gsiensors for temperature, pressure, moisture, gas
and flow rate as well as non-destructive testirgpéttion equipment, including radiographic, ultraspremote visual and eddy current.

On February 4, 2011 and April 26, 2011, we compléhe acquisitions of Wellstream PLC and the Walp®rt division of John Wood Group PLC, respectivelVellstream PLC expands the Oil & Gas
portfolio with flexible subsea risers and flow i@ he Well Support division of John Wood Group Pddils equipment, including electrical submersibimps, that helps extract more oil and gas from
mature fields. On February 1, 2011, we completedattyuisition of Dresser, Inc. which broadens tii&@Bas product portfolio in control and reliefivas, measurement, regulation and control solu
for gas and fuel distributions.

Demand for oil and gas equipment and servicesoisajland, as a result, is sensitive to the econamicpolitical environment of each country in whigl do business. The balance of regional growtt
demand side management are important factors toateaas we plan for future development.

For information about orders and backlog, see tgnnt Operations section in Part Il, tem 7. “Mgeraent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Ctiadiand Results of Operations” of this Form
10-K Report.

Energy Management

Energy Management (5.0%, 4.4% and 3.5% of condelideevenues in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectidelyigns, manufactures and services leading tecgyslalutions for the delivery, management,
conversion and optimization of electrical powerdastomers across multiple energy-intensive indesstr

Our operations are located in North America, Eurdya, Latin America and the Middle East.

Energy Management provides integrated electricadipets and systems used to distribute, protectanttol energy and equipment. We manufacture édetidistribution and control products, lighting
and power panels, switchgear and circuit breakexisare used to distribute and manage power imiatyaf residential, commercial, consumer and stdal applications. We also provide customer-
focused solutions centered on the delivery androbaf electric power, and a full portfolio of figlservices including engineering, inspection, maata and emergency services. Energy Management
also provides advanced products and services thdemize the grid, from the power plant to the poeensumer, such as protection and control, inglstirength communications, smart meters,
monitoring & diagnostics, visualization softwaredeadvanced analytics. We manufacture advanced mrives and control technologies to improve theraponal efficiency of energy intensive
industries such as metals, mining, marine, oilgasl Energy Management also provides plant automatardware, software and embedded computingsysincluding advanced software, controllers,
single board computers, motion control and operiaterfaces.
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On March 2, 2011 and September 2, 2011, we comptheacquisitions of Lineage Power Holdings, [hineage Power) and Converteam, respectively. Tagiaition of Lineage Power, a provider of
high-efficiency power conversion infrastructuretteclogy and services for the telecommunicationsdatecenter industries, continues the expansi@nefgy’s offerings from the electric grid to
datacenters, cell towers, routers, servers anditloard electronics. Converteam, a provider eteification and automation equipment and systemds significant product and service capabilities
power electronics, industrial automation and preaesitrols.

For information about orders and backlog, see gnfent Operations section in Part I, Item 7. “Mgeraent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cbodiand Results of Operations” of this Form
10-K Report.

Aviation

Aviation (13.6%, 12.8% and 11.8% of consolidateceraies in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively) isobiee world’s leading providers of jet engineslaalated services with operations in North
America, Europe, Asia and South America.

Aviation produces, sells and services jet engitgbpprop and turbo shaft engines, and relateccephent parts for use in military and commerciadraft. Our military engines are used in a wideetsn

of aircraft including fighters, bombers, tankerslitppters and surveillance aircraft, as well asingaapplications, and our commercial engines paaireraft in all categories of range: short/medium,
intermediate and long-range, as well as executideragional aircraft. We also produce and markgtrees through CFM International, a company joirlyned by GE and Snecma, a subsidiary of
SAFRAN of France, and Engine Alliance, LLC, a compintly owned by GE and the Pratt & Whitney diwin of United Technologies Corporation. New engiaee also being designed and marketed
in a joint venture with Honda Aero, Inc., a divisiof Honda Motor Co., Ltd.

Aviation is party to agreements in which the finaheesults, as well as production responsibilitfscertain aircraft and marine engine lines dr@sd. These agreements take the form of both joint
ventures and revenue sharing programs.

Joint ventures market and sell particular airceafjine lines, but require negligible direct investrnbecause the venture parties conduct esserdladythe development, production, assembly and
aftermarket support activities. Under these agregsnéwviation supplies certain engine componentsratains related intellectual property rights. TfM56 engine line is the product of CFM
International and the GP7000 engine line is thelpcoof Engine Alliance, LLC.

Revenue sharing programs are a standard form glecation for specific product programs in the d@vi@industry. These businesses are controlled bgtin, but counterparties have an agreed share of
revenues as well as development and component gioduesponsibilities. At December 31, 2012, scohnterparty interests ranged from 1% to 47% oiousr programs; associated distributions to
such counterparties are accounted for as costodtiption.

Aviation also produces global aerospace systemequipment, including airborne platform computiygtems, power generation and distribution produneshanical actuation products and landing
gear, plus various engine components for use in tmilitary and commercial aircraft.

We provide maintenance, component repair and ouédeavices (MRO), including sales of replacemetgpfor many models of engines and repair andhaugrof engines manufactured by competi
These MRO services are often provided under long-teaintenance contracts.

On December 21, 2012, we announced an agreemputdbase the aviation business of Avio S.p.A., aufecturer of aviation propulsion components arstesys, for $4.3 billion.
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The worldwide competition in aircraft jet engineelaViRO (including parts sales) is intense. Both.ldu®l export markets are important. Product deveéo cycles are long and product quality and
efficiency are critical to success. Research amgldement expenditures are important in this bussipas are focused intellectual property strategieisprotection of key aircraft engine design,
manufacture, repair and product upgrade technado@er products and services are subject to a nuaflsegulatory standards.

Potential sales for any engine are limited by, agnoiier things, its technological lifetime, whictayvary considerably depending upon the rate oade in technology, the relatively small number of
potential customers and the limited number of r@f\airframe applications. Aircraft engine ordensd to follow military and airline procurement ogs/ although these cycles differ from each other.

For information about orders and backlog, see tgnent Operations section in Part Il, tem 7. “Mgeraent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Ctiadiand Results of Operations” of this Form
10-K Report.

Healthcare

Healthcare (12.4%, 12.3% and 11.3% of consolideggenues in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelyhésad the world’s leading providers of essentialtteare technologies to developed, developing
and emerging countries. Our operations are lodatéibrth America, Europe, Asia, South America #nttralia.

Healthcare has expertise in medical imaging anatindtion technologies, medical diagnostics, patieonitoring systems, disease research, drug disg@rel biopharmaceutical manufacturing
technologies. We are dedicated to predicting anectieg disease earlier, monitoring its progressiaforming physicians, and helping physiciansotaiteatment for patients. Healthcare manufactures,
sells and services a wide range of medical equipthen helps provide a fast, non-invasive way foctdrs to see broken bones, diagnose trauma catfes émergency room, view the heart and its
function, and identify early stages of cancersrairbdisorders. With diagnostic imaging systemssag Magnetic Resonance (MR), Computed Tomogra@fy &nd Positron Emission Tomography
(PET) scanners, X-ray, nuclear imaging, digital maography, and Molecular Imaging technologies, Healte creates products that allow clinicians toissiée the human body more clearly than ever.
In addition, Healthcare-manufactured technologietuide patient and resident monitoring, diagnosticiology, ultrasound, bone densitometry, anesthogs/ and oxygen therapy, and neonatal and
critical care devices. Medical diagnostics anddiéences products include diagnostic imaging ages¢d in medical scanning procedures, drug disgp®pharmaceutical manufacturing and
purification, and tools for protein and cellularm#ysis for pharmaceutical and academic researcludimg existing and a pipeline of precision moleculiagnostics in development for neurology,
cardiology and oncology applications.

Our product services include remote diagnosticrapdir services for medical equipment manufactimeGE and by others, as well as computerized datzagement, information technologies and
customer productivity services.

We compete with a variety of U.S. and non-U.S. nfacturers and services providers. Technologicalpetence and innovation, excellence in design, pigduct performance, quality of services and
competitive pricing are among the key factors affeccompetition for these products and servicesdicts and services are sold worldwide primadifospitals, medical facilities, pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies, and to the life scienseasch market.

Throughout the world, we deliver healthymaginasmfutions that provide greater efficiency to hedpirol costs, better quality to improve patientammes, and extended access to healthcare for fgatien
in underserved markets.

Our products are subject to regulation by numegmy&rnment agencies, including the U.S. Food andyBdministration (U.S. FDA), as well as variousathat apply to claims submitted under
Medicare, Medicaid or other government funded khealte programs.

For information about orders and backlog, see tgntent Operations section in Part Il, tem 7. “Mgeraent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Ctiadiand Results of Operations” of this Form
10-K Report.
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Transportation

Transportation (3.8%, 3.3% and 2.3% of consolidage@nues in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively)gbal technology leader and supplier to theaad, marine, drilling and mining industries. We
serve customers in more than 100 countries in Namtlerica, Europe, Asia, South America, Africa anas&alia.

Transportation manufactures high-horsepower dietseitric locomotives, including the Evolution Seri# which meets or exceeds the U.S. EnvironmenteBtion Agency'’s Tier Ill requirements. We
also offer leading drive technology solutions te thining, transit, marine and stationary, andidglindustries. We announced the launch of our @n&torage business in 2012. GE's Durathon Battery
technology is designed for energy storage solutionstationary and motive applications in the ¢elmmunications, power generation, grid operaticth @mergy management applications. Also, on
November 30, 2012, we completed the acquisitiomad@istrea Limited, a provider of mining productsiaervices with a focus in underground mini

Transportation provides a portfolio of service afigs designed to improve fleet efficiency and @@operating expenses, including repair servicesnotive enhancements, modernizations, and
information-based services like remote monitoring diagnostics. We provide train control producasiyvay management services, and signaling systermerease service levels, optimize asset
utilization, and streamline operations for railraagners and operators. We deliver leading edges tihalt improve asset availability and reliabilijptimize network planning, and control network
execution to plan.

For information about orders and backlog, see ggnfent Operations section in Part I, Item 7. “Mgeraent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cbodiand Results of Operations” of this Form
10-K Report.

Home & Business Solutions

Home & Business Solutions (5.4%, 5.2% and 5.3%oofolidated revenues in 2012, 2011 and 2010, reésplyg sells products that share several chareties — competitive design, efficient
manufacturing and effective distribution and seevidome & Business Solutiongtoducts such as major appliances and a subsightihg products are primarily directed to consurapplications, whilt
other lighting products are directed towards conuiaéand industrial applications. Cost control,liing productivity, is key in the highly competi& markets in which we compete. We also invest in
the development of differentiated, premium prodticég are more profitable such as energy efficsehitions for both consumers and businesses.

We sell and service major home appliances includgfiggerators, freezers, electric and gas rangmsktops, dishwashers, clothes washers and diyécspwave ovens, room air conditioners, residential
water systems for filtration, softening and heatiaugd hybrid water heaters. Our brands include Giadgram®, GE Profile™, GE®, Hotpoint® and GE Café®fe manufacture certain products and
also source finished product and component pasta third-party global manufacturers. A large partaf our appliances sales are through a varietgtail outlets for replacement of installed units.
Residential building contractors installing unitsnew construction is our second major U.S. charWel offer one of the largest original equipmennofacturer (OEM) service organizations in the
appliances industry, providing in-home repair afidrenarket parts.

We also manufacture, source and sell a varietgropl products for commercial, industrial and consumarkets, including full lines of incandescentiogen, fluorescent, high-intensity discharge, lght
emitting diode, automotive and miniature products.

We have global operations located in North Amerifarope, Asia and Latin America.
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GE Capital

GE Capital (31.2%, 33.3% and 33.3% of consolidateenues in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelynleases offer a broad range of financial servicdspanducts worldwide for businesses of all si:
Services include commercial loans and leases, tiegiagement, financial programs, home loans, ceadits, personal loans and other financial servié&sCapital also develops strategic partnerships
and joint ventures that utilize GE’s industry-sfieaéxpertise in aviation, energy, infrastructurgldealthcare to capitalize on market-specific oputies.

During 2012, GE Capital provided approximately $billion of new financings in the U.S. to variousnepanies, infrastructure projects and municipalitiedditionally, we extended approximately $96
billion of credit to approximately 57 million U.8onsumers. GE Capital provided credit to approxatya?7,100 new commercial customers and 34,000smeall businesses in the U.S. during 2012 and
ended the period with outstanding credit to moest®43,000 commercial customers and 201,000 smsithésses through retail programs in the U.S.

Within our GE Capital operating segment, we opetfagebusinesses described below along product lines
Our operations are located in North America, Sdutierica, Europe, Australia and Asia.

GE Capital has communicated its goal of reducis@itding net investment (ENI). To achieve this geal are more aggressively focusing our businemseglective financial services products where
have domain knowledge, broad distribution, andathiéity to earn a consistent return on capital,levnianaging our overall balance sheet size and\Wekhave a strategy of exiting those businessss th
are underperforming or that are deemed to be rmategic. We have completed a number of dispositiomar businesses in the past and will continuevi@uate options going forward

Commercial Lending and Leasing (CLL)

CLL provides customers around the world with a braenge of financing solutions. We have particatéd-market expertise, and primarily offer collatezed loans, leases and other financial services to
customers, including manufacturers, distributors @nd-users for a variety of equipment and majpitabassets. These assets include industrialeeficilities and equipment; vehicles; corporate
aircraft; and equipment used in many industriedpiging the construction, manufacturing, transgata media, communications, entertainment andtheate industries.

In 2011, we completed the sale of our CLL marinetaimer leasing business, which consists of outrotimg interests in the GE SeaCo joint venturengl with other owned marine container assets, and
our CLL trailer fleet services business in Mexico.

We operate in a highly competitive environment. @ompetitors include commercial banks, investmemiks, leasing companies, financing companies asedcivith manufacturers, and independent
finance companies. Competition related to our legdind leasing operations is based on price, shatterest rates and fees, as well as deal steiahd terms. In recent years, there has beemugptien
in the capital markets and in access to and avktjabf capital as well as the exit of some conifes. Profitability is affected not only by broadonomic conditions that affect customer creditigua
and the availability and cost of capital fundingt blso by successful management of credit riskrating risk and market risks such as interestaatecurrency exchange risks. Success requires high
quality risk management systems, customer and indsgecific knowledge, diversification, servicedatlistribution channels, strong collateral and essnagement knowledge, deal structuring expe
and the ability to reduce costs through technokgy productivity.

Consumer
Consumer, through consolidated entities and assac@mpanies, is a leading provider of financéal/Ees to consumers and retailers around the wdtioffer a full range of financial products tatsu

customers’ needs. These products include, on abbasis, privatéabel credit cards; personal loans; bank cards lains and leases; mortgages; debt consoliddtmme equity loans; deposit and ot
savings products; and small and medium enterpeisdithg.
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In January 2013, we acquired the deposit businelSeti ife Bank, N.A., which is an online bankingaplorm with approximately $6.4 billion in U.S. rétdeposits that will allow us to better serve our
customers.

In 2011, we entered into agreements to sell ours@arer Singapore business and our Consumer homiedenperations in Australia and New Zealand (AugtreHome Lending) and classified them as
discontinued operations. Both dispositions wemameted during 2011.

In the first quarter of 2011, we sold a substamt@tion of our Garanti Bank equity investment. iDgr2012, we sold our remaining equity interesBiranti Bank, which was classified as an available-
for-sale security.

In 2010, we entered into agreements to sell our téSeational vehicle and marine equipment finaggiortfolio (Consumer RV Marine) and Consumer Mexand classified them as discontinued
operations. Both dispositions were completed du?idgyl.

In 2010, we committed to sell our Consumer busie€anada, which was completed during 2011; in020é also purchased sales finance portfolios f@itinRetail Partner Cards, which provides
consumer financing programs and related servicemtil to mid-sized retailers and dealers.

Our operations are subject to a variety of bankamsumer protection regulations. Further, a nurobeountries have ceilings on rates chargeabt®tsumers in financial service transactions. We are
subject to competition from various types of finahstitutions including commercial banks, le@sgompanies, consumer loan companies, indepenidanice companies, finance companies associated
with manufacturers, and insurance companies. Inglpsirticipants compete on the basis of price,isgny capability, promotional marketing, risk maeagent, and cross selling. The markets in whicl
operate are also subject to the risks from fluabuatin retail sales, interest and currency exchaages, and the consumer’s capacity to repay debt.

Real Estat¢

Real Estate offers a range of capital and investis@ntions, including equity capital for acquisitior development, as well as fixed and floatirtg raortgages for new acquisitions or re-capitaitirest
of commercial real estate worldwide. Our businésanices, with both equity and loan structures attguisition, refinancing and renovation of offiagltings, apartment buildings, retail facilitiesthls
and industrial properties. Our typical real estagms are intermediate term, senior, fixed or flaprate, and are secured by existing income-prioducommercial properties. We invest in, and previd
restructuring financing for, portfolios of commeatmortgage loans, limited partnerships and taxvetebonds.

We own and operate a global portfolio of real esteith the objective of maximizing property casbwik and asset values. In the normal course of wsinbss operations we sell certain real estateyequi
investments when it is economically advantageousi$do do so. However, as real estate valuesfaeted by certain forces beyond our control (emarket fundamentals and demographic conditions),
it is difficult to predict with certainty the levelf future sales, sales prices, impairments oreagffs.

In 2012, we completed the sale of a portion of Business Properties portfolio (Business Propeitgjuding certain commercial loans, the originatéord servicing platforms and the servicing rights o
loans previously securitized by GECC. The portietained comprises our owner-occupied/credit tepartfolio.

Our competitors include banks, financial institn8preal estate companies, real estate investmeds fand other financial companies. Competitioounequity investment business is primarily based o

price, and competition in our lending businessiimprily based on interest rates and fees, asagetleal structure and terms. As we compete glghallysuccess is sensitive to the economic andigadli
environment of each country in which we do business
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Energy Financial Service

Energy Financial Services invests in long-livedgita-intensive energy projects and companies byiging structured equity, debt, leasing, partngréimancing, project finance and broad-based
commercial finance. We also invest in early-to{latimge companies that are pursuing new techna@gid services in the energy industry. In May 20dsold our general partnership interest in
Regency Energy Partners L.P. (Regency), a midstresural gas services provider, and retained ddufrpartnership interest. This resulted in the deobidation of Regency.

We operate in a highly competitive environment. @ompetitors include banks, financial institutioasergy companies, and other finance and leasimpanies. Competition is primarily based on price,
that is, interest rates and fees, as well as deaitare and terms. As we compete globally, oucess is sensitive to the economic and politicalrenment of each country in which we do business.

GE Capital Aviation Services (GECAS)

GECAS engages in commercial aircraft leasing amahfte, delivering fleet and financing servicesdmpanies across the spectrum of the aviation imguSur product offerings include leases and
secured loans on commercial passenger aircrafghtiers and regional jets; engine leasing and fimanservices; aircraft parts solutions; and airpouity and debt financing. We also co-sponsor an
infrastructure private equity fund, which invesidarge infrastructure projects including gatewapats.

We operate in a highly competitive environment. @ompetitors include aircraft manufacturers, bafikancial institutions, equity investors, and atfisance and leasing companies. Competition is
based on lease rate financing terms, aircraft égfidates, condition and availability, as well aaikble capital demand for financing.

GECC Corporate ltems and Eliminations

GECC Corporate Items and Eliminations primarilylimie unallocated Treasury and Tax operations; fiximi group of run-off sponsored special purpodgies; the effects of eliminating transactions
between GE Capital’s five operating businessesilteesf our run-off insurance operations remairimgontinuing operations attributable to GECC; lowted corporate costs; and certain non-allocated
amounts determined by the GECC Chairman.

GE Corporate ltems and Eliminations

GE Corporate ltems and Eliminations includes tiseilte of disposed businesses in which we retaimmaonsolidated interest (including NBC UniversalQ)l.principal retirement plan costs and
unallocated corporate costs, which includes rekeand development spending (including our GlobaleRech Centers) and costs related to our Global{Br& Operations organization.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations primarily comprised GE Mpdapan (our Japanese personal loan business, dradkeur Japanese mortgage and card businesskgliegour investment in GE Nissen Credit
Co., Ltd.), our U.S. mortgage business (WMC), BA@dbmatic GECF Inc. (BAC) (our Central American bamd card business), Consumer RV Marine, Consiviegico, Consumer Singapore,
Australian Home Lending and Consumer Ireland.

For further information about discontinued openasiosee Part Il, Item 7. “Management’s Discussimh Analysis of Financial Condition and Results gfe@ations” and Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements in Part II, ltem 8. “Financsaatements and Supplementary Data” of this Fors{ Report.

Geographic Data
Geographic data is reported in Note 28 to the dadeted financial statements in Part I, Item 8irféhcial Statements and Supplementary Data” offbisn 10-K Report.

Additional financial data about our geographic @pens is provided in the Geographic Operationsiaedn Part I, ltem 7. “ManagemestDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults o
Operations” of this Form 10-K Report.
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Orders and Backlog

Orders and backlog information is provided in teg®ent Operations and Other Information sectiorfair I, Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Asi of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” of this Form 10-K Report.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures informasipnovided in Note 19 to the consolidated finanstatements in Part I, Item 8. “Financial Statetaemd Supplementary Data” and the Other
Information section in Part I, ltem 7. “Managemisrdiscussion and Analysis of Financial ConditioaResults of Operations” of this Form 10-K Report.

Environmental Matters

Our operations, like operations of other compariggaged in similar businesses, involve the usppda and cleanup of substances regulated undepemental protection laws. We are involved in a
number of remediation actions to clean up hazardastes as required by federal and state laws.tidddi information is provided in Part II, tem “Management Discussion and Analysis of Finan:
Condition and Results of Operations” of this For@aKLReport.

Employees and Employee Relations

At year-end 2012, General Electric Company and aiafeted affiliates employed approximately 305,@@dsons, of whom approximately 134,000 were emplayehe United States. For further
information about employees, see Part Il, ItemS&lécted Financial Data” of this Form 10-K Report.

Approximately 17,600 GE manufacturing and servicpieyees in the United States are representedftactive bargaining purposes by a total of apprately 108 different union local bargaining
units. A majority of such employees are represehgednion locals that are affiliated with, and b&irgin coordination with, the IUE-CWA, The IndusirDivision of the Communication Workers of
America, AFL-CIO, CLC. During 2011, we negotiatedif-year agreements with most of our U.S. unioRisese agreements modestly increase ongoing costshms/term of the contracts on an
aggregate basis. However, the agreements alsennepit new features that focus on cost containneeritefalth and pension plans. Effective JanuaB012, all production employees participate in a
new consumer-directed health plan. In additiondpction employees who commence service on or thfeerdate will not be eligible to participate retGE Pension Plan, but will participate in a dedin
contribution retirement program.

Other GE affiliates are parties to labor contradth various labor unions, also with varying terarsl expiration dates, that cover approximately @ &@ployees.

Executive Officers

See Part I, Item 10. “Directors, Executive Offis@nd Corporate Governance” of this Form 10-K Reefoo information about Executive Officers of tRegistrant.

Other

Because of the diversity of our products and sesyjias well as the wide geographic dispersion opoeduction facilities, we use numerous sourcestfe wide variety of raw materials needed for our
operations. We have not been adversely affectetiéjnability to obtain raw materials.

We own, or hold licenses to use, numerous patbieis. patents are continuously being obtained thranghresearch and development activities as egigtaients expire. Patented inventions are used
both within the Company and are licensed to othH®rsno operating segment is substantially depeaieany single patent or group of related patents.
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Sales of goods and services to agencies of the@h®rnment as a percentage of revenues follow.

% of Consolidated Revenue:

2012 2011 2010
Total sales to U.S. Government Agenc 3% 3% 3%
Aviation segment defen-related sale 3 3 3

GE is a trademark and service mark of General Ete€Company.

The Company’s Internet address is www.ge.com. @uaual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports onnrdi0-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendmtertisose reports are available, without
charge, on our website, www.ge.com/en/company/tovisecfilings.htm, as soon as reasonably pradecafiter they are filed electronically with the USecurities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
Copies are also available, without charge, from@porate Investor Communications, 3135 Easton iken Fairfield, CT 06828-0001. Reports filed witle SEC may be viewed at www.sec.gov or
obtained at the SEC Public Reference Room in Wastiip D.C. Information regarding the operationtaf Public Reference Room may be obtained by calliagSEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. References to
our website addressed in this report are provideal @nvenience and do not constitute, and shatldenviewed as, an incorporation by referencéefiiformation contained on, or available through,
the website. Therefore, such information shouldb®tonsidered part of this report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The following discussion of risk factors contairisrivard-looking statements,” as discussed in lteffBlsiness”. These risk factors may be importaniriderstanding any statement in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K or elsewhere. The followingimfiation should be read in conjunction with Parttdm 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysi§iofancial Condition and Results of
Operations” (MD&A), and the consolidated financ#htements and related notes in Part Il, Item Bidificial Statements and Supplementary Data” offbisn 10-K Report.

Our businesses routinely encounter and address sekne of which will cause our future resultseadifferent — sometimes materially different — tiwes presently anticipate. Discussion about impartan
operational risks that our businesses encountebedound in the MD&A section and in the businessaliptions in Item 1. “Business” of this Form 10R&port. Below, we describe certain important
operational and strategic risks. Our reactions abenial future developments as well as our comprstireactions to those developments will affeat forure results.

Our growth is subject to global economic and politial risks.

We operate in virtually every part of the world asetve customers in more than 100 countries. 112 28dproximately 52% of our revenue was attribigablactivities outside the United States. Our
operations are subject to the effects of globalmetition and geopolitical risks. They are als@aféd by local economic environments, includingpiindn, recession, currency volatility and actual o
anticipated default on sovereign debt. Politicarades, some of which may be disruptive, can interfigth our supply chain, our customers and abwf activities in a particular location. While serof
these global economic and political risks can bdgkd using derivatives or other financial instrutseand some are insurable, such attempts to ntihase risks are costly and not always successful,
and our ability to engage in such mitigation magrdase or become even more costly as a result & wdatile market conditions.

We are subject to a wide variety of laws, regulatios and government policies that may change in sigigant ways.

Our businesses are subject to regulation undeda wariety of U.S. federal and state and non-lh8s] regulations and policies. There can be naasee that laws, regulations and policies will bet
changed in ways that will require us to modify business models and objectives or affect our retaminvestments by restricting existing activigesl products, subjecting them to escalating awsts
prohibiting them outright. In particular, U.S. andn-U.S. governments are undertaking a substaetiaion of the regulation and supervision of bankl non-
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bank financial institutions, consumer lending, ¢iver-the-counter derivatives market and tax lawsr@gulations, which changes may have an effe@Bis and GE Capital’s structure, operations,
liquidity, capital requirements, effective tax rated performance. For example, under the Dodd-Fveak Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act,@fpital is subject to prudential oversight by
the Federal Reserve, which subjects us to incremseevolving regulatory requirements. We are siggect to a number of trade control laws and megpris that may affect our ability to sell our
products in global markets. In addition, we arejscttto regulatory risks from laws that reduce aliewable lending rate or limit consumer borrowit@gal capital requirements that may increaseitie r
of not being able to retrieve assets, and chamgestlaw that may affect our return on investmeRts example, GE's effective tax rate is reducechnise active business income earned and indéfinite
reinvested outside the United States is taxedsatthean the U.S. rate. A significant portion ostteduction depends upon a provision of U.S. textfeat defers the imposition of U.S. tax on certitive
financial services income until that income is teipéed to the United States as a dividend. Thawigion is consistent with international tax noramsl permits U.S. financial services companies to
compete more effectively with non-U.S. financiadtitutions in global markets. This provision, whichd expired at the end of 2011, was reinstatdamuary 2013 retroactively for two years through th
end of 2013. This provision also had been schedoledpire and had been extended by Congress guesiious occasions, but there can be no assuthati will continue to be extended. In the event
the provision is not extended after 2013, the curteS. tax imposed on active financial servicepime earned outside the United States would inereaaking it more difficult for U.S. financial seces
companies to compete in global markets. If this/jsion is not extended, we expect our effectivertr to increase significantly after 2014. In &@iddi, efforts by public and private sectors to cohthe
growth of healthcare costs may lead to lower reirséments and increased utilization controls relata@tie use of our products by healthcare provideemitinued government scrutiny, including reviews
of the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (U.S. FDAgdical device pre-market authorization and postket surveillance processes, may impact the reaugints for marketing our products and slow
our ability to introduce new products, resultingaimadverse impact on our business. Furthermor&awe been, and expect to continue, participatird.5. and international governmental programs,
which require us to comply with strict governmentdulations. Inability to comply with these redidas could adversely affect our status in thesgepts and adversely affect our results of openatio
financial position and cash flows.

We are subject to legal proceedings and legal conighce risks.

We are subject to a variety of legal proceedingslagal compliance risks in virtually every parttbé world. We, our representatives, and the imtkssin which we operate are at times being revieon
investigated by regulators and other governmenithiaities, which could lead to enforcement actjdimes and penalties or the assertion of privisigation claims and damages. Additionally, we and
our subsidiaries are involved in a sizable numlieemediation actions to clean up hazardous wastesquired by federal and state laws. These iediuel dredging of polychlorinated biphenyls from a
40-mile stretch of the upper Hudson River in NewRyState, as described in Part Il, Item 7. “Managetis Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditemd Results of Operations” of this Form 10-K
Report. We are also subject to certain other Ipgateedings described in Item 3. “Legal Proceedingthis Form 10-K Report. While we believe tha¢ Wwave adopted appropriate risk management and
compliance programs, the global and diverse nathioeir operations means that legal and compliais&s will continue to exist and additional legabpeedings and other contingencies, the outcome of
which cannot be predicted with certainty, will &fsom time to time.

The success of our business depends on achieving suategic objectives, including through acquisitons, joint ventures, dispositions and restructuring.

With respect to acquisitions, joint ventures arstreesturing actions, we may not achieve expectedmes and other benefits as a result of varioumfacincluding integration and collaboration chatjes
such as personnel and technology. In addition, &g not achieve anticipated cost savings from resiring actions, which could result in lower margates. We also participate in a number of joint
ventures with other companies or government erisapin various markets around the world, includaigt ventures where we may have a lesser dedreentrol over the business operations, which
may expose us to additional operational, finanéégal or compliance risks. We also continue tdwaia the potential disposition of assets and fassias that may no longer help us meet our objsctive
When we decide to sell assets or a business, weenwunter difficulty in finding buyers or alterie exit strategies on acceptable terms in a timeyner, which could delay the accomplishment o
strategic
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objectives. Alternatively, we may dispose of a hass at a price or on terms that are less tharesehticipated. After reaching an agreement witlnyger or seller for the acquisition or dispositwfra
business, we are subject to satisfaction of prsieipconditions as well as to necessary regulaind/governmental approvals on acceptable termghwhay prevent us from completing the transaction.
Dispositions may also involve continued financialalvement in the divested business, such as throogtinuing equity ownership, guarantees, indeiemitr other financial obligations. Under these
arrangements, performance by the divested busisesseher conditions outside our control couleefffour future financial results.

Sustained increases in costs of pension and healtine benefits may reduce our profitability.

Our results of operations may be positively or tiggly affected by the amount of income or expenwseecord for our defined benefit pension plan§.denerally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) require that we calculate income or expeosehe plans using actuarial valuations. Theseat#ns reflect assumptions about financial maaket other economic conditions, which may change
based on changes in key economic indicators. Thst significant year-end assumptions we use to estipension expense for 2013 are the discounaratéhe expected long-term rate of return on the
plan assets. In addition, we are required to makan@mual measurement of plan assets and liabjlitiech may result in a significant change to egtlirough a reduction or increase to Accumulated
gains (losses) — net, Benefit plans. At the en0df2, the GE Pension Plan was underfunded, on aGQABP basis, by $13.3 billion, and the GE Suppletagy Pension Plan, an unfunded plan, had a
projected benefit obligation of $5.5 billion. Fodscussion regarding how our financial statemeatsbe affected by pension plan accounting polisies Critical Accounting Estimates — Pension
Assumptions in Part Il, Item 7. “Management’s Dission and Analysis of Financial Condition and Ressof Operations” and Note 12 to the consolidatearfcial statements in Part I, Item &itiancia
Statements and Supplementary Data” of this ForrK Report. Although GAAP expense and pension fundiogtributions are not directly related, key ecoimfactors that affect GAAP expense would
also likely affect the amount of cash we would citmite to pension plans as required under the Eyegl&®etirement Income Security Act (ERISA). Failto@chieve expected returns on plan assets
driven by various factors, which could include atoued environment of low interest rates or sigdimarket volatility, could also result in an ie&se to the amount of cash we would be required to
contribute to pension plans. In addition, upwarelsgure on the cost of providing healthcare benigficsirrent employees and retirees may increasesftiinding obligations. Although we have actively
sought to control increases in these costs, therde no assurance that we will succeed in limitiogt increases, and continued upward pressure cedilice our profitability.

Conditions in the financial and credit markets mayaffect the availability and cost of funding.

As disclosed in more detail in the Liquidity andrBavings section in Part 11, Item 7. “Managememiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations” of this Form 10-K Report,
a large portion of our borrowings is in the formcoinmercial paper and long-term debt. We contiouely on the availability of the unsecured debtkets to access funding for term and commercial
paper maturities for 2013 and beyond and to furrdbperations without incurring additional U.S. tixaddition, we rely on the availability of theromercial paper markets to refinance maturing
commercial paper debt throughout the year. In ot@léurther diversify our funding sources, GE Capiontinues to expand its reliance on alternaiverces of funding, including bank deposits,
securitizations and other asset-based funding.€Tten be no assurance that we will succeed inansirg the diversification of our funding sourceshat the short and long-term credit markets wéll b
available or, if available, that the cost of furglimill not substantially increase and affect ouerll profitability. Factors that may affect thea#lability of funding or cause an increase in aumding

costs include: a decreased reliance on short-tendlifig, such as commercial paper, in favor of lestigem funding arrangements; decreased capacityramelased competition among debt issuers;
increased competition for deposits in our affilintenks’ markets; and potential market disruptianstber impacts arising in the United States oroBarfrom developments in sovereign debt situatitins.
GE Capital’s cost of funding were to increase, dynadversely affect its competitive position ansLiiein lower net interest margins, earnings arghdws as well as lower returns on its shareot@ner
equity and invested capital.

If conditions in the financial markets deteriorate,they may adversely affect the business and resulté operations of GE Capital as well as the soundss of financial institutions and
governments we deal with.

If conditions in the financial markets deteriorategre can be no assurance that we will be aliecover fully the value of certain assets, inclgdyoodwill, intangibles and tax assets. In addition
deterioration in the economy and in default an@vecy rates could require us to increase allowafard®an losses, impairments or write-offs, which,
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depending on the amount of the increase, could hawaterial adverse effect on our business, fidupdsition and results of operations.

In addition, GE Capital has exposure to many déifeiindustries and counterparties, including sagargovernments, and routinely executes transagtidth counterparties in the financial services
industry, including brokers and dealers, commeiualks, investment banks and other institutioriahts. Many of these transactions expose GE Capitaledit risk in the event of default of its
counterparty or client. In addition, GE Capitalfedit risk may be increased when the value of tmié held cannot be realized through sale onisidiated at prices insufficient to recover the atiount
of the loan or derivative exposure due to it. GBpi@d also has exposure to these financial instiigt in the form of cash on deposit and unsecuedd idstruments held in its investment portfoliG&
Capital has policies relating to credit rating riegnents and to exposure limits to counterpartissdescribed in Note 22 to the consolidated firdrstatements in Part 11, Item 8. “Financial Stateits
and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Repart)ich are designed to limit credit and liquiditgki There can be no assurance, however, that asgdmr impairments to the carrying value of
financial assets would not materially and adverséfigct GE Capital’s business, financial position @esults of operations.

The real estate markets in which GE Capital particpates are highly dependent on economic conditionthe deterioration of which may adversely affect GECapital's business, financial position
and results of operations.

GE Capital participates in the commercial realtestaarket in two ways: it provides financing foe tacquisition, refinancing and renovation of vasitypes of properties, and, in a limited number of
markets, it also acquires equity positions in vasitypes of properties or real estate investmdihis.profitability of real estate investments igkly dependent upon the economic conditions inifipec
geographic markets in which the properties aretéatand the perceived value of those markets atriteeof sale. The level of transactions for resihge assets continues to remain below historwahs
in several markets in which GE Capital operateghHévels of unemployment, slowdown in businesiiagt excess inventory capacity and limited avhiligy of credit may continue to adversely affect
the value of real estate assets and collater@aioestate loans GE Capital holds. Under curremkenand credit conditions, there can be no asseras to the level of sales GE Capital will complet

the net sales proceeds it will realize. Also, o@ngy rates and market rent levels may worsen, wina result in impairments to the carrying valuegéity investments or increases in the allowance f
loan losses on commercial real estate loans.

GE Capital is also a residential mortgage lendeemain geographic markets outside the UnitedeStihtat have been, and may continue to be, adyexetted by declines in real estate values amdd
sale volumes, job losses, government austerity nneasind mandated programs, consumer bankruptuiesther factors that may negatively impact thelitygerformance of our mortgage loans. Our
allowance for loan losses on these mortgage Iaabased on our analysis of current and historieshguency, property values and loan performansevell as other management assumptions that may
be inaccurate predictors of credit performancdis €nvironment. There can be no assurance thdtisenvironment, credit performance will not baterially worse than anticipated and, as a result,
materially and adversely affect GE Capital’s bussdinancial position and results of operations.

Failure to maintain our credit ratings could adversely affect our cost of funds and related marginsjduidity, competitive position and access to capitanarkets.

The major debt rating agencies routinely evaluatedebt. This evaluation is based on a numberatbfa, which include financial strength as weltrasisparency with rating agencies and timeliness of
financial reporting. As of December 31, 2012, GH &ECC's long-term unsecured debt credit ratingfi@andard and Poor’s Ratings Service (S&P) was &he second highest of 22 rating
categories) with a stable outlook. The long-terreagured debt credit rating from Moody'’s Investoesv&e (Moody’s) for GE was Aa3 (the fourth highes®21 rating categories) and for GECC was Al
(the fifth highest of 21 credit ratings), both wittable outlooks. As of December 31, 2012, GE aB€G's short-term credit rating from S&P was A-1kgthighest rating category of six categories) and
from Moody’s was P-1 (the highest rating categdrfoar categories). There can be no assurancenthatill be able to maintain our credit ratings daiiure to do so could adversely affect our cost of
funds and related margins, liquidity, competitivasipion and access to capital markets. Various defitderivative instruments, guarantees and
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covenants would require posting additional camtatollateral in the event of a ratings downgradeich, depending on the extent of the downgradeldcbave a material adverse effect on our liquidity
and capital position.

Current conditions in the global economy and the miar industries we serve also may materially and adersely affect the business and results of operatisrof our non-financial businesses.

The business and operating results of our indutrisinesses have been, and will continue to ectfd by worldwide economic conditions, includizwnditions in the air and rail transportation, ejyer
generation, healthcare, home building and otheomaglustries we serve. As a result of slower gl@anomic growth, the credit market crisis, deolinconsumer and business confidence, continued
high unemployment levels, reduced levels of cagitglenditures, fluctuating commodity prices, bapkeies, government deficit reduction and austerigasures, including sequestrations, and other
challenges affecting the global economy, some ofgovernment and nogevernment customers have experienced deteriorafitiveir businesses, cash flow shortages, anttdi§ obtaining financinc
As a result, existing or potential customers magyler cancel plans to purchase our products andcss, including large infrastructure projectsgdanay not be able to fulfill their obligations te in a
timely fashion. In particular, the airline industsyhighly cyclical, and the level of demand for @mavel is correlated to the strength of the W&l international economies. An extended pericsla/
growth in the U.S. or internationally that resuitshe loss of business and leisure traffic cowueha material adverse effect on our airline custsrand the viability of their business. Servicetract
cancellations or customer dynamics such as eadyaéi retirements could affect our ability to fullecover our contract costs and estimated earnigsher, our vendors may be experiencing similar
conditions, which may impact their ability to fullfiheir obligations to us. If slower growth in tigobal economy continues for a significant perwodhere is additional significant deterioratiortfie
global economy, our results of operations, finalne@sition and cash flows could be materially adedy affected.

Increased IT security requirements, vulnerabilities threats and more sophisticated and targeted comper crime could pose a risk to our systems, netwogk products, solutions, services and
data.

Increased global IT security vulnerabilities, thseand more sophisticated and targeted IT-reldtadkes pose a risk to the security of our and aistamers’ and suppliers’ systems and networks laad t
confidentiality, availability and integrity of outata. While we attempt to mitigate these risks fmpleying a number of measures, including employaiing, comprehensive monitoring of our networks
and systems, and maintenance of backup and pratextstems, our systems, networks, products, salignd services remain potentially vulnerabledtitsonal known or unknown threats. We also
may have access to sensitive, confidential or peistata or information in certain of our businast&t is subject to privacy and security lawsutatipns and customer-imposed controls. Despite our
efforts to protect sensitive, confidential or peralodata or information, our facilities and systeamsl those of our customers, suppliers and thirtis@rvice providers may be vulnerable to security
breaches, theft, misplaced or lost data, programraird/or human errors that could potentially leathe compromising of sensitive, confidential orgoemal data or information, improper use of our
systems, software solutions or networks, unautbdraccess, use, disclosure, modification or desruof information, defective products, productidowntimes and operational disruptions, which in
turn could adversely affect our reputation, contpethess and results of operations.

We may face operational challenges that could hawematerial adverse effect on our business, reputatn, financial position and results of operations, iad we are dependent on maintenance of
existing product lines, market acceptance of new piduct introductions and product innovations for cortinued revenue growth.

We produce highly sophisticated products and peosjgecialized services for both our and third-pprgyducts that incorporate or use leading-edgentdolyy, including both hardware and software.

While we have built extensive operational processensure that the design, manufacture and segvifi such products meet the most rigorous qustépdards, there can be no assurance that we or our
customers or other third parties will not experienperational process failures or other problenwuding through intentional acts, that could resupotential product, safety, regulatory or

environmental risks. Such operational failureswaliy issues could have a material adverse effeaur business, reputation, financial position eeslilts of operations. In addition, the market&/frich

we operate are subject to technological changeemdre skilled talent. Our long-term operatingutesdepend substantially upon our ability to couélly develop, introduce, and market new and
innovative products, to modify existing productsctistomize products, to respond to technologicahge and to execute our product developmenténwiith our projected cost estimates.
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Our intellectual property portfolio may not prevent competitors from independently developing productsnd services similar to or duplicative to ours.

Our patents and other intellectual property maypmevent competitors from independently develomingelling products and services similar to or égtive of ours, and there can be no assurance that
the resources invested by us to protect our irteléé property will be sufficient or that our inttual property portfolio will adequately detersappropriation or improper use of our technologge. W
could also face competition in some countries whexdave not invested in an intellectual propedstfplio. We also face attempts by third-partiegéin unauthorized access to our information
technology systems for the purpose of impropertyuaing our trade secrets or confidential busiriesmation. The theft or unauthorized use or peétion of our trade secrets and other confidential
business information as a result of such an intidenld adversely affect our competitive positiowldhe value of our investment in research andldpweent. In addition, we may be the target of
aggressive and opportunistic enforcement of patanthird parties, including non-practicing entitidRegardless of the merit of such claims, respantdi infringement claims can be expensive and-time
consuming. If GE is found to infringe any thipdrty rights, we could be required to pay subsshdtimages or we could be enjoined from offeringeof our products and services. Also, there camd
assurances that we will be able to obtain or re-frem third parties the licenses we need in tharfitand there is no assurance that such licemselsecobtained on reasonable terms.

Significant raw material shortages, supplier capadty constraints, supplier production disruptions, sipplier quality and sourcing issues or price increass could increase our operating costs and
adversely impact the competitive positions of our ducts.

Our reliance on third-party suppliers, contract ofanturers and service providers, and commodityketarto secure raw materials, parts, componentsangystems used in our products exposes us to
volatility in the prices and availability of thesgaterials, parts, components, systems and senBoese of these suppliers or their sub-suppliersirmited- or sole-source suppliers. A disruption in
deliveries from our thirgsarty suppliers, contract manufacturers or serpiceiders, capacity constraints, production disnr, price increases, or decreased availabilityaef materials or commoditie
including as a result of catastrophic events, ctialde an adverse effect on our ability to meetomanmitments to customers or increase our operatsts. Quality and sourcing issues experienced by
third-party providers can also adversely affectgbality and effectiveness of our products andisesvand result in liability and reputational harm.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable
Item 2. Properties

Manufacturing operations are carried out at appnaexély 232 manufacturing plants located in 38 statehe United States and Puerto Rico and at appegely 283 manufacturing plants located in 42
other countries.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As previously reported, in March and April 2009as#holders filed purported class actions undefdtieral securities laws in the United States DistBourt for the Southern District of New York

naming as defendants GE, a number of GE officadu@ing our chief executive officer and chief firigal officer) and our directors. The complaintéieh have now been consolidated, seek unspecified
damages based on allegations related to statemegasling the GE dividend and projected losseseandings for GECC in 2009. In January 2012, theridtsCourt granted in part, and denied in part,
our motion to dismiss. In April 2012, the Districourt granted a portion of our motion for recoesation, resulting in the dismissal of plaintiftdaims under the Securities Act of 1933. In JuW{2,

the District Court denied plaintiffshotion seeking to amend their complaint to incltliealleged claims under the Securities Act of 1983anuary 2013, plaintiffs attempted unsuccdiysto file a new
amended complaint. We have filed a motion for juégt on the pleadings.

As also previously reported, in March 2010, a shelder derivative action was filed in the Unitect®s District
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Court for the Southern District of New York namiag defendants GE, a number of GE officers (inclydiar chief executive officer and chief financi#ficer) and our directors. The complaint seeks
unspecified damages and principally alleges breaohé&duciary duty and other causes of actionteeldo the GE dividend and SEC matter which GElvesbin August 2009 and alleged
mismanagement of our financial services busine$se3eptember 2011, our motion to dismiss was gaantn June 2012, plaintiff's motion to file an @ended complaint was denied. The plaintiff has
filed an appeal.

As also previously reported, in February and M&@h2, two shareholder derivative actions were fileblew York Supreme Court naming as defendantsa@ttimber of GE officers (including our ct
executive officer and chief financial officer) aadr directors. The complaints seek unspecifiedatgs and principally allege breaches of fiduciary énd other causes of action related to 2009
earnings forecasts for GE Capital, changes in tBali@idend and GE's credit rating in 2009 and GE28 commercial paper program. In June 2012, ttveseases were consolidated into a single
action. GE filed a motion to dismiss the consdkdaaction in December 2012.

We sold WMC, our U.S. mortgage business, in 200KMG\substantially discontinued all new loan originas in 2007, and was not a loan servicer. In cotioe with the sale, WMC retained certain
representation and warranty obligations relatddaas sold to third parties prior to the dispodahe business.

WMC is a party to 15 lawsuits relating to mortgdagn repurchase claims. The adverse parties setbases are trustees to private label residentiebage-backed securitization trusts or parties
claiming to act on their behalf. While the alleg#aims for relief vary from case to case, the claimps and counterclaims in these actions geneeaibert claims for breach of contract, indemniftrgt
and/or declaratory judgment, and seek specificoper@nce (repurchase) and/or monetary damages.

Four WMC cases are pending in the United Statesi€i€ourt for the District of Connecticut. All dfese cases were initiated in 2012, includingitwihe fourth quarter. Deutsche Bank National Trus
Company (Deutsche Bank) is the adverse party getbases, and Law Debenture Trust Company of New (Yf@aw Debenture) is the adverse party in one.cd$® Deutsche Bank complaints assert
claims on approximately $2,700 million of mortgdgans and seek to recover damages on these loamséss of approximately $1,300 million. The Lagb®nture complaint asserts claims on
approximately $1,000 million of mortgage loans, aedks to recover damages on these loans in extapproximately $425 million. GECC was initiallamed a defendant in each of the Connecticut
cases and has been dismissed from all of those was®ut prejudice.

Seven WMC cases are pending in the United Statetsi@iCourt for the District of Minnesota agaits Bank National Association (US Bank), of whiclufevere initiated by WMC seeking declaratory
judgment. Six of these cases were filed in 20@2l¢iding one in the fourth quarter), and one wieslfin 2011. The Minnesota cases involve claimgmproximately $1,800 million of mortgage loz
and do not specify the amount of damages plairgétsk to recover.

One WMC case is pending in New York State SupremertCand was initiated in the fourth quarter 20This action was filed by BNY and names as defetsdfdfMC, GECC, J.P. Morgan Mortgage
Acquisition Corp., and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.AisTase arises from the same securitization agbine Minnesota cases. BNY asserts claims onoappately $1,900 million of mortgage loans,
and seeks to recover damages in excess of $556mill

Three WMC cases are pending in the United Statssi€ti Court for the Southern District of New Yorkine case in which the plaintiff is The Bank ofWN€ork Mellon (BNY) was filed in the third
quarter 2012, asserts claims on approximately $8lln of mortgage loans, and seeks to recoveratges in excess of $278 million. Two of the casereviiled by the Federal Housing Finance Age
(FHFA), claiming to act on behalf of a securitipatitrustee, in the fourth quarter 2012. The sunsasmwith notice filed by the FHFA do not allege #imeount of loans at issue in the cases or allege th
amount of any damages.

The amounts of the mortgage loans at issue in tteeses (discussed above) reflect the purchaseqricepaid principal balances of the loans at itine of purchase and do not give effect to pay downs
accrued interest or fees,
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or potential recoveries based upon the underlyaiigteral. Of the mortgage loans involved in thizsesuits, approximately $3,800 million were inchadin WMC’s pending claims at December 31,
2012. The claims relating to other mortgage la@stsncluded in WMC'’s pending claims consist of gding-based claims in two cases on approximateB0$8illion of mortgage loans and, in six cases,
claims for repurchase or damages based on theedlfegure to provide notice of defective loansdwh of a corporate representation and warrantfpanon-specific claims for rescissionary damages
on approximately $3,100 million of mortgage loar®ee Note 2 to the consolidated financial statesnierPart 1, Item 8 “Financial Statements and Sentary Data” of this Form 10-K Report for
additional information.

As previously reported, in 2000, GE and the Enwvinental Protection Agency (EPA) entered into a cohdecree relating to PCB cleanup in the Massadtsuaeea of the Housatonic River. In May 2(
the EPA issued a status report describing poteciateptual approaches to a 10-mile stretch ofitee downstream from a previously remediated ale are currently discussing this report with
EPA. A proposed remedy may be issued in thelimiftof 2013.

The company is reporting the following matter imgmiance with SEC requirements to disclose envirental proceedings where the government is a patngially involving monetary sanctions of
$100,000 or greater:

As previously reported, in June 2008, EPA issuadti&e of violation and in January 2011 filed a @éamt alleging non-compliance with the Clean AictAat a power cogeneration plant in Homer City,
PA. The Pennsylvania Department of Environmentatdtion, the New York Attorney General’s Officedathe New Jersey Department of Environmental Ptiotetave intervened in the EPA case.
The plant is operated exclusively by EME Homer @gneration L.P., and is owned and leased to EM&étcCity Generation L.P. by subsidiaries of GEC@ ane other entity. EME Homer City
Generation L.P. has entered into an agreementidther City Generation L.P., a subsidiary of GEGQransfer the operational control of the planiitamer City Generation L.P. upon satisfaction of
certain conditions. The complaints did not indécatspecific penalty amount but make referencéatatery fines. In October 2011, the U.S. Dist@durt for the Western District of Pennsylvania geal
a motion to dismiss the matter with prejudice wifard to all federal counts, and with leave tfileein state court for the non-federal counts. @ecember 8, 2011, EPA filed notice of its intent to
appeal. NY, NJ and PA filed similar notices on Bmber 9, 2011.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable
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Part Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

With respect to “Market Information,” in the Unit&tates, GE common stock is listed on the New Ridck Exchange (its principal market). GE commalsis also listed on the London Stock
Exchange and on Euronext Paris. Trading pricesgaarted on the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., Casitp Transactions Tape, and dividend informataiiofv:

Common stock market price Dividends
(In dollars) High Low declarec
2012
Fourth quarte $ 23.18 $ 19.87 $ 0.19
Third quartel 22.96 19.36 0.17
Second quarte 20.84 18.02 0.17
First quartel 21.00 18.23 0.17
2011
Fourth quarte $ 18.28 $ 14.02 $ 0.17
Third quartel 19.53 14.72 0.15
Second quarte 20.85 17.97 0.15
First quartel 21.65 18.12 0.14

As of January 31, 2013, there were approximateB,@® shareowner accounts of record.
During the fourth quarter of 2012, we purchasedehaf our common stock as follows.

Approximate

dollar value
Total number of shares tha
of shares may yet be
purchasec purchasec
as part of under our
Total number Average our share share
of shares price paid repurchase repurchase
Period (a) purchasec(a)(b) per share program a)(c) program(c)
(Shares in thousand
2012
October 54,941 $ 21.90 54,573
Novembet 14,970 $ 20.61 14,732
Decembe 31,044 $ 21.10 30,692
Total 100,955 $ 21.46 99,997 $ 12.7billion
(a) Information is presented on a fiscal calendar basissistent with our quarterly financial reporti

(b) This category includes 958 thousand shares repsedh@om our various benefit plans, primarily the Savings and Security Program (the S&SP). Thrahgl8&SP, a defined contributic
plan with Internal Revenue Service Code 401(k)uiestt, we repurchase shares resulting from changasestment options by plan participar

(c) Shares are repurchased through the 2007 GE ShpredRase Program (the Program). Effective Deceritye?012, we increased the existing Program awhton by $10 billion to $25 billio
and extended the Program, which would have othereskpired on December 31, 2013, through 2015. A3eaember 31, 2012, we had repurchased a totgipybaimately $12.3 billion of
common stock under the Program. Effective Febrr2013, we increased this Program authorizatjoarbadditional $10 billion resulting in authoriat to repurchase up to a total of $35
billion of our common stock through 2015. The Peogris flexible and shares are acquired with a coatlwn of borrowings and free cash flow from thélpumarkets and other sources,
including GE Stock Direct, a stock purchase plat th available to the publi

(22)



For information regarding compensation plans unagch equity securities are authorized for issuasee Note 16 to the consolidated financial statgsnia Part Il, Item 8.Financial Statements a

Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.

Five-year financial performance graph: 2008-2012

Comparison of five-year cumulative return among GE,S&P 500 and Dow Jones Industrial Average

The annual changes for the five-year period shawthé graph on this page are based on the assumth#n$100 had been invested in GE stock, thed@tadn& Poor’s 500 Stock Index (S&P 500) and
the Dow Jones Industrial Average (DJIA) on Decen8igr2007, and that all quarterly dividends weriewested. The total cumulative dollar returns shanrthe graph represent the value that such

investments would have had on December 31, 2012.

Five-Year Financial Performance

546 $46
5
$20 4 | —pJ
----- 58P
$_ T T T 1
2007 2008 2009 2010 012
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
GE $ 100 $ 46 $ 46 $ 56 $ 57 69
S&P 500 100 63 80 92 94 109
DJIA 100 68 83 95 103 114
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table provides key information for @wlidated, GE and GECC.

(Dollars in millions; pe-share amounts in dollar: 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
General Electric Company and
Consolidated Affiliates
Revenues and other incot $ 147,35¢ $ 147,286  $ 149,567 $ 154,396 $ 179,76¢
Earnings from continuing operations attributabl¢ht®e Compan' 14,679 14,227 12,613 10,881 17,786
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, f¢axes,
attributable to the Compar (1,038 (76, (969, 144 (376,
Net earnings attributable to the Compi 13,641 14,151 11,644 11,025 17,410
Dividends declared(z 7,372 7,498 5,212 6,785 12,649
Return on average GE shareow’ equity(b) 12.1% 12.1% 12.3% 11.7% 17.1%
Per common shai
Earnings from continuing operatio- diluted $ 139 $ 124  $ 115  $ 0.99 $ 1.75
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati- diluted (0.10 (0.01 (0.09 0.01 (0.04
Net earning— diluted 1.29 1.23 1.06 1.01 1.72
Earnings from continuing operatio- basic 1.39 1.24 1.15 0.99 1.76
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati— basic (0.10 (0.01 (0.09 0.01 (0.04
Net earning— basic 1.29 1.24 1.06 1.01 1.72
Dividends declare 0.70 0.61 0.46 0.61 1.24
Stock price rang 23.1¢-18.02 21.65-14.02 19.7(-13.7¢ 17.52-5.87 38.52-12.5¢
Year-end closing stock pric 20.99 17.91 18.29 15.13 16.20
Cash and equivalen 77,356 84,501 78,943 70,479 48,378
Total assets of continuing operatic 684,192 716,46€ 735,431 756,897 773,191
Total asset 685,32¢ 718,18¢ 748,491 782,714 798,39¢
Long-term borrowings 236,084 243,45¢ 293,328 336,172 320,522
Common shares outstandi- average (in thousand 10,522,92: 10,591,14¢ 10,661,07¢ 10,613,717 10,079,92:
Common shareowner accour average 537,00C 570,00C 588,00C 605,00C 604,00C
Employees at year end(
United State: 134,00C 131,00C 121,00C 122,00C 139,00C
Other countrie: 171,00C 170,00C 152,00C 168,00C 169,00C
Total employees(c 305,00C 301,00C 273,00C 290,00C 308,00C
GE data
Shor-term borrowings $ 6,041 $ 2,184 $ 456 % 504 $ 2,375
Long-term borrowings 11,428 9,405 9,656 11,681 9,827
Noncontrolling interest 777 1,006 4,098 5,797 6,678
GE shareowne’ equity 123,02€ 116,43€ 118,93€ 117,291 104,665
Total capital investe $ 141,272 $ 129,033  §$ 133,14€ 3 135,273 % 123,54¢
Return on average total capital investet 11.7% 11.7% 12.0% 10.7% 15.7%
Borrowings as a percentage of total capital invi{sie 12.4% 9.0% 7.6% 9.0% 9.9%
Working capital(b] $ 1,031  $ (10, $ (1618 $ (1,596 $ 3,904
GECC data
Revenue! $ 46,039 $ 49,068 $ 49,856 $ 51,776  $ 68,541
Earnings from continuing operations attributabl&®6CC 7,401 6,584 3,120 1,253 7,470
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, fiéaxes,
attributable to GEC( (1,186 (74, (965, 162 (415,
Net earnings attributable to GEC 6,215 6,510 2,155 1,415 7,055
Net earnings attributable to GECC common shareo' 6,092 6,510 2,155 1,415 7,055
GECC shareowners' equ 81,890 77,110 68,984 70,833 53,279
Total borrowings and bank depos 397,30C 443,097 470,52C 493,324 512,74¢
Ratio of debt to equity at GEC 4.85:1(d) 5.75:1(d) 6.82:1(d) 6.96:1 9.62:1
Total asset $ 539,22¢ $ 584,53€ $ 605,255 $ 650,372 $ 661,00¢
Transactions between GE and GECC have been elidiriadm the consolidated informatic
(a) Included $1,031 million of preferred stock dividen@806 million related to our preferred stock regéon) in 2011, $300 million in both 2010 and 2Q08 $75 million in 200¢

(b) Indicates terms are defined in the Gloss

(c) Excludes NBC Universal employees of 14,000, 1480® 15,000 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respecti

(d) Ratios of 3.66:1, 4.23:1 and 5.25:1 for 2012, 28id 2010, respectively, net of cash and equivaemiswith classification of hybrid debt as equ
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations
Operations

The consolidated financial statements of GenemdtEit Company (the Company) combine the industnahufacturing and services businesses of Gentetrie Company (GE) with the financial
services businesses of General Electric Capitgb@ation (GECC or financial services). Unless otlige indicated by the context, we use the terms™&tfl “GECC"” on the basis of consolidation
described in Note 1 to the consolidated finand&esnents in Part Il, Item 8. “Financial Statemexrtd Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.

In the accompanying analysis of financial inforraatiwe sometimes use information derived from cbdated financial information but not presentedir financial statements prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting princig@®AAP). Certain of these data are considered “n@m8 financial measures” under the U.S. Securities Bxchange Commission (SEC) rules. For
such measures, we have provided supplemental etfas and reconciliations in the Supplementalrmization section.

We present Management's Discussion of Operatiofigénparts: Overview of Our Earnings from 2010athgh 2012, Global Risk Management, Segment Opesti®eographic Operations and
Environmental Matters. Unless otherwise indicateel refer to captions such as revenues and othemie@nd earnings from continuing operations attable to the company simply as “revenues” and
“earnings” throughout this Management's Discussiod Analysis. Similarly, discussion of other mattier our consolidated financial statements reledeontinuing operations unless otherwise
indicated.

On February 22, 2012, we merged our wholly-owndibigliary, General Electric Capital Services, IGECS), with and into GECS’ whollgwned subsidiary, GECC. The merger simplified anarficia
services’ corporate structure by consolidatingriirial services entities and assets within our degdion and simplifying Securities and Exchange @ossion and regulatory reporting. Upon the merger,
GECC became the surviving corporation and assuthefl @ECS’ rights and obligations and became whaollvned directly by General Electric Company. Goaficial services segment, GE Capital,
continues to comprise the continuing operationSBCC, which now include the run-off insurance ofiers previously held and managed in GECS. Unléssrwise indicated, references to GECC and
the GE Capital segment in this Form 10-K Repodteeto the entity or segment as they exist subseda¢he February 22, 2012 merger.

Effective October 1, 2012, we reorganized the forBreergy Infrastructure segment into three segmeitswer & Water, Oil & Gas and Energy Managemexwit\ae began reporting these as separate
segments beginning with this Form 10-K Report. Mée acorganized our Home & Business Solutions sedgiime transferring our Intelligent Platforms busaéo Energy Management. Results for 2012
and prior periods in this Form 10-K Report are région this basis.

We supplement our GAAP net earnings and earningshgee (EPS) reporting by also reporting operagggings and operating EPS (non-GAAP measuregxaiipg earnings and operating EPS
include service costs and plan amendment amodizébir our principal pension plans as these cegigesent expenses associated with employee besafited. Operating earnings and operating EPS
exclude non-operating pension cost/income suchtaseist costs, expected return on plan assetsandash amortization of actuarial gains and losa&sbelieve that this reporting provides better
transparency to the employee benefit costs of nocipal pension plans and Company operating result
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Overview of Our Earnings from 2010 through 2012

Earnings from continuing operations attributabléhis Company increased 3% to $14.7 billion in 2a&@ 13% to $14.2 billion in 2011, reflecting théatve stabilization of overall economic conditions
during the last two years. Operating earnings (@@#P measure) which exclude noperating pension costs increased 8% to $16.bbilfi 2012 compared with a 20% increase to $14li@in 2011
Earnings per share (EPS) from continuing operatiooreased 12% to $1.39 in 2012 compared with arir@¥ease to $1.24 in 2011. Operating EPS (non-GA¥Rsure) increased 16% to $1.52 in 2012
compared with a 16% increase to $1.31 in 2011. &jmey EPS excluding the effects of our 2011 prefiéstock redemption (non-GAAP measure) increasét tbd1.52 in 2012 compared with $1.38 in
2011. We believe that we are seeing continued si§sgbilization in much of the global economyclirding in financial services, as GECC earningsifiapntinuing operations attributable to the
Company increased 12% in 2012 and 111% in 2011ebletings attributable to the Company decreaseth42812 reflecting an increase of losses from ditcoied operations partially offset by a 3%
increase in earnings from continuing operationd.déenings attributable to the Company increaséd 222011, as losses from discontinued operatio@dil1 decreased and earnings from continuing
operations increased 13%. We begin 2013 with erdelsacklog of $210 billion, continue to investirarket-leading technology and services and expembitinue our trend of revenue and earnings
growth.

Power & Water (18% and 27% of consolidated thre-yevenues and total segment profit, respectivelygnues increased 10% in 2012 primarily as dtreshigher volume mainly driven by an
increase in equipment sales at the Wind busingssiatreasing 4% in 2011 primarily as a resuligher volume. Segment profit increased 8% in 20@arily driven by higher volume. Segment
profit decreased 13% in 2011 primarily due to lowerductivity and lower prices in the wind turbinassiness.

Oil & Gas (9% and 8% of consolidated three-yeaenexes and total segment profit, respectively) reesrincreased 12% in 2012 primarily as a resutigiier volume driven by acquisitions and higher
sales of both equipment and services, after ingrgai% in 2011 as a result of acquisitions andhé@igrolume. Segment profit increased 16% in 20123mily on higher volume and increased
productivity reflecting increased equipment marg®sgment profit increased 18% in 2011 primarilyein by higher volume.

Energy Management (4% and 1% of consolidated theae-revenues and total segment profit, respegivel’enues increased 15% in 2012 primarily asaltef acquisitions after increasing 24% in
2011 driven by acquisitions and higher volume. Senprofit increased 68% in 2012 primarily drivgntigher prices and increased other income. Segprefit decreased 50% in 2011 primarily driy
by the effects of inflation and decreased otheorime.

Aviation (13% and 17% of consolidated three-yeaeneies and total segment profit, respectively) mees increased 6% in 2012 as a result of higheepind higher volume primarily driven by
increased commercial and military engine salesneg profit increased 7%, in 2012 as a result ghér prices partially offset by the effects of aifbns and lower productivity. In 2011, Aviation
revenues increased 7% as a result of higher voamdenigher prices driven by equipment sales andcsgsy. Segment profit increased 6% in 2011 asuwtreShigher volume and higher prices.

Healthcare (12% and 14% of consolidated three-ymamnues and total segment profit, respectively@maes increased 1% in 2012 on higher equipmees saith the strongest growth in emerging
markets. Segment profit increased 4% in 2012 asultrof increased productivity. Revenues incred9édn 2011 due to higher volume of both equipn@end service sales. Segment profit increased 2%
in 2011 primarily due to increased productivity.

Transportation (3% and 3% of consolidated three-y@aenues and total segment profit, respectivelygnues increased 15% in 2012 due to higher volmdehigher prices related to increased
equipment sales and services. Segment profit inece@86% in 2012 as a result of higher prices aaeased productivity, reflecting improved servicargins. Revenues increased 45% in 2011 as a
of higher volume related to increased equipmermssahd services. Segment profit increased over 10@&11 as a result of increased productivityleafng improved service margins and higher
volume.
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Home & Business Solutions (5% and 2% of consoldi#iteee-year revenues and total segment profipexi/ely) revenues have increased 4% in 2012 antkdsed 3% in 2011. In 2012 revenues
increased as a result of higher prices at Applian€ke revenue decrease in 2011 was related ta loleme at Appliances. Segment profit increase¥ 31 2012 primarily as a result of higher prices
partially offset by the effects of inflation. Segmigrofit decreased 41% in 2011 as a result okffects of inflation.

GE Capital (33% and 28% of consolidated three-yeaenues and total segment profit, respectivelyeaenings increased 12% in 2012 and 111% in 20&ltal the continued stabilization in the overall
economic environment. Increased stability in tinarficial markets has contributed to lower lossesaasignificant increase in segment profit to $7lHom in 2012 and $6.6 billion in 2011. We also
reduced our ending net investment (ENI), excludiagh and equivalents, from $513 billion at Janda009 to $419 billion at December 31, 2012. GEEC& diversely funded and smaller, more foci
finance company with strong positions in severahowrcial mid-market and consumer financing segments

Overall, acquisitions contributed $2.8 billion, G4illion and $0.3 billion to consolidated revenire2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, excludirgeffects of acquisition gains. Our consolidatet ne
earnings included $0.2 billion, an insignificant@mt and $0.1 billion in 2012, 2011 and 2010, repely, from acquired businesses. We integrateisitipns as quickly as possible. Only revenues and
earnings from the date we complete the acquistioough the end of the fourth following quarter ateibuted to such businesses. Dispositions dfsstaed our ongoing results through lower revenofe
$5.1 billion, $12.6 billion and $3.0 billion in 2812011 and 2010, respectively. The effects ofaligfons on net earnings were decreases of $0i8rbih both 2012 and 2011 and an increase of $0.1
billion in 2010.

Discontinued Operations.Consistent with our goal of reducing GECC ENI aocuising our businesses on selective financial sesywroducts where we have domain knowledge, kisadbution, and
the ability to earn a consistent return on capitdlile managing our overall balance sheet sizerisigin 2012, we sold Consumer Ireland. Discorgithoperations also includes GE Money Japan (our
Japanese personal loan business, Lake, and oureXgpanortgage and card businesses, excluding\@stment in GE Nissen Credit Co., Ltd.), our U.8rtgage business (WMC), BAC Credomatic
GECF Inc. (BAC), our U.S. recreational vehicle amarine equipment financing business (Consumer RYird Consumer Mexico, Consumer Singapore andCamsumer home lending operations in
Australia and New Zealand (Australian Home Lendird) of these operations were previously repoiitethe GE Capital segment.

We reported the operations described above asrdinoed operations for all periods presented. Eathér information about discontinued operatioesg, “Segment Operations — Discontinued
Operations” in this Item and Note 2 to the consaid financial statements in Part II, Item 8. “Ficial Statements and Supplementary Data” of thisnFt0-K Report.

We declared $7.4 billion in dividends in 2012Common per-share dividends increased 15% to $8.2012 after an increase of 33% to $0.61 in 2014.iWMreased our quarterly dividend three times
during 2011 and 2012, and on February 15, 2013Board of Directors approved a quarterly dividen&@19 per share of common stock, which is payalpel 25, 2013, to shareowners of record at
close of business on February 25, 2013. In 20412810, we declared $1.0 billion (including $0.8idn as a result of our redemption of preferreatk) and $0.3 billion in preferred stock dividends,
respectively. See Note 15 to the consolidated fiimistatements in Part II, Item 8. “Financial 8taents and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-KdRefor additional information.

Except as otherwise noted, the analysis in the ireieaof this section presents the results of GEn(@ECC included on a one-line basis) and GEC@.t8e Segment Operations section for a more
detailed discussion of the businesses within GEGEEC.

Significant matters relating to our Statement ofriieys are explained below.
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GE sales of product servicesvere $43.4 billion in 2012, an increase of 4% coragavith 2011, and operating profit from produatvéees was $12.5 billion in 2012, an increase of &mpared with
2011. Both the sales and operating profit of prodecvices increases were at Power & Water, Oila& Jransportation and Energy Management. GE eafg®duct services were $41.9 billion in 2011,
an increase of 14% compared with 2010, and operatiofit from product services was $11.8 billion2@11, an increase of 15% compared with 2010. Bwlsales and operating profit of product
services increases were at Oil & Gas, Energy Mamageé, Aviation, Transportation and Healthcare.

Postretirement benefit planscosts were $5.5 billion, $4.1 billion and $3.0ibifl in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Costseimeed in 2012 primarily due to the continued aization of 2008
investment losses and the effects of lower discoates (principal pension plans discount rate desere from 5.28% at December 31, 2010 to 4.21% egmber 31, 2011). Costs increased in 2011
primarily due to the continued amortization of 2088estment losses and the effects of lower distmates (principal pension plans discount rate ekexed from 5.78% at December 31, 2009 to 5.28% at
December 31, 2010).

Our discount rate for our principal pension planBecember 31, 2012 was 3.96%, which reflectedecttistorically low interest rates. Considering turrent and target asset allocations, as well as
historical and expected returns on various categaf assets in which our plans are invested, we hasumed that long-term returns on our pringpakion plan assets will be 8.0% for cost recogmiti
in 2013, compared to 8.0% in both 2012 and 20118a5% in 2010. GAAP provides for recognition offdiences between assumed and actual returns @egical no longer than the average future
service of employees. See the Critical Accountiatiriates section for additional information.

We expect the costs of our postretirement benfitscrease in 2013 by approximately $0.4 billiencampared to 2012, primarily because of the effetadditional 2008 investment loss amortization
and lower discount rates. Based on our currennagsons, we expect that loss amortization relatedur principal pension plans will peak in 2013 aasla result, our postretirement benefits cosiald
decline in 2014.

Pension expense for our principal pension plana GAAP basis was $3.8 billion, $2.4 billion andIhbillion in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. @pi@g pension costs (non-GAAP) for these plans
were $1.7 billion in 2012 and $1.4 billion in ba&B11 and 2010. Operating earnings include sendseand prior service cost amortization for oungipal pension plans as these costs represent sag
associated with employee service. Operating easrémglude non-operating pension costs/income ssighiterest cost, expected return on plan asseta@mdash amortization of actuarial gains and
losses. Operating pension costs increased in 2@t@ply due to the effects of lower discount rasesl additional prior service cost amortizatiorutiasg from 2011 union negotiations. We expect
operating pension costs for these plans will beua$t.7 billion in 2013.

The GE Pension Plan was underfunded by $13.3 bifliche end of 2012 as compared to $13.2 billtdbexember 31, 2011. The GE Supplementary Pend#m Which is an unfunded plan, had
projected benefit obligations of $5.5 billion arei $billion at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respelsti Our underfunding at year-end 2012 was reddficonsistent with 2011 as the effects of lower
discount rates and liability growth were primardiffset by higher investment returns (11.7% retar@012). Our principal pension plans discount detereased from 4.21% at December 31, 2011 to
3.96% at December 31, 2012, which increased thsipeibenefit obligation at year-end 2012 by apprately $2.0 billion. A 100 basis point increas@im pension discount rate would decrease the
pension benefit obligation at year-end by approxatya$7.4 billion. Our GE Pension Plan assets iaseel from $42.1 billion at the end of 2011 to $43lllfon at December 31, 2012, primarily driven by
higher investment returns that were partially dffsebenefit payments made during the year. Assfetise GE Pension Plan are held in trust, soletyfe benefit of Plan participants, and are notlabke
for general company operations.
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On July 6, 2012, the U.S. Government enacted thevity Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Aaftijch contained provisions that changed the inteste methodology used to calculate Employee
Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) minimum pensfunding requirements in the U.S. This changkiced our neaterm annual cash funding requirements for the Gisi®e Plan. We contribut:
$0.4 billion to the GE Pension Plan in 2012. We ot required to contribute to the GE Pension Ri&013.

On an ERISA basis, our preliminary estimate is thatGE Pension Plan was approximately 100% fuaddanuary 1, 2013. Based on this, our currentdstshate of the projected 2014 GE Pension
Plan required contribution is approximately $0.idn.

At December 31, 2012, the fair value of asset®fmrother pension plans was $3.9 billion less themrespective projected benefit obligations. Tovagarable amount at December 31, 2011, was $3.3
billion. This increase was primarily attributabtelower discount rates. We expect to contribut& $llion to our other pension plans in 2013, thens as in both 2012 and 2011.

The unfunded liability for our principal retireedith and life plans was $10.9 billion and $12.1lidwil at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivéijs @lecrease was primarily attributable to a plan
amendment that affected retiree health and lifeefieeligibility for certain salaried plan parti@pts and lower cost trends which were partiallgetfby the effects of lower discount rates (retirealth

and life plans discount rate decreased from 4.09Beaember 31, 2011 to 3.74% at December 31, 20%@)tund our retiree health benefits on a pay-asgo basis. We expect to contribute $0.6 billion
to these plans in 2013 compared with actual cauntiobs of $0.5 billion and $0.6 billion in 2012 aR@11, respectively.

The funded status of our postretirement benefasphlnd future effects on operating results deparetonomic conditions and investment performaRoeadditional information about funded status,
components of earnings effects and actuarial assomsp see Note 12 to the consolidated financakstents in Part II, Item 8. “Financial Statememtd Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.

GE other costs and expensewe selling, general and administrative expenslessd costs were 17.5%, 18.5% and 16.3% of totada®ds in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Th 2@trease was
primarily driven by increased sales and the effe€tglobal cost reduction initiatives, partiallyfeét by increased acquisition-related costs. Tls¢ mejority of the 2011 increase was driven by aigh
pension costs and increased costs to support giobaih.

Interest on borrowings and other financial chargesamounted to $12.5 billion, $14.5 billion and $1billion in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Sahsally all of our borrowings are in financial
services, where interest expense was $11.7 biid8,9 billion and $14.5 billion in 2012, 2011 a2@{10, respectively. GECC average borrowings dedlfrem 2011 to 2012 and from 2010 to 2011, in
line with changes in average GECC assets. Inteaigst have decreased over the three-year periodply attributable to declining global benchmankerest rates. GECC average borrowings were
$421.9 billion, $452.7 billion and $472.0 billion 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The GECC geetamposite effective interest rate was 2.8% #t228.1% in 2011 and 3.1% in 2010. In 2012,
GECC average assets of $562.1 billion were 5% ldtwam in 2011, which in turn were 3% lower thar2@10. See the Liquidity and Borrowings sectiondaliscussion of liquidity, borrowings and
interest rate risk management.

Income taxeshave a significant effect on our net earnings. Agobal commercial enterprise, our tax rates afecsfd by many factors, including our global mixeainings, the extent to which those
global earnings are indefinitely reinvested outsideUnited States, legislation, acquisitions, disflons and tax characteristics of our income. @xrrates are also affected by tax incentiveséhiced
in the U.S. and other countries to encourage apdasticertain types of activity. Our tax returne asutinely audited and settlements of issues daiséhese audits sometimes affect our tax promsio

GE and GECC file a consolidated U.S. federal inctemeeturn. This enables GE to use GECC tax demhstnd credits to reduce the tax that otherwiseldvhave been payable by GE.
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Income taxes on consolidated earnings from comnoperations were 14.4% in 2012 compared with%8r82011 and 7.3% in 2010.

Our consolidated income tax rate is lower thanUt®. statutory rate primarily because of benefitsnflowertaxed global operations, including the use of gldimading structures. There is a benefit fi
global operations as non-U.S. income is subjefridal country tax rates that are significantly ekhe 35% U.S. statutory rate. These non-U.S. egsnhave been indefinitely reinvested outside tf& U
and are not subject to current U.S. income tax.rakeof tax on our indefinitely reinvested non-UeSrnings is below the 35% U.S. statutory rateabse we have significant business operations subjec
to tax in countries where the tax on that incomlevier than the U.S. statutory rate and becauséuB@s the majority of its non-U.S. operations thgldoreign companies that are subject to low fareig
taxes.

We expect our ability to benefit from non-U.S. inbetaxed at less than the U.S. rate to continugesuto changes in U.S. or foreign law, includthg expiration of the U.S. tax law provision deifegr
tax on active financial services income, as dised$s Note 14 to the consolidated financial statemén Part Il, Item 8. “Financial Statements amg@ementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report. In
addition, since this benefit depends on managemerténtion to indefinitely reinvest amounts ougstte U.S., our tax provision will increase to éx¢éent we no longer indefinitely reinvest foreign
earnings.

Our benefits from lower-taxed global operationgéased to $2.2 billion in 2012 from $2.1 billion2011 principally because of the realization oféféa for prior year losses and a decrease in ntirre
year losses for which there was not a full tax fien@ur benefits from lower-taxed global operasadeclined to $2.1 billion in 2011 from $2.8 bitliin 2010 principally because of lower earnings
indefinitely reinvested in our operations subjectax in countries where the tax on that incomevser than the U.S. statutory rate and a decreateeibenefit from audit resolutions. The benetinf
lower-taxed global operations include in 2012 and®11 $0.1 billion, and in 2010 $0.4 billion deeatudit resolutions. To the extent global interag#s and not).S. operating income increase we wc
expect tax benefits to increase, subject to managésintention to indefinitely reinvest those eags.

Our benefit from lower taxed global operations irfeld the effect of the lower foreign tax rate oniadefinitely reinvested non-U.S. earnings whichyided a tax benefit of $1.3 billion in 2012, $1.5
billion in 2011 and $2.0 billion in 2010. The ta@refit from non-U.S. income taxed at a local copnather than the U.S. statutory tax rate is reggbim the effective tax rate reconciliation in time
“Tax on global earnings including exports.”

The decrease in the consolidated effective taxfrate 2011 to 2012 was due in significant partite high effective tax rate in 2011 on the pre-tam@n the NBC Universal (NBCU) transaction with
Comcast Corporation (Comcast) discussed in NotetBet consolidated financial statements in Paitdin 8, “Financial Statements and SupplementaaDatt this Form 10-K Report. This gain increased
the 2011 consolidated effective tax rate by 12/8qm@age points. The effective tax rate was alg@italue to the benefit of the high tax basis inghtty sold in the Business Properties disposition

Cash income taxes paid in 2012 were $3.2 billieflecting the effects of changes to temporary dffiees between the carrying amount of assets abiditles and their tax bases and the timing of tax
payments to governments.

The increase in the consolidated effective tax frate 2010 to 2011 was due in significant parthte high effective tax rate on the geec gain on the NBCU transaction with Comcast dised above ar
in Note 2. The effective tax rate was also highegduse of the increase in 2011 of income in hi¢drexd jurisdictions. This decreased the relatfiece of our tax benefits from lower-taxed global
operations. In addition, the consolidated incomerate increased from 2010 to 2011 due to theedser;, discussed above, in the benefit from loweetglobal operations and the lower benefit from
audit resolutions.

(30)



On January 2, 2013, the American Taxpayer Reli¢foh®012 was enacted and the law extended sepeaisions, including a two year extension of th&Uax provision deferring tax on active
financial services income retroactive to JanuargQiL,2. Under accounting rules, a tax law changakisn into account in calculating the income taovjmion in the period in which enacted. Because th
extension was enacted into law after the end o2tk expense for 2012 does not reflect retroaaitension of expired provisions.

A more detailed analysis of differences betweent® federal statutory rate and the consolidaatel s well as other information about our incéaxeprovisions, is provided in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements in Part II, I@niFinancial Statements and Supplementary DatahisfForm 10-K Report. The nature of businessviigts and associated income taxes differ for GE
and for GECC and a separate analysis of each septed in the paragraphs that follow.

We believe that the GE effective tax rate is besfyzed in relation to GE earnings before incomxeseexcluding the GECC net earnings from contingipgrations, as GE tax expense does not include
taxes on GECC earnings. GE pre-tax earnings framtirasing operations, excluding GECC earnings framtimuing operations, were $9.5 billion, $12.6ibill and $12.0 billion for 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The decrease in earnings reflectadinerepeat of the pre-tax gain on sale of NBCU fsigtier loss amortization related to our principahsion plans. On this basis, GE's effective taa ra
was 21.3% in 2012, 38.3% in 2011 and 16.8% in 2010.

Resolution of audit matters reduced the GE effediax rate throughout this period. The effectsuzhsresolutions are included in the following caps in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statets
in Part Il, ltem 8. “Financial Statements and Sepp¢ntary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.

Audit resolutions —
effect on GE tax rate, excluding GECC earning

2012 2011 2010
Tax on global activities including expol (0.7% (0.9% (3.3%
U.S. business credi - (0.4) (0.5
All other - net (0.9 (0.7 (0.8
(1.6% (2.0% (4.6%

The GE effective tax rate decreased from 2011 i Z0@imarily because of the high effective tax iat2011 on the pre-tax gain on the NBCU transactith Comcast reflecting the low tax basis in our
investments in the NBCU business and the recogndfaleferred tax liabilities related to our 49%estment in NBCUniversal LLC (NBCU LLC) (see Note Zhis gain increased the 2011 GE effective
tax rate by 19.7 percentage points. Partially diifsg this decrease was an increase in the GEtaféetax rate from 2011 to 2012 due to higher preincome and to the decrease in the benefit frodit a
resolutions shown above.

The GE effective tax rate increased from 2010 tb12@rimarily because of the high effective tax maethe pretax gain on the NBCU transaction with Comcast dised above and in Note 2. In addit
the effective tax rate increased because of theedse in the benefit from audit resolutions shobova.

The GECC effective income tax rate is lower thanlthS. statutory rate primarily because of benéfis lower-taxed global operations, including thee of global funding structures. There is a tax
benefit from global operations as non-U.S. incossubject to local country tax rates that are ficantly below the 35% U.S. statutory rate. These-b.S. earnings have been indefinitely reinvested
outside the U.S. and are not subject to current ldc®me tax. The rate of tax on our indefinitedynvested non-U.S. earnings is below the 35% UaButery rate because we have significant business
operations subject to tax in countries where thetathat income is lower than the U.S. statutaitg and because GECC funds the majority of itsli@h-operations through foreign companies that are
subject to low foreign taxes.

We expect our ability to benefit from non-U.S. inoetaxed at less than the U.S. rate to continugesuto changes of U.S. or foreign law, includihg £xpiration of the U.S. tax law provision defegri
tax on active financial services income, as dised$s Note 14 to the consolidated financial statemén Part Il, Item 8. “Financial Statements and
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Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report. lniéidn, since this benefit depends on manageménteésition to indefinitely reinvest amounts outsitle U.S., our tax provision will increase to the
extent we no longer indefinitely reinvest foreigarmings.

As noted above, GE and GECC file a consolidated féd®ral income tax return. This enables GE toGEEC tax deductions and credits to reduce théh@xotherwise would have been payable by
The GECC effective tax rate for each period reflébe benefit of these tax reductions in the cadat#d return. GE makes cash payments to GECQésettax reductions at the time GE's tax payments
are due. The effect of GECC on the amount of tesalidated tax liability from the formation of ttBCU joint venture will be settled in cash no latiean when GECC tax deductions and credits
otherwise would have reduced the liability of theup absent the tax on joint venture formation.

The GECC effective tax rate was 6.2% in 2012, caoegpavith 11.8 % in 2011 and (45.8)% in 2010. Corimgaa tax benefit to pre-tax income resulted iregative tax rate in 2010. Our tax expense of
$0.5 billion in 2012 decreased by $0.4 billion fré@®9 billion in 2011. The lower 2012 tax expensgutted principally from the benefit attributabtethe high tax basis in the entity sold in the Bass
Property disposition ($0.3 billion), increased Hisdrom low taxed global operations ($0.3 billjoend the absence of the 2011 high-taxed dispasitid@Garanti Bank ($0.1 billion). Partially offsiey
the decrease in tax expense was the absence im2@i€ 2011 benefit from resolution of the 200®20nternal Revenue Service (IRS) audit ($0.2dmlliwhich is reported in the caption “All other-het
in the effective tax rate reconciliation in Note tb4he consolidated financial statements in Raftedm 8. “Financial Statements and Supplemeniaga” of this Form 10-K Report, and from higherpre
tax income in 2012 than in 2011, which increasedtpk income $0.3 billion and increased the exp€B8el billion).

The GECC effective tax rate was 11.8% in 2011, caneqh with (45.8)% in 2010. Comparing a tax bertefjiretax income resulted in a negative tax rate in 20h@ GECC tax expense of $0.9 billior
2011 increased by $1.9 billion from a $1.0 billimenefit in 2010. The higher 2011 tax expense redyitincipally from higher pre-tax income in 20h&n in 2010 of $5.5 billion, which increased the ta
expense ($1.9 billion). Also increasing the expemas a benefit from resolution of the 2006-20081n&l Revenue Service (IRS) audit ($0.2 billiorgttivas less than the benefit from resolution of the
2003-2005 IRS audit ($0.3 billion) both of whicteaeported in the caption “All other-net” in theiegftive tax rate reconciliation in Note 14 to tlensolidated financial statements in Part Il, Item 8
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” isfflorm 10-K.
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Global Risk Management

A disciplined approach to risk is important in aetsified organization like ours in order to enstivat we are executing according to our stratefjeaiives and that we only accept risk for whichave
adequately compensated. We evaluate risk at tieidodl transaction level, and evaluate aggregasddat the customer, industry, geographic andatethl-type levels, where appropriate.

Risk assessment and risk management are the résiignsf management. The GE Board of Directoroésd) has oversight for risk management with a $amu the most significant risks facing the
Company, including strategic, operational, finahaiad legal and compliance risks. At the end oheggar, management and the Board jointly devellgt af major risks that GE plans to prioritizethre
next year. Throughout the year, the Board and ¢inencittees to which it has delegated responsitiéglicate a portion of their meetings to review disguss specific risk topics in greater detail.
Strategic, operational and reputational risks aesgnted and discussed in the context of the CEgprt on operations to the Board at regularly dolesl Board meetings and at presentations to the
Board and its committees by the vice chairmen, fdRigk Officer (CRO), general counsel and other lypes. The Board has delegated responsibilityHferoversight of specific risks to Board
committees as follows:

« The Risk Committee of the GE Board (GE Risk Comeeittoversees C's risk management of key risks, including strategperational (including product risk), financiai¢luding credit, liquidit
and exposure to broad market risk) and reputatioskes, and the guidelines, policies and procefmesonitoring and mitigating such risks. The GEIRCommittee also oversees risks related ti
Capital and jointly meets with the GECC Board ofddtors (GECC Board) at least four times a'y

« The Audit Committee oversees 's and GE Capit's policies and processes relating to the finarstizlements, the financial reporting process, canpé and auditing. The Audit Commit
monitors ongoing compliance issues and mattersamsemannually conducts an assessment of compliancesissuprograms. The Audit Committee jointly meeith whe GECC Board once
year.

« The Public Responsibilities Committee overseesmsakagement related to ’s public policy initiatives, the environment anchar matters, and monitors the Comp’s environmental, health a
safety compliance

« The Management Development and Compensation Coeamiitersees the risk management associated withgearent resources, structure, succession planmagagement development :
selection processes, and includes a review of thaenompensation arrangements to confirm thatritice pay does not encourage unnecessary riskgakid to review and discuss, at least annt
the relationship between risk management poliaiespaactices, corporate strategy and senior execatmpensation

« The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committeesees risk related to the Comp’s governance structure and processes and risksgafiem relate-person transaction

The GE Board’s risk oversight process builds up@amagement’s risk assessment and mitigation progesbéch include standardized reviews of long-tstrategic and operational planning; executive
development and evaluation; code of conduct compdainder the Company’s The Spirit & The Lettegutatory compliance; health, safety and environmlecampliance; financial reporting and
controllership; and information technology and séguGE’s CRO is responsible for overseeing andrdmating risk assessment and mitigation on aarprise-wide basis. The CRO leads the Corporate
Risk Function and is responsible for the identifima of key business risks, providing for approfgiemanagement of these risks within GE Board ginde) and enforcement through policies and
procedures. Management has two committees to fuatgst it in assessing and mitigating risk. TleepBrate Risk Committee (CRC) meets at least fioveg per year, is chaired by the CRO and
comprises the Chairman and CEO, vice chairmen,rgeoeunsel and other senior level business anctifumal leaders. It has principal responsibility éwaluating and addressing risks escalated to the
CRO and Corporate Risk Function. The Policy ConmgiéaReview Board met 16 times in 2012, is chairethe Companys general counsel and includes the Chief Fina@fiadter and other senior lev
functional leaders. It has principal responsibifity monitoring compliance matters across the campa
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GE's Corporate Risk Function leverages the ristastfuctures in each of our businesses, which adupted an approach that corresponds to the Corispawsrall risk policies, guidelines and review
mechanisms. Our risk infrastructure operates abtisiness and functional levels and is designédietatify, evaluate and mitigate risks within eadlihe following categories:

« Strategic. Strategic risk relates to the Comp’s future business plans and strategies, includiagisks associated with the markets and industri@gich we operate, demand for our products
services, competitive threats, technology and proafunovation, mergers and acquisitions and pytiécy.

« Operational. Operational risk relates to risks (systems, praggseople and external events) that affect theatipa of our businesses. It includes productdifele and execution, product safety
performance, information management and data proteand security, business disruption, human nessuand reputatiol

« Financial. Financial risk relates to our ability to meet fic#@i obligations and mitigate credit risk, liquiglitisk and exposure to broad market risks, inclgdinlatility in foreign currency exchan
rates and interest rates and commodity prices.idlityurisk is the risk of being unable to accommiadhability maturities, fund asset growth and meentractual obligations through acces
funding at reasonable market rates, and creditisitke risk of financial loss arising from a custr or counterparty failure to meet its contraciialigations. We face credit risk in our indust
businesses, as well as in our GE Capital inveskargling and leasing activities and derivative ficial instruments activitie:

« Legal and Compliance.Legal and compliance risk relates to risks aridhogn thegovernment and regulatory environment and actiompdiance with integrity policies and proceduressluding
those relating to financial reporting, environméiealth and safety, and intellectual property sisBovernment and regulatory risk includes the tiig the government or regulatory actions
impose additional cost on us or cause us to haghange our business models or practi

Risks identified through our risk management preessare prioritized and, depending on the proliglaitid severity of the risk, escalated to the CR@& CRO, in coordination with the CRC, assigns
responsibility for the risks to the business orctional leader most suited to manage the risk.gkesl owners are required to continually monitogleste and report on risks for which they bear
responsibility. Enterprise risk leaders within edeisiness and corporate function are responsilpeesent to the CRO and CRC risk assessments grikke at least annually. We have general response
strategies for managing risks, which categorizesraccording to whether the Company will avoidnsfar, reduce or accept the risk. These resporestegies are tailored to ensure that risks areimvith
acceptable GE Board general guidelines.

Depending on the nature of the risk involved aredghrticular business or function affected, weaisade variety of risk mitigation strategies, indiing delegation of authorities, standardized preess
and strategic planning reviews, operating reviemsyrance, and hedging. As a matter of policy, eeegally hedge the risk of fluctuations in foreignrency exchange rates, interest rates and cony
prices. Our service businesses employ a comprefeetidigate process leading up to and through teewtion of a contractual service agreement togatiéi legal, financial and operational risks.
Furthermore, we centrally manage some risks byhasiag insurance, the amount of which is determinelalancing the level of risk retained or assumvih the cost of transferring risk to others. We
manage the risk of fluctuations in economic agtigihd customer demand by monitoring industry dyrarand responding accordingly, including by adpgstapacity, implementing cost reductions and
engaging in mergers, acquisitions and dispositions.

GE Capital Risk Management and Oversight

GE Capital acknowledges risk-taking as a fundanehi@racteristic of providing financial servicels.is inherent to its business and arises in legdieasing and investment transactions undertaigen b
GE Capital. GE Capital operates within the paransetf its established risk appetite in pursuit®btrategic goals and objectives.
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GE Capital has robust risk infrastructure and pgses to manage risks related to its businesseshar@E Corporate Risk Function relies upon theffulfilling its mission.

The GE Risk Committee was established to overse€&tttal’s risk appetite, risk assessment and mamagt processes. The GECC Board oversees the GtalCesk management framework, and
approves all significant acquisitions and disposti as well as significant borrowings and investsmiefhe GECC Board exercises oversight of investraetivities in the business units through
delegations of authority. All participants in th& @apital risk management process must comply apgiroval limits established by the GECC Board.

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee (ERMC)clwhomprises the most senior leaders in GE Cagitavell as the GE CRO, oversees the implementafi@E Capitals risk appetite, and seni
management’s establishment of appropriate systemisiding policies, procedures, and management dttews) to ensure enterprise risks are effectiiddyntified, measured, monitored, and controlled.
Day-to-day risk oversight for GE Capital is providey an independent global risk management orgaoizéhat includes the GE Capital corporate funtiimaddition to independent risk officers
embedded in the individual business units.

GE Capital’s risk management approach rests upee timajor tenets: a broad spread of risk basedasraged exposure limits; senior secured commeio@héings; and a hold-to-maturity model with
transactions underwritten to “on-book” standardsdibated risk professionals across the businessksle underwriters, portfolio managers, collegterssironmental or engineering specialists, and
specialized asset managers. The senior risk officave, on average, over 25 years of experience.

GE Capital manages all risks relevant to its bussrenvironment, which if materialized, could prev@i& Capital from achieving its risk objectives rdesult in losses. These risks are defined as GE
Capital's Enterprise Risk Universe, which includes following risks: strategic, liquidity, credind investment, market and operational (includimgficial, compliance, information technology, human
resources and legal). Reputational risk is consiliend managed across each of the categories. @ial@antinues to make significant investmentseisources to enhance its evolving risk management
infrastructure.

GE Capital's Corporate Risk function, in consubiatith the ERMC, updates the Enterprise Risk App&tatement annually. This document articulateseinterprise risk objectives, its key universe of
risks and the supporting limit structure. GE Cdjsitask appetite is determined relative to itsides risk objectives, including, but not limited ¢cedit ratings, capital levels, liquidity manageme
regulatory assessments, earnings, dividends angl@oroe. GE Capital determines its risk appetitedgh consideration of portfolio analytics, inclodistress testing and economic capital measurement,
experience and judgment of senior risk officersrent portfolio levels, strategic planning, andutegory and rating agency expectations.

The Enterprise Risk Appetite is presented to th€GBoard and the GE Risk Committee for review gopraval at least annually. On a quarterly basis stlatus of GE Capital’s performance against
these limits is reviewed by the GE Risk Committee.

(35)



GE Capital monitors its capital adequacy includimpugh economic capital, regulatory capital angtiprise stress testing methodologies. GE Capiéaimomic capital methodology uses internal
models to estimate potential unexpected lossessdifferent portfolios with a confidence interegjuivalent to an AA agency rating. Although GE iEps not currently subject to risk-based capital
standards, GE Capital estimates capital adequasdban both the Basel 1 U.S. and Basel 3 Intemmativameworks. GE Capital uses stress testingisar liquidity and capital adequacy assessment and
management purposes, and as an integral part @apHal's overall planning processes. Stress testing sesifitirm key strategic portfolio decisions suclcapital allocation, assist in developing the
appetite and limits, and help in assessing prosipetific risk to guide the development and modifaraof product structures. The GE Risk Committed the GECC Board review stress test results and
their expected impact on capital levels and metfit® GE Risk Committee and the GECC Board areoresple for overseeing the overall capital adequaogess, as well as approving GE Capital's
annual capital plan and capital actions. Operatiosks are inherent in GE Capital's business ditis and are typical of any large enterprise. Gipi@l's operational risk management program seeks
effectively manage operational risk to reduce theptial for significant unexpected losses, anthioimize the impact of losses experienced in thenab course of business.

Key risk management policies are approved by th€GBoard and the GE Risk Committee at least armu@IE Capital, in coordination with the GE CRO, rise®ith the GE Risk Committee at least
four times a year. At these meetings, GE Capitalosenanagement focuses on the risk issues, syrated) governance of the business.

Additional information about our liquidity and home manage this risk can be found in the Financésdrrces and Liquidity section. Additional inforinatabout our credit risk and our portfolio can be
found in the Financial Resources and Liquidity &rifical Accounting Estimates sections. Additioimdbrmation about our market risk and how we marthigerisk can be found in the Financial
Resources and Liquidity section.

Segment Operations

On February 22, 2012, we merged our wholly-owndssiliary, GECS, with and into GECS’ wholly-ownedsigiary, GECC. Our financial services segment,@ipital, continues to comprise the
continuing operations of GECC, which now include thn-off insurance operations previously held arahaged in GECS. Unless otherwise indicated, nefeeto GECC and the GE Capital segment in
this Form 10-K Report relate to the entity or seghes they exist subsequent to the February 22 arger.

Effective October 1, 2012, we reorganized the forBreergy Infrastructure segment into three segmeitswer & Water, Oil & Gas and Energy Managemantl we began reporting these as separate
segments beginning with this Form 10-K Report. Wée aeorganized our Home & Business Solutions segimetransferring our Intelligent Platforms busia¢o Energy Management. Results for 2012
and prior periods in this Form 10-K Report are régabon this basis.

Results of our formerly consolidated subsidiary, 0B and our current equity method investment in NBQ.C are reported in the Corporate items and elations line on the Summary of Operating
Segments.

Our eight segments are focused on the broad matetserve: Power & Water, Oil & Gas, Energy Magragnt, Aviation, Healthcare, Transportation, HomBusiness Solutions and GE Capital. In
addition to providing information on segments irittentirety, we have also provided supplementairination about the businesses within GE Capital.

Segment profit is determined based on internaloper@nce measures used by the Chief Executive @fficassess the performance of each businessivem geriod. In connection with that assessment,

the Chief Executive Officer may exclude mattershsas charges for restructuring; rationalization atiger similar expenses; acquisition costs androtiated charges; technology and product
development costs; certain gains and losses framisitions or dispositions; and litigation settlerteor other charges, responsibility for which paed the current management team.
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Segment profit excludes results reported as diguoed operations, earnings attributable to nonadlittg interests of consolidated subsidiaries, GE2€ferred stock dividends declared and accounting
changes. Segment profit excludes or includes istemed other financial charges and income taxesrdirg to how a particular segment’'s managememteasured. These costs are excluded in
determining segment profit, which we sometimesrrefeas “operating profit,” for Power & Water, @il Gas, Energy Management, Aviation, Healthcaren$pmrtation, and Home & Business Solutions
and are included in determining segment profit,alihire sometimes refer to as “net earnings,” for@ipital. Certain corporate costs, such as shareites, employee benefits and information
technology are allocated to our segments basedageu A portion of the remaining corporate costsatipcated based on each segment’s relative sebEoperations. Prior to January 1, 2011, segment
profit excluded the effects of principal pensioand. Beginning January 1, 2011, we began allocagngce costs related to our principal pensiomgknd no longer allocate the retiree costs of our
postretirement healthcare benefits to our segm&his.revised allocation methodology better aligagment operating costs to the active employes,cobich are managed by the segments. This ct
does not significantly affect reported segmentitssu

We have reclassified certain prior-period amouatsanform to the current-period presentation. dduitional information about our segments, see IP&em 1. “Business” and Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements in Part Il, I@rfiFinancial Statements and Supplementary DatdhisfForm 10-K Report.
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Summary of Operating Segmentt
General Electric Company and consolidated affiliate

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Revenues(a
Power & Watel $ 28,299 $ 25,675 $ 24,779 $ 27,389 $ 28,537
Oil & Gas 15,241 13,608 9,433 9,683 9,886
Energy Managemel 7,412 6,422 5,161 5,223 6,427
Aviation 19,994 18,859 17,619 18,728 19,239
Healthcare 18,290 18,083 16,897 16,015 17,392
Transportatior 5,608 4,885 3,370 3,827 5,016
Home & Business Solutior 7,967 7,693 7,957 7,816 9,304
Total industrial segment revent 102,811 95,225 85,216 88,681 95,801
GE Capital 46,039 49,068 49,856 51,776 68,541
Total segment revenu 148,85C 144,293 135,072 140,457 164,342
Corporate items and eliminationsi (1,491 2,995 14,495 13,939 15,427
Consolidated revenue: $ 147,35¢ $ 147,288 $ 149,567 $ 154,396 $ 179,768
Segment profit
Power & Watel $ 5,422 $ 5,021 $ 5,804 $ 5,592 $ 4,563
Oil & Gas 1,924 1,660 1,406 1,440 1,555
Energy Managemel 131 78 156 144 478
Aviation 3,747 3,512 3,304 3,923 3,684
Healthcare 2,920 2,803 2,741 2,420 2,851
Transportatior 1,031 757 315 473 962
Home & Business Solutior 311 237 404 360 287
Total industrial segment prof 15,486 14,068 14,130 14,352 14,380
GE Capita 7,401 6,584 3,120 1,253 7,470
Total segment prof 22,887 20,652 17,250 15,605 21,850
Corporate items and eliminationsi (4,842 (287, (1,013 (507, 1,516
GE interest and other financ
charges (1,353 (1,299 (1,600 (1,478 (2,153
GE provision for income taxe (2,013 (4,839 (2,024 (2,739 (3,427
Earnings from continuing operatio
attributable to the compal 14,679 14,227 12,613 10,881 17,786
Earnings (loss) from discontinui
operations, net of taxt (1,038 (76) (969 144 (376
Consolidated net earnings
attributable to the Company $ 13,641 $ 14,151 $ 11,644 $ 11,025 $ 17,410
(a) Segment revenues includes both revenues and ott@ne related to the segme
(b) Includes the results of NBCU, our formerly consati&t subsidiary, and our current equity methodstment in NBCUniversal LLC

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanagéstents in Part Il, Item 8. “Financial Statemertd Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.

Power & Water revenues of $28.3 billion increased $2.6 billion16%, in 2012 as higher volume ($3.4 billion) vén by an increase in sales of equipment at Wind @ increase in other income
($0.2 billion) were partially offset by the effeaibthe stronger U.S. dollar ($0.6 billion) and evprices ($0.4 billion).

Segment profit of $5.4 billion increased $0.4 biflj or 8%, in 2012 as higher volume ($0.7 billidngreased other income ($0.2 billion) and the intpaf deflation ($0.1 billion), were partially sfft by
lower prices ($0.4 billion), lower productivity ($0billion) and the effects of the stronger U.8lat ($0.1 billion).

Power & Water revenues of $25.7 billion increas@®illion (including $0.3 billion from acquisitits), or 4%, in 2011 as higher volume ($0.9 billiany the effects of the weaker U.S. dollar ($0.4
billion) were partially offset by lower prices ($0billion).

Segment profit of $5.0 billion decreased $0.8 diilior 13%, in 2011 as lower productivity ($0.7ibit), and lower prices ($0.5 billion), driven prmily by Wind, were partially offset by higher vohe
($0.2 billion) and the effects of deflation ($0.ilibn).
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Power & Water segment orders decreased 10% to $@Hdh in 2012. Total Power & Water backlog inased 1% to $58.8 billion at December 31, 2012, ameg of equipment backlog of $8.6 billion
and services backlog of $50.2 billion. Comparabée&nber 31, 2011 equipment and service order bgekiere $12.0 billion and $45.9 billion, respediiv&ee Corporate ltems and Eliminations for a
discussion of items not allocated to this segment.

Oil & Gas revenues of $15.2 billion increased $1.6 billiamc(uding $0.7 billion from acquisitions), or 12%,2012 as higher volume ($2.3 billion) driven byjaisitions and an increase in sales of both
equipment and services was partially offset byetffiects of the stronger U.S. dollar ($0.7 billion).

Segment profit of $1.9 billion increased $0.3 biflj or 16%, in 2012 as higher volume ($0.3 billianyl increased productivity ($0.1 billion), refiect increased equipment margins, were partiallpetff
by the effects of the stronger U.S. dollar ($0.kdwi).

Oil & Gas revenues of $13.6 billion increased $4ilon (including $2.9 billion from acquisitionspr 44%, in 2011 as higher volume ($3.8 billionjlahe effects of the weaker U.S. dollar ($0.4 di)i
were partially offset by lower prices ($0.1 billjon

Segment profit of $1.7 billion increased $0.3 biflj or 18%, in 2011 as higher volume ($0.6 billiargs partially offset by lower productivity ($0.8lion) and lower prices ($0.1 billion).

Oil & Gas segment orders increased 16% to $18l@iin 2012. Total Oil & Gas backlog increased 2#9614.8 billion at December 31, 2012, composeequipment backlog of $10.2 billion and
services backlog of $4.5 billion. Comparable Decen8i, 2011 equipment and service order backloge $&.5 billion and $3.5 billion, respectively. Seerporate Items and Eliminations for a
discussion of items not allocated to this segment.

Energy Managementrevenues of $7.4 billion increased $1.0 billiorc{iding $1.0 billion from acquisitions), or 15%, 2012 as higher volume ($1.1 billion) primarily\dgn by acquisitions, higher
prices ($0.1 billion) and increased other inconte {$illion) were partially offset by the effectstbe stronger U.S. dollar ($0.2 billion).

Segment profit of $0.1 billion increased $0.1 biflj or 68%, in 2012 as a result of higher pric&(®illion) and increased other income ($0.1 dil)i

Energy Management revenues of $6.4 billion incréae3 billion (including $0.8 billion from acquiiins), or 24%, in 2011 as higher volume ($1.2duil) mainly driven by acquisitions and the effects
of the weaker U.S. dollar ($0.1 billion) and higlpeices ($0.1 billion) were partially offset by deased other income ($0.1 billion).

Segment profit of $0.1 billion decreased $0.1 dillior 50%, in 2011 as the results of inflation. (Million) and decreased other income ($0.1 billivere partially offset by higher prices ($0.1ibit).
Energy Management segment orders increased 16%3d#lion in 2012. Total Energy Management bagkilocreased 6% to $3.8 billion at December 31, 28dthposed of equipment backlog of $3.2
billion and services backlog of $0.6 billion. Comglale December 31, 2011 equipment and service datskiogs were $2.8 billion and $0.8 billion, resgpeely. See Corporate Items and Eliminations

a discussion of items not allocated to this segment

Aviation revenues of $20.0 billion increased $1.1 billion6&o, in 2012 due primarily to higher prices ($Biion) and higher volume ($0.4 billion), which weedriven by increased commercial and
military engine sales.

Segment profit of $3.7 billion increased $0.2 biflj or 7%, in 2012 due primarily to higher pric#6.8 billion) and higher volume ($0.1 billion), pially offset by higher inflation ($0.3 billion) ahlower
productivity ($0.3 billion).
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Aviation revenues of $18.9 billion increased $1ilRdm, or 7%, in 2011 due primarily to higher vohe ($1.1 billion) and higher prices ($0.2 billiopprtially offset by lower other income ($0.1 kilti).
Higher volume and higher prices were driven byéased services ($0.9 billion) and equipment s&@sl (billion). The increase in services revenue prisarily due to higher commercial spares sales
while the increase in equipment revenue was prigndtie to commercial engines.

Segment profit of $3.5 billion increased $0.2 biflj or 6%, in 2011 due primarily to higher volur§@.@ billion) and higher prices ($0.2 billion), ially offset by higher inflation, primarily non-rterial
related ($0.1 billion), and lower other income ($Billion). Incremental research and developmerdt@&nx product launch costs offset higher proditgtiv

Aviation equipment orders increased 8% to $13idhilin 2012. Total Aviation backlog increased 384p102.4 billion at December 31, 2012, composeeoipment backlog of $22.9 billion and
services backlog of $79.5 billion. Comparable Delsen81, 2011 equipment and service order backlage %22.5 billion and $76.5 billion, respectiveBee Corporate ltems and Eliminations for a
discussion of items not allocated to this segment.

Healthcare revenues of $18.3 billion increased $0.2 billion186, in 2012 due to higher volume ($0.8 billiomdaother income ($0.1 billion), partially offset e stronger U.S. dollar ($0.4 billion) and
lower prices ($0.3 billion). The revenue increaf@yen by higher equipment sales, is attributableternational markets, with the strongest grointemerging markets.

Segment profit of $2.9 billion increased $0.1 biflj or 4%, in 2012 reflecting increased productiy§i0.4 billion), higher volume ($0.1 billion) amdher income ($0.1 billion), partially offset bywer
prices ($0.3 billion) and higher inflation ($0.2lioin), primarily non-material related.

Healthcare revenues of $18.1 billion increased $illidn, or 7%, in 2011 due to higher volume ($bibion) and the weaker U.S. dollar ($0.4 billiopjartially offset by lower prices ($0.3 billionjhe
revenue increase was split between equipment §0€5 billion) and services ($0.5 billion). Reverinereased in the U.S. and international markeit) thie strongest growth in emerging markets.

Segment profit of $2.8 billion increased 2%, orl$billion, in 2011 reflecting increased productiv{$0.3 billion), higher volume ($0.2 billion) anide weaker U.S. dollar ($0.1 billion), partiallyfegt by
lower prices ($0.3 billion) and higher inflation0(& billion), primarily non-material related.

Healthcare equipment orders increased 5% to $illidnbin 2012. Total Healthcare backlog incread®@s to $15.4 billion at December 31, 2012, compaxfesijuipment backlog of $4.5 billion and
services backlog of $10.9 billion. Comparable Delsen81, 2011 equipment and service order backlage #3.9 billion and $9.6 billion, respectively eSeorporate Items and Eliminations for a
discussion of items not allocated to this segment.

Transportation revenues of $5.6 billion increased $0.7 billion16#6, in 2012 due to higher volume ($0.6 billionfianigher prices ($0.1 billion). The revenue insewas split between equipment s.
($0.4 billion) and services ($0.3 billion). The irase in equipment revenue was primarily driveatyncrease in U.S. locomotive sales and growthuinglobal mining equipment business. The increase
in service revenue was due to higher overhaulsraordased service productivity.

Segment profit of $1.0 billion increased $0.3 biflj or 36%, in 2012 as a result of higher volunI$illion), higher prices ($0.1 billion) and irased productivity ($0.1 billion), reflecting impexl
service margins.
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Transportation revenues of $4.9 billion increasgd Hillion, or 45%, in 2011 due to higher volun$d 6 billion) related to increased equipment ség#€s9 billion) and services ($0.6 billion). The ieast
in equipment revenue was primarily driven by améase in U.S. and international locomotive salesgrowth in our global mining equipment businesse Thcrease in service revenue was due to higher
overhauls and increased service productivity.

Segment profit of $0.8 billion increased $0.4 biflj or over 100%, in 2011 as a result of incregseductivity ($0.4 billion), reflecting improved séce margins, and higher volume ($0.1 billion),
partially offset by higher inflation ($0.1 billion)

Transportation equipment orders increased 35% @ liBion in 2012. Total Transportation backlogcdeased 5% to $14.4 billion at December 31, 20&thposed of equipment backlog of $3.3 billion
and services backlog of $11.1 billion. Comparabée&nber 31, 2011 equipment and service order bgeklere $3.3 billion and $11.8 billion, respectvedee Corporate Items and Eliminations for a
discussion of items not allocated to this segment.

Home & Business Solutionsevenues of $8.0 billion increased $0.3 billion486, in 2012 reflecting an increase at Appliancasially offset by lower revenues at Lighting. Oatérrevenues increased
primarily as a result of higher prices ($0.3 bifljrincipally at Appliances, partially offset bgwwer volume ($0.1 billion).

Segment profit of $0.3 billion increased 31%, orl#illion, in 2012 as higher prices ($0.3 billiongre partially offset by the effects of inflati¢®0.2 billion) and lower productivity ($0.1 billign

Home & Business Solutions revenues of $7.7 biltlecreased $0.3 billion, or 3%, in 2011 reflectirdparease at Appliances partially offset by higieeenues at Lighting. Overall, revenues decreased
primarily as a result of lower volume ($0.4 billjoprincipally at Appliances, partially offset byethveaker U.S. dollar ($0.1 billion) and higher psc

Segment profit of $0.2 billion decreased 41%, a2$llion, in 2011 as the effects of inflation ($Million) were partially offset by the effectstbie weaker U.S. dollar, increased productivity higher
prices. See Corporate Items and Elimination foisaussion of items not allocated to this segment.

GE Capital

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Revenue! $ 46,039 $ 49,068 $ 49,856
Segment profi $ 7,401 $ 6,584 $ 3,120
December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Total assets $ 539,223 $ 584,536
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(In millions) 2012 2011 2010

Revenues
Commercial Lending and Leasing (CL $ 16,857 $ 18,178 $ 18,447
Consume 15,579 16,767 17,180
Real Estatt 3,654 3,712 3,744
Energy Financial Service 1,508 1,223 1,957
GE Capital Aviation Services (GECA 5,294 5,262 5,127
Segment profit (loss)
CLL $ 2,423 $ 2,720 $ 1,554
Consume 3,240 3,703 2,619
Real Estatt 803 (928 (1,741
Energy Financial Service 432 440 367
GECAS 1,220 1,150 1,195
December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Total assets
CLL $ 182,432 $ 193,86
Consume 138,997 138,534
Real Estat 46,247 60,873
Energy Financial Service 19,185 18,357
GECAS 49,420 48,821

GE Capital revenues decreased 6% and net earmiagsmsed 12% in 2012 as compared with 2011. Resdou@012 included $0.1 billion from acquisitiossd were reduced by $0.6 billion as a result
of dispositions. Revenues also decreased as a oésurbanic revenues declines, primarily due twdoENI, the stronger U.S. dollar, and the abserfithe 2011 gain on sale of a substantial portiboun
Garanti Bank equity investment (the Garanti Baaksaction). Net earnings increased by $0.8 billic2012, primarily due to lower impairments andecorcreases, including higher tax benefits, payl
offset by the absence of the 2011 gain on the GigBank transaction and operations. GE Capitakaenings in 2012 also included restructuring, retiization and other charges of $0.1 billion antd ne
losses of $0.2 billion related to our Treasury afiens. GE Capital net earnings excluded $0.1dilbf preferred stock dividends declared in 2012.

GE Capital revenues decreased 2% and net earmiagsmsed favorably in 2011 as compared with 20&9eRues for 2011 and 2010 included $0.3 billion $®& billion, respectively, from acquisitions
and were reduced by $1.1 billion and $2.3 billi@spectively, as a result of dispositions. Reverigsincreased as a result of the gain on therid@ank transaction, the weaker U.S. dollar arghéi
gains and investment income, partially offset byueed revenues from lower ENI. Net earnings inaédwsy $3.5 billion in 2011, primarily due to lowgmvisions for losses on financing receivables, the
gain on the Garanti Bank transaction and lower impents. GE Capital net earnings in 2011 also ietlrestructuring, rationalization and other chamfe$0.1 billion and net losses of $0.2 billion
related to our Treasury operations.

Additional information about certain GE Capital messes follows.
CLL 2012 revenues decreased 7% and net earningsated 11% compared with 2011. Revenues were rediyc®0.4 billion as a result of dispositions. Raves also decreased as a result of organic

revenue declines ($0.6 billion), primarily due éaver ENI ($0.6 billion), and the stronger U.S. dol{$0.3 billion). Net earnings decreased reflectiore decreases ($0.2 billion) and dispositio@s1($
billion).
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CLL 2011 revenues decreased 1% and net earningsaed 75% compared with 2010. Revenues decreaserkault of organic revenue declines ($1.1 bijliprimarily due to lower ENI, partially
offset by the weaker U.S. dollar ($0.5 billion) drigher gains and investment income ($0.4 billiddgt earnings increased in 2011, reflecting lowerjsions for losses on financing receivables ($0.6
billion), higher gains and investment income ($ilBon), core increases ($0.2 billion) and lowsgairments ($0.1 billion).

Consumer 2012 revenues decreased 7% and net esadgiageased 13% compared with 2011. Revenues etwi@l 1 billion from acquisitions and were redubgd0.1 billion as a result of dispositions.
Revenues in 2012 also decreased as a result abgence of the 2011 gain on the Garanti Bank tcéinsa($0.7 billion), the stronger U.S. dollar ($®illion) and organic revenue declines ($0.2 di)i.
The decrease in net earnings resulted primarily fioe absence of the 2011 gain on the Garanti Bankaction and operations ($0.4 billion), disposi ($0.1 billion) and core decreases, which
included higher provisions for losses on finandiegeivables ($0.2 billion). The higher provisions lbsses on financing receivables reflected tleeaisa more granular portfolio segmentation apgnpac
by loss type, in determining the incurred lossgetin our U.S. Installment and Revolving Credittfmio.

Consumer 2011 revenues decreased 2% and net esimingased 41% compared with 2010. Revenues ied!$.3 billion from acquisitions and were redubgdb0.4 billion as a result of dispositions.
Revenues in 2011 also decreased $0.3 billion aswdtrof organic revenue declines ($1.4 billiomjpyarily due to lower ENI, and higher impairmen$ (1 billion), partially offset by the gain on the
Garanti Bank transaction ($0.7 billion), the wealde®. dollar ($0.5 billion) and higher gains ($0illion). The increase in net earnings resultednarily from lower provisions for losses on finangin
receivables ($1.0 billion), the gain on the Gar&athk transaction ($0.3 billion), acquisitions @illion) and the weaker U.S. dollar ($0.1 billjppartially offset by lower Garanti results ($®@iflion),
and core decreases ($0.2 billion).

Real Estate 2012 revenues decreased 2% and netgsawere favorable compared with 2011. Revenueredsed as a result of organic revenue decline (#ilon), primarily due to lower ENI, and t
stronger U.S. dollar ($0.1 billion), partially offisby increases in net gains on property saleg (§i0ion). Real Estate net earnings increased st of lower impairments ($0.7 billion), coreieases

($0.7 billion) including higher tax benefits of $illion, lower provisions for losses on financiregeivables ($0.2 billion) and increases in nétgan property sales ($0.1 billion). Depreciatéxpense
on real estate equity investments totaled $0.8&hitind $0.9 billion in 2012 and 2011, respectively

Real Estate 2011 revenues decreased 1% and nitgsaimcreased 47% compared with 2010. Revenuesakesd as organic revenue declines ($0.4 billigniarily due to lower ENI, were partially
offset by increases in net gains on property S&@= billion) and the weaker U.S. dollar ($0.1ibil). Real Estate net earnings increased compaithd2010, as lower impairments ($0.7 billion), a
decrease in provisions for losses on financingivebées ($0.4 billion) and increases in net gainpmperty sales ($0.2 billion) were partially @ff¥y core declines ($0.4 billion). Depreciatiopense
on real estate equity investments totaled $0.®hitind $1.0 billion in 2011 and 2010, respectively

Energy Financial Services 2012 revenues increa3&gdahd net earnings decreased 2% compared with B&VEnues increased primarily as a result of acgavenue growth ($0.3 billion), including
the consolidation of an entity involved in powenggating activities and asset sales by investeesh@her gains.

Energy Financial Services 2011 revenues decrea¥daBd net earnings increased 20% compared with. Bdvenues decreased primarily as a result adehensolidation of Regency Energy Partners
L.P. (Regency) ($0.7 billion) and organic reveneelhes ($0.3 billion), primarily from an assetesal 2010 by an investee. These decreases weiallyastfset by higher gains ($0.2 billion). The
increase in net earnings resulted primarily froghki gains ($0.2 billion), partially offset by tHeconsolidation of Regency ($0.1 billion) and cdeereases, primarily from an asset sale in 201énby
investee.

GECAS 2012 revenues increased 1% and net earmingsased 6% compared with 2011. Revenues increasadesult of organic revenue growth ($0.2 bi)liand higher gains, partially offset by higl
impairments ($0.2 billion).
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The increase in net earnings resulted primarilynfiaore increases ($0.1 billion) and higher gaimstiglly offset by higher impairments ($0.1 billjon

GECAS 2011 revenues increased 3% and net earnaegsabed 4% compared with 2010. Revenues for 2@téased compared with 2010 as a result of orgaménue growth ($0.1 billion). The
decrease in net earnings resulted primarily frone clecreases ($0.1 billion), reflecting the 20106fie from resolution of the 2003-2005 IRS audértally offset by lower impairments ($0.1 billian)

Corporate Items and Eliminations

(In millions) 2012 2011 201C
Revenues
NBCU/NBCU LLC $ 1,615 $ 5,686 $ 16,901
Gains (losses) on disposed or held for sale busis 186 - 105
Eliminations and othe (3,292 (2,691 (2,511
Total $ (1,491 $ 2,995 $ 14,495
Operating profit (cost)
NBCU/NBCU LLC 1,615 4,535 2,261
Gains (losses) on disposed or held for sale busis 186 - 105
Principal retirement plans(: (3,098 (1,898 (493
Unallocated corporate and other cc (3,545 (2,924 (2,886
Total $ (4,842 $ (287 $ (1,013

(a) Included no-operating pension income (cost) for our principahgion plans (nc-GAAP) of $(2.1) billion, $(1.1) billion and $0.31bon in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, whinblide:
expected return on plan assets, interest costa@i-cash amortization of actuarial gains and los

Revenues of $(1.5) billion decreased $4.5 billioi2012 as $4.1 billion of lower NBCU/NBCU LLC retat revenues (primarily due to the non-repeat optieetax gain on the NBCU transaction and the
deconsolidation of NBCU in 2011, partially offset higher earnings at NBCU LLC due to a gain on dgsgion in 2012) and $0.1 billion of pre-tax lossekted to the sale of a plant in the U.K. were
partially offset by $0.3 billion of gains on therfieation of a joint venture at Aviation. Operatingsts of $4.8 billion increased $4.6 billion in 2042$2.9 billion of lower NBCU/NBCU LLC related
earnings (primarily due to the non-repeat of th&12@ain related to the NBCU transaction, partiaffiget by earnings at NBCU LLC due to a gain orpdstion in 2012), $1.2 billion of higher costs of
our principal retirement plans and $0.4 billionhagher research and development spending and giobabrate costs were partially offset by $0.2dnillof lower restructuring and other charges.

Revenues of $3.0 billion decreased $11.5 billioB041 as a $14.9 billion reduction in revenues fidBCU LLC operations resulting from the deconsdiiola of NBCU effective January 28, 2011 and
$0.1 billion of lower revenues from other dispobedinesses were partially offset by a $3.7 billioetax gain related to the NBCU transaction. Operatiosts of $0.3 billion decreased by $0.7 billiot
2011 as $3.6 billion of higher gains from dispobedinesses, primarily the NBCU transaction, an@.8 $illion decrease in restructuring, rationali@at acquisition-related and other charges were
partially offset by $1.4 billion of higher costs aiir principal retirement plans, $1.4 billion ofvler earnings from NBCU/NBCU LLC operations and a6$fillion increase in research and development
spending and global corporate costs.

Certain amounts included in Corporate items andiekitions cost are not allocated to GE operatignemts because they are excluded from the measnteftheir operating performance for internal
purposes. For 2012, these included $0.3 billiogaifh related to formation of a joint venture at &ion and $0.5 billion of costs at Healthcare, $fllfBon of costs at Aviation, $0.2 billion of casat each
of Power & Water and Energy Management, and $0libroiof costs at each of Oil & Gas, Home & Busia&olutions and Transportation, primarily for testagy and product development costs and
restructuring, rationalization and other charges.
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For 2011, these included $0.3 billion at Oil & Gasl $0.1 billion at Energy Management for acquisitielated costs and $0.4 billion at Healthcare, $@ln at Power & Water, $0.2 billion at Aviatic
and $0.1 billion at each of Energy Management&@as, Home & Business Solutions and Transportafioimarily for technology and product developmeasts and restructuring, rationalization and
other charges. For 2010, these included $0.4 bilibHealthcare, $0.2 billion at Home & BusinesfuSons, and $0.1 billion at each of Energy Marmaget, Power & Water and Aviation, primarily for
technology and product development costs and i&sting, rationalization and other charges.

Discontinued Operations

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010

Earnings (loss) from discontinui
operations, net of tax¢ $ (1,038 $ (76) $ (969,

Discontinued operations primarily comprised GE Mpdapan, WMC, BAC, Consumer RV Marine, Consumer igtexConsumer Singapore, Australian Home Lendingj@oansumer Ireland. Associat
results of operations, financial position and ciielvs are separately reported as discontinued ¢tipasafor all periods presented.

In 2012, loss from discontinued operations, netrés, primarily reflected a $0.6 billion after-teffect of incremental reserves for excess interiesins related to our loss-sharing arrangemerihen
2008 sale of GE Money Japan, a $0.3 billion atareffect of incremental reserves related to netirepresentation and warranty obligations tongmse previously sold loans on the 2007 sale of®
and a $0.2 billion loss (which includes a $0.1lidillloss on disposal) related to Consumer Irelgadjally offset by a $0.1 billion tax benefit redd to the resolution with the IRS regarding the ta
treatment of the 2007 sale of our Plastics business

In 2011, loss from discontinued operations, negarés, included a $0.2 billion loss from operatiah€onsumer Ireland, a $0.2 billion after-tax effef incremental reserves for excess interesmdai
related to our loss-sharing arrangement on the 28@8of GE Money Japan and a $0.1 billion losthersale of Australian Home Lending, partially effby a $0.3 billion gain related to the sale of
Consumer Singapore and $0.1 billion of earningsifaperations at Australian Home Lending.

In 2010, loss from discontinued operations, nearés, primarily reflected the after-tax effecirafremental reserves for excess interest clainage@lto our loss-sharing arrangement on the 20e&$a

GE Money Japan of $1.7 billion, estimated afteritesses of $0.2 billion and $0.1 billion on therpiad sales of Consumer Mexico and Consumer RV Maraspectively, and a $0.1 billion loss from
operations at Consumer Ireland, partially offseahyafter-tax gain on the sale of BAC of $0.8 billiand earnings from operations at Consumer Mexfi&®.2 billion and at BAC of $0.1 billion.

For additional information related to discontinugzerations, see Note 2 to the consolidated findstagements in Part I, Item 8. “Financial Statewseand Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K
Report.

Geographic Operations

Our global activities span all geographic regiond primarily encompass manufacturing for local argort markets, import and sale of products producether regions, leasing of aircraft, sourciog

our plants domiciled in other global regions anovsion of financial services within these regiorabnomies. Thus, when countries or regions expegieurrency and/or economic stress, we often have
increased exposure to certain risks, but also dfeare new opportunities that include, among othieigs, more opportunities for expansion of indastand financial services activities through pusgsa

of companies or assets at reduced prices and ldv&rdebt financing costs.

Revenues are classified according to the regiavhich products and services are sold. For purpoftss analysis, the U.S. is presented separétefy the remainder of the Americas.
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Geographic Revenue:

(In billions) 2012 2011 2010
U.S. $ 70.4 $ 69.8 $ 75.1
Europe 27.4 29.0 30.9
Pacific Basir 24.5 23.2 20.8
Americas 13.2 13.3 11.7
Middle East and Africi 11.9 12.0 11.1
Total $ 147.4 $ 147.3 $ 149.6

Global revenues were $76.9 billion in 2012, comgawvigh $77.5 billion and $74.5 billion in 2011 ag@10, respectively. Global revenues to externaiocners as a percentage of consolidated revenues

were 52% in 2012, compared with 53% in 2011 and §020€10. The effects of currency fluctuations eparted results decreased revenues by $2.6 hiili@d12 and increased revenues by $2.5 billion
and $0.5 billion in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

GE global revenues, excluding GECC, in 2012 weig35illion, up 5% over 2011. Increases in growtrkets of 20% in China, 22% in Australia and Nevalaad and 8% in Latin America more than
offset a decrease of 36% in India. These revensi@sp@rcentage of GE total revenues, excluding GE@ee 57% in 2012, compared with 55% and 50% ihl2dnd 2010, respectively. GE global

revenues, excluding GECC, were $54.3 billion in2aip 9% from 2010, primarily resulting from incsea in Latin America, China and Australia and NeemlZnd, partially offset by a decrease in
Europe.

GECC global revenues decreased 15% to $19.7 bili@®12, compared with $23.2 billion and $24.Tidwil in 2011 and 2010, respectively, primarily agsult of decreases in Europe. GECC global

revenues as a percentage of total GECC revenues48ét in 2012, compared with 47% and 50% in 20112810, respectively. GECC global revenue decrebgédo in 2011 from $24.7 billion in
2010, primarily as a result of decreases in Europe.

Total Assets (continuing operations

December 31 (In billions 2012 2011
u.s. $ 346.6 $ 336.6
Europe 192.8 212.5
Pacific Basir 56.4 62.3
Americas 33.6 46.7
Middle East and Africi 54.8 58.4
Total $ 684.2 $ 716.5

Total assets of global operations on a continuigjswere $337.6 billion in 2012, a decrease of$#Rlion, or 11%, from 2011. GECC global assetsaccontinuing basis of $277.6 billion at the efid o

2012 were 13% lower than at the end of 2011, refigaleclines in Europe, primarily due to repaymefiiongterm debt, decreases in the fair value of derieaitistruments and dispositions and portf
run-off in various businesses at Consumer. See G&€l€cted European Exposures section of this ltem.

Financial results of our global activities reported).S. dollars are affected by currency exchalige.use a number of techniques to manage the eféciurrency exchange, including selective

borrowings in local currencies and selective heggihsignificant cross-currency transactions. Smehcipal currencies are the pound sterling, th® gilne Japanese yen, the Canadian dollar and the
Australian dollar.
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Environmental Matters

Our operations, like operations of other compariggaged in similar businesses, involve the usppda and cleanup of substances regulated undepemental protection laws. We are involved in a
number of remediation actions to clean up hazardasies as required by federal and state laws. Satlites require that responsible parties funcediation actions regardless of fault, legality of
original disposal or ownership of a disposal diependitures for site remediation actions amoutespproximately $0.4 billion in 2012, $0.3 billiam2011 and $0.2 billion in 2010. We presently
expect that such remediation actions will requirerage annual expenditures of about $0.4 billiarefch of the next two years.

In 2006, we entered into a consent decree wittEthéronmental Protection Agency (EPA) to dredge R©@Btaining sediment from the upper Hudson Rivéie Tonsent decree provided that the
dredging would be performed in two phases. Phagaslcompleted in May through November of 2009. BefwPhase 1 and Phase 2 there was an interveréngepeew by an independent panel of
national experts. The panel evaluated the perfoceah Phase 1 dredging operations with respech&s®1 Engineering Performance Standards and reend&d proposed changes to the standards. On
December 17, 2010, EPA issued its decision seftirth the final performance standards for PhasétBeoHudson River dredging project, incorporatisgpects of the recommendations from the
independent peer review panel and from GE. In Déegrd010, we agreed to perform Phase 2 of the girjjewccordance with the final performance stadslaet by EPA and increased our reserve by
$0.8 billion in the fourth quarter of 2010 to acobtor the probable and estimable costs of compiefihase 2. In 2011, we completed the first ye@haise 2 dredging and commenced work on planned
upgrades to the Hudson River wastewater proce$aailgy. Over the past two years we have dredb@dmillion cubic yards from the river and basedmhat result and our best professional
engineering judgment, we believe that our curreserve continues to reflect our probable and eblerzosts for the remainder of Phase 2 of the dnedgroject.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

This discussion of financial resources and ligyididdresses the Statement of Financial Positiauitlity and Borrowings, Debt and Derivative Instemts, Guarantees and Covenants, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Shareowners’ Equity, theeBtent of Cash Flows, Contractual Obligations, \dadable Interest Entities.

Overview of Financial Position
Major changes to our shareowners’ equity are dssdisn the Shareowners’ Equity section. In addjtather significant changes to balances in ouregtant of Financial Position follow.
Statement of Financial Position

Because GE and GECC share certain significant eieswd their Statements of Financial Position —perty, plant and equipment and borrowings, for gxam the following discussion addresses
significant captions in the consolidated statem#fithin the following discussions, however, we tligtish between GE and GECC activities in ordgreamit meaningful analysis of each individual
consolidating statement.

Investment securitiescomprise mainly investment grade debt securitigpsrting obligations to annuitants, policyholdensl &olders of guaranteed investment contracts (3Csur run-off insurance
operations and Trinity, investment securities attoeasury operations and investments held in dur Klsiness collateralized by senior secured ladrtggh-quality, middle-market companies in a
variety of industries. The fair value of investmeaturities increased to $48.5 billion at Decen®igr2012 from $47.4 billion at December 31, 20Iimprily due to the impact of lower interest rasesl
improved market conditions. Of the amount at Decem®1, 2012, we held debt securities with an estithair value of $47.6 billion, which included porate debt securities, asset-backed securities
(ABS), residential mortgage-backed securities (RM8% commercial mortgage-backed securities (CMBi8) estimated fair values of $26.6 billion, $5iflibn, $2.3 billion and $3.1 billion,
respectively. Net unrealized gains on debt seesritiere $4.8 billion and $3.0 billion at Decembgr 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. Thisumt included unrealized losses on corporate
securities, ABS, RMBS and CMBS of $0.4 billion, $®illion, $0.1 billion and $0.1 billion, respecgly, at December 31, 2012, as compared with $0i6rbi$0.2 billion, $0.3 billion and $0.2 billion,
respectively, at December 31, 2011.
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We regularly review investment securities for inpent using both qualitative and quantitative cideFor debt securities, our qualitative reviewsiders our intent to sell the security and tharirial
health of and specific prospects for the issueluiing whether the issuer is in compliance with terms and covenants of the security. Our quéingtaeview considers whether there has been an
adverse change in expected future cash flows. Uneeldosses are not indicative of the amount eflitrloss that would be recognized. We presertlnat intend to sell the vast majority of our debt
securities that are in an unrealized loss poséiwth believe that it is not more likely than notttive will be required to sell the vast majoritytbése securities before recovery of our amortizesd. &-or
equity securities, we consider the length of timé eagnitude of the amount that each security @ninnrealized loss position. We believe that tealized loss associated with our equity securiti#!
be recovered within the foreseeable future. Unigytan the capital markets may cause increaseel$enf other-than-temporary impairments. For addai information relating to how credit losses are
calculated, see Note 3 to the consolidated finhstaements in Part 11, Item 8. “Financial Statemseand Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Repor

Our RMBS portfolio is collateralized primarily bypls of individual, direct mortgage loans (a majodf which were originated in 2006 and 2005), attter structured products such as collateralized
debt obligations. Substantially all of our RMBS are& senior position in the capital structuretdd tleals and more than 70% are agency bonds @edhby Monoline insurers (Monolines) (on which we
continue to place reliance). Of our total RMBS fulit at both December 31, 2012 and 2011, approteina0.5 billion relates to residential subprintedit, primarily supporting our guaranteed
investment contracts. A majority of this exposwgeelated to investment securities backed by mgegdaans originated in 2006 and 2005. Substantallgf the subprime RMBS were investment grade
at the time of purchase and approximately 70% heen subsequently downgraded to below investmeniegr

Our CMBS portfolio is collateralized by both divéied pools of mortgages that were originated fecwgitization (conduit CMBS) and pools of largeriedacked by high quality properties (large loan
CMBS), a majority of which were originated in 208@d 2006. The vast majority of the securities in@MBS portfolio have investment grade credit rgsimnd the vast majority of the securities are in a
senior position in the capital structure of thelslea

Our ABS portfolio is collateralized by senior sesdifoans of high-quality, middle-market companiea ivariety of industries, as well as a varietgiokrsified pools of assets such as student loads a
credit cards. The vast majority of the securitresir ABS portfolio are in a senior position in tegpital structure of the deals. In addition, sabsally all of the securities that are below invesnt grade
are in an unrealized gain position.

If there has been an adverse change in cash flewRMBS, management considers credit enhancemeacdiisas Monoline insurance (which are featuressgfeific security). In evaluating the overall
creditworthiness of the Monoline, we use an analffsat is similar to the approach we use for cafgobonds, including an evaluation of the sufficienf the Monoline’s cash reserves and capital,
ratings activity, whether the Monoline is in defand default appears imminent, and the potentiairftervention by an insurance or other regulator.

Monolines provide credit enhancement for certainwfinvestment securities, primarily RMBS and neipal securities. The credit enhancement is a feaitieach specific security that guarantees the
payment of all contractual cash flows, and is nothased separately by GE. The Monoline industntinaes to experience financial stress from indreadelinquencies and defaults on the individual
loans underlying insured securities. We continueetp on Monolines with adequate capital and clajfraging resources. We have reduced our relianddanolines that do not have adequate capital or
have experienced regulator intervention. At Decamdie 2012, our investment securities insured bynMimes on which we continue to place reliance viré billion, including $0.2 billion of our $0.5
billion investment in subprime RMBS. At December 3012, the unrealized loss associated with seesisubject to Monoline credit enhancement, forohhihere is an expected credit loss, was $0.2
billion.

Total pre-tax, other-than-temporary impairment éssduring 2012 were $0.2 billion, of which $0.1ibil was recognized in earnings and primarily edab credit losses on non-U.S. corporate, U.S.

corporate and RMBS securities and other-than-tearpdosses on equity securities and $0.1 billidmagrily relates to non-credit related losses on F8veBd is included within accumulated other
comprehensive income (AOCI).
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Total pre-tax, other-than-temporary impairment éssduring 2011 were $0.5 billion, of which $0.4ibil was recognized in earnings and primarily esab credit losses on non-U.S. government and
non-U.S. corporate securities and other-than-teargdosses on equity securities and $0.1 billiamprily relates to non-credit related losses on F8vid is included within AOCI.

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, umeshlbsses on investment securities totaled $0i8rband $1.6 billion, respectively, including 8billion and $1.2 billion, respectively, aged 12
months or longer. Of the amount aged 12 montheragdr at December 31, 2012, more than 64% areseéehtities that were considered to be investmeregby the major rating agencies. In addition,
of the amount aged 12 months or longer, $0.3 biliad $0.4 billion related to structured securi{fesrtgage-backed and asset-backed) and corpaehtesecurities, respectively. With respect to our
investment securities that are in an unrealizesl passition at December 31, 2012, the majority eelatdebt securities held to support obligationsdinlers of GICs. We presently do not intend td thel
vast majority of our debt securities that are iruarealized loss position and believe that it ismore likely than not that we will be requiredstell these securities before recovery of our amedticost.
For additional information, see Note 3 to the cdidsted financial statements in Part Il, Item 8irf&ncial Statements and Supplementary Data” offtbisn 10-K Report.

Fair Value Measurements. For financial assets and liabilities measurefdiatvalue on a recurring basis, fair value is inee we would receive to sell an asset or payaosfer a liability in an orderly
transaction with a market participant at the meament date. In the absence of active markets éoidigntical assets or liabilities, such measuremienblve developing assumptions based on market
observable data and, in the absence of such détanal information that is consistent with whatrkea participants would use in a hypothetical teati®n that occurs at the measurement date. Adaitio
information about our application of this guidane@rovided in Notes 1 and 21 to the consolidabealrfcial statements in Part 11, Item 8. “Finan@shtements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-
K Report. At December 31, 2012, the aggregate amoflinvestments that are measured at fair vditeugh earnings totaled $5.1 billion and consigteharily of various assets held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, as well as equitystnaents.

Working capital , representing GE current receivables and invesgoléss GE accounts payable and progress cotisctincreased $1.0 billion at December 31, 201&paved to December 31, 2011
due to an increase in inventory and lower progeefisctions, partially offset by decreased accouvateivable. As Power & Water, Oil & Gas and Awatideliver units out of their backlogs over thetnex
few years, progress collections of $10.9 billiobatember 31, 2012, will be earned, which, alonif wiogress collections on new orders, will impaotking capital. We discuss current receivables and
inventories, two important elements of working ¢abpiin the following paragraphs.

Current receivablesfor GE totaled to $10.9 billion at the end of 2Gi#l $11.8 billion at the end of 2011, and inclu@i@® billion due from customers at the end of 26dtpared with $9.0 billion at
the end of 2011. GE current receivables turnovesr 88 in 2012, compared with 8.3 in 2011.

Inventories for GE totaled to $15.3 billion at December 31, 20dp $1.6 billion from the end of 2011. This inese reflected higher inventories across all intalstegments. GE inventory turnover was
6.7 and 7.0 in 2012 and 2011, respectively. See Hab the consolidated financial statements it IPdtem 8. “Financial Statements and SupplemgnBata” of this Form 10-K Report.

Financing receivabless our largest category of assets and represestsfoour primary sources of revenues. Our portfofifinancing receivables is diverse and not diyecomparable to major U.S.
banks. A discussion of the quality of certain elatef the financing receivables portfolio follows.

Our consumer portfolio is composed primarily of AdrS. mortgage, sales finance, auto and persoaaslin various European and Asian countries and ¢diSsumer credit card and sales finance
receivables. In 2007, we exited the U.S. mortgageness and we have no U.S. auto or student loans.
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Our commercial portfolio primarily comprises sensecured positions with comparatively low lossdmigt The secured receivables in this portfolio @tateralized by a variety of asset classes, which
for our CLL business primarily include: industrigiated facilities and equipment, vehicles, corogarcraft, and equipment used in many industifesiyding the construction, manufacturing,
transportation, media, communications, entertairtneerd healthcare industries. The portfolios in Berl Estate, GECAS and Energy Financial Servios;bsses are collateralized by commercial real
estate, commercial aircraft and operating assetseiiglobal energy and water industries, respegtiViée are in a secured position for substantiallyof our commercial portfolio.

Losses on financing receivables are recognized wienare incurred, which requires us to make @st bstimate of probable losses inherent in théghior The method for calculating the best estienat
of losses depends on the size, type and risk cteaists of the related financing receivable. Sanfestimate requires consideration of historiass lexperience, adjusted for current conditiond, an
judgments about the probable effects of relevasenkable data, including present economic conditgrch as delinquency rates, financial health e€i§ip customers and market sectors, collat

values (including housing price indices as appliegland the present and expected future leveilsterfest rates. The underlying assumptions, eséisnaind assessments we use to provide for losses are
updated periodically to reflect our view of curreonditions and are subject to the regulatory erations process, which can result in changes t@ssumptions. Changes in such estimates can
significantly affect the allowance and provisiom fasses. It is possible to experience credit Ipgkat are different from our current estimates.

Our risk management process includes standardpdaiuies for reviewing major risk exposures andaamtrations, and evaluates relevant data eithenélvidual loans or financing leases, or on a
portfolio basis, as appropriate.

Loans acquired in a business acquisition are recbad fair value, which incorporates our estimatib@ acquisition date of the credit losses overréimaining life of the portfolio. As a result, the
allowance for losses is not carried over at actjaisi This may have the effect of causing loweeres coverage ratios for those portfolios.

For purposes of the discussion that follows, “dglient” receivables are those that are 30 days oe past due based on their contractual terms; modearning” receivables are those that are 90 dlays
more past due (or for which collection is otherwdsibtful). Nonearning receivables exclude loansipased at a discount (unless they have deterébpatst acquisition). Under Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Catifioc (ASC) 310Receivablesthese loans are initially recorded at fair vedne accrete interest income over the estimatedfifee loan based on
reasonably estimable cash flows even if the undeglipans are contractually delinquent at acquisitin addition, nonearning receivables excludeddahat are paying on a cash accounting basis but
classified as nonaccrual and impaired. “Nonaccrfiafincing receivables include all nonearning reables and are those on which we have stoppediagdnierest. We stop accruing interest at the
earlier of the time at which collection of an acebbecomes doubtful or the account becomes 90 plstsdue. Recently restructured financing receashbte not considered delinquent when payments
are brought current according to the restructueechs, but may remain classified as nonaccrual tirgile has been a period of satisfactory paymefnpeance by the borrower and future payments are
reasonably assured of collection.

Further information on the determination of th@athnce for losses on financing receivables andbeit quality and categorization of our financiegeivables is provided in the Critical Accounting
Estimates section and Notes 1, 6 and 23 to theotidaged financial statements.
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Financing receivables a' Nonearning receivables a Allowance for losses a

December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31
(In millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Commercial
CLL
Americas $ 72,517 $ 80,505 $ 1,333 $ 1,862 $ 490 $ 889
Europe 37,035 36,899 1,299 1,167 445 400
Asia 11,401 11,635 193 269 80 157
Other 605 436 52 11 6 4
Total CLL 121,558 129,475 2,877 3,309 1,021 1,450
Energy
Financial
Services 4,851 5,912 - 22 9 26
GECAS 10,915 11,901 - 55 8 17
Other 486 1,282 13 65 3 37
Total
Commercial 137,81C 148,57C 2,890 3,451 1,041 1,530
Real Estate
Debt(a) 19,746 24,501 321 541 279 949
Business
Properties(b 1,200 8,248 123 249 41 140
Total Real Estate 20,946 32,749 444 790 320 1,089
Consumer
Non-U.S.
residentia
mortgages(c 33,451 35,550 2,569 2,870 480 546
Non-U.S.
installmen
and revolving
credit 18,546 18,544 224 263 623 717
U.S. installmen
and revolving
credit 50,853 46,689 1,026 990 2,282 2,008
Non-U.S. autc 4,260 5,691 24 43 67 101
Other 8,070 7,244 351 419 172 199
Total Consumer 115,180 113,718 4,194 4,585 3,624 3,571
Total $ 273,936 $ 295,037 $ 7,528 $ 8,826 $ 4,985 $ 6,190
(a) Financing receivables included no construction $o@nDecember 31, 2012 and $0.1 billion of consibndoans at December 31, 20:
(b) Our Business Properties portfolio is underwritteimarily by the credit quality of the borrower asdcured by tenant and ow-occupied commercial properties. In 2012, we conegléhe sal

of a portion of our Business Properties portfc

(c) At December 31, 2012, net of credit insurance, a#6& of our Consumer n-U.S. residential mortgage portfolio comprised loaith introductory, below market rates that areeshified t
adjust at future dates; with high loan-to-valudosatat inception (greater than 90%); whose termsnjteed interesbnly payments; or whose terms resulted in negagivertization. A
origination, we underwrite loans with an adjustatdée to the reset value. Of these loans, about 8&dn our U.K. and France portfolios, which com@rmainly loans with interestly
payments, high loan-to-value ratios at inceptiod itroductory below market rates, have a delingyemate of 15%, have a loan-to-value ratio at oagion of 82% and have re-indexed loan-to-
value ratios of 91% and 64%, respectively. At Delben81, 2012, 10% (based on dollar values) of theses in our U.K. and France portfolios have bestructured

(51)



The portfolio of financing receivables, before allmce for losses, was $273.9 billion at Decembe812, and $295.0 billion at December 31, 201dafting receivables, before allowance for losses,
decreased $21.1 billion from December 31, 201arily as a result of write-offs ($6.6 billion),sgiositions ($5.7 billion), collections (which indees sales) exceeding originations ($5.4 billion),
partially offset by the weaker U.S. dollar ($2.Wibn).

Related nonearning receivables totaled $7.5 bi(®@% of outstanding receivables) at Decembef812, compared with $8.8 billion (3.0% of outstamglieceivables) at December 31, 2011.
Nonearning receivables decreased from Decembe&031,, primarily due to wri-offs at CLL, write-offs and discounted payoffsRetal Estate and improved economic conditions innourU.S.
residential mortgage portfolio.

The allowance for losses at December 31, 2012 t85.0 billion compared with $6.2 billion at Dedsen 31, 2011, representing our best estimate dfgirie losses inherent in the portfolio. Allowance
for losses decreased $1.2 billion from Decembe811, primarily because provisions were lower thaite-offs, net of recoveries by $1.1 billion, whiis attributable to a reduction in the overall
financing receivables balance and an improvemetitaroverall credit environment. The allowancelémses as a percent of total financing receivatdeseased from 2.1% at December 31, 2011 to

at December 31, 2012 primarily due to a decreasieeimllowance for losses as discussed abovealhauifset by a decline in the overall financirggceivables balance as collections exceeded
originations. Further information surrounding thiewance for losses related to each of our poxtfols detailed below.

(52)



The following table provides information surroungliselected ratios related to nonearning finanoc@ogivables and the allowance for losses.

Nonearning financing receivables Allowance for losses Allowance for losses
as a percent o as a percent o as a percent o
financing receivables ai nonearning financing receivables a total financing receivables al
December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Commercial
CLL
Americas 1.8% 2.3% 36.8% 47.7% 0.7% 1.1%
Europe 3.t 3.2 343 34.3 1.2 1.1
Asia 1.7 2.3 415 58.4 0.7 13
Other 8.6 25 115 36.4 1.0 0.9
Total CLL 2.4 2.6 35.5 43.8 0.8 1.1
Energy Financial Services - 0.4 - 118.2 0.2 0.4
GECAS - 0.5 - 30.9 0.1 0.1
Other 2.7 5.1 23.1 56.9 0.6 2.9
Total Commercial 21 2.3 36.0 44.3 0.8 1.0
Real Estate
Debt 1.6 2.2 86.9 175.4 1.4 39
Business Propertie 10.3 3.0 33.3 56.2 3.4 1.7
Total Real Estate 2.1 24 72.1 137.8 15 33
Consumer
Nor-U.S.
residential mortgage 7.7 8.1 18.7 19.0 14 15
Nor-U.S.
installment anc
revolving credit 12 14 278.1 272.6 34 3.9
U.S. installmen
and revolving credi 2.0 2.1 2224 202.8 45 4.3
Non-U.S. autc 0.6 0.8 279.2 234.9 1.6 1.8
Other 4.3 58 49.0 47.5 2.1 2.7
Total Consumer 3.6 4.0 86.4 77.9 3.1 3.1
Total 2.7 3.0 66.2 70.1 1.8 2.1

Included below is a discussion of financing recblga, allowance for losses, nonearning receiveadntelsrelated metrics for each of our significanttfodios.

CLL - Americas . Nonearning receivables of $1.3 billion represerité.7% of total nonearning receivables at DeceriteR012. The ratio of allowance for losses asragnt of nonearning receivables
decreased from 47.7% at December 31, 2011, to 3&td%cember 31, 2012, reflecting an overall improent in the credit quality of the remaining pditfand an overall decrease in nonearning
receivables. The ratio of nonearning receivables psrcent of financing receivables decreased #@% at December 31, 2011, to 1.8% at Decembe2(@®!12, primarily due to reduced nonearning
exposures in most of our portfolios, partially eff®y declines in overall financing receivablesll&eral supporting these nonearning financing inedgles primarily includes assets in the restauaaual
hospitality, trucking and industrial equipment isthies and corporate aircraft, and for our leveddgeance business, equity of the underlying busses.
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CLL — Europe. Nonearning receivables of $1.3 billion represérité.3% of total nonearning receivables at DecerBheP012. The ratio of allowance for losses asragnt of nonearning receivables
remained constant at 34.3% at December 31, 20fléctiag increases in allowance for losses in atietbanca S.p.A. and acquisition finance portfolaffset by an increase in nonearning receivalsles i
our Interbanca S.p.A. and asset-backed lendindgtiog. The majority of our CLL — Europe nonearnirggeivables are attributable to the InterbancaASgwrtfolio, which was acquired in 2009. The
loans acquired with Interbanca S.p.A. were recortddir value, which incorporates an estimatéatecquisition date of credit losses over theiraiaing life. Accordingly, these loans generally bav
lower ratio of allowance for losses as a percemtasfearning receivables compared to the remairntgighio. Excluding the nonearning loans attribuéato the 2009 acquisition of Interbanca S.p.Ae, th
ratio of allowance for losses as a percent of notieg receivables increased from 55.9% at Decer8be2011, to 58.4% at December 31, 2012, primally to an increase in the allowance for losses in
our acquisition finance portfolio. The ratio of re@mning receivables as a percent of financing vebées increased from 3.2% at December 31, 2013.58% at December 31, 2012, for the reasons
described above. Collateral supporting these sdaweearning financing receivables are primarilyigoof the underlying businesses for our InterlzaBm.A. business and equipment for our equipment
finance portfolio.

CLL — Asia . Nonearning receivables of $0.2 billion represdr€% of total nonearning receivables at DecerBlie2012. The ratio of allowance for losses asreque of nonearning receivables
decreased from 58.4% at December 31, 2011, to 4at3ecember 31, 2012, primarily due to a declinaliowance for losses as a result of write-offdapan, partially offset by collections and write-
offs of nonearning receivables in our asset-baiseih€ing businesses in Japan. The ratio of noneguneiceivables as a percent of financing receigatiéereased from 2.3% at December 31, 2011, to
1.7% at December 31, 2012, primarily due to wriffs-of nonearning receivables related to our abased financing businesses in Japan. Collateralostipg these nonearning financing receivables is
primarily manufacturing equipment, commercial restlate, corporate aircraft and assets in the adtestry.

Real Estate — Debt Nonearning receivables of $0.3 billion represdmt% of total nonearning receivables at DecerBlieR012. The decrease in nonearning receivatdes ecember 31, 2011, was
driven primarily by the resolution of North Ameritaonearning loans across all asset classes aop&am multi-family loans through write-offs, payo#nd foreclosures, partially offset by new
European retail nonearning loans. Write-offs insezhby approximately $0.3 billion in the fourth ciea of 2012 due to a change in our write-off pielicfor collateral dependent loans, requiring write
offs for loans with specific reserves aged gretitan 360 days. The ratio of allowance for losses psrcent of nonearning receivables decreased &% to 86.9% reflecting writeffs and resolutio
of nonearning loans as mentioned above. The ra@diavance for losses as a percent of total filragnceceivables decreased from 3.9% at Decembe2@1], to 1.4% at December 31, 2012, driven
primarily by the write-offs mentioned above andhgactional events such as settlements and payoffsifpaired loan borrowers and improvement inatellal values.

The Real Estate financing receivables portfoliodBateralized by income-producing or owner-occdpgiemmercial properties across a variety of adasses and markets. At December 31, 2012, total
Real Estate financing receivables of $20.9 billicere primarily collateralized by office building$5.2 billion), apartment buildings ($3.4 billiotjotel properties ($3.2 billion) and retail fac#isi ($2.9
billion). In 2012, commercial real estate marketatmue to show signs of improved stability andiidity in certain markets; however, the pace ofiayement varies significantly by asset class and
market and the long-term outlook remains uncertala.have and continue to maintain an intense foousperations and risk management. Loan loss reseelated to our Real Estate—Debt financing
receivables are particularly sensitive to declimasnderlying property values. Assuming global pup values decline an incremental 1% or 5%, aatidicline occurs evenly across geographies and
asset classes, we estimate incremental loan Isses/es would be required of less than $0.1 billind approximately $0.2 billion, respectively. Estting the impact of global property values on loss
performance across our portfolio depends on a nuowitfactors, including macroeconomic conditionsyperty level operating performance, local marketainics and individual borrower behavior. 2
result, any sensitivity analyses or attempts tedast potential losses carry a high degree of ioiom and are subject to change. At December @12 2we had 94 foreclosed commercial real estate
properties totaling $0.9 billion.
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Consumer — Non-U.S. residential mortgagesNonearning receivables of $2.6 billion represér#4.1% of total nonearning receivables at DecerBieR012. The ratio of allowance for losses as a
percent of nonearning receivables decreased frof%dat December 31, 2011, to 18.7% at Decembe2(®I2. In the year ended 2012, our nonearning rab&s decreased primarily as a result of
improved portfolio quality in the U.K. Our non-U.Biortgage portfolio has a loan-to-value ratio gi@ximately 76% at origination and the vast mayoite first lien positions. Our U.K. and France
portfolios, which comprise a majority of our totabrtgage portfolio, have reindexed loanvidue ratios of 83% and 56%, respectively. About@hese loans are without mortgage insurancenand ¢
reindexed loan-to-value ratio equal to or greatantl00%. Loan-to-value information is updated auarterly basis for a majority of our loans andsiders economic factors such as the housing price
index. At December 31, 2012, we had in repossessiamk 490 houses in the U.K., which had a valuappiroximately $0.1 billion. The ratio of noneamireceivables as a percent of financing
receivables decreased from 8.1% at December 31, 204.7% at December 31, 2012 for the reasongitiesicabove.

Consumer — Non-U.S. installment and revolving credi. Nonearning receivables of $0.2 billion represéi@#®% of total nonearning receivables at DecerBtheR012. The ratio of allowance for losses
as a percent of nonearning receivables increaseu 272.6% at December 31, 2011 to 278.1% at Dece8ih012 , reflecting lower nonearning receivalilae to improved delinquencies, collections
and write-offs primarily in Australia and New Zeath

Consumer — U.S. installment and revolving credit Nonearning receivables of $1.0 billion represerit@®% of total nonearning receivables at DecemheP312. The ratio of allowance for losses .
percent of nonearning receivables increased from820 at December 31, 2011, to 222.4% at Decemhe2®P, reflecting an increase in the allowancddsses primarily due to the use of a more
granular portfolio segmentation approach, by lgpetin determining the incurred loss period, jgdistioffset by an increase in the nonearning refglies balance. The ratio of nonearning receivadses
percentage of financing receivables decreased 2:df at December 31, 2011 to 2.0% at December@®I2,primarily due to a higher financing receivatbalance, partially offset by an increase in the
nonearning receivables balance.

Nonaccrual Financing Receivables

The following table provides details related to annaccrual and nonearning financing receivablesadcrual financing receivables include all nonegymeceivables and are those on which we have
stopped accruing interest. We stop accruing intertethe earlier of the time at which collectiorcbmes doubtful or the account becomes 90 daysdpasiSubstantially all of the differences between
nonearning and nonaccrual financing receivablege¢b loans which are classified as nonaccruahfiing receivables but are paying on a cash adoaubasis, and therefore excluded from nonearning
receivables. Of our $13.4 billion nonaccrual loah®ecember 31, 2012, $10.5 billion are currendlyipg in accordance with their contractual terms.

Nonaccrual Nonearning
financing financing
December 31, 2012 (In million receivables receivables
Commercial
CLL $ 4,138 $ 2,877
Energy Financial Service - -
GECAS 3 -
Other 25 13
Total Commercial 4,166 2,890
Real Estate 4,885 444
Consumer 4,301 4,194
Total $ 13,352 $ 7,528
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Impaired Loans

“Impaired” loans in the table below are defined as largemal®r restructured loans for which it is probahk the lender will be unable to collect all amisutue according to original contractual te

of the loan agreement. The vast majority of oursLoner and a portion of our CLL nonaccrual receigalare excluded from this definition, as they repn¢ smaller balance homogeneous loans that we
evaluate collectively by portfolio for impairment.

Impaired loans include nonearning receivables oyelabalance or restructured loans, loans thatarently paying interest under the cash basis gbeiexcluded from the nonearning category), and
loans paying currently but which have been prewiorestructured.

Specific reserves are recorded for individually &ingd loans to the extent we have determined th&probable that we will be unable to collectatiounts due according to original contractual seafn
the loan agreement. Certain loans classified asiiegh may not require a reserve because we beliewaeve will ultimately collect the unpaid balar(tierough collection or collateral repossession).

Further information pertaining to loans classifeimpaired and specific reserves is includedeértable below.

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Loans requiring allowance for loss
Commercial(a $ 1,372 $ 2,357
Real Estat 2,202 4,957
Consume 3,115 2,824
Total loans requiring allowance for losse: 6,689 10,138

Loans expected to be fully recovera

Commercial(a 3,697 3,305

Real Estat 3,491 3,790

Consume 105 69
Total loans expected to be fully recoverabl 7,293 7,164
Total impaired loans $ 13,982 $ 17,302
Allowance for losses (specific reserv:

Commercial(a $ 487 $ 812

Real Estate(k 188 822

Consume 674 680
Total allowance for losses (specific reserve $ 1,349 $ 2,314
Average investment during the peri $ 16,269 $ 18,167
Interest income earned while impairec 751 733
(a) Includes CLL, Energy Financial Services, GECAS @xier.
(b) Specific reserves declined approximately $0.3dillin 2012 attributable to a change in our v-off policies for collateral dependent loans, reigjrwrite-offs for loans with specific resen

aged greater than 360 da
(c) Recognized principally on a cash ba
We regularly review our Real Estate loans for impaint using both quantitative and qualitative festsuch as debt service coverage and loan-to-vatigs. We classify Real Estate loans as impaired
when the most recent valuation reflects a projelded-to-value ratio at maturity in excess of 10@¥en if the loan is currently paying in accordawnith contractual terms.

Of our $5.7 billion impaired loans at Real Estat®acember 31, 2012, $5.3 billion are currentlyipgyn accordance with the contractual terms ofitla and are typically loans where the borrower ha
adequate debt service coverage to meet contraoteadst obligations. Impaired loans at CLL prirharepresent senior secured lending positions.
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Our impaired loan balance at December 31, 201284d, classified by the method used to measureiimpat was as follows.
December 31 (In millions 2012

Method used to measure impairmen

Discounted cash flo\ $ 6,704
Collateral value 7,278
Total $ 13,982

See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statemarfart I, Item 8. “Financial Statements and Sapentary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.

@

2011

8,858
8,444
17,302

Our loss mitigation strategy is intended to minieneconomic loss and, at times, can result in extaations, principal forgiveness, extensions, faraece or other actions, which may cause the tklate
loan to be classified as a troubled debt restrir@ufTDR), and also as impaired. Changes to Re@ilt&s loans primarily include maturity extensiopsncipal payment acceleration, changes to calihte
terms and cash sweeps, which are in addition teporetimes in lieu of, fees and rate increases.determination of whether these changes to thestamd conditions of our commercial loans meet the
TDR criteria includes our consideration of all ket facts and circumstances. At December 31, ZDRRs included in impaired loans were $12.1 biljiprimarily relating to Real Estate ($5.1 billion),

CLL ($3.9 billion) and Consumer ($3.1 billion).

Real Estate TDRs decreased from $7.0 billion atbexer 31, 2011 to $5.1 billion at December 31, 2@titnarily driven by resolution of TDRs throughypimwns, restructuring, foreclosures and write-
offs, partially offset by extensions of loans sahled to mature during 2012, some of which weresifiesl as TDRs upon modification. For borrowershademonstrated operating capabilities, we wol
restructure loans when the cash flow and projectdae of the underlying collateral support repayhwrer the modified term. We deem loan modificasiom be TDRs when we have granted a
concession to a borrower experiencing financidlalifty and we do not receive adequate compensatitine form of an effective interest rate thaatisurrent market rates of interest given the risk

characteristics of the loan or other consideratiat compensates us for the value of the concess@rthe year ended December 31, 2012, we modbed billion of loans classified as TDRs,

substantially all in our Debt portfolio. Changeghese loans primarily included maturity extensjgrincipal payment acceleration, changes to amiddtor covenant terms and cash sweeps, whictnare i
addition to, or sometimes in lieu of, fees and mateeases. The limited liquidity and higher retoequirements in the real estate market for loaitls gher loan-to-value (LTV) ratios has typically
resulted in the conclusion that the modified tearesnot at current market rates of interest, ef/éreimodified loans are expected to be fully reable. We received the same or additional compiemn:

in the form of rate increases and fees for the ritgjof these TDRs. Of our $4.4 billion of modifitans classified as TDRs in the last twelve mon$is2 billion have subsequently experienced a

payment default.

The substantial majority of the Real Estate TDRehaserves determined based upon collateral v@luespecific reserves on Real Estate TDRs wer2 [§i0ion at December 31, 2012 and $0.6 billion
at December 31, 2011, and were 3.1% and 8.4%, ctsplg, of Real Estate TDRs. In many situationssth loans did not require a specific reserve datecl value adequately covered our recorded
investment in the loan. While these modified lohad adequate collateral coverage, we were stillired to complete our TDR classification evaluatiomeach of the modifications without regard to

collateral adequacy.

(57



We utilize certain short-term (three months or)ésan modification programs for borrowers expetieg temporary financial difficulties in our Consanoan portfolio. These loan modification
programs are primarily concentrated in our non-WeSidential mortgage and non-U.S. installmentr@wdlving portfolios. We sold our U.S. residentimbrtgage business in 2007 and as such, do not
participate in the U.S. government-sponsored mgegaodification programs. For the year ended Deeer@b, 2012, we provided short-term modificatiohagproximately $0.3 billion of consumer
loans for borrowers experiencing financial diffiges, substantially all in our non-U.S. residentrairtgage, credit card and personal loan portfplidsch are not classified as TDRs. For these niexlif
loans, we provided insignificant interest rate r&hns and payment deferrals, which were not piatti@terms of the original contract. We expectrbwers whose loans have been modified under these
short-term programs to continue to be able to rifet contractual obligations upon the conclusibthe short-term modification. In addition, we hawedified $1.8 billion of Consumer loans for the
year ended December 31, 2012, which are classiiesEDRs. Further information on Consumer impaioethé is provided in Note 23 to the consolidatedrfoial statements in Part II, Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Forri Report.

Delinquencies

For additional information on delinquency ratesath of our major portfolios, see Note 23 to thesctidated financial statements in Part II, Itefi8nancial Statements and Supplementary Data” of
this Form 10-K Report.

GECC Selected European Exposures
At December 31, 2012, we had $88.9 billion in ficiaug receivables to consumer and commercial cus®meEurope. The GECC financing receivables pbdfio Europe is well diversified across
European geographies and customers. Approxima#éty & the portfolio is secured by collateral anpresents approximately 500,000 commercial custanSengeral European countries, including

Spain, Portugal, Ireland, Italy, Greece and Hungdocus countries”), have been subject to crediedoration due to weaknesses in their economidianal situations. The carrying value of GECC
funded exposures in these focus countries anceimetst of Europe comprised the following at Decen®ie 2012.
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Rest of Total
December 31, 201.(In millions) Spain Portugal Ireland Italy Greece Hungary Europe Europe

Financing receivable
before allowanci
for losses o1
financing receivable $ 1871 $ 471 $ 275 $ 7,161 $ 56 $ 3,207 $ 77,480 $ 90,521

Allowance for losses o
financing receivable (102' (28) (9) (241 - (112 (1,176 (1,668

Financing receivable
net of allowanc:t

for losses o1

financing receivables(a)(l 1,769 443 266 6,920 56 3,095 76,304 88,853
Investments(c)(d 119 - - 497 - 257 1,401 2,274
Cost and equity methc

investments(e 441 21 360 64 33 3 652 1,574
Derivatives,

net of collateral(c)(f 3 - - 90 - - 176 269
ELTO(g) 524 65 374 853 253 345 9,901 12,315
Real estate held fc

investment(g’ 791 - - 410 - - 6,014 7,215
Total funded exposures(h 3$ 3647 $ 529 $ 1,000 $ 8,834 $ 342 $ 3,700 $ 94,448 $ 112,50C
Unfunded commitments(i) $ 17 8 8 $ 177 $ 297 $ 5 § 683 $ 8,376 $ 9,563
(a) Financing receivable amounts are classified basgti@®location or nature of the related obli¢
(b) Substantially all relates to n-sovereign obligors. Includes residential mortgaggn$ of approximately $33.2 billion before consadien of purchased credit protection. We have -party

mortgage insurance for less than 15% of theseeesal mortgage loans, substantially all of whickrevoriginated in the U.K., Poland and Frar

(c) Investments and derivatives are classified basetiefocation of the parent of the obligor or igs!
(d) Includes $0.9 billion related to financial instituts, $0.2 billion related to n-financial institutions and $1.2 billion relatedgovereign issuers. Sovereign issuances totaledofiidh and $0..

billion related to Italy and Hungary, respectivelye held no investments issued by sovereign esiiti¢he other focus countrie

(e) Substantially all is nc-sovereign
) Net of cash collateral; entire amount is -sovereign
(9) These assets are held under -term investment and operating strategies, and quipment leased to others (ELTO) strategies coni@em@n ability to redeploy assets under leaseld

default by the lessee occur. The values of thesetssould be subject to decline or impairmenhédurrent environmel.

(h) Excludes $29.9 billion of cash and equivalents,clvhis composed of $17.4 billion of cash on s-term placement with highly rated global financiastitutions based in Europe, sovert
central banks and agencies or supranational entifevhich $1.4 billion is in focus countries, atR.5 billion of cash and equivalents placed waithhly rated European financial institutions
a short-term basis, secured by U.S. Treasury sa=u(i9.7 billion) and sovereign bonds of rfonus countries ($2.8 billion), where the valueoaf collateral exceeds the amount of our
exposure

(@) Includes ordinary course of business lending comeitts, commercial and consumer unused revolvirgjtdiees, inventory financing arrangements ancestment commitment

We manage counterparty exposure, including créeskif on an individual counterparty basis. We pldeéned risk limits around each obligor and reviewv risk exposure on the basis of both the primary
and parent obligor, as well as the issuer of sgeareld as collateral. These limits are adjustedn ongoing basis based on our continuing assesshthe credit risk of the obligor or issuer sktting

our counterparty risk limits, we focus on high dyatredits and diversification through spreadiskiin an effort to actively manage our overall espre. We actively monitor each exposure agaitsteth
limits and take appropriate action when we beligae risk limits have been exceeded or there atessxrisk concentrations. Our collateral positiod ability to work out problem accounts has
historically mitigated our actual loss experienB@elinquency experience has been relatively stabtir European commercial and consumer platforniseraggregate, and we actively monitor and take
action to reduce
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exposures where appropriate. Uncertainties suriagriBuropean markets could have an impact on tigments and estimates used in determining theingrmgalue of these assets.

Other GECC receivablestotaled $14.0 billion at December 31, 2012 and $bdlion at December 31, 2011, and consisted sfiiance receivables, amounts due from GE (primegibted to material
procurement programs of $3.5 billion at both Decendi, 2012 and December 31, 2011), nonfinanciistpouer receivables, amounts due under operatisgdeamounts accrued from investment
income, tax receivables and various sundry items.

Property, plant and equipmenttotaled $69.7 billion at December 31, 2012, up $llon from 2011, primarily reflecting an increai machinery and equipment at GE and in equipreased to

others principally as a result of aircraft acquasis at our GECAS leasing business. GE properantgind equipment consisted of investments fanits productive use, whereas the largest element for
GECC was equipment provided to third parties omraeg leases. Details by category of investmeataesented in Note 7 to the consolidated finarsta&kements in Part II, Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” of this ForrK Report.

GE additions to property, plant and equipment ezt&#3.9 billion and $3.0 billion in 2012 and 20fdspectively. Total expenditures, excluding equiptieased to others, for the past five years were
$13.2 billion, of which 43% was investment for gtowthrough new capacity and product developmert 2&s investment in productivity through new equéminand process improvements; and 35%
was investment for other purposes such as improneafeesearch and development facilities and gafatl environmental protection.

GECC additions to property, plant and equipmenev#rl.9 billion and $9.9 billion during 2012 andl2Qrespectively, primarily reflecting additionsafmmercial aircraft at GECAS.

Goodwill and other intangible assetdotaled $73.4 billion and $12.0 billion, respechiyet December 31, 2012. Goodwill increased $@l®b from 2011, primarily from the acquisition$ mdustrea
Limited and Railcar Management, Inc., and the we&k8. dollar. Other intangible assets decreaseli ifi0ion from 2011, primarily from dispositionsid amortization expense, partially offset by
acquisitions. Goodwill and other intangible assetseased $8.2 billion and $2.1 billion, respediiyén 2011 primarily from the acquisitions of Carteam, the Well Support division of John Wood
Group PLC, Dresser, Inc., Wellstream PLC and LieeBgwer Holdings, Inc. See Note 8 to the consdlifihancial statements in Part Il, Item 8. “Finah&tatements and Supplementary Data” of this
Form 10-K Report.

All other assetscomprise mainly real estate equity properties andstments, equity and cost method investmentsadime instruments and assets held for sale, ataded $100.1 billion at December
31, 2012, a decrease of $11.6 billion, primaribated to decreases in the fair value of derivaitiséruments ($6.1 billion), the sale of certainchfdr-sale real estate and aircraft ($4.8 billiany
decreases in our Penske Truck Leasing Co., L.R.)(PiVestment ($4.5 billion), partially offset blge consolidation of an entity involved in power geating activities ($1.6 billion). During 2012, we
recognized $0.1 billion of other-than-temporary @itments of cost and equity method investmentdpeliug those related to real estate.
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Included in other assets are Real Estate equisinvents of $20.7 billion and $23.9 billion at Deber 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respecti@ely portfolio is diversified, both geographically
and by asset type. We review the estimated valtiesracommercial real estate investments annuaflynore frequently as conditions warrant. Basethermost recent valuation estimates available, the
carrying value of our Real Estate investments ekeeeheir estimated value by about $1.1 billionisTmount is subject to variation and dependergaamomic and market conditions, changes in cash
flow estimates and composition of our portfolicclirding sales such as our recently announced digposf certain floors located at 30 Rockefellegrifer, New York to an affiliate of NBCU.
Commercial real estate valuations have shown si§imeproved stability and liquidity in certain mats, primarily in the U.S.; however, the pace ogpiovement varies significantly by asset class and
market. Accordingly, there continues to be risk ancertainty surrounding commercial real estateesa Declines in estimated value of real estal@ebearrying amount result in impairment losses
when the aggregate undiscounted cash flow estinugsin the estimated value measurement are ib®wearrying amount. As such, estimated lossesamportfolio will not necessarily result in
recognized impairment losses. During 2012, ReaitBsecognized pre-tax impairments of $0.1 billivits real estate held for investment, which warienarily driven by declining cash flow projections
for properties in Japan and Europe, as well asegfi@decisions to sell portfolios in Asia and EpgoReal Estate investments with undiscounted fbasis in excess of carrying value of 0% to 5% at
December 31, 2012 had a carrying value of $2.iohitind an associated estimated unrealized loas ofsignificant amount. Continued deterioratioe@@nomic conditions or prolonged market
illiquidity may result in further impairments beimgcognized.

Contract costs and estimated earnings reflect t@snarned in excess of billings on our long-teomtracts to construct technically complex equipn{sath as power generation, aircraft engines and
aeroderivative units) and long-term product maiatere or extended warranty arrangements. Our totdfact costs and estimated earnings balancescaniieer 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, were
$9.4 billion and $9.0 billion, respectively, reftewy the timing of billing in relation to work pexfmed, as well as changes in estimates of futwenees and costs. Our total contract costs anchatstd
earnings balance at December 31, 2012 primarigted|to customers in our Power & Water, Oil & Gagation and Transportation businesses. Furtharmétion is provided in the Critical Accounting
Estimates section.

Liquidity and Borrowings

We maintain a strong focus on liquidity. At both @d GECC we manage our liquidity to help provideess to sufficient funding to meet our businessiaeand financial obligations throughout
business cycles.

Our liquidity and borrowing plans for GE and GEC@ astablished within the context of our annuadficial and strategic planning processes. At GEliquidity and funding plans take into account the
liquidity necessary to fund our operating committsewhich include primarily purchase obligations ifoventory and equipment, payroll and general egps (including pension funding). We also take
into account our capital allocation and growth abjes, including paying dividends, repurchasingrel, investing in research and development anairéogjindustrial businesses. At GE, we rely
primarily on cash generated through our operataiiyiies, any dividend payments from GECC, anadlave historically maintained a commercial papegmm that we regularly use to fund operat

in the U.S., principally within fiscal quarters. fng 2012, GECC paid dividends of $1.9 billion apkcial dividends of $4.5 billion to GE.

GECC:s liquidity position is targeted to meet its obtigas under both normal and stressed conditionrSCG establishes a funding plan annually that iethas the projected asset size and cash net
the Company, which over the past few years, hdaded our strategy to reduce our ending net investrim GE Capital. GECC relies on a diversifiedrsewf funding, including the unsecured term ¢
markets, the global commercial paper markets, depeecured funding, retail funding products, bankrowings and securitizations to fund its balasieeet, in addition to cash generated through
collection of principal, interest and other paynseon the existing portfolio of loans and leasefuitml its operating and interest expense costs.
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Our 2013 GECC funding plan anticipates repaymemptrioicipal on outstanding short-term borrowingsliling the current portion of long-term debt (®illion at December 31, 2012), through
issuance of longerm debt and reissuance of commercial paper, @as$tand, collections of financing receivables eragg originations, dispositions, asset sales, ambsits and other alternative sour
of funding. Long-term maturities and early rederops were $88 billion in 2012. Interest on borroveiigyprimarily repaid through interest earned aisténg financing receivables. During 2012, GECC
earned interest income on financing receivable®2dfO0 billion, which more than offset interest expe of $11.7 billion.

We maintain a detailed liquidity policy for GECC ieh includes a requirement to maintain a contingeoading plan. The liquidity policy defines GECGiguidity risk tolerance under different stress
scenarios based on its liquidity sources and atabéshes procedures to escalate potential is®desctively monitor GECC's access to funding meglend its liquidity profile through tracking exted
indicators and testing various stress scenarios.cbntingency funding plan provides a frameworkifandling market disruptions and establishes esoalprocedures in the event that such events or
circumstances arise.

GECC is a savings and loan holding company und8r ldw and became subject to Federal Reserve EBRM#) supervision on July 21, 2011, the one-yeaiarsary of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act (DFA). The FRB recently finalized a regulation that requiresaie organizations it supervises to submit anagital plans for review, including institutions’
plans to make capital distributions, such as dividpayments. The applicability and timing of thisposed regulation to GECC is not yet determinesdver, the FRB has indicated that it expects to
extend these requirements to large savings andholaing companies through separate rulemaking/arter. While GECC is not yet subject to this degion, GECCS capital allocation planning is s
subject to FRB review. The FRB recently proposeplilaions to revise and replace its current rutesapital adequacy and we have taken the propesgdations into consideration in our current cd
planning. The proposed regulations would applyaiireggs and loan holding companies like GECC. Thasition period for achieving compliance with tlregmsed regulations following final adoptior
unclear. As expected, the U.S. Financial Stab@litiersight Council (FSOC) recently notified GECCittias under consideration for a proposed deteatidm as a nonbank systemically important
financial institution (nonbank SIFI) under the DR&hile not final, such a determination would subj&CC to proposed enhanced supervisory standards.

Actions taken to strengthen and maintain our ligyidre described in the following section.
Liquidity Sources
We maintain liquidity sources that consist of casld equivalents and a portfolio of high-qualitguiid investments and committed unused credit lines.

We have consolidated cash and equivalents of $lfign at December 31, 2012, which is availablerteet our needs. Of this, approximately $16 bili®held at GE and approximately $62 billion is
held at GECC.

In addition to our $77.4 billion of cash and eqlévds, we have a centrally managed portfolio ohkigiality, liquid investments at GECC with a failwe of $3.1 billion at December 31, 2012. This
portfolio is used to manage liquidity and meetdperating needs of GECC under both normal andssg@mnarios. The investments consist of unencumih&i® government securities, U.S. agency
securities, securities guaranteed by the governrsaptanational securities, and a select groupof.S. government securities. We believe that arereadily obtain cash for these securities, emen i
stressed market conditions.

We have committed, unused credit lines totaling.$48lion that have been extended to us by 51nfie institutions at December 31, 2012. GECC aamdw up to $48.2 billion under all of these cre

lines. GE can borrow up to $12.0 billion under agrif these credit lines. These lines include $&dlion of revolving credit agreements under whige can borrow funds for periods exceeding one
year. Additionally, $17.9 billion are 364-day lingsat contain a term-out feature that allows usxiend borrowings for one or two years from theedxtexpiration of the lending agreement.
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Cash and equivalents of $53.2 billion at Decemie2B12 are held outside of the U.S. Of this amatiyear-end, $14.4 billion is indefinitely reinted. Indefinitely reinvested cash held outsidehef t
U.S. is available to fund operations and other ghoof non- U.S. subsidiaries; it is also used todfour needs in the U.S. on a short-term basisigirshort-term loans, without being subject to WaS.
Under the Internal Revenue Code, these loans aneitped to be outstanding for 30 days or less &edatal of all such loans are required to be anting for less than 60 days during the year.

$1.8 billion of GE cash and equivalents is heldanntries with currency controls that may restiet transfer of funds to the U.S. or limit our #ito transfer funds to the U.S. without incurring
substantial costs. These funds are available o éperations and growth in these countries andaveod currently anticipate a need to transfer thesds to the U.S.

At GECC, about $10 billion of cash and equivalentsin regulated banks and insurance entities enduibject to regulatory restrictions.

If we were to repatriate indefinitely reinvestedlecdeld outside the U.S., we would be subject thtmdial U.S. income taxes and foreign withholdtages.

Funding Plan

We have reduced our GE Capital ending net investneanluding cash and equivalents, from $513 bilid January 1, 2009 to $419 billion at Decembe2812.

During 2012, GE completed issuances of $7.0 bilibsenior unsecured debt with maturities up ty@&ars. GECC issued $33.9 billion of senior unsetdebt and $1.7 billion of secured debt
(excluding securitizations described below) withtunigies up to 40 years (and subsequent to DeceBihe2012, an additional $13.1 billion). Averagentoercial paper borrowings for GECC and GE
during the fourth quarter were $40.4 billion an@<1billion, respectively, and the maximum amowsftsommercial paper borrowings outstanding for GEG@ GE during the fourth quarter were $43.1
billion and $14.8 billion, respectively. GECC conmeial paper maturities are funded principally ttgbinew commercial paper issuances and at GE astestiially repaid before quarter-end using
indefinitely reinvested overseas cash which, asudised above, is available for use in the U.S. simoa-term basis without being subject to U.S. tax

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatidf3i€) Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (TLG#RE FDIC guaranteed certain senior, unsecuredisginéd by GECC on or before October 31,
2009. As of December 31, 2012, our TLGP-guarantedd was fully repaid.

We securitize financial assets as an alternativecgoof funding. During 2012, we completed $15IBdni of non+ecourse issuances and had maturities and decdasotis of $14.9 billion. At Decemb
31, 2012, consolidated non-recourse borrowings ®8€el billion.

We have deposit-taking capability at 12 banks detsif the U.S. and two banks in the U.SE Capital Retail Bank, a Federal Savings Bank (fF&B8d GE Capital Financial Inc., an industrial lboiB).
The FSB and IB currently issue certificates of dep@Ds) in maturity terms from two months to terars. On January 11, 2013, the FSB acquired thesitebusiness of MetLife Bank, N.A. This
acquisition adds approximately $6.4 billion in dejg®and an online banking platform.

Total alternative funding at December 31, 2012 $H31 billion, composed mainly of $46 billion of badeposits, $30 billion of non-recourse securitmaborrowings, $10 billion of funding secured by
real estate, aircraft and other collateral andi®i of GE Interest Plus notes. The comparabl@am at December 31, 2011 was $96 billion.
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As a matter of general practice, we routinely eatdithe economic impact of calling debt instrumevtiere GECC has the right to exercise a call. eftenining whether to call debt, we consider the
economic benefit to GECC of calling debt, the dffsfocalling debt on GECC's liquidity profile andher factors. In 2012, we called $8.6 billion ofi¢pterm debt, of which $4.5 billion was settleddref
year end.

Exchange rate and interest rate risk@are managed with a variety of techniques, includiagch funding and selective use of derivatives.uste derivatives to mitigate or eliminate certamaficial and
market risks because we conduct business in diveaskets around the world and local funding isalatays efficient. In addition, we use derivativesatjust the debt we are issuing to match the foa
floating nature of the assets we are originating. Mply strict policies to manage each of thedes riscluding prohibitions on speculative activgti€ollowing is an analysis of the potential eféect
changes in interest rates and currency exchange uaing so-called “shock&sts that seek to model the effects of shiftmias. Such tests are inherently limited basedhemssumptions used (descri
further below) and should not be viewed as a f@g@tual effects would depend on many variatfesiding market factors and the composition of @mnpany’s assets and liabilities at that time.

« Itis our policy to minimize exposure to intereater changes. We fund our financial investmentsgudebt or a combination of debt and hedging insémits so that the interest rates of our borrow
match the expected interest rate profile on ouetas3o test the effectiveness of our fixed ratsitfoms, we assumed that, on January 1, 2013 eistteates increased by 100 basis points acro
yield curve (a “parallel shift” in that curve) affdrther assumed that the increase remained in ptac2013. We estimated, based on the y@ai-2012 portfolio and holding all other assump
constant, that our 2013 consolidated net earnirgddwdecline by less than $0.1 billion as a resfithis parallel shift in the yield curv

« It is our policy to minimize currency exposures d@ondconduct operations either within functional remcies or using the protection of hedge strategMs analyzed ye-end 2012 consolidat
currency exposures, including derivatives desighated effective as hedges, to identify assets mfmlilies denominated in other than their relevamictional currencies. For such assets
liabilities, we then evaluated the effects of a 168t in exchange rates between those currencidgtee U.S. dollar, holding all other assumptionastant. This analysis indicated that our 2
consolidated net earnings would decline by less $tal billion as a result of such a shift in exufparates

Debt and Derivative Instruments, Guarantees and Ceanants

Credit Ratings

On April 3, 2012, Moody’s Investors Service (Mooslyannounced that it had downgraded the seniorcunse debt rating of GE by one notch from Aa2 t@Aad the senior unsecured debt rating of
GECC by two notches from Aa2 to Al. The ratings dgmade did not affect GE's and GECC's short-termufog ratings of P-1, which were affirmed by Moasly'Moody’s ratings outlook for GE and
GECC is stable. We did not experience any mategalational, funding or liquidity impacts from shiatings downgrade. As of December 31, 2012, @atsGECC's long-term unsecured debt ratings
from Standard and Poor’s Ratings Service (S&P) weke with a stable outlook and their short-termdiimg ratings from S&P were A+. We are disclosing these ratings to enhancerstadeling of oL
sources of liquidity and the effects of our ratirgsour costs of funds. Although we currently do expect a downgrade in the credit ratings, oungatmay be subject to a revision or withdrawadrat
time by the assigning rating organization, and eatihg should be evaluated independently of ahgmtating.

Substantially all GICs were affected by the downdgrand are more fully discussed in the Principditl@d Derivative Conditions section. Additionaliyere were other contracts affected by the
downgrade with provisions requiring us to providelional funding, post collateral and make othaypents. The total cash and collateral impact eséhcontracts was less than $0.5 billion.

Principal Debt and Derivative Conditions

Certain of our derivative instruments can be teated if specified credit ratings are not maintaiaad certain debt and derivatives agreements ef athnsolidated entities have provisions that are
affected by these credit ratings.
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Fair values of our derivatives can change signifilgafrom period to period based on, among othetdiss, market movements and changes in our positie manage counterparty credit risk (the risk
that counterparties will default and not make paytsé¢o us according to the terms of our standarstenagreements) on an individual counterpartysb&ghere we have agreed to netting of derivative
exposures with a counterparty, we offset our expswith that counterparty and apply the valueadfateral posted to us to determine the net exgoddfie actively monitor these net exposures against
defined limits and take appropriate actions in ogse, including requiring additional collateral.

Swap, forward and option contracts are execute@ustdndard master agreements that typically comtaitual downgrade provisions that provide theighiff the counterparty to require termination if
the long-term credit ratings of the applicable Giitg were to fall below A-/A3. In certain of theseaster agreements, the counterparty also habiiity & require termination if the shotérm ratings o
the applicable GE entity were to fall below A-1/PF¥he net derivative liability after consideratiohnetting arrangements, outstanding interest paysnend collateral posted by us under these master
agreements was estimated to be $0.3 billion at Mbee 31, 2012. See Note 22 to the consolidateddinastatements in Part II, Item 8. “Financialt8taents and Supplementary Data” of this FornkK10-
Report.

Other debt and derivative agreements of consolidergities include Trinity, which comprises twoiéas that hold investment securities, the majooityvhich are investment grade, and were funded by
the issuance of GICs. These GICs included conditiorder which certain holders could require immtediepayment of their investment should the longiteredit ratings of GECC fall below AA-/Aa3
or the short-term credit ratings fall below A-1+IPThe Trinity assets and liabilities are disclosedote (a) on our Statement of Financial Positiothe consolidated financial statements in Faitdm

8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary DatahisfForm 10-K Report. Another consolidated endityo had issued GICs where proceeds are loar®@8®&C. These GICs included conditions under
which certain holders could require immediate reperyt of their investment should the long-term dreatings of GECC fall below AA-/Aa3. These obligats are included in long-term borrowings on
our Statement of Financial Position in the consaid financial statements in Part I, Item 8. “Ficial Statements and Supplementary Data” of thisfFH-K Report. These three consolidated entities
ceased issuing GICs in 2010.

Following the April 3, 2012 Moody’s downgrade of GE’s long-term credit rating to A1, substantiallyat these GICs became redeemable by their holdier012, holders of $2.4 billion in principal
amount of GICs redeemed their holdings and GECCemeldted cash payments. The remaining outstar@li@g will continue to be subject to their scheduteaturities and individual terms, which may
include provisions permitting redemption upon a dgrade of one or more of GECC's ratings, amongrdtiiags.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges, Income Maintenace Agreement and Subordinated Debentures

GE provides implicit and explicit support to GEQ€dugh commitments, capital contributions and ojregesupport. For example, and as discussed be&dhas committed to keep GECC's ratio of
earnings to fixed charges above a minimum levehddition, GE has made a total of $15.0 billiorcapital contributions to GECC in 2009 and 2008priove tangible capital and reduce leverage.
GECC's credit rating is higher than it would beastand-alone basis as a result of this financiapart.

On March 28, 1991, GE entered into an agreemeht@#CC to make payments to GECC, constituting amfditto pre-tax income under the agreement, t@xient necessary to cause the ratio of
earnings to fixed charges of GECC and consolidatfitates (determined on a consolidated basi$)emot less than 1.10:1 for the period, as a siagigegation, of each GECC fiscal year commencing
with fiscal year 1991. GECC's ratio of earningdiked charges was 1.64:1 for 2012. No paymengdmired in 2013 pursuant to this agreement.

Any payment made under the Income Maintenance Ageeéwill not affect the ratio of earnings to fixedarges as determined in accordance with curé@tr@les because it does not constitute an
addition to pre-tax income under current U.S. GAAP.

In addition, in connection with certain subordiratiebentures of GECC that may be classified agyettwibrid debt), during events of default or itstr deferral periods under such subordinated
debentures, GECC has agreed not to declare ormyagi@dends or distributions or make certain otbayments with respect to its capital stock, andn@g&agreed to promptly return any payments made
to GE in violation of this agreement. There were3$iillion of such debentures outstanding at Decam3i, 2012. See Note 10 to the consolidated fiahstatements in Part Il, Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” of this ForrK Report.
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Shareowners’ Equity

Effective with 2012 reporting, activity affectingareowners’ equity is presented in two stateméhésConsolidated Statement of Changes in SharesiMBquity and the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The elements of other corepibe income previously disclosed in the Constdid&tatement of Changes in Shareowners’ Equitpanepresented in the new Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, which combimeset elements with net earnings. An analysis afigbs in the elements of shareowners’ equity, esepted in these two statements, follows.

GE shareowners’ equity increased by $6.6 billio2@12, compared with a decrease of $2.5 billiogdf1 and an increase of $1.6 billion in 2010.

Net earnings increased GE shareowners' equity By6dillion, $14.2 billion and $11.6 billion, paatiy offset by dividends declared of $7.4 billi&y,.5 billion (including $0.8 billion related to o
preferred stock redemption) and $5.2 billion in 202011 and 2010, respectively.

Elements of accumulated other comprehensive ind®®€l) increased shareownerjuity by $3.7 billion in 2012, compared with dexses of $6.1 billion in 2011 and $2.3 billion inl®Q respectively
inclusive of changes in accounting principles. €hmponents of these changes are as follows:

. Changes in AOCI related to benefit plans increadeteowner’ equity by $2.3 billion in 2012, primarily reflecinramortization of actuarial losses and prior sengosts out of AOCI, high
asset values and changes to our principal retieeefii plans, partially offset by lower discountes used to measure pension and postretirementitbebkgations. This compared with
decrease of $7.0 billion and an increase of $1libbiin 2011 and 2010, respectively. The decréas2011 primarily reflected lower discount rategdigo measure pension and postretire!
benefit obligations and lower asset values, pdytafset by amortization of actuarial losses anidpservice costs out of AOCI. The increase in@@timarily reflected prior service cost and
actuarial loss amortization out of AOCI and higli@ir value of plan assets, partially offset by lovescount rates used to measure pension and prestient benefit obligations. Furtt
information about changes in benefit plans is piediin Note 12 to the consolidated financial st@tets in Part I, Iltem 8. “Financial Statements &upplementary Data” of this Form ¥0-
Report.

. Changes in AOCI related to investment securitieseiased shareown’ equity by $0.7 billion and $0.6 billion in 2012 a@611, respectively, reflecting the effects of loweerest rates al
improved market conditions on U.S. corporate séesipartially offset by adjustments to reflect #ffect of the unrealized gains on insurarelated assets and equity. Investment sect
increased shareownemxjuity by an insignificant amount in 2010. Furthormation about investment securities is providedNote 3 to the consolidated financial statemémtBart Il, ltem €
“Financial Statements and Supplementary " of this Form 1-K Report.

. Changes in AOCI related to the fair value of defixes designated as cash flow hedges increaseemhaer’ equity by $0.5 billion in 2012, primarily reflectinreleases from AO(
contemporaneous with the earnings effects of thete® hedged items, principally as an adjustmeribtefest expense on borrowings. Cash flow hedge®gased shareownesjuity by $0.
billion and $0.5 billion in 2011 and 2010, respeely. Further information about the fair value @fridatives is provided in Note 22 to the consokdafinancial statements in Part Il, Iten
“Financial Statements and Supplementary " of this Form 1-K Report.
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. Changes in AOCI related to currency translatiorusitiients increased shareowr equity by $0.3 billion in 2012 and $0.2 billion 2011 and decreased equity by $3.9 billion in 2@litange
in currency translation adjustments reflect the@# of changes in currency exchange rates oneiunvestment in noi}.S. subsidiaries that have functional currenctéerthan the U.S. doll:
At yearend 2012, the U.S. dollar weakened against mostmeajrencies, including the pound sterling andetbeo, and strengthened against the Japanese sudting in increases in currer
translation adjustments which were partially offisgtreleases from AOCI related to dispositionsy@arend 2011 and 2010, the dollar strengthened agaiast major currencies, including
pound sterling and the euro and weakened agai@#tubktralian dollar and the Japanese

Noncontrolling interests included in shareow’ equity increased $3.7 billion in 2012, principadly a result of the issuance of preferred stock BEG. Noncontrolling interests decreased by $3léhi
in 2011 and $2.6 billion in 2010, principally asesult of dispositions.

Statement of Cash Flows — Overview from 2010 throdg2012

Consolidated cash and equivalents were $77.4 biliddecember 31, 2012, a decrease of $7.1 biifmn December 31, 2011. Cash and equivalents th&8d.5 billion at December 31, 2011, an
increase of $5.6 billion from December 31, 2010.

We evaluate our cash flow performance by revievangindustrial (non-financial services) businessed financial services businesses separately. fE@ashoperating activities (CFOA) is the principal
source of cash generation for our industrial busges. The industrial businesses also have liquedigflable via the public capital markets. Our fioial services businesses use a variety of financia
resources to meet our capital needs. Cash fordiabservices businesses is primarily provided ftomissuance of term debt and commercial papteipublic and private markets and deposits, ak wel
as financing receivables collections, sales andrigemations.

GE Cash Flows

GE cash and equivalents were $15.5 billion at Déear1, 2012, compared with $8.4 billion at Decengide 2011. GE CFOA totaled $17.8 billion in 20Xnpared with $12.1 billion and $14.7 billion
in 2011 and 2010, respectively. With respect to@HOA, we believe that it is useful to supplement@& Statement of Cash Flows and to examine iroad®r context the business activities that
provide and require cash.

GE CFOA increased $5.8 billion compared with 2Qdrimarily due to dividends paid by GECC of $6.4ibil. In 2011, GE CFOA decreased $2.7 billion corepawith 2010, primarily due to the impact
of the disposal of NBCU.

(In billions) 2012 2011 2010
Operating cash collections( $ 105.4 $ 93.6 $ 98.2
Operating cash paymer (94.0 (81.5 (83.5
Cash dividends from GEC 6.4 - -
GE cash from operating activities (GE CFOA) $ 17.8 $ 12.1 $ 14.7
(@) GE sells customer receivables to GECC in part il filne growth of our industrial businesses. Themesactions can result in cash generation or ceshuring any given period, GE recei'

cash from the sale of receivables to GECC. It fidsegoes collection of cash on receivables sol@ ifitremental amount of cash received from sateadgivables in excess of the cash GE w
have otherwise collected had those receivablebern sold, represents the cash generated or utieel period relating to this activity. The incrertarcash generated in GE CFOA from selling
these receivables to GECC increased GE CFOA byl$lli¢n in 2012, increased GE CFOA by $1.2 billitn2011 and decreased GE CFOA by $0.4 billiondh@® See Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements in Part II, I@miFinancial Statements and Supplementary DatahisfForm 10-K Report for additional informatiobaut the elimination of intercompany
transactions between GE and GE(
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The most significant source of cash in GE CFOAuistamer-related activities, the largest of whichdiecting cash following a product or serviceles&E operating cash collections increased by8b11.
billion in 2012 and decreased by $4.6 billion ill20These changes are consistent with the changesriparable GE operating segment revenues, imgutie impact of acquisitions, primarily at Power
& Water and Oil & Gas. Analyses of operating segimemenues discussed in the preceding Segment iperaection are the best way of understandingostomer-related CFOA.

The most significant operating use of cash is p@a suppliers, employees, tax authorities anérstfor a wide range of material and services. @& ating cash payments increased by $12.5 billion i
2012 and decreased by $2.0 billion in 2011. Thésmges are consistent with the changes in GEdosas and expenses, including the impact of adtprisi primarily at Power & Water and Oil & Gas.

Dividends from GECC, including special dividend=spresent the distribution of a portion of GECC iretd earnings, and are distinct from cash frominaitig operating activities within the financial
services businesses. The amounts we show in GE GF®#e total dividends, including special dividerfirom excess capital. Beginning in the secondtgquaf 2012, GECC restarted its dividend to
GE. During 2012, GECC paid dividends of $1.9 billand special dividends of $4.5 billion to GE. Téherere no dividends received from GECC in 20110402

On October 9, 2012, GE issued $7.0 billion of natgsacting our cash flows from financing activiti€n February 1, 2013, we repaid $5.0 billion of &fior unsecured notes.
GECC Cash Flows

GECC cash and equivalents were $61.9 billion aebdser 31, 2012, compared with $76.7 billion at Delver 31, 2011. GECC CFOA totaled $22.0 billion26d.2, compared with cash from operating
activities of $21.1 billion for the same period2f11. This was primarily due to increases, compéretle prior year, in net cash collateral heldrfroounterparties on derivative contracts of $1liobi
partially offset by decreases in accounts payab®0® billion.

Consistent with our plan to reduce GECC assetdewaish from investing activities was $14.5 billinr2012, primarily resulting from a $5.4 billiorduction in financing receivables due to collecdion
(which includes sales) exceeding originations, $llion related to net loan repayments from ouniggmethod investments, proceeds from principaiiess dispositions of $2.9 billion and $2.8 biilio
from sales of real estate held for investment andtg method investments. These increases wer@ladffset by $5.7 billion of net purchases oluggment leased to others (ELTO).

GECC cash used for financing activities in 201%%2.5 billion related primarily to a $49.5 billisaduction in total borrowings, consisting primarifynet reductions in long-term borrowings and
commercial paper, $6.5 billion of dividends paidstmreowners (including $0.1 billion paid to GEQ€fprred shareowners), and $2.0 billion of redeamgtiof guaranteed investment contracts at Trinity,
partially offset by $4.0 billion of proceeds froimetissuance of preferred stock and $2.4 billiohigher deposits at our banks.

GECC pays dividends to GE through a distributioit®fetained earnings, including special dividefrdsn proceeds of certain business sales.

Intercompany Eliminations

Effects of transactions between related compam&sade on an arms-length basis, are eliminatedansist primarily of GECC dividends to GE; GE auser receivables sold to GECC; GECC
services for trade receivables management and iagteocurement; buildings and equipment (includanugomobiles) leased between GE and GECC; infoomaéchnology (IT) and other services sold
to GECC by GE; aircraft engines manufactured bytk&f are installed on aircraft purchased by GE@fthird-party producers for lease to others; aaribus investments, loans and allocations of GE

corporate overhead costs. For further informatelated to intercompany eliminations, see Note 2hé¢oconsolidated financial statements in Paitdm 8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data” of this Form 10-K Report.
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Contractual Obligations
As defined by reporting regulations, our contrataldigations for future payments as of December2gi1.2, follow.

Payments due by perioc

2018 anc
(In billions) Total 2013 201¢4-201¢ 201€-2017 thereafter
Borrowings and ban
deposits (Note 1C $ 414.1 $ 139.2 $ 103.2 $ 60.9 $ 110.8
Interest on borrowings ar
bank deposit 92.8 9.7 14.2 10.1 58.8
Purchase obligations(a)( 65.8 33.8 13.5 5.8 12.7
Insurance liabilities (Note 11)(: 14.0 1.6 2.9 2.0 7.5
Operating lease obligatiol
(Note 19) 4.1 0.9 1.3 0.9 1.0
Other liabilities(d) 83.7 19.3 10.0 8.3 46.1
Contractual obligations ¢
discontinued operations( 1.9 1.9 - - -
(a) Included all tak-or-pay arrangements, capital expenditures, contrachmamitments to purchase equipment that will bedezo others, contractual commitments relateddtofing agreement
software acquisition/license commitments, contralctoinimum programming commitments and any contraltt required cash payments for acquisitic
(b) Excluded funding commitments entered into in thdireary course of business by our financial servimesinesses. Further information on these commitsremd other guarantees is provide
Note 25 to the consolidated financial statemenairt I, tem 8“Financial Statements and Supplementary " of this Form 1-K Report.
(c) Included contracts with reasonably determinablé ¢asvs such as structured settlements, guaranteedtment contracts, and certain property andatgsoontracts, and excluded Ic-term
care, variable annuity and other life insurancetremts.
(d) Included an estimate of future expected fundingiirements related to our pension and postretirefinenéfit plans and included liabilities for unrengd tax benefits. Because their future «

outflows are uncertain, the following non-curreabllities are excluded from the table above: defétaxes, derivatives, deferred revenue and sthedry items. For further information on
certain of these items, see Notes 14 and 22 todhsolidated financial statements in Part Il, l&r*Financial Statements and Supplementary ” of this Form 1-K Report.

(e) Included payments for other liabilitie

Variable Interest Entities (VIES)

We securitize financial assets and arrange othherdof asset-backed financing in the ordinary ceafsbusiness as an alternative source of fundihg.securitization transactions we engage in are
similar to those used by many financial instituson

The assets we currently securitize include: ret@essecured by equipment, credit card receivafi@splan inventory receivables, GE trade recelealand other assets originated and underwritten by
us in the ordinary course of business. The sezatitins are funded with variable funding notes t@mdh debt.

Substantially all of our securitization VIEs arensolidated because we are considered to be thepripeneficiary of the entity. Our interests inetNIEs for which we are not the primary benefigiar
are accounted for as investment securities, fimgn@ceivables or equity method investments depenain the nature of our involvement.

At December 31, 2012, consolidated variable intezatity assets and liabilities were $48.4 billmmd $32.9 billion, respectively, an increase of7$iillion and a decrease of $2.3 billion from 2011,

respectively. Assets held by these entities aegjafvalent credit quality to our other assets. Wnitor the underlying credit quality in accordaneiéh our role as servicer and apply rigorous cdstto
the execution of securitization transactions. Witk exception of credit and liquidity support dissed below, investors in these entities have reecomly to the underlying assets.
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At December 31, 2012, investments in unconsolid&t&s, including our noncontrolling interest in P;Tcere $12.6 billion, a decrease of $3.9 billioonfr2011, primarily related to a decrease of $5.0
billion in PTL, partially offset by an increase $1.0 billion in an investment in asset-backed séesrissued by a senior secured loan fund. Intadfdio our existing investments, we have contraictu
obligations to fund additional investments in timeansolidated VIEs to fund new asset originationDAcember 31, 2012, these contractual obligatieere $2.7 billion, a decrease of $1.6 billion from
2011.

We do not have implicit support arrangements with ¥IE. We did not provide non-contractual supgortpreviously transferred financing receivablesiry VIE in either 2012 or 2011.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates and assumptions discussétsiséction are those that we consider to be the oritical to an understanding of our financi@tements because they involve significant judgments
and uncertainties. Many of these estimates inciiedermining fair value. All of these estimateseeflour best judgment about current, and for sostimates future, economic and market conditions and
their effects based on information available aghefdate of these financial statements. If theseliions change from those expected, it is readgrmissible that the judgments and estimates dwestri
below could change, which may result in future impants of investment securities, goodwill, intasigs and long-lived assets, incremental lossesnamding receivables, increases in reserves for
contingencies, establishment of valuation allowarmedeferred tax assets and increased tax liabjlamong other effects. Also see Note 1 to timsaiidated financial statements in Part Il, Item 8.
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” isfflorm 10-K Report, which discusses the significatounting policies that we have selected frooeptable alternatives.

Losses on financing receivableare recognized when they are incurred, which reguis to make our best estimate of probable laskesent in the portfolio. The method for calculagtithe best

estimate of losses depends on the size, type skdharacteristics of the related financing redalizaSuch an estimate requires consideration ¢tdfiisl loss experience, adjusted for current ctomi$,

and judgments about the probable effects of relevlservable data, including present economic ¢mmdi such as delinquency rates, financial hedlgpecific customers and market sectors, collateral
values (including housing price indices as appliegland the present and expected future leveilsterfest rates. The underlying assumptions, eséisnaind assessments we use to provide for losses are
updated periodically to reflect our view of curreonditions and are subject to the regulatory eration process, which can result in changes t@assumptions. Changes in such estimates can
significantly affect the allowance and provisiom Fasses. It is possible that we will experienceddrlosses that are different from our curreninestes. Write-offs in both our consumer and commaérc
portfolios can also reflect both losses that aceired subsequent to the beginning of a fiscal gedrinformation becoming available during thatdisyear which may identify further deterioratiom o
exposures existing prior to the beginning of thstdl year, and for which reserves could not haentpreviously recognized. Our risk managementgs®icludes standards and policies for reviewing
major risk exposures and concentrations, and etesualevant data either for individual loans aaficing leases, or on a portfolio basis, as apjaiepr

Further information is provided in the Global Ridlanagement section and Financial Resources anddifige Financing Receivables section of this Itehge Asset impairment section that follows and
in Notes 1, 6 and 23 to the consolidated finarst@lements in Part II, Item 8. “Financial Staterseartd Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.

(70)



Revenue recognition on long-term product servicesggeementsrequires estimates of profits over the multiplerteams of such agreements, considering factors asche frequency and extent of
future monitoring, maintenance and overhaul evehesamount of personnel, spare parts and otheuress required to perform the services; and fubillieg rate and cost changes. We routinely review
estimates under product services agreements antarlygevise them to adjust for changes in outldde also regularly assess customer credit ris@rifit in the carrying amounts of receivables and
contract costs and estimated earnings, includiagittk that contractual penalties may not be siefficto offset our accumulated investment in thengwf customer termination. We gain insight into
future utilization and cost trends, as well as itresk, through our knowledge of the installed &a$ equipment and the close interaction with aust@mers that comes with supplying critical sersiaac
parts over extended periods. Revisions that affgubduct services agreemeantdtal estimated profitability result in an adjusnt of earnings; such adjustments increased egriiy $0.4 billion in 201.
increased earnings by $0.4 billion in 2011 and elesed earnings by $0.2 billion in 2010. We pro¥iderobable losses when they become evident.

Further information is provided in Notes 1 and 3the consolidated financial statements in Pattém 8. “Financial Statements and SupplementargDaftthis Form 10-K Report.
Asset impairmentassessment involves various estimates and assurs gisofollows:

Investments.We regularly review investment securities for inmpant using both quantitative and qualitative cideFor debt securities, if we do not intend tb #& security and it is not more likely

than not that we will be required to sell the ségurefore recovery of our amortized cost, we eatdwther qualitative criteria to determine whetheredit loss exists, such as the financial hesldnd
specific prospects for the issuer, including whethe issuer is in compliance with the terms aneéeoants of the security. Quantitative criteria it determining whether there has been an adverse
change in expected future cash flows. For equityisges, our criteria include the length of timedamagnitude of the amount that each security @innrealized loss position. Our other-than-terapor
impairment reviews involve our finance, risk andetsnanagement functions as well as the portfohoagement and research capabilities of our intemmalkhird-party asset managers. See Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements in Part Il, I@riFinancial Statements and Supplementary DatdhisfForm 10-K Report, which discusses the deteation of fair value of investment securities.

Further information about actual and potential impant losses is provided in the Financial Resaezed Liquidity -Investment Securities section of this Item and @iel$ 1, 3 and 9 to the consolida
financial statements in Part Il, Item 8. “Financhtements and Supplementary Data” of this Fors Report.

Long-Lived Assets.We review long-lived assets for impairment wheneaants or changes in circumstances indicate lileatelated carrying amounts may not be recovera&gtermining whether an
impairment has occurred typically requires variesmates and assumptions, including determininiglwhindiscounted cash flows are directly relatethepotentially impaired asset, the useful lifex
which cash flows will occur, their amount, and #sset’s residual value, if any. In turn, measureroéan impairment loss requires a determinatiofaofvalue, which is based on the best information
available. We derive the required undiscounted éashestimates from our historical experience andinternal business plans. To determine fair@ale use quoted market prices when available, our
internal cash flow estimates discounted at an gpjat interest rate and independent appraisappiopriate.
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Our operating lease portfolio of commercial airtigfa significant concentration of assets in GIpi@4 and is particularly subject to market fluations. Therefore, we test recoverability of eaictraft

in our operating lease portfolio at least annuagditionally, we perform quarterly evaluationsdincumstances such as when aircraft are re-leasednt lease terms have changed or a specified&ss

credit standing changes. We consider market camdifisuch as global demand for commercial airceafimates of future rentals and residual valuesased on historical experience and information
received routinely from independent appraisersntzged cash flows from future leases are reducedxpected downtime between leases and for estitethnical costs required to prepare aircraft to
be redeployed. Fair value used to measure impatrisdrased on management's best estimate. In dategiits best estimate, management evaluates geewarent market values (obtained from third

parties) of similar type and age aircraft, which adjusted for the attributes of the specific aiittunder lease.

We recognized impairment losses on our operatiagelgortfolio of commercial aircraft of $0.2 bili@nd $0.3 billion in 2012 and 2011, respectiveisovisions for losses on financing receivables
related to commercial aircraft were an insignificamount for both 2012 and 2011.

Further information on impairment losses and oynosxre to the commercial aviation industry is pded in the Operations — Overview section of thesnliand in Notes 7 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements in Part II, ltem 8. “Financsaatements and Supplementary Data” of this Fors Report.

Real Estate.We review the estimated value of our commercial estate investments annually, or more frequerglganditions warrant. The cash flow estimates fisetloth estimating value and the
recoverability analysis are inherently judgmendald reflect current and projected lease profileajlable industry information about expected treimdeental, occupancy and capitalization rates and
expected business plans, which include our estitatéding period for the asset. Our portfolio isefsified, both geographically and by asset typmwever, the global real estate market is subject to
periodic cycles that can cause significant fludaret in market values. Based on the most recengtiah estimates available, the carrying valuewfReal Estate investments exceeded their estimated
value by about $1.1 billiohis amount is subject to variation dependent enasumptions described above, changes in ecoromimarket conditions and composition of our pdidfancluding sales
Commercial real estate valuations have shown si§imeproved stability and liquidity in certain mats, primarily in the U.S.; however, the pace ogpiovement varies significantly by asset class and
market. Accordingly, there continues to be risk andertainty surrounding commercial real estateesl Declines in the estimated value of real estl@v carrying amount result in impairment losses
when the aggregate undiscounted cash flow estinugsin the estimated value measurement are ib®wearrying amount. As such, estimated lossesamportfolio will not necessarily result in
recognized impairment losses. When we recognizepairment, the impairment is measured using thienaged fair value of the underlying asset, whiglased upon cash flow estimates that reflect
current and projected lease profiles and availelnlestry information about capitalization rates axgected trends in rents and occupancy and istworated by external appraisals. During 2012, Real
Estate recognized pre-tax impairments of $0.1duilin its real estate held for investment, as coebeo $1.2 billion in 2011. Continued deterioratio economic conditions or prolonged market
illiquidity may result in further impairments beimgcognized. Furthermore, significant judgment andertainty related to forecasted valuation treedpecially in illiquid markets, results in inheren
imprecision in real estate value estimates. Fuitifermation is provided in the Global Risk Managerhand the All other assets sections of this kewhin Note 9 to the consolidated financial statets
in Part II, Item 8. “Financial Statements and Seppéntary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.
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Goodwill and Other Identified Intangible Assets.We test goodwill for impairment annually and mamegliently if circumstances warrant. We determimeviaues for each of the reporting units using
an income approach. When available and appropriseise comparative market multiples to corrobodéeounted cash flow results. For purposes ofrtb@me approach, fair value is determined based
on the present value of estimated future cash floligsounted at an appropriate risk-adjusted & use our internal forecasts to estimate futust ¢@ws and include an estimate of long-term feitur
growth rates based on our most recent views oloiig-term outlook for each business. Actual resuléy differ from those assumed in our forecasts.d&féve our discount rates using a capital asset
pricing model and analyzing published rates foustdes relevant to our reporting units to estinthgecost of equity financing. We use discountga@t are commensurate with the risks and unogytai
inherent in the respective businesses and in eemially developed forecasts. Discount rates usedii reporting unit valuations ranged from 8.094800%. Valuations using the market approach reflec
prices and other relevant observable informatiaregeted by market transactions involving comparabkEnesses.

Compared to the market approach, the income appmoace closely aligns each reporting unit valuatmour business profile, including geographic nesslserved and product offerings. Required rates
of return, along with uncertainty inherent in tioeefcasts of future cash flows, are reflected instflection of the discount rate. Equally importamiger this approach, reasonably likely scenamaks a
associated sensitivities can be developed forredtime future states that may not be reflectechinlaservable market price. A market approach allimvsomparison to actual market transactions and
multiples. It can be somewhat more limited in {iplication because the population of potential caraples is often limited to publicly traded comganivhere the characteristics of the comparative
business and ours can be significantly differeratrkat data is usually not available for divisionghim larger conglomerates or non-public subsidisithat could otherwise qualify as comparable,taad
specific circumstances surrounding a market traiwage.g., synergies between the parties, termdscanditions of the transaction, etc.) may be déffee or irrelevant with respect to our businessatt

also be difficult, under certain market conditiotzsidentify orderly transactions between marketipipants in similar businesses. We assess theatiah methodology based upon the relevance and
availability of the data at the time we perform tauation and weight the methodologies appropsiate

Estimating the fair value of reporting units regsithe use of estimates and significant judgméatsare based on a number of factors includingahciperating results. If current conditions perkisger
or deteriorate further than expected, it is reablynpossible that the judgments and estimates idestabove could change in future periods.

We review identified intangible assets with definesful lives and subject to amortization for inpant whenever events or changes in circumstandésate that the related carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Determining whether an impairmese bccurred requires comparing the carrying amiutiite sum of undiscounted cash flows expectdxbtgenerated by the asset. We test intangible
assets with indefinite lives annually for impairrhesing a fair value method such as discounted ffasis. For our insurance activities remaining @ntinuing operations, we periodically test for
impairment our deferred acquisition costs and presalue of future profits.

Further information is provided in the FinancialsBerces and Liquidity — Goodwill and Other IntarigiBssets section of this Item and in Notes 1 amult8e consolidated financial statements in Rart |
Item 8. “Financial Statements and SupplementargDaftthis Form 10-K Report.

Pension assumptiongre significant inputs to the actuarial models thaasure pension benefit obligations and relatietttsfon operations. Two assumptiordiseount rate and expected return on at
— are important elements of plan expense and habgity measurement. We evaluate these critissumptions at least annually on a plan and cowsgtegific basis. We periodically evaluate other
assumptions involving demographic factors, sucteiement age, mortality and turnover, and uptiaen to reflect our experience and expectationshi@future. Actual results in any given year will
often differ from actuarial assumptions becausecofhomic and other factors.
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Accumulated and projected benefit obligations aeasured as the present value of expected paynwéatdiscount those cash payments using the weigitexhge of market-observed yields for high-
quality fixed-income securities with maturities tlcarrespond to the payment of benefits. Loweralisd rates increase present values and subsege@npgnsion expense; higher discount rates decrease
present values and subsequent-year pension expense.

Our discount rates for principal pension plans et&nber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were 3.96%, 4.21tP6.28%, respectively, reflecting market intereses.

To determine the expected long-term rate of returpension plan assets, we consider current agdttasset allocations, as well as historical ameebted returns on various categories of plan adsets
developing future long-term return expectationsdor principal benefit plans’ assets, we formulaevs on the future economic environment, botthet.S. and abroad. We evaluate general market
trends and historical relationships among a nurob&ey variables that impact asset class returnk ag expected earnings growth, inflation, valuetigields and spreads, using both internal and
external sources. We also take into account exgectiatility by asset class and diversificationass classes to determine expected overall portfefialts given current and target allocations. fssge
our principal pension plans earned 11.7% in 204d,tead average annual earnings of 7.2%, 6.1% &4d Ber year in the 10-, 15- and 25-year periodeémkcember 31, 2012, respectively. These
average historical returns were significantly aféelcby investment losses in 2008. Based on ouysisadf future expectations of asset performanast mturn results, and our current and target asse
allocations, we have assumed an 8.0% long-termogepeeturn on those assets for cost recogniti@dik8 compared to 8.0% in both 2012 and 2011 &b & 2010.

Changes in key assumptions for our principal penplans would have the following effects.

« Discount rate- A 25 basis point increase in discount rate woulckel#se pension cost in the following year by $@lbb and would decrease the pension benefit @hian at yee-end by about $2
billion.

« Expected return on ass+ A 50 basis point decrease in the expected retummssats would increase pension cost in the follgwiar by $0.2 billion

Further information on our pension plans is prodidethe Operations — Overview section of this l@nd in Note 12 to the consolidated financial steets in Part I, Item 8. “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.
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Income Taxes. Our annual tax rate is based on our income, tst3ttax rates and tax planning opportunities aldé to us in the various jurisdictions in which egerate. Tax laws are complex and
subject to different interpretations by the taxpegmd respective governmental taxing authoritiggniicant judgment is required in determining dax expense and in evaluating our tax positions,
including evaluating uncertainties. We review @ax positions quarterly and adjust the balances®asinformation becomes available. Our income ta& imsignificantly affected by the tax rate on our
global operations. In addition to local country taws and regulations, this rate depends on thenegriarnings are indefinitely reinvested outsigelnited States. Indefinite reinvestment is deteediby
management’s judgment about and intentions cormgtthie future operations of the Company. At Decem3tie2012 and 2011, approximately $108 billion 8462 billion of earnings, respectively,
have been indefinitely reinvested outside the Wh8eates. Most of these earnings have been regt/@stactive nod.S. business operations, and we do not inteneatriate these earnings to fund |
operations. Because of the availability of U.Sefgn tax credits, it is not practicable to deterenihe U.S. federal income tax liability that woblel payable if such earnings were not reinvested
indefinitely. Deferred income tax assets represembunts available to reduce income taxes payabtexable income in future years. Such assets beisause of temporary differences between the
financial reporting and tax bases of assets amiditias, as well as from net operating loss andda@dit carryforwards. We evaluate the recoveitghif these future tax deductions and credits by
assessing the adequacy of future expected taxatmenie from all sources, including reversal of td&abmporary differences, forecasted operatingiegsmand available tax planning strategies. These
sources of income rely heavily on estimates. Weouséistorical experience and our short- and loangge business forecasts to provide insight. Furthe global and diversified business portfolives
us the opportunity to employ various prudent aresitele tax planning strategies to facilitate theokerability of future deductions. Amounts recordeddeferred tax assets related to non-U.S. net
operating losses, net of valuation allowances, #dt8 billion at both December 31, 2012 and 20ddluding $0.8 billion and $0.9 billion at Decemi3dr, 2012 and 2011, respectively, of deferred tax
assets, net of valuation allowances, associatddlesses reported in discontinued operations, pifynelated to our loss on the sale of GE Moneyala Such year-end 2012 amounts are expected to be
fully recoverable within the applicable statutorpiation periods. To the extent we do not consitlerore likely than not that a deferred tax assiéitbe recovered, a valuation allowance is estdtgd.

Further information on income taxes is providethi@ Operations — Overview section of this Item aniNote 14 to the consolidated financial stateméntart |1, Item 8. “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.

Derivatives and Hedging.We use derivatives to manage a variety of riskdyifing risks related to interest rates, foreignhenge and commodity prices. Accounting for deivest as hedges requires
that, at inception and over the term of the arramey®, the hedged item and related derivative nieetegquirements for hedge accounting. The rulesraatpretations related to derivatives accountire
complex. Failure to apply this complex guidanceeaty will result in all changes in the fair valoéthe derivative being reported in earnings, withregard to the offsetting changes in the faiugaf
the hedged item.

In evaluating whether a particular relationshipliies for hedge accounting, we test effectiverasisiception and each reporting period thereafgeddiermining whether changes in the fair valuthef
derivative offset, within a specified range, chaniethe fair value of the hedged item. If fairwalchanges fail this test, we discontinue applyiedge accounting to that relationship prospectiviedjr
values of both the derivative instrument and thdgleel item are calculated using internal valuatiadets incorporating market-based assumptions, sutgiehird-party confirmation, as applicable.

At December 31, 2012, derivative assets and lizslivere $3.9 billion and $0.3 billion, respechjvé-urther information about our use of derivagive provided in Notes 1, 9, 21 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements in Part II, I@miFinancial Statements and Supplementary DatahisfForm 10-K Report.
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Fair Value Measurements Assets and liabilities measured at fair value evepprting period include investments in debt agdity securities and derivatives. Assets that ateneasured at fair value
every reporting period but that are subject toValue measurements in certain circumstances iadhahs and long-lived assets that have been rddadair value when they are held for sale, imgeir
loans that have been reduced based on the faie wdlthe underlying collateral, cost and equity moetinvestments and loriyed assets that are written down to fair valuewkhey are impaired and t
remeasurement of retained investments in formensolidated subsidiaries upon a change in corttatlresults in deconsolidation of a subsidiaryyéfsell a controlling interest and retain a
noncontrolling stake in the entity. Assets thatwariten down to fair value when impaired and reeai investments are not subsequently adjustedrtedfae unless further impairment occurs.

A fair value measurement is determined as the pvizgvould receive to sell an asset or pay to temsfiability in an orderly transaction betweenrked participants at the measurement date. In the
absence of active markets for the identical agsdiabilities, such measurements involve develgmesumptions based on market observable datanating, absence of such data, internal information
that is consistent with what market participantsildaise in a hypothetical transaction that occuth@measurement date. The determination of firesoften involves significant judgments about
assumptions such as determining an appropriateufiscate that factors in both risk and liquiditemiums, identifying the similarities and differesan market transactions, weighting those diffeesn
accordingly and then making the appropriate adjeststo those market transactions to reflect Slesrspecific to our asset being valued. Furtherimétion on fair value measurements is provided in
Notes 1, 21 and 22 to the consolidated financakstents in Part II, ltem “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” isffilorm 10-K Report.

Other loss contingenciesre uncertain and unresolved matters that arifeeiordinary course of business and result fronmesver actions by others that have the potentiegsalt in a future loss. Such
contingencies include, but are not limited to eonimental obligations, litigation, regulatory prodems, product quality and losses resulting froheoevents and developments.

When a loss is considered probable and reasonatifyable, we record a liability in the amount of dest estimate for the ultimate loss. When thepears to be a range of possible costs with equal
likelihood, liabilities are based on the low-endsath range. However, the likelihood of a loss wéthpect to a particular contingency is often diffi to predict and determining a meaningful estevaf
the loss or a range of loss may not be practidasbed on the information available and the potketiact of future events and decisions by thirdtipa that will determine the ultimate resolutidrtive
contingency. Moreover, it is not uncommon for suétters to be resolved over many years, during wtiice relevant developments and new informatiorstrbe continuously evaluated to determine
both the likelihood of potential loss and whethés possible to reasonably estimate a range dfiplesloss. When a loss is probable but a reaseredtimate cannot be made, disclosure is provided.

Disclosure also is provided when it is reasonablysible that a loss will be incurred or when itdasonably possible that the amount of a lossexiteed the recorded provision. We regularly revaéw
contingencies to determine whether the likelihobtbss has changed and to assess whether a re&sestimate of the loss or range of loss can beemas discussed above, development of a
meaningful estimate of loss or a range of poteftiss is complex when the outcome is directly deleahon negotiations with or decisions by thirdtiear such as regulatory agencies, the court system
and other interested parties. Such factors beacttjiron whether it is possible to reasonably estina range of potential loss and boundaries ¢f &gl low estimates.

Further information is provided in Notes 2, 13 &adto the consolidated financial statements in Paltem 8. “Financial Statements and SupplemsgnBata” of this Form 10-K Report.
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Other Information
New Accounting Standards

In January 2013, the FASB issued amendments ttirexistandards for reporting comprehensive incohe. amendments expand disclosures about amoun@réneeclassified out of accumulated
comprehensive income during the reporting peridte amendments do not change existing recognitidmeeasurement requirements that determine netnemraind are effective for our first quarter
2013 reporting.

In January 2013, the Emerging Issues Task Foraheeka final consensus that resolves conflictingance between ASC Subtopics 810-COnsolidation, and 830-30Foreign Currency Matters —
Translation of Financial Statementsvith regard to the release of currency transteidjustments in certain circumstances. The Tas&e~concluded that release upon substantial kgisid applies to
events occurring within a foreign entity and thet toss of control model applies to events reladddvestments in a foreign entity. The revisedignce will apply prospectively to transactionewents
occurring in fiscal years beginning after Decentigr2013.

In December 2011, the FASB issued amendments stirexidisclosure requirements for assets and iiggsilthat are offset in the statement of finanpiadition, which are effective for the first quarté
2013. In January 2013, the FASB clarified the sanfpthe amendments to limit application of the tisare requirements to derivatives, repurchaseeageats, reverse purchase agreements, securities
borrowing and securities lending transactions #natpresented on a net basis in the statementasfdial position or are permitted to be netted uageeements with counterparties. The amendments
require expanded disclosures about gross and rmmirgmof instruments that fall within the scopeta amendment.

Research and Development

GE-funded research and development expenditures $4b billion, $4.6 billion and $3.9 billion in 22, 2011 and 2010, respectively. In addition, refeand development funding from customers,
principally the U.S. government, totaled $0.7 billj $0.8 billion and $1.0 billion in 2012, 2011 a2@{L0, respectively. Aviation accounts for the &stgshare of GE’s research and development
expenditures with funding from both GE and custofoads. Power & Water and Healthcare also madefsignt expenditures funded primarily by GE.

Orders and Backlog

GE infrastructure equipment orders increased 3$9&?7 billion at December 31, 2012. Total GE infinasture backlog increased 4% to $209.5 billioDatember 31, 2012, composed of equipment

backlog of $52.7 billion and services backlog 0563 billion. Orders constituting backlog may beaelled or deferred by customers, subject in aertases to penalties. See the Segment Operations
section of this Item for further information.
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Supplemental Information

Financial Measures that Supplement Generally Acceptd Accounting Principles

We sometimes use information derived from conse#iddinancial information but not presented in imancial statements prepared in accordance wigh generally accepted accounting principles
égApﬁE’).tgertain of these data are considered “n@#B financial measures” under U.S. Securities archange Commission rules. Specifically, we haverrefl, in various sections of this Form 10-K
« Industrial cash flows from operating activitiesqustrial CFOA)

. Operating earnings, operating EPS, operating EBiding the effects of the 2011 preferred stocleneption and Industrial operating earni

« Operating and nc-operating pension costs (incon

« Industrial segment organic revent

« Average GE shareown( equity, excluding effects of discontinued operasi

- Ratio of debt to equity at GECC, net of cash andwadents and with classification of hybrid debteagiity

« GE Capital ending net investment (ENI), excludiagltand equivalen

« GE pretax earnings from continuing operations, excludBCC earnings from continuing operations, the apoading effective tax rates and the reconciliatbthe U.S. federal statutory inco
tax rate to GE effective tax rate, excluding GE@ehings

The reasons we use these non-GAAP financial messina: the reconciliations to their most directlyngarable GAAP financial measures follow.

Industrial Cash Flows from Operating Activities (Industrial CFOA)

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Cash from GE's operatir

activities, as reporte $ 17,826 $ 12,057 $ 14,746 $ 16,405 $ 19,138
Less dividends from GEC 6,426 — — — 2,351

Cash from GE's operatir
activities, excluding dividenc
from GECC (Industrial CFOA $ 11,400 $ 12,057 $ 14,746 $ 16,405 $ 16,787
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We refer to cash generated by our industrial bssieg as "Industrial CFOA," which we define as GEa'sh from continuing operating activities lessaheunt of dividends received by GE from GECC.
This includes the effects of intercompany transest including GE customer receivables sold to GEGECC services for trade receivables managemehteaterial procurement; buildings and
equipment (including automobiles) leased betweeraBEGECC; information technology (IT) and othewvams sold to GECC by GE; aircraft engines manuf@d by GE that are installed on aircraft
purchased by GECC from third-party producers faséeto others; and various investments, loans liozhtions of GE corporate overhead costs. We beltbat investors may find it useful to compare
GE's operating cash flows without the effect of GEG@ividends, since these dividends are not reptatea of the operating cash flows of our industiasinesses and can vary from period-to-period
based upon the results of the financial servicesnlesses. Management recognizes that this measyraohbe comparable to cash flow results of congsanhich contain both industrial and financial
services businesses, but believes that this cosgrais aided by the provision of additional infotiaa about the amounts of dividends paid by ouaificial services business and the separate prasentat
in our financial statements of the Financial Sesi(GECC) cash flows. We believe that our meashedastrial CFOA provides management and invesiotis a useful measure to compare the cap

of our industrial operations to generate operatimsh flows with the operating cash flows of othemfinancial businesses and companies and as suchipsoa useful measure to supplement the rep
GAAP CFOA measure.

Operating Earnings, Operating EPS and Operating EP$Excluding the Effects of the
2011 Preferred Stock Redemptior

(In millions; except earnings per share) 2012 2011 2010
Earnings from continuing operations attributablé&® $ 14,679 $ 14,227 $ 12,613
Adjustment (net of tax): n-operating pension costs (incon 1,386 688 (205
Operating earning $ 16,065 $ 14,915 $ 12,408
Earnings per shatdiluted(a)
Continuing earnings per she $ 1.39 $ 1.24 $ 1.15
Adjustment (net of tax): n-operating pension costs (incon 0.13 0.06 (0.02
Operating earnings per sh 1.52 1.31 1.13
Less: Effects of the 2011 preferred stock redemy — 0.08 —
Operating EPS excluding the effects of the 2011epred stock

redemptior $ 1.52 $ 1.38 $ 1.13
(@) Earning-pel-share amounts are computed independently. As & résisum of pe-share amounts may not equal the tc
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Industrial Operating Earnings

(In millions)

Earnings from continuing operations attributabl&®
Adjustments (net of tax): n-operating pension costs (incon
Operating earning

Less GECC earnings from continui
operations attributable to the Compi
Less effect of GECC preferred stock divide|

Operating earnings excluding GECC earni
from continuing operations and the effect of GEGEf@rred stock dividenc
(Industrial operating earning

Industrial operating earnings as a percentag
operating earning

$ 14,679

Operating earnings excludes non-service relatediperosts of our principal pension plans compgsitierest cost, expected return on plan assetsiaadtization of actuarial gains/losses. The servi
cost and prior service cost components of our prai@ension plans are included in operating eainVe believe that these components of pensisinbatter reflect the ongoing serviadated costs ¢
providing pension benefits to our employees. Ashswe believe that our measure of operating egsnimovides management and investors with a usefakure of the operational results of our
business. Other components of GAAP pension coshaiely driven by capital allocation decisions andrket performance, and we manage these sepafiatelytthe operational performance of our

businesses. Neither GAAP nor operating pensiots@e necessarily indicative of the current oarfatcash flow requirements related to our pensian.pWe also believe that this measure, considered

along with the corresponding GAAP measure, providasagement and investors with additional infororafor comparison of our operating results to therating results of other companies. We
believe that presenting operating earnings seggrateour industrial businesses also provides ngengent and investors with useful information alibatrelative size of our industrial and financial
services businesses in relation to the total compafe also believe that operating EPS excludingeffects of the $0.8 billion preferred dividendateld to the redemption of our preferred stock
(calculated as the difference between the carryaige and the redemption value of the preferredidtis a meaningful measure because it increagesamparability of period-to-period results.

Operating and Nor-Operating Pension Costs (Income
(In millions)

Service cost for benefits earn
Prior service cost amortizatic
Operating pension cos

Expected return on plan ass
Interest cost on benefit obligatio
Net actuarial loss amortizatic
Non-operating pension costs (incon

Total principal pension plans co:

2012 2011 2010

$ 1,387 1,195 $ 1,149
279 194 238

1,666 1,389 1,387

(3,768 (3,940 (4,344

2,479 2,662 2,693

3,421 2,335 1,336

2,132 1,057 (315

$ 3,798 2,446 $ 1,072
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We have provided the operating and non-operatimgpements of cost for our principal pension plangeKating pension costs comprise the service cdstioéfits earned and prior service cost
amortization for our principal pension plans. Ngperating pension costs (income) comprise the ¢ggeeturn on plan assets, interest cost on bestgfgations and net actuarial loss amortizatiancfor
principal pension plans. We believe that the ofiregatomponents of pension costs better reflecotigping service-related costs of providing pensienefits to our employees. We believe that the
operating and non-operating components of costdioprincipal pension plans, considered along Withcorresponding GAAP measure, provide managearehinvestors with additional information
for comparison of our pension plan costs and opeyaésults with the pension plan costs and opegagsults of other companies.

Industrial Segment Organic Revenue:

(In millions) 2012 2011 V%
Consolidated revenut $ 147,359 $ 147,288
Less GE Capital revenu 46,039 49,068
Less Corporate items and eliminatic (1,491 2,995
Industrial segment revenu 102,811 95,225

Less the effects o
Acquisitions, business dispositio
(other than dispositions of busines
acquired for investment) and currer
exchange rate 972 1,112

Industrial revenues excluding the effe
of acquisitions, business dispositic
(other than dispositions of busines
acquired for investment) and currer
exchange rates (industrial segment organic revei $ 101,839 $ 94,113 8%

Organic revenue growth measures revenue exclutlimgftects of acquisitions, business dispositionts@irrency exchange rates. We believe that thasore provides management and investors with a
more complete understanding of underlying operatisglts and trends of established, ongoing omeratdy excluding the effect of acquisitions, disposs and currency exchange, which activities are
subject to volatility and can obscure underlyirentis. We also believe that presenting organic evgnowth separately for our industrial segmentwigies management and investors with useful
information about the trends of our industrial Inesises and enables a more direct comparison torathefinancial businesses and companies. Managemengnizes that the term “organic revenue
growth” may be interpreted differently by other qmanies and under different circumstances. Althahghmay have an effect on comparability of absohercentage growth from company to company,
we believe that these measures are useful in @asgesands of the respective business or compamdsanay therefore be a useful tool in assessiniggéo-period performance trends.
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Average GE Shareowners' Equity, Excluding Effects foDiscontinued Operations(a)

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Average GE shareown¢

equity(b) $ 120,411 $ 122,289 $ 116,17¢ $ 110,535 $ 113,387
Less the effects of tF

average net investment

discontinued operatior (478 4,924 13,819 17,432 9,248
Average GE shareown¢

equity, excluding effects ¢

discontinued operations( $ 120,88¢ $ 117,365 $ 102,36C $ 93,103 $ 104,139
(a) Used for computing return on aver@geshareowners’ equity and return on average ¢ajgital invested (ROTC).
(b) On an annual basis, calculated using a-point average

Our ROTC calculation excludes earnings (lossesljsafontinued operations from the numerator becaluSe GAAP requires us to display those earningss@e) in the Statement of Earnings. Our
calculation of average GE shareowners’ equity matybe directly comparable to similarly titled messureported by other companies. We believe thsigitclearer way to measure the ongoing trend
return on total capital for the continuing operai®@f our businesses given the extent that diswoat operations have affected our reported reddiésbelieve that this results in a more relevardasnee
for management and investors to evaluate perforeahour continuing operations, on a consistenishbasd to evaluate and compare the performanoerofontinuing operations with the ongoing
operations of other businesses and companies.

n

Definitions indicating how the above-named ratios @lculated using average GE shareowners’ eceittuding effects of discontinued operations, lsarfiound in the Glossary.

Ratio of Debt to Equity at GECC, Net of Cash and Egivalents and with Classification
of Hybrid Debt as Equity

December 31 (Dollars in million: 2012 2011 2010
GECC deb $ 397,30C $ 443,097 $ 470,52C
Less cash and equivalel 61,941 76,702 60,257
Less hybrid dek 7,725 7,725 7,725

$ 327,634 $ 358,67C $ 402,538

GECC equity $ 81,890 $ 77,110 $ 68,984
Plus hybrid deb 7,725 7,725 7,725

$ 89,615 $ 84,835 $ 76,709

Ratio 3.66:1 4.23:1 5.25:1

We have provided the GECC ratio of debt to equityadasis that reflects the use of cash and e@utsato reduce debt, and with long-term debt diB9B6 and 2067 classified as equity. We believe tha
this is a useful comparison to a GAAP-based rdftidebt to equity because cash balances may betaseduce debt and because this long-term debednaisy-like characteristics. The usefulness of this
supplemental measure may be limited, however,asotal amount of cash and equivalents at any poititne may be different than the amount that dquriactically be applied to reduce outstanding
debt, and it may not be advantageous or practicaglace certain long-term debt with equity. Desfliese potential limitations, we believe thas thieasure, considered along with the corresponding
GAAP measure, provides investors with addition&imation that may be more comparable to othemfired institutions and businesses.
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GE Capital Ending Net Investment (ENI), Excluding Cash and Equivalents

December 31 January 1,

(In billions) 2012 2009(a
GECC total asse $ 539.2 $ 661.0
Less assets of discontinued operati 1.1 25.1
Less no-interest bearing liabilitie 57.6 85.4
GE Capital ENI 480.5 550.5
Less cash and equivalel 61.9 37.7
GE Capital ENI, excluding cash and equivale $ 418.6 $ 512.8

(a) As originally reported.

We use ENI to measure the size of our GE Capigzhsait. We believe that this measure is a usefitator of the capital (debt or equity) requireduad a business as it adjusts for non-interestibhgar
current liabilities generated in the normal cowsbusiness that do not require a capital outlag.aléo believe that by excluding cash and equitsleve provide a meaningful measure of assets
requiring capital to fund our GE Capital segmentaasubstantial amount of this cash and equivatestdted from debt issuances to pre-fund futute deaturities and will not be used to fund additibn
assets. Providing this measure will help investoesisure how we are performing against our prewaihmunicated goal to reduce the size of our fif@rservices segment.

GE Pre-Tax Earnings from Continuing Operations, ExcludingGECC Earnings from Continuing Operations
and the Corresponding Effective Tax Rate:

(Dollars in millions) 2012 2011 2010
GE earnings from continuing operations before inedaxes $ 16,852 $ 19,231 $ 15,156
Less GECC earnings from continuing operati 7,401 6,584 3,120
Total $ 9,451 $ 12,647 $ 12,036
GE provision for income taxe $ 2,013 $ 4,839 $ 2,024
GE effective tax rate, excluding GECC earni 21.3% 38.3% 16.8%

Reconciliation of U.S. Federal Statutory Income TaRate to GE Effective Tax Rate, Excluding GECC Earings

2012 2011 2010

U.S. federal statutory income tax ri 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Reduction in rate resulting fro

Tax on global activities including expol (7.6) (7.9) (13.5
U.S. business credi (1.2) (2.3) (2.8)
NBCU gain - 14.9 -
All other— net (4.9) (1.4) (1.9)
(13.7, 3.3 (18.2

GE effective tax rate, excluding GECC earni 21.3% 38.3% 16.8%

We believe that the GE effective tax rate is baesfyzed in relation to GE earnings before inconxesaexcluding the GECC net earnings from continaipgrations, as GE tax expense does not include
taxes on GECC earnings. Management believes tlatdition to the Consolidated and GECC tax ratesvahin Note 14 to the consolidated financial staets in Part Il, Item 8. “Financial Statements

and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Repdiis supplemental measure provides investors wigfulighnformation as it presents the GE effectiver@e that can be used in comparing the GE
results to other non-financial services businesses.
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Glossary

Backlog Unfilled customer orders for products and prodectiges (12 months for product services).
Borrowing Financial liability (short or long-term) that obéites us to repay cash or another financial assatdther entity.

Borrowings as a percentage of total capital investeFor GE, the sum of borrowings and mandatorily retkggle preferred stock, divided by the sum of bomgs, mandatorily redeemable preferred
stock, noncontrolling interests and total shareas/reguity.

Cash equivalentsHighly liquid debt instruments with original mattieis of three months or less, such as commercg@mpdypically included with cash for reporting pases, unless designated as
available-for-sale and included with investmentsiies.

Cash flow hedgefualifying derivative instruments that we use totpct ourselves against exposure to variabilitjutare cash flows. The exposure may be associaitidan existing asset or liability,
or with a forecasted transaction. See “Hedge.”

Commercial paperUnsecured, unregistered promise to repay borrowedsfin a specified period ranging from overnigh270 days.
Comprehensive incomeThe sum of Net Income and Other Comprehensive lecogee “Other Comprehensive Income.”

Derivative instrument A financial instrument or contract with anothertgaicounterparty) that is designed to meet any wdréety of risk management objectives, includihgse related to fluctuations
interest rates, currency exchange rates or comgnpdites. Options, forwards and swaps are the gmsimon derivative instruments we employ. See “Hédge

Discontinued operationsCertain businesses we have sold or committed tovithin the next year and therefore will no londper part of our ongoing operations. The net eamiagsets and liabilities,
and cash flows of such businesses are separateiyifibd on our Statement of Earnings, Statemehtrzfncial Position and Statement of Cash Flowspeetively, for all periods presented.

Effective tax rate Provision for income taxes as a percentage of egsrfrom continuing operations before income ta@saccounting changes. Does not represent cagligpancome taxes in the
current accounting period. Also referred to asufattax rate” or “tax rate.”

Ending Net Investment (ENI)is the total capital we have invested in the finanservices business. It is the sum of short-teemowings, long-term borrowings and equity (exahgdnoncontrolling
interests) adjusted for unrealized gains and lossesvestment securities and hedging instruméiiternatively, it is the amount of assets of contig operations less the amount of non-interestibga
liabilities.

Equipment leased to otherdRental equipment we own that is available to rewtia stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Fair value hedgeQualifying derivative instruments that we use tduee the risk of changes in the fair value of asdietbilities or certain types of firm commitmen@hanges in the fair values of
derivative instruments that are designated anc®@ffeas fair value hedges are recorded in earnmgsare offset by corresponding changes in thevédues of the hedged items. See “Hedge.”
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Financing receivablednvestment in contractual loans and leases due fustomers (not investment securities).

Forward contract Fixed price contract for purchase or sale of aifipelcquantity of a commodity, security, currenayather financial instrument with delivery and &&tient at a specified future date.
Commonly used as a hedging tool. See “Hedge.”

Goodwill The premium paid for acquisition of a businessc@lated as the purchase price less the fair vélnetaassets acquired (net assets are identifiegilie and intangible assets, less liabilities
assumed).

Guaranteed investment contracts (GICsPeposit-type products that guarantee a minimumatteturn, which may be fixed or floating.

HedgeA technique designed to eliminate risk. Often referthe use of derivative financial instrumentsftset changes in interest rates, currency exahaatgs or commodity prices, although many
business positions are “naturally hedged” — fomepie, funding a U.S. fixed-rate investment with IfiSed-rate borrowings is a natural interest tatelge.

Intangible assetA non-financial asset lacking physical substanaehsas goodwill, patents, licenses, trademarkscastbmer relationships.

Interest rate swapAgreement under which two counterparties agreex¢bange one type of interest rate cash flow fottt@o In a typical arrangement, one party peridtlicaill pay a fixed amount of
interest, in exchange for which that party willeae variable payments computed using a publisheex. See “Hedge.”

Investment securitiesGenerally, an instrument that provides an ownerpbpgition in a corporation (a stock), a creditdatienship with a corporation or governmental bgayond), rights to contractu
cash flows backed by pools of financial assetsgiits to ownership such as those represented lignspsubscription rights and subscription warrants

Match funding A risk control policy that provides funding for anicular financial asset having the same curren@turity and interest rate characteristics asahaét. Match funding is executed
directly, by issuing debt, or synthetically, thrdug combination of debt and derivative financiatioments. For example, when we lend at a fixest@st rate in the U.S., we can borrow those U.S.
dollars either at a fixed rate of interest or #bating rate executed concurrently with a pay-@ixeterest rate swap. See “Hedge.”

Monetization Sale of financial assets to a third party for c&sir.example, we sell certain loans, credit cacgtire@bles and trade receivables to third-partyrfoi@ buyers, typically providing at least
some credit protection and often agreeing to pwidllection and processing services for a fee. éfiation normally results in gains on interestrirgpassets and losses on non-interest bearingsasse
See “Securitization” and “Variable interest entity.

Noncontrolling interest Portion of shareowner's equity in a subsidiary thait attributable to GE.

Operating profit GE earnings from continuing operations before ggeand other financial charges, income taxes Hedtg of accounting changes.

Option The right, not the obligation, to execute a tratisacat a designated price, generally involvingigginterests, interest rates, currencies or conitiesd See “Hedge.”

Other Comprehensive IncomeChanges in assets and liabilities that do not tésarh transactions with shareowners and are ratidted in net income but are recognized in a sépa@mponent of

shareowners’ equity. Other Comprehensive Incoroleidtes the following components:
- Investment securities— Unrealized gains and losses on securities cladsieavailabl-for-sale.
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- Currency translation adjustments— The result of translating into U.S. dollars thosants denominated or measured in a different nayr

- Cash flow hedges The effective portion of the fair value of cashwilhedges. Such hedges relate to an exposure tabidyi in the cash flows of recognized assetdjiliges or forecaste
transactions that are attributable to a specisik.

- Benefit plans— Unamortized prior service costs and net actuasizdds (gains) related to pension and retiree haatthife benefits

- Reclassification adjustments— Amounts previously recognized in Other Comprehensicome that are included in net income in theesurperiod

Product servicesFor purposes of the financial statement displayatés and costs of sales in our Statement of Eggnfgoods” is required by U.S. Securities and Excie Commission regulations to
include all sales of tangible products, and “sesianust include all other sales, including broaticg and other services activities. In our Managei's Discussion and Analysis of Operations werrefe
to sales under product service agreements andafabesh goods (such as spare parts and equipnpgnades) and related services (such as monitariagjtenance and repairs) as sales of “product
services,” which is an important part of our opieras.

Product services agreement€ontractual commitments, with multiple-year termesprovide specified services for products in oowBr & Water, Oil & Gas, Aviation and Transportatimstalled base —
for example, monitoring, maintenance, service gates parts for a gas turbine/generator set ingtall@ customer’s power plant.

Productivity The rate of increased output for a given levehgiit, with both output and input measured in caristarrency.
Progress collectiond®ayments received on customer contracts befonetaied revenue is recognized.

Qualified special purpose entities (QSPES) type of variable interest entity whose activit@e significantly limited and entirely specifiedthe legal documents that established it. These ale
significant limitations on the types of assets dedvative instruments such entities may hold dedtypes and extent of activities and decision-mgkhey may engage in.

Retained interestA portion of a transferred financial asset retaibgdhe transferor that provides rights to recgigetions of the cash inflows from that asset.

Return on average GE shareowners’ equityfarnings from continuing operations before accagnthanges divided by average GE shareowners’yeauitluding effects of discontinued operations (on
an annual basis, calculated using a five-pointaye). Average GE shareowners’ equity, excludinga$fof discontinued operations, as of the endofi ®f the years in the five-year period ended
December 31, 2012, is described in the Supplemérf@mation section.

Return on average total capital investedror GE, earnings from continuing operations befmeounting changes plus the sum of afterinterest and other financial charges and naneliing interests
divided by the sum of the averages of total sharews’ equity (excluding effects of discontinued igti®ns), borrowings, mandatorily redeemable prefstock and noncontrolling interests (on an
annual basis, calculated using a five-point averalyeerage total shareowners’ equity, excludingef$ of discontinued operations as of the end cii e&the years in the five-year period ended
December 31, 2012, is described in the Suppleménftaination section.

Securitization A process whereby loans or other receivables akaged, underwritten and sold to investors. Inpécl transaction, assets are sold to a speciglogerentity, which purchases the assets

with cash raised through issuance of beneficiaregts (usually debt instruments) to third-partsestors. Whether or not credit risk associated tiéhsecuritized assets is retained by the sedipends
on the structure of the securitization. See “Mara&ton” and “Variable interest entity.”
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Subprime For purposes of Consumer-related discussion, sulepricludes consumer finance products like mortgagw, cards, sales finance and personal loads3oand global borrowers whose
credit score implies a higher probability of defehdsed upon GECC's proprietary scoring modelsdafiditions, which add various qualitative and qiitative factors to a base credit score such as a
FICO score or global bureau score. Although FIC® global bureau credit scores are a widely accepting of individual consumer creditworthiness thternally modeled scores are more reflectiy
the behavior and default risks in the portfolio gamed to stand-alone generic bureau scores.

Turnover Broadly based on the number of times that workiagjtal is replaced during a year. Current recesblirnover is total sales divided by the five-paiverage balance of GE current
receivables. Inventory turnover is total salesatd by a five-point average balance of inventoises “Working capital.”

Variable interest entity An entity that must be consolidated by its primbeyeficiary, the party that holds a controllinggfiitial interest. A variable interest entity has oneoth of the following
characteristics: (1) its equity at risk is not giéint to permit the entity to finance its actiesiwithout additional subordinated financial supfiam other parties, or (2) as a group, the eqguigstors
lack one or more of the following characteristi@s: the power to direct the activities that moghdicantly affect the economic performance of émity, (b) obligation to absorb expected lossegcp
right to receive expected residual returns.

Working capital Represents GE current receivables and inventdeies GE accounts payable and progress collections.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.

Information about our global risk management cafoied in the Operations — Global Risk ManagementRinancial Resources and Liquiditfxchange Rate and Interest Rate Risks sectionaririlf
Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis efdficial Condition and Results of Operations” o thorm 10-K Report.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaiing adequate internal control over financiglogting for the Company. With our participation, eraluation of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting was conducted BBecember 31, 2012, based on the framework anerieriestablished imternal Control — Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

Based on this evaluation, our management has adextlthat our internal control over financial repatwas effective as of December 31, 2012.

Our independent registered public accounting fiem issued an audit report on our internal contvet éinancial reporting. Their report follows.

/sl Jeffrey R. Immel /sl Keith S. Sheril
Jeffrey R. Immel Keith S. Sherir
Chairman of the Board ar Vice Chairman ani
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

February 26, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To Shareowners and Board of Directors
of General Electric Company:

We have audited the accompanying statement of dinposition of General Electric Company and cdidsted affiliates (the “Company”) as of Decembér 3012 and 2011, and the related statements
of earnings, comprehensive income, changes in evaers’ equity and cash flows for each of the y&atke three-year period ended December 31, 20/E2also have audited the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of December 3112, based on criteria establishedhiternal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatirie Treadway
Commission (“COSQO"). The Company's managementsigarsible for these consolidated financial statasmydar maintaining effective internal control ovfarancial reporting, and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over finahc@porting. Our responsibility is to express aimam on these consolidated financial statementsaamopinion on the Company'’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafioUnited States). Those standards require teailan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehsents are free of material misstatement andheheffective internal control over financial refiog was maintained in all material respects. Our
audits of the consolidated financial statementkighed examining, on a test basis, evidence suppptiie amounts and disclosures in the financiastants, assessing the accounting principles usgd a
significant estimates made by management, and aaduthe overall financial statement presentatf@ur audit of internal control over financial reping included obtaining an understanding of intérna
control over financial reporting, assessing thk timt a material weakness exists, and testingeaatliating the design and operating effectivenéssternal control based on the assessed risk.aDdits
also included performing such other procedureseasamsidered necessary in the circumstances. Vis/behat our audits provide a reasonable basisipopinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessssuregarding the reliability of financial repogt and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymtedeaccounting principles. A company’s internaitcol over financial reporting includes those piglicand procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detziljrately and fairly reflect the transactions dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) ijereasonable assurance that transactions anelegco
as necessary to permit preparation of financiaéstants in accordance with generally accepted atirmuprinciples, and that receipts and expenditafethe company are being made only in accord
with authorizations of management and directorthefcompany; and (3) provide reasonable assuragegding prevention or timely detection of unauittent acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effe¢he financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or @etisstatements. Also, projections of any evatuatf effectiveness to future periods are subjethé
risk that controls may become inadequate becauskasfges in conditions, or that the degree of cimpé with the policies or procedures may detet@ora

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagmesent fairly, in all material respects, thficial position of General Electric Company andsodidated affiliates as of December 31, 2012 &01dl;
and the results of their operations and their ¢asts for each of the years in the three-year mkended December 31, 2012, in conformity with gé&herally accepted accounting principles. Alsoun o
opinion, the Company maintained, in all materiapects, effective internal control over financigporting as of December 31, 2012, based on crigstizblished ifnternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by COSO.
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As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&tements, in 2010 the Company changed its rdethaccounting for consolidation of variable irgstr entities.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statemearese made for the purpose of forming an opiniorthenconsolidated financial statements taken aBaen The accompanying consolidating informa
appearing on pages 92, 95 and 97 is presentedifpoges of additional analysis of the consoliddireahcial statements rather than to present thenfifal position, results of operations and cashdlof
the individual entities. The consolidating inforioathas been subjected to the auditing procedymeléed in the audits of the consolidated finansiatements and, in our opinion, is fairly statedlin

material respects in relation to the consolidatedrfcial statements taken as a whole.
/s KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 26, 2013
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Statement of Earnings

General Electric Company
and consolidated affiliates

For the years ended December 31 (In millions;-share amounts in dollar: 2012 2011 2010
Revenues and other incom
Sales of good $ 72,991 $ 66,875 $ 60,811
Sales of service 27,158 27,648 39,625
Other income (Note 17 2,563 5,064 1,151
GECC earnings from continuing operatic - - -
GECC revenues from services (Note 44,647 47,701 47,980
Total revenues and other inco 147,35¢ 147,288 149,567
Costs and expenses (Note 1
Cost of goods sol 56,785 51,455 45,998
Cost of services sol 17,525 16,823 25,715
Interest and other financial charg 12,508 14,528 15,537
Investment contracts, insurance losses
insurance annuity benef 2,857 2,912 3,012
Provision for losses on financit
receivables (Notes 6 and 2 3,891 3,951 7,085
Other costs and expens 36,387 37,362 38,033
Total costs and expens 129,953 127,031 135,38C
Earnings from continuing operations
before income taxe: 17,406 20,257 14,187
Benefit (provision) for income taxes (Note : (2,504 (5.738 (1,039
Earnings from continuing operations 14,902 14,519 13,148
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatic
net of taxes (Note & (1,038 (76) (969
Net earnings 13,864 14,443 12,179
Less net earnings attributable
noncontrolling interes 223 292 535
Net earnings attributable to the Company 13,641 14,151 11,644
Preferred stock dividends decla - (1,031 (300;
Net earnings attributable to GE common
shareowners $ 13,641 13,120 $ 11,344
Amounts attributable to the Company
Earnings from continuing operatic $ 14,679 14,227 $ 12,613
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatic
net of taxe (1,038 (76) (969,
Net earnings attributable to the Company $ 13,641 14,151 $ 11,644
Per-share amounts (Note 20
Earnings from continuing operatic
Diluted earnings per she $ 1.39 124 $ 1.15
Basic earnings per shi¢ 1.39 1.24 1.15
Net earning:
Diluted earnings per she 1.29 1.23 1.06
Basic earnings per shi¢ 1.29 1.24 1.06
Dividends declared per share 0.70 0.61 0.46

See Note 3 for other-than-temporary impairment amteu

See accompanying notes
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Statement of Earnings (Continued;

For the years ended December GE(a) GECC
(In millions; pershare amounts in dollar: 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Revenues and other incom
Sales of good 73,304 67,012 $ 60,344 $ 119 148 533
Sales of service 27,571 28,024 39,875 - - -
Other income (Note 17 2,657 5,270 1,285 - - -
GECC earnings from continuing operatic 7,401 6,584 3,120 - - -
GECC revenues from services (Note - - - 45,920 48,920 49,323

Total revenues and other incol 110,933 106,89C 104,624 46,039 49,068 49,856
Costs and expenses (Note 1
Cost of goods sol 57,118 51,605 45,563 99 135 501
Cost of services sol 17,938 17,199 25,965 - - -
Interest and other financial charg 1,353 1,299 1,600 11,697 13,866 14,510
Investment contracts, insurance losses

insurance annuity benefi - - - 2,984 3,059 3,197
Provision for losses on financit

receivables (Notes 6 and 2z - - - 3,891 3,951 7,085
Other costs and expens 17,672 17,556 16,340 19,413 20,447 22,412

Total costs and expens 94,081 87,659 89,468 38,084 41,458 47,705
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations

before income taxe: 16,852 19,231 15,156 7,955 7,610 2,151
Benefit (provision) for income taxes (Note : (2,013 (4,839 (2,024 (491 (899 985
Earnings from continuing operations 14,839 14,392 13,132 7,464 6,711 3,136
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatic

net of taxes (Note 2 (1,038 (76) (969, (1,186 (74) (965,
Net earnings 13,801 14,316 12,163 6,278 6,637 2,171
Less net earnings attributable

noncontrolling interest 160 165 519 63 127 16
Net earnings attributable to the Company 13,641 14,151 11,644 6,215 6,510 2,155
Preferred stock dividends decla - (1,031 (300, (123 - -
Net earnings attributable to GE common

shareowners 13,641 13120 $ 11344 $ 6,092 6,510 2,155
Amounts attributable to the Company

Earnings from continuing operatio 14,679 14,227  $ 12,613 $ 7,401 6,584 3,120

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatic

net of taxes (1,038 (76) (969 (1,186 (74) (965

Net earnings attributable to the Company 13,641 14,151 % 11644 % 6,215 6,510 2,155

(a) Represents the adding together of all affiliatechpanies except General Electric Capital Corpora@®BECC or financial services), which is presentacamn«line basis See Note

In the consolidating data on this page, "GE" mahadasis of consolidation as described in Notthé consolidated financial statements; "GECC"madaeneral Electric Capital Corporation and a
its affiliates and associated companies. Sepamédemation is shown for "GE" and "GECC." Transantidetween GE and GECC have been eliminated freftGeneral Electric Company and

consolidated affiliates" columns on the prior pe



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incon

For the years ended December 31 (In millic 2012 2011 2010
Net earnings $ 13,864 $ 14,443 $ 12,179
Less: net earnings (loss) attributable to noncdiimgpinterests 223 292 535
Net earnings attributable to GE $ 13,641 $ 14,151 $ 11,644
Other comprehensive income (loss
Investment securitie 705 $ 608 $ 16
Currency translation adjustmel 300 180 (3,876
Cash flow hedge 453 118 505
Benefit plans 2,299 (7,040 1,068
Other comprehensive income (loss 3,757 (6,134 (2,287
Less: other comprehensive income (loss) attriiati noncontrolling interes 13 (15) 38
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to & 3,744 $ (6,119 $ (2,325
Comprehensive income 17,621 $ 8,309 $ 9,892
Less: comprehensive income attributable to nonotimyg interests 236 277 573
Comprehensive income attributable to GE $ 17,385 $ 8,032 $ 9,319
Amounts presented net of taxes. See Note 15 fadrdumformation about other comprehensive income rroncontrolling interests.
See accompanying notes.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in ShareownersyHity
(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
GE shareowners' equity balance at Januz 116,438 $ 118,936 $ 117,291
Increases from net earnings attributable to the (izom 13,641 14,151 11,644
Dividends and other transactions with shareow (7,372 (7,502 (5,162
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable 3,744 (6,119 (2,325
Net sales (purchases) of shares for trea (2,802 169 300
Changes in other capit (623) (3,197 (839
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting priresgé) — — (1,973
Ending balance at December 123,026 116,438 118,936
Noncontrolling interest 5,444 1,696 5,262
Total equity balance at December $ 128,470 $ 118,134 $ 124,198

See Note 15 for further information about changeshiareowne’ equity.

(@ On January 1, 2010, we adopted amendments to RFahakecounting Standards Board (FASB) Accountingrlards Codification (ASC) 86(Transfers and Servicing and ASC 81(
Consolidatior, and recorded a cumulative effect adjustment.Ngges 15 and 2:

See accompanying note
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Statement of Financial Positior

General Electric Company
and consolidated affiliates

At December 31 (In millions, except share amot 2012 2011
Assets
Cash and equivalen 77,356 84,501
Investment securities (Note 48,510 47,374
Current receivables (Note 21,500 20,478
Inventories (Note 5 15,374 13,792
Financing receivable- net (Notes 6 and 2: 258,028 279,918
Other GECC receivable 7,961 7,561
Property, plant and equipme- net (Note 7 69,743 65,739
Investment in GEC( - -
Goodwill (Note 8) 73,447 72,625
Other intangible asse- net (Note 8 11,987 12,068
All other assets (Note ¢ 100,07€ 111,701
Assets of businesses held for sale (Not 211 711
Assets of discontinued operations (Not¢ 1,135 1,721
Total assets(e 685,328 718,18¢
Liabilities and equity
Shor-term borrowings (Note 1( 101,392 137,611
Accounts payable, principally trade accot 15,675 16,400
Progress collections and price adjustmt

accruec 10,877 11,349
Dividends payabli 1,980 1,797
Other GE current liabilitie 14,895 14,796
Non-recourse borrowings of consolidai

securitization entities (Note 1 30,123 29,258
Bank deposits (Note 1( 46,461 43,115
Long-term borrowings (Note 1( 236,084 243,458
Investment contracts, insurance liabilit

and insurance annuity benefits (Note 28,268 29,774
All other liabilities (Note 13 68,676 70,653
Deferred income taxes (Note 1 (75) (131
Liabilities of businesses held for sale (Note 157 345
Liabilities of discontinued operations (Note 2,345 1,629
Total liabilities(a) 556,858 600,055
GECC preferred stock (40,000 and 0 shares outstgrad

yea-end 2012 and 2011, respective - -
Common stock (10,405,625,000 and 10,573,017

shares outstanding at y-end 2012 an

2011, respectively 702 702
Accumulated other comprehensive income attributebl@E(b)

Investment securitie 677 (30)

Currency translation adjustme; 412 133

Cash flow hedge (722 1,176

Benefit plan: (20,597 (22,901
Other capita 33,070 33,693
Retained earning 144,055 137,78€
Less common stock held in treas! (34,571 (31,769
Total GE shareowne’ equity 123,02€ 116,438
Noncontrolling interests(c 5,444 1,696
Total equity (Notes 15 and 1 128,47C 118,134
Total liabilities and equit' 685,328 718,18¢
(@) Our consolidated assets at December 31, 2012 ia¢hidl assets of $46,064 million of certain vaeahterest entities (VIEs) that can only be usedéittle the liabilities of those VIEs. The

assets include net financing receivables of $40r2lbn and investment securities of $3,419 mitli®ur consolidated liabilities at December 31,201clude liabilities of certain VIEs for

which the VIE creditors do not have recourse to Gitese liabilities include n-recourse borrowings of consolidated securitizaéintities (CSEs) of $29,123 million. See Note

(b) The sum of accumulated other comprehensive incdtribwtable to GE was $(20,230) million and $(23ipihillion at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respebti

(c) Included accumulated other comprehensive incomibattable to noncontrolling interests of $(155) linit and $(168) million at December 31, 2012 anfi2ZGespectively

See accompanying note



Statement of Financial Position (Continued

GE(a) GECC

At December 31 (In millions, except share amot 2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets
Cash and equivalen $ 15,509 $ 8,382 $ 61,941 $ 76,702
Investment securities (Note 74 18 48,439 47,359
Current receivables (Note 10,872 11,807 - -
Inventories (Note 5 15,295 13,741 79 51
Financing receivable- net (Notes 6 and 2: - - 268,951 288,847
Other GECC receivable - - 13,988 13,390
Property, plant and equipme- net (Note 7 16,033 14,283 53,673 51,419
Investment in GEC( 77,930 77,110 - -
Goodwill (Note 8) 46,143 45,395 27,304 27,230
Other intangible asse- net (Note 8 10,700 10,522 1,294 1,546
All other assets (Note ¢ 37,936 36,675 62,217 75,612
Assets of businesses held for sale (Not - - 211 711
Assets of discontinued operations (Not¢ 9 52 1,126 1,669
Total asset $ 230,501 $ 217,985 $ 539,223 $ 584,53€
Liabilities and equity
Shor-term borrowings (Note 1( $ 6,041 $ 2,184 $ 95,940 $ 136,333
Accounts payable, principally trade accot 14,259 14,209 6,277 7,239
Progress collections and price adjustmt

accruec 10,877 11,349 - -
Dividends payabli 1,980 1,797 - -
Other GE current liabilitie 14,896 14,796 - -
Non-recourse borrowings of consolidai

securitization entities (Note 1 - - 30,123 29,258
Bank deposits (Note 1( - - 46,461 43,115
Long-term borrowings (Note 1( 11,428 9,405 224,77¢€ 234,391
Investment contracts, insurance liabilit

and insurance annuity benefits (Note - - 28,696 30,198
All other liabilities (Note 13 53,093 53,826 16,050 17,334
Deferred income taxes (Note 1 (5,946 (7,183 5,871 7,052
Liabilities of businesses held for sale (Note - - 157 345
Liabilities of discontinued operations (Note 70 158 2,275 1,471
Total liabilities 106,698 100,541 456,62€ 506,73€
GECC preferred stock (40,000 and 0 shares outstgrad

yea-end 2012 and 2011, respective - - - -
Common stock (10,405,625,000 and 10,573,017
shares outstanding at y-end 2012 and 2011, respective 702 702 - -

Accumulated other comprehensive income attributeb@E

Investment securitie 677 (30) 673 (33)

Currency translation adjustmer 412 133 (131 (399

Cash flow hedge (722 (1,176 (746, (1,101

Benefit plans (20,597 (22,901 (736, (563,
Other capita 33,070 33,693 31,586 27,628
Retained earninc 144,055 137,78€ 51,244 51,578
Less common stock held in treas! (34,571 (31,769 — —
Total GE shareowne’ equity 123,02€ 116,438 81,890 77,110
Noncontrolling interest 777 1,006 707 690
Total equity (Notes 15 and 1 123,803 117,444 82,597 77,800
Total liabilities and equit' $ 230,501 $ 217,98t $ 539,223 $ 584,53€
(a) Represents the adding together of all affiliateshpanies except General Electric Capital Corpora®BCC or financial services), which is presenteca@nline basis. See Note

In the consolidating data on this page, "GE" mehagasis of consolidation as described in Notthé consolidated financial statements; "GECC"madaeneral Electric Capital Corporation and a
its affiliates and associated companies. Sepanédemation is shown for “GE” and “GECC.” Transact®obetween GE and GECC have been eliminated frerfGeneral Electric Company and
consolidated affiliate’ columns on the prior pag
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Statement of Cash Flow:

For the years ended December 31 (In millic
Cash flows- operating activities
Net earning:
Less net earnings attributable to noncontrollirtgriests
Net earnings attributable to the Compi
(Earnings) loss from discontinued operati
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings attributablthe
Company to cash provided from operating activi
Depreciation and amortization of propel
plant and equipmet
Earnings from continuing operations retained by Gt
Deferred income taxe
Decrease (increase) in GE current receiva
Decrease (increase) in inventor
Increase (decrease) in accounts pay
Increase (decrease) in GE progress collec
Provision for losses on GECC financing receival
All other operating activitie
Cash from (used for) operating activit- continuing
operations
Cash from (used for) operating activit- discontinuec
operations
Cash from (used for) operating activities

Cash flows- investing activities

Additions to property, plant and equipmi

Dispositions of property, plant and equipm

Net decrease (increase) in GECC financing reced&

Proceeds from sales of discontinued operal

Proceeds from principal business dispositi

Payments for principal businesses purch:

All other investing activitie:

Cash from (used for) investing activiti- continuing
operations

Cash from (used for) investing activiti- discontinuec
operations

Cash from (used for) investing activities

Cash flows- financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in borrowings (maturitfe
90 days or less

Net increase (decrease) in bank depc

Newly issued debt (maturities longer than 90 d.

Repayments and other reductions (maturities lo
than 90 days

Proceeds from issuance of GECC preferred s

Repayment of preferred sto

Net dispositions (purchases) of GE shares for tige

Dividends paid to shareowne

Purchases of subsidiary shares from noncontroifitegests

All other financing activitie:

Cash from (used for) financing activiti- continuing
operations

Cash from (used for) financing activiti- discontinuec
operations

Cash from (used for) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and equois

Increase (decrease) in cash and equiva

Cash and equivalents at beginning of y

Cash and equivalents at end of y

Less cash and equivalents of discontinued opes
at end of yea

Cash and equivalents of continuing operati
at end of yea

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows informatiol

Cash paid during the year for inter

Cash recovered (paid) during the year for incomes

General Electric Company and consolidated affiliate

2012 2011 2010
$ 13,864 14,443 $ 12,179
223 292 535
13,641 14,151 11,644
1,038 76 969
9,346 9,185 9,786
1,171 (203 930
(774 (714 (60)
(1,274 (1,168 342
(424, 1,235 883
(920 (1,146 (1,243
3,891 3,951 7,085
7,899 7,255 5,921
31,252 32,622 36,257
79 737 (133
31,331 33,359 36,124
(15,126 (12,650 (9,800
6,200 5,896 7,208
6,872 14,630 21,758
227 8,950 2,510
3,618 8,877 3,062
(1,456 (11,202 (1,212
11,064 6,095 10,262
11,399 20,596 33,788
(97) (714 (1,352
11,302 19,882 32,436
(2,231 5,951 (1,228
2,432 6,748 4,603
63,019 43,847 47,643
(103,942 (85,706 (99,933
3,960 - -

- (3,300 -
(4,164 (1,456 (1,263
(7,189 (6,458 (4,790

- (4,578 (2,633
(2,959 (1,867 (3,648
(51,074 (46,819 (61,249
— (44) (337
(51,074 (46,863 (61,586
1,278 (841 (333
(7,163 5,537 6,641
84,622 79,085 72,444
77,459 84,622 79,085
103 121 142

$ 77,356 84,501 $ 78,943
$ (12,717 (15,571 $ (17,132
(3,237 (2,919 (2,671

See accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows (Continued

GE(a) GECC
For the years ended December 31 (In millic 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Cash flows- operating activities
Net earning: $ 13,801 $ 14,316 $ 12,163  $ 6,278 $ 6,637 $ 2,171
Less net earnings attributable to noncontrollirtgriests 160 165 519 63 127 16
Net earnings attributable to the Compi 13,641 14,151 11,644 6,215 6,510 2,155
(Earnings) loss from discontinued operati 1,038 76 969 1,186 74 965
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings attributablthe
Company to cash provided from operating activi
Depreciation and amortization of propel
plant and equipmet 2,291 2,068 2,034 7,055 7,117 7,752
Earnings from continuing operations retained by GB% (975 (6,584 (3,120 - - -
Deferred income taxe (294 (327, 377, 877 124 1,307
Decrease (increase) in GE current receiva 1,210 (390, (963, - - -
Decrease (increase) in inventor (1,204 (1,122 409 (27) 15 5
Increase (decrease) in accounts pay 158 1,938 1,052 (867, 50 (116
Increase (decrease) in GE progress collec (920 (1,146 (1,158 - - -
Provision for losses on GECC financing receival - - - 3,891 3,951 7,085
All other operating activitie 2,881 3,393 4,256 5,392 3,282 2,482
Cash from (used for) operating activit- continuing
operations 17,826 12,057 14,746 21,968 21,123 21,635
Cash from (used for) operating activit- discontinuec
operations — — — 79 737 (133
Cash from (used for) operating activities 17,826 12,057 14,746 22,047 21,860 21,502
Cash flows- investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipmi (3,937 (2,957 (2,418 (11,886 (9,882 (7,674
Dispositions of property, plant and equipm - - - 6,200 5,896 7,208
Net decrease (increase) in GECC financing reced& - - - 5,383 14,370 23,046
Proceeds from sales of discontinued operal - - - 227 8,950 2,510
Proceeds from principal business dispositi 540 6,254 1,721 2,863 2,623 1,171
Payments for principal businesses purch: (1,456 (11,152 (653 - (50) (559
All other investing activitie: (564 (384 (550 11,701 7,301 9,960
Cash from (used for) investing activiti- continuing
operations (5,417 (8,239 (1,900 14,488 29,208 35,662
Cash from (used for) investing activiti- discontinuec
operations - - - 97) (714 (1,352
Cash from (used for) investing activities (5,417 (8,239 (1,900 14,391 28,494 34,310
Cash flows- financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in borrowings (maturitfe
90 days or less (890" 1,058 (671 (1,401 4,393 (652
Net increase (decrease) in bank depc - - - 2,432 6,748 4,603
Newly issued debt (maturities longer than 90 d. 6,961 177 9,474 55,841 43,267 37,971
Repayments and other reductions (maturities lo
than 90 days (34) (270 (2,554 (103,908 (85,436 (97,379
Proceeds from issuance of GECC preferred s - - - 3,960 - -
Repayment of preferred sto - (3,300 - - - -
Net dispositions (purchases) of GE shares for tige (4,164 (1,456 (1,263 - - -
Dividends paid to shareowne (7,189 (6,458 (4,790 (6,549 - -
Purchases of subsidiary shares from noncontro
interests - (4,303 (2,000 - (275, (633,
All other financing activitiet 32 (75) (330 (2,868 (1,792 (3,318
Cash from (used for) financing activiti- continuing
operations (5,284 (14,627 (2,134 (52,493 (33,095 (59,408
Cash from (used for) financing activiti- discontinuec
operations — — — — (44) (337
Cash from (used for) financing activities (5,284 (14,627 (2,134 (52,493 (33,139 (59,745
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and equig 2 (50) (125 1,276 (791 (208
Increase (decrease) in cash and equivaler 7,127 (10,859 10,587 (24,779 16,424 (4,141
Cash and equivalents at beginning of y 8,382 19,241 8,654 76,823 60,399 64,540
Cash and equivalents at end of y 15,509 8,382 19,241 62,044 76,823 60,399
Less cash and equivalents of discontinued opess
at end of yea - - - 103 121 142
Cash and equivalents of continuing operati
at end of yea $ 15509 $ 8382 $ 19,241  $ 61,941 $ 76,702  $ 60,257
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows informatiol
Cash paid during the year for inter $ (545, $ (553 $ (731, % (12,172 $ (15,018 $ (16,401
Cash recovered (paid) during the year for incomes (2,987 (2,303 (2,775 (250 (616 104

(a) Represents the adding together of all affiliatechpanies except General Electric Capital Corpora@®BECC or financial services), which is presenteca@n«line basis. See Note
(b) Represents GECC earnings from continuing operattiniputable to the Company, net of GECC dividepdisl to GE

In the consolidating data on this page, "GE" mehagasis of consolidation as described in Notthé consolidated financial statements; "GECC"madaeneral Electric Capital Corporation and a

its affiliates and associated companies. Sepanédemation is shown for “GE” and “GECC.” Transact®obetween GE and GECC have been eliminated frerfGeneral Electric Company and
consolidated affiliate’ columns on the prior page and are discussed in Rt
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Principles

Our financial statements are prepared in conformiti U.S. generally accepted accounting princig@AAP).
Consolidation

Our financial statements consolidate all of ouiliafes — entities in which we have a controlliigeincial interest, most often because we hold @ritgjvoting interest. To determine if we hold a
controlling financial interest in an entity we fisvaluate if we are required to apply the variabterest entity (VIE) model to the entity, otheseithe entity is evaluated under the voting interexdel.

Where we hold current or potential rights that gigethe power to direct the activities of a VIEtthmst significantly impact the VIE's economic parhance combined with a variable interest thatgive
us the right to receive potentially significant béts or the obligation to absorb potentially sfggeint losses, we have a controlling financial it in that VIE. Rights held by others to remdve party
with power over the VIE are not considered unlass party can exercise those rights unilaterallyeWbthanges occur to the design of an entity wensder whether it is subject to the VIE model. We
continuously evaluate whether we have a controfiimgncial interest in a VIE.

We hold a controlling financial interest in othettiges where we currently hold, directly or inditly, more than 50% of the voting rights or where @xercise control through substantive particigatin
rights or as a general partner. Where we arenargepartner we consider substantive removalsigetd by other partners in determining if we hmicbntrolling financial interest. We reevaluate thiee
we have a controlling financial interest in thesétes when our voting or substantive participgtifghts change.

Associated companies are unconsolidated VIEs dmef entities in which we do not have a controlfimgncial interest, but over which we have sigrficinfluence, most often because we hold a vc
interest of 20% to 50%. Associated companies arewated for as equity method investments. Res@iléssociated companies are presented on a onbégig. Investments in, and advances to,
associated companies are presented on a one-bieibahe caption “All other assets” in our Stagenof Financial Position, net of allowance fordes, that represents our best estimate of probable
losses inherent in such assets.

Financial Statement Presentation

We have reclassified certain prior-year amountsorform to the current-year’s presentation.

Financial data and related measurements are peesinthe following categories:

GE — This represents the adding together of all aff other than General Electric Capital Corponaf@®ECC), whose continuing operations are presemeai one-line basis, giving effect to the
elimination of transactions among such affiliates.

GECC - This represents the adding together of all atfis of GECC, giving effect to the elimination i&rtsactions among such affiliates.
Consolidated— This represents the adding together of GE andGEing effect to the elimination of transactidmstween GE and GECC.

Operating Segments- These comprise our eight businesses, focuseldedorvad markets they serve: Power & Water, Oil#s @nergy Management, Aviation, Healthcare, Trartafion, Home &
Business Solutions and GE Capital. Prior-periodrimiation has been reclassified to be consisteifit otv we managed our businesses in 2012.
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Unless otherwise indicated, information in thesteado consolidated financial statements relatesmndinuing operations. Certain of our operatioagehbeen presented as discontinued. See Note 2.

On February 22, 2012, we merged our wholly-owndssigliary, General Electric Capital Services, IGECS), with and into GECS’ wholly-owned subsidigBECC. The merger simplified our
financial services’ corporate structure by consatlith financial services entities and assets withinorganization and simplifying Securities andtEange Commission and regulatory reporting. Upon
completion of the merger, (i) all outstanding sBasEGECC common stock were cancelled, (ii) altariding GECS common stock and all GECS prefertmak $ield by the Company were converted
into an aggregate of 1,000 shares of GECC comnuwk,sand (iii) all treasury shares of GECS andatstanding preferred stock of GECS held by GEC@&wancelled. As a result, GECC became the
surviving corporation, assumed all of GECS'’ righsl obligations and became wholly-owned directlyti®yCompany.

Because we wholly-owned both GECS and GECC, thgenavas accounted for as a transfer of assets brtarities under common control. Transfers ofassets or exchanges of shares between
entities under common control are accounted fhisiorical value, and as if the transfer occurrethe beginning of the period.

Our financial services segment, GE Capital, conegrifie continuing operations of GECC, which inctutte run-off insurance operations previously lz#ld managed in GECS. Unless otherwise
indicated, references to GECC and the GE Capitahset in this Form 10-K Report relate to the entitsegment as they exist subsequent to the Fgh2@a2012 merger.

As previously announced, effective October 1, 2@i reorganized our former Energy Infrastructugnsent into three segments — Power & Water, Oil & @ad Energy Management and began
reporting these as separate segments beginninghistRorm 10-K Report. We also reorganized our dBusiness Solutions segment by transferringloiglligent Platforms business to Energy
Management.

The effects of translating to U.S. dollars the ficial statements of non-U.S. affiliates whose fiomal currency is the local currency are includeghareowners’ equity. Asset and liability accolares
translated at year-end exchange rates, while reseand expenses are translated at average rates f@spective periods.

Preparing financial statements in conformity witlBBUGAAP requires us to make estimates based amgsi®ns about current, and for some estimatesduiconomic and market conditions (for
example, unemployment, market liquidity, the resthee market, etc.), which affect reported amoantsrelated disclosures in our financial statemeXthough our current estimates contemplate cui
conditions and how we expect them to change iritthee, as appropriate, it is reasonably posshu in 2013 actual conditions could be worse th#itigated in those estimates, which could matsrial
affect our results of operations and financial fosi Among other effects, such changes could tésduture impairments of investment securitiespdwill, intangibles and lontived assets, increment
losses on financing receivables, establishmenabfation allowances on deferred tax assets andased tax liabilities.

Sales of Goods and Services

We record all sales of goods and services only vehferm sales agreement is in place, delivery fasioed or services have been rendered and coilégtof the fixed or determinable sales price is
reasonably assured.
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Arrangements for the sale of goods and servicegsoras include multiple components. Most of ourtiplé component arrangements involve the sale ofigand services in the Healthcare segment.
Our arrangements with multiple components usualive an upfront deliverable of large machineryquipment and future service deliverables sudhstallation, commissioning, training or the
future delivery of ancillary products. In most castie relative values of the undelivered companare not significant to the overall arrangementae typically delivered within three to six mosith
after the core product has been delivered. In sgcbements, selling price is determined for eachpoment and any difference between the total oféparate selling prices and total contract
consideration (i.e., discount) is allocated pra @tross each of the components in the arrangefffeatzalue assigned to each component is objegtietermined and obtained primarily from sources
such as the separate selling price for that oméasi item or from competitor prices for similaeibs. If such evidence is not available, we usebest estimate of selling price, which is establishe
consistent with the pricing strategy of the businaisd considers product configuration, geograpbstoener type, and other market specific factors.

Except for goods sold under long-term agreemergs;emognize sales of goods under the provisios 8f Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) 8founting Bulletin (SAB) 104Revenue
Recognitior. We often sell consumer products and computenenel and software products with a right of retWe use our accumulated experience to estimate @witlp for such returns when we
record the sale. In situations where arrangementade customer acceptance provisions based @r seltustomer-specified objective criteria, weogrtze revenue when we have reliably demonstrated
that all specified acceptance criteria have beenomehen formal acceptance occurs, respectivalgrtangements where we provide goods for trialeraduation purposes, we only recognize revenue
after customer acceptance occurs. Unless othenwisel, we do not provide for anticipated lossesiteefve record sales.

We recognize revenue on agreements for sales afsgamud services under power generation unit anatelgontracts, nuclear fuel assemblies, largeadréiing equipment projects, aeroderivative unit
contracts, military development contracts, locom®production contracts, and long-term construgpimjects, using long-term construction and proidictontract accounting. We estimate total long-
term contract revenue net of price concessionseisaw total contract costs. For goods sold undergp generation unit and uprate contracts, nuéledrassemblies, aeroderivative unit contractsitamy
development contracts and locomotive productiortreots, we recognize sales as we complete majdramrspecified deliverables, most often when austes receive title to the goods or accept the
services as performed. For larger oil drilling gmuent projects and long-term construction projesisrecognize sales based on our progress towarndisact completion measured by actual costs
incurred in relation to our estimate of total exeelccosts. We measure long-term contract revenpaplying our contract-specific estimated margites to incurred costs. We routinely update our
estimates of future costs for agreements in proaedseport any cumulative effects of such adjustmin current operations. We provide for any liieg we expect to incur on these agreements when
that loss is probable.

We recognize revenue upon delivery for sales afait engines, military propulsion equipment andted spare parts not sold under long-term prosieistices agreements. Delivery of commercial
engines, non-U.S. military equipment and all relagpare parts occurs on shipment; delivery of arilipropulsion equipment sold to the U.S. Goverriroeragencies thereof occurs upon receipt of a
Material Inspection and Receiving Report, DD Fors0 &r Memorandum of Shipment. Commercial aircrafjiees are complex equipment manufactured to cuestonder under a variety of sometimes
complex, long-term agreements. We measure salesniercial aircraft engines by applying our cortisgmecific estimated margin rates to incurred costs routinely update our estimates of future
revenues and costs for commercial aircraft engimeeanents in process and report any cumulativetsftgf such adjustments in current operations.ifiégmt components of our revenue and cost
estimates include price concessions, performanieéeteguarantees as well as material, labor anthead costs. We measure revenue for military psipulequipment and spare parts not subject to
long-term product services agreements based on thefispemitract on a specifically measured output ©iddie provide for any loss that we expect to irauthese agreements when that loss is prot
consistent with industry practice, for commerciati@ft engines, we make such provision only iftsl@sses are not recoverable from future highlypphte sales of spare parts for those engines.
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We sell product services under long-term produdhteaance or extended warranty agreements in oiatiém, Power & Water, Oil & Gas and Transportatsagments, where costs of performing
services are incurred on other than a straightdamgs. We also sell product services in our Health segment, where such costs generally are epcbe on a straight-line basis. For the Aviation
Power & Water, Oil & Gas and Transportation agreeisieve recognize related sales based on the eoftent progress towards completion measured hyahcosts incurred in relation to total expected
costs. We routinely update our estimates of futmsts for agreements in process and report any letireieffects of such adjustments in current opyena. For the Healthcare agreements, we recognize
revenues on a straight-line basis and expensedetaists as incurred. We provide for any losswhRaexpect to incur on any of these agreements wisross is probable.

NBC Universal (NBCU), which we deconsolidated onuky 28, 2011, recorded broadcast and cable sédevand Internet advertising sales when advergsgesnwere aired, net of provision for &
viewer shortfalls (make goods). Sales from theatuistribution of films were recorded as the filmere exhibited; sales of home videos, net of arneprovision, when the videos were delivered td an
available for sale by retailers; fees from cablkeli'e operators when services were provided; laahsing of film and television programming whére material was available for airing.

GECC Revenues from Services (Earned Income)

We use the interest method to recognize incomeamsl. Interest on loans includes origination, commant and other non-refundable fees related toifgn@ecorded in earned income on the interest
method). We stop accruing interest at the earfighetime at which collection of an account becerdeubtful or the account becomes 90 days pastashaeat that time, previously recognized interest
income that was accrued but not collected frombitreower is reversed, unless the terms of the dmgaement permit capitalization of accrued intetesite principal balance. Although we stop acayuin
interest in advance of payments, we recognizeestencome as cash is collected when appropriet@ided the amount does not exceed that which wbale been earned at the historical effective
interest rate; otherwise, payments received arbeap reduce the principal balance of the loan.

We resume accruing interest on nonaccrual, nomuested commercial loans only when (a) paymergsaought current according to the loan’s origieains and (b) future payments are reasonably
assured. When we agree to restructured terms étharrower, we resume accruing interest only whisreasonably assured that we will recover ¢oltractual payments, and such loans pass
underwriting reviews equivalent to those appliedéw loans. We resume accruing interest on nonatcamsumer loans when the customer’s accounssstleain 90 days past due and collection of such
amounts is probable . Interest accruals on memlifonsumer loans that are not considered to bbled debt restructurings (TDRs) may return to entrstatus (r@ged) only after receipt of at least tF
consecutive minimum monthly payments or the egeivatumulative amount, subject to a re-aging litiataof once a year, or twice in a five-year period

We recognize financing lease income on the intenethod to produce a level yield on funds not gebwered. Estimated unguaranteed residual valedsaased upon management's best estimates of the
value of the leased asset at the end of the lease We use various sources of data in determithisgestimate, including information obtained frémrd parties, which is adjusted for the attribubéshe
specific asset under lease. Guarantees of residiss by unrelated third parties are consideredgfaninimum lease payments. Significant assunmstiwe use in estimating residual values include
estimated net cash flows over the remaining learse, tanticipated results of future remarketing, estimated future component part and scrap met@grdiscounted at an appropriate rate.

We recognize operating lease income on a straigétblasis over the terms of underlying leases.

Fees include commitment fees related to loansvieado not expect to fund and line-of-credit fee® Micord these fees in earned income on a striighbasis over the period to which they relate. We
record syndication fees in earned income at the tigtated services are performed, unless significamingencies exist.
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Depreciation and Amortization

The cost of GE manufacturing plant and equipmedejsreciated over its estimated economic life. dsSets are depreciated using an accelerated medised on a sum-of-the-years digits formula; non-
U.S. assets are generally depreciated on a stghibasis.

The cost of GECC equipment leased to others oratipgrleases is depreciated on a straight-lineshiasestimated residual value over the lease temver the estimated economic life of the equipment

The cost of GECC acquired real estate investmerdsepreciated on a straight-line basis to the estithsalvage value over the expected useful lita@estimated proceeds upon sale of the investatent
the end of the expected holding period if that apph produces a higher measure of depreciatiomegpe

The cost of individually significant customer rédaiships is amortized in proportion to estimatedlteelated sales; cost of other intangible assegenerally amortized on a straight-line basisralre
asset'’s estimated economic life. We review longdiassets for impairment whenever events or changisumstances indicate that the related cagrgimounts may not be recoverable. See Notes 7
and 8.

NBC Universal Film and Television Costs

Prior to our deconsolidation of NBCU in 2011, owtipies were to defer film and television produatitosts, including direct costs, production ovechevelopment costs and interest. We did not defer
costs of exploitation, which principally compriseaksts of film and television program marketing aigtribution. We amortized deferred film and tefon production costs, as well as associated
participation and residual costs, on an individualduction basis using the ratio of the curreniqubs gross revenues to estimated total remainioggrevenues from all sources; we stated suchk abst
the lower of amortized cost or fair value. Estinsaté total revenues and costs were based on aatiicipelease patterns, public acceptance andibatoesults for similar products. We deferred ¢bsts

of acquired broadcast material, including rightsiaterial for use on NBC Universal’'s broadcast eale/satellite television networks, at the eadieacquisition or when the license period begath an
the material was available for use. We amortizeflimed broadcast material and rights when we brastdbe associated programs; we stated such ¢dbes lawer of amortized cost or net realizable
value.

Losses on Financing Receivables

Losses on financing receivables are recognized wienare incurred, which requires us to make @st bstimate of probable losses inherent in théghior The method for calculating the best estienat
of losses depends on the size, type and risk cteaists of the related financing receivable. Sanfestimate requires consideration of historiass lexperience, adjusted for current conditiond, an
judgments about the probable effects of relevasenkable data, including present economic conditgrch as delinquency rates, financial health e€i§ip customers and market sectors, collat

values (including housing price indices as appliegland the present and expected future leveilsterfest rates. The underlying assumptions, eséisnaind assessments we use to provide for losses are
updated periodically to reflect our view of curreonditions and are subject to the regulatory eration process, which can result in changes t@ssumptions. Changes in such estimates can
significantly affect the allowance and provisiom Fasses. It is possible that we will experienceddrlosses that are different from our curreninestes. Write-offs are deducted from the allowafoce
losses when we judge the principal to be uncoldée@nd subsequent recoveries are added to theaalt® at the time cash is received on a writteraotbunt.

"Impaired” loans are defined as larger balancestructured loans for which it is probable thatléreler will be unable to collect all amounts daeading to the original contractual terms of tbari
agreement.

“Troubled debt restructurings” (TDRs) are thosenéor which we have granted a concession to @@ experiencing financial difficulties where we ot receive adequate compensation. Such loans
are classified as impaired, and are individualljieeed for specific reserves.
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“Nonaccrual financing receivables” are those onaluhive have stopped accruing interest. We stop armterest at the earlier of the time at whichemdion of an account becomes doubtful or the
account becomes 90 days past due. Although weastoping interest in advance of payments, we rezegnterest income as cash is collected when gpjate provided the amount does not exceec
which would have been earned at the historicakéffe interest rate. Recently restructured finagaieceivables are not considered delinquent whgmeats are brought current according to the
restructured terms, but may remain classified asmocrual until there has been a period of satisfggiayment performance by the borrower and fupaiaments are reasonably assured of collection.

“Nonearning financing receivableste a subset of nonaccrual financing receivablew/ffiich cash payments are not being received owfoch we are on the cost recovery method of aciogiti.e., an'
payments are accounted for as a reduction of ahciThis category excludes loans purchased &cuant (unless they have deteriorated post adguigi Under Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 3R@ceivablesthese loans are initially recorded at fair vednel accrete interest income over the estimatedfifee loan based on reasonably
estimable cash flows even if the underlying loarsc@ntractually delinquent at acquisition.

“Delinquent” receivables are those that are 30 @mysore past due based on their contractual terms.

The same financing receivable may meet more tharobthe definitions above. Accordingly, these gatées are not mutually exclusive and it is possfbl a particular loan to meet the definitionsof
TDR, impaired loan, nonaccrual loan and noneartoag and be included in each of these categories.ctegorization of a particular loan also maybhwindicative of the potential for loss.

Our consumer loan portfolio consists of smallerabak, homogeneous loans, including credit cardvalsies, installment loans, auto loans and leasdsesidential mortgages. We collectively evaluate
each portfolio for impairment quarterly. The allowea for losses on these receivables is establisiiedgh a process that estimates the probablesaskerent in the portfolio based upon statistical
analyses of portfolio data. These analyses incioidgation analysis, in which historical delinquerayd credit loss experience is applied to the otiraging of the portfolio, together with other arsas
that reflect current trends and conditions. We atsasider our historical loss experience to daseda@n actual defaulted loans and overall portfioliticators including nonearning loans, trendsoimnl
volume and lending terms, credit policies and otteservable environmental factors such as unempaynates and home price indices.

Our commercial loan and lease portfolio consista wériety of loans and leases, including bothdedgalance, non-homogeneous loans and leases atldisbalance homogeneous loans and leases.
Losses on such loans and leases are recorded wdtesbfe and estimable. We routinely evaluate otireeportfolio for potential specific credit or dettion issues that might indicate an impairment.

For larger-balance, non-homogeneous loans andsleaseconsider the financial status, payment histwllateral value, industry conditions and guéwasupport related to specific customers. Any
delinquencies or bankruptcies are indications ¢épigal impairment requiring further assessmertadlectibility. We routinely receive financial aslas rating agency reports on our customersyand
elevate for further attention those customers whpsgations we judge to be marginal or deteriogatifie also elevate customers for further attentiben we observe a decline in collateral values for
asset-based loans. While collateral values aralaatys available, when we observe such a declieegwaluate relevant markets to assess recoverpaitees —for example, for real estate loans, reley
markets are local; for commercial aircraft loam$evant markets are global.
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Measurement of the loss on our impaired commelasals is based on the present value of expectacefeash flows discounted at the loan’s effectiterest rate or the fair value of collateral, rfet o
expected selling costs, if the loan is determirebet collateral dependent. We determine whetheam ils collateral dependent if the repayment ofdhe is expected to be provided solely by the
underlying collateral. Our review process can of&sult in reserves being established in advaneenobdification of terms or designation as a TDReAproviding for specific incurred losses, werthe
determine an allowance for losses that have bernried in the balance of the portfolio but canrettlye identified to a specific loan or lease. Es8mate is based upon various statistical analyses
considering historical and projected default rated loss severity and aging, as well as our viewwrent market and economic conditions. It is preg by each respective line of business. For Real
Estate, this includes assessing the probabiligeddult and the loss given default based on lasteiyi of our portfolio for loans with similar loanetrics and attributes.

We consider multiple factors in evaluating the admy of our allowance for losses on Real Estanfiing receivables, including loan-to-value ratias|ateral values at the individual loan levelbtle
service coverage ratios, delinquency status, aodaeuic factors including interest rate and readtesiarket forecasts. In addition to evaluatingéHfactors, we deem a Real Estate loan to be iegdir
its projected loan-to-value ratio at maturity iseixcess of 100%, even if the loan is currently pgyn accordance with its contractual terms. Sutisty all of the loans in the Real Estate poitdare
considered collateral dependent and are measuréaairment based on the fair value of collatelfefloreclosure is deemed probable or if repaymgiependent solely on the sale of collateral, lse a
include estimated selling costs in our reservelaBaial values for our Real Estate loans are detedinbased upon internal cash flow estimates digedat an appropriate rate and corroborated by
external appraisals, as appropriate. Collateralatains are routinely monitored and updated anpuatimore frequently for changes in collateral fkedand economic conditions. Further discussion on
determination of fair value is in the Fair Value &erements section below.

Experience is not available for new products; tferee while we are developing that experience, stdass allowances based on our experience witimtist closely analogous products in our portfolio.

Our loss mitigation strategy intends to minimizemamic loss and, at times, can result in rate réoig, principal forgiveness, extensions, forbeaeaor other actions, which may cause the related lo
to be classified as a TDR.

We utilize certain loan modification programs fartowers experiencing temporary financial diffieedt in our Consumer loan portfolio. These loan rficalion programs are primarily concentrated in
our non-U.S. residential mortgage and non-U.Sallment and revolving portfolios and include shientm (three months or less) interest rate redustam payment deferrals, which were not part of the
terms of the original contract. We sold our U.Sidential mortgage business in 2007 and as suchptparticipate in the U.S. government-sponsoredgage modification programs.

Our allowance for losses on financing receivableshese modified consumer loans is determined baged a formulaic approach that estimates the fmleasses inherent in the portfolio based upon
statistical analyses of the portfolio. Data rela@dedefault experience is also considered inowerall reserve adequacy review. Once the loarbbas modified, it returns to current status (redagaly
after receipt of at least three consecutive mininmiomthly payments or the equivalent cumulative amiosubject to a re-aging limitation of once a yeartwice in a five-year period in accordance with
the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Gaoblguidelines on Uniform Retail Credit Classifimat and Account Management policy issued in JurG®2We believe that the allowance for losses
would not be materially different had we not re-@gieese accounts.
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For commercial loans, we evaluate changes in tammdsconditions to determine whether those changed the criteria for classification as a TDR owank-by-loan basis. In Commercial Lending and
Leasing (CLL), these changes primarily include:nges to covenants, short-term payment deferralsvatdrity extensions. For these changes, we reegi@romic consideration, including additional
fees and/or increased interest rates, and evatuerte under our normal underwriting standards aitdr@a. Changes to Real Estate ' s loans primamitjude maturity extensions, principal payment
acceleration, changes to collateral terms, and saskeps, which are in addition to, or sometimdeinof, fees and rate increases. The determinatiovhether these changes to the terms and condlitio
of our commercial loans meet the TDR criteria inels our consideration of all of the relevant faetd circumstances. When the borrower is experigrfamancial difficulty, we carefully evaluate these
changes to determine whether they meet the forancoihcession. In these circumstances, if the chsndgemed to be a concession, we classify thedsanTDR.

When we repossess collateral in satisfaction oba,lwe write down the receivable against the alwe for losses. Repossessed collateral is inclundiag caption “All other assets” in the Statemefnt
Financial Position and carried at the lower of aoststimated fair value less costs to sell.

For Consumer loans, we write off unsecured closetliestallment loans when they are 120 days cotuadly past due and unsecured open-ended revoleangs at 180 days contractually past due. We
write down consumer loans secured by collateraothan residential real estate when such loan20elays past due. Consumer loans secured byngisidreal estate (both revolving and closed-end
loans) are written down to the fair value of cafal, less costs to sell, no later than when tleepine 360 days past due. Unsecured consumer lodaskruptcy are written off within 60 days of
notification of filing by the bankruptcy court orithin contractual write-off periods, whichever ocgearlier.

Write-offs on larger balance impaired commercialns are based on amounts deemed uncollectibleramevdewed quarterly. Write-offs are determineddshon the consideration of many factors, such
as expectations of the workout plan or restrucgudhthe loan, valuation of the collateral and phieritization of our claim in bankruptcy. Write{sfare recognized against the allowance for loasése
earlier of transaction confirmation (e.g., discathpay-off, restructuring, foreclosure, etc.) ot later than 360 days after initial recognitionacdpecific reserve for a collateral dependent Itfan.
foreclosure is probable, the write-off is deterndifased on the fair value of the collateral lesgt sell. Smaller balance, homogeneous comnhéseias are written off at the earlier of when deeim
uncollectible or at 180 days past due.

Partial Sales of Business Interests

Gains or losses on sales of affiliate shares wivereetain a controlling financial interest are netem in equity. Gains or losses on sales thattrésolr loss of a controlling financial intereseaecorded
in earnings along with remeasurement gains or o8aeany investments in the entity that we retained

Cash and Equivalents

Debt securities and money market instruments withireal maturities of three months or less areudeld in cash equivalents unless designated asblefor-sale and classified as investment seestiti
Investment Securities

We report investments in debt and marketable ecpaityrities, and certain other equity securitiefiavalue. See Note 21 for further informatiom fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on ablaia

for-sale investment securities are included instraners ’ equity, net of applicable taxes and o#ttgustments. We regularly review investment séiesrfor impairment using both quantitative and
qualitative criteria.
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For debt securities, if we do not intend to sedl giecurity or it is not more likely than not that will be required to sell the security before nesmy of our amortized cost, we evaluate other tgilie
criteria to determine whether we do not expecetmver the amortized cost basis of the securitsh sis the financial health of and specific prospémt the issuer, including whether the issuenis i
compliance with the terms and covenants of theritgcWe also evaluate quantitative criteria inchgldetermining whether there has been an advéeege in expected future cash flows. If we do not
expect to recover the entire amortized cost bddiseosecurity, we consider the security to be ethan-temporarily impaired, and we record theat#hce between the security ' s amortized cossbasi
and its recoverable amount in earnings and therdifice between the security * s recoverable amanuhfair value in other comprehensive income. Ifintend to sell the security or it is more likehan
not we will be required to sell the security befageovery of its amortized cost basis, the secisigiso considered other-than-temporarily impaaed we recognize the entire difference between the
security ' s amortized cost basis and its fair edfuearnings. For equity securities, we consideréngth of time and magnitude of the amountélaah security is in an unrealized loss positiomdfdo
not expect to recover the entire amortized cosstufghe security, we consider the security totieer-than-temporarily impaired, and we recorddiference between the security’s amortized costsba
and its fair value in earnings.

Realized gains and losses are accounted for osptfic identification method. Unrealized gainsl dmsses on investment securities classified angeand certain retained interests are included in
earnings.

Inventories

All inventories are stated at the lower of costealizable values. Cost for a significant portidrG& U.S. inventories is determined on a lastdiirstfout (LIFO) basis. Cost of other GE inventorigs
determined on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basi$FD was used for 37% and 38% of GE inventoriesetenber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. GECC tovies consist of finished products held for
sale; cost is determined on a FIFO basis.

Intangible Assets

We do not amortize goodwill, but test it at leastaally for impairment at the reporting unit lev&Ireporting unit is the operating segment, or sifess one level below that operating segment (the
component level) if discrete financial informatisnprepared and regularly reviewed by segment nemagt. However, components are aggregated asla sépgrting unit if they have similar econor
characteristics. We recognize an impairment chérpe carrying amount of a reporting unit excegtddair value and the carrying amount of the réipgrunit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value
that goodwill. We use discounted cash flows toldisth fair values. When available and as appropriae use comparative market multiples to corraiectizscounted cash flow results. When all or a
portion of a reporting unit is disposed, goodwslhilocated to the gain or loss on disposition dasethe relative fair values of the business disgaand the portion of the reporting unit that el
retained.

We amortize the cost of other intangibles overrtbstimated useful lives unless such lives are éeemdefinite. The cost of intangible assets isegelly amortized on a straight-line basis overdbsets
estimated economic life, except that individualynificant customer-related intangible assets aneréized in relation to total related sales. Anmatile intangible assets are tested for impairmaséed
on undiscounted cash flows and, if impaired, wnitiewn to fair value based on either discounteti flasvs or appraised values. Intangible assets inidkfinite lives are tested annually for impairrhen
and written down to fair value as required.

GECC Investment Contracts, Insurance Liabilities aml Insurance Annuity Benefits

Certain entities, which we consolidate, providergngeed investment contracts, primarily to statasicipalities and municipal authorities.

Our insurance activities also include providinguirce and reinsurance for life and health riskb@oviding certain annuity products. Two primargguct groups are provided: traditional insurance
contracts and investment contracts. Insurance aoistare contracts with significant mortality andfrbidity risks, while investment contracts aoatacts without such risks.
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For short-duration insurance contracts, includiogident and health insurance, we report premiuneaaged income over the terms of the related aggatangenerally on a pro-rata basis. For traditiona
long-duration insurance contracts including longrteare, term, whole life and annuities payablettierlife of the annuitant, we report premiums asied income when due.

Premiums received on investment contracts (inclydimuities without significant mortality risk) amet reported as revenues but rather as depdsilitiizs. We recognize revenues for charges and
assessments on these contracts, mostly for mgrtedintract initiation, administration and surrendemounts credited to policyholder accounts ararghd to expense.

Liabilities for traditional long-duration insurancentracts represent the present value of suchfitetess the present value of future net premibiased on mortality, morbidity, interest and other
assumptions at the time the policies were issuextquired. Liabilities for investment contracts aline account value, that is, the amount thateescto the benefit of the contract or policyholder
including credited interest and assessments thrthegfinancial statement date. For guaranteed imess contracts, the liability is also adjustedaassult of fair value hedging activity.

Liabilities for unpaid claims and estimated claiettement expenses represent our best estimalte afitimate obligations for reported and incurredHbot+eported claims and the related estimated ¢
settlement expenses. Liabilities for unpaid claamd estimated claim settlement expenses are caiijimeviewed and adjusted through current openatio

Fair Value Measurements

For financial assets and liabilities measured iaivilue on a recurring basis, fair value is thie@rwe would receive to sell an asset or pay tesfier a liability in an orderly transaction withrearket
participant at the measurement date. In the absefreetive markets for the identical assets oriliigds, such measurements involve developing aggioms based on market observable data and, in the
absence of such data, internal information thabrssistent with what market participants would insa hypothetical transaction that occurs at thasueement date.

Observable inputs reflect market data obtained fimependent sources, while unobservable inpulsatedur market assumptions. Preference is givebservable inputs. These two types of inputs
create the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices for identical instruments in activarkets.

Level 2 Quoted prices for similar instruments in active keds; quoted prices for identical or similar instents in markets that are not active; and m-derived valuations whose inputs are observ
- or whose significant value drivers are observe

Level 3 Significant inputs to the valuation model are ureslable.

We maintain policies and procedures to value imsénis using the best and most relevant data alailabaddition, we have risk management teamsrthaéw valuation, including independent price
validation for certain instruments. With regardd.&vel 3 valuations (including instruments valugtdibird parties), we perform a variety of procedure assess the reasonableness of the valuatiocis. S
reviews, which may be performed quarterly, montilyveekly, include an evaluation of instruments sénéair value change exceeds predefined threskatdor does not change) and consider the
current interest rate, currency and credit envirentnas well as other published data, such asggratiency market reports and current appraisalselteviews are performed within each business éy th
asset and risk managers, pricing committees angtiah committees. A detailed review of methodadsgaind assumptions is performed by individualsprddent of the business for individual
measurements with a fair value exceeding predefimesholds. This detailed review may include tke of a third-party valuation firm.
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Recurring Fair Value Measurements
The following sections describe the valuation mdtiogies we use to measure different financiarimsents at fair value on a recurring basis.

Investments in Debt and Equity SecuritiesWhen available, we use quoted market prices tawéte the fair value of investment securities, #me are included in Level 1. Level 1 securitiesnarily
include publicly traded equity securities.

For large numbers of investment securities for Whiarket prices are observable for identical ofilainmvestment securities but not readily accdssibr each of those investments individually (tisaft

is difficult to obtain pricing information for eadhdividual investment security at the measurendiaté), we obtain pricing information from an inde@ent pricing vendor. The pricing vendor uses
various pricing models for each asset class tleatansistent with what other market participantsiaise. The inputs and assumptions to the modbleopricing vendor are derived from market
observable sources including: benchmark yieldonted trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer sprbadshmark securities, bids, offers, and other etarddated data. Since many fixed income securities
do not trade on a daily basis, the methodologyefpricing vendor uses available information adiegple such as benchmark curves, benchmarkingk@fskecurities, sector groupings, and matrix
pricing. The pricing vendor considers available keaobservable inputs in determining the evaluatisra security. Thus, certain securities may reophiced using quoted prices, but rather determined
from market observable information. These investsiare included in Level 2 and primarily comprisg portfolio of corporate fixed income, and goveent) mortgage and asset-backed securities. In
infrequent circumstances, our pricing vendors mayige us with valuations that are based on sigaifi unobservable inputs, and in those circumstaweeclassify the investment securities in Level 3.

Annually, we conduct reviews of our primary pricimgndor to validate that the inputs used in thaithee’s pricing process are deemed to be market obseraatdefined in the standard. While we are
provided access to proprietary models of the venmlarreviews have included on-site walk-throughthe pricing process, methodologies and controtedures for each asset class and level for which
prices are provided. Our reviews also include amgration of the underlying inputs and assumptfong sample of individual securities across askeises, credit rating levels and various duratians
process we perform each reporting period. In aalditihe pricing vendor has an established challpngeess in place for all security valuations, wihfacilitates identification and resolution of potielly
erroneous prices. We believe that the prices reddirom our pricing vendor are representative afgs that would be received to sell the assetseatrteasurement date (exit prices) and are classifie
appropriately in the hierarchy.

We use non-binding broker quotes and other thimtlyparicing services as our primary basis for véirmawhen there is limited, or no, relevant marketivity for a specific instrument or for other
instruments that share similar characteristics.HaAee not adjusted the prices we have obtainedstmeant securities priced using non-binding brokestgs and other third-party pricing services are
included in Level 3. As is the case with our prignpricing vendor, third-party brokers and otherdhparty-pricing services do not provide accesthéir proprietary valuation models, inputs and
assumptions. Accordingly, our risk management persbconduct reviews of vendors, as applicableilairto the reviews performed of our primary prigivendor. In addition, we conduct internal
reviews of pricing for all such investment secestijuarterly to ensure reasonableness of valuatsetsin our financial statements. These revieeslasigned to identify prices that appear stateseh
that have changed significantly from prior valuatipand other anomalies that may indicate thaica pnay not be accurate. Based on the informatrariable, we believe that the fair values providgd
the brokers and other third-party pricing serviaesrepresentative of prices that would be receiwesll the assets at the measurement date (éésp.

Derivatives. We use closing prices for derivatives included @avél 1, which are traded either on exchanges aidigver-the-counter markets.

The majority of our derivatives are valued usinginal models. The models maximize the use of mafkservable inputs including interest rate cuied both forward and spot prices for currencies
commodities. Derivative assets and liabilities igteld in Level 2 primarily represent interest rat@jss, cross-currency swaps and foreign currencycamnodity forward and option contracts.
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Derivative assets and liabilities included in Le8gdrimarily represent equity derivatives and iaggrate products that contain embedded optionaliprepayment features.
Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets are measured at fair value on aeuomring basis. These assets are not measurait salue on an ongoing basis, but are subjeatitosfilue adjustments only in certain circumstances
These assets can include loans and long-livedsas®thave been reduced to fair value when theyeld for sale, impaired loans that have beencestibased on the fair value of the underlying
collateral, cost and equity method investmentslang-lived assets that are written down to faiuealvhen they are impaired and the remeasuremeataified investments in formerly consolidated
subsidiaries upon a change in control that regultfeconsolidation of a subsidiary, if we sell atrolling interest and retain a noncontrolling €ak the entity. Assets that are written down foalue
when impaired and retained investments are noesulently adjusted to fair value unless further impeant occurs.

The following sections describe the valuation mdtiogies we use to measure financial and non-filshimtstruments accounted for at fair value on a-recurring basis and for certain assets within our
pension plans and retiree benefit plans at eaalrtieg period, as applicable.

Loans. When available, we use observable market datluding pricing on recent closed market transardj to value loans that are included in LeveWWhen this data is unobservable, we use
valuation methodologies using current market irgerate data adjusted for inherent credit risk, sunch loans are included in Level 3. When appaterioans may be valued using collateral values (s
Long-Lived Assets below).

Cost and Equity Method Investments. Cost and equity method investments are valuetjusiarket observable data such as quoted prices atalable. When market observable data is unaiviai
investments are valued using a discounted cashrflodel, comparative market multiples or a combaratf both approaches as appropriate and othef-plairty pricing sources. These investments are
generally included in Level 3.

Investments in private equity, real estate andectilfe funds are valued using net asset valuesn&hasset values are determined based on theafais of the underlying investments in the funds.
Investments in private equity and real estate fiardsgenerally included in Level 3 because theynateedeemable at the measurement date. Investimectllective funds are included in Level 2.

Long-lived Assets. Fair values of long-lived assets, including aftend real estate, are primarily derived intdynahd are based on observed sales transactiosgridar assets. In other instances, for
example, collateral types for which we do not heeeparable observed sales transaction data, gallai@ues are developed internally and corroborateexternal appraisal information. Adjustment
third-party valuations may be performed in circuanses where market comparables are not specifietattributes of the specific collateral or appaginformation may not be reflective of current
market conditions due to the passage of time amddturrence of market events since receipt oiifieemation. For real estate, fair values are basediscounted cash flow estimates which reflect
current and projected lease profiles and availadalestry information about capitalization rates axgected trends in rents and occupancy and arettwated by external appraisals. These invessnent
are generally included in Level 3.

Retained Investments in Formerly Consolidated Subdiaries . Upon a change in control that results in decadatibn of a subsidiary, the fair value measurenoémiur retained noncontrolling stake
the former subsidiary is valued using an income@ggh, a market approach, or a combination of bpfitoaches as appropriate. In applying these melbgiés, we rely on a number of factors,
including actual operating results, future busirgass, economic projections, market observablamgimultiples of similar businesses and comparahlesactions, and possible control premium. These
investments are included in Level 1 or Level 3appropriate, determined at the time of the tramsact

(109)



Accounting Changes

On January 1, 2012, we adopted FASB Accountingdatats Update (ASU) 2011-05, an amendment to ASC@&Mprehensive IncomeASU 2011-05 introduced a new statement, the Qfeed
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The amendm#ats anly the display of those components of gqoétegorized as other comprehensive income ambtiohange existing recognition and
measurement requirements that determine net earning

On January 1, 2012, we adopted FASB ASU 2011-04naendment to ASC 82Bair Value MeasurementsASU 2011-04 clarifies or changes the applicatibexisting fair value measurements,
including: that the highest and best use valugti@mise in a fair value measurement is relevant whien measuring the fair value of nonfinanciaksssthat a reporting entity should measure the fai
value of its own equity instrument from the pergjwecof a market participant that holds that instant as an asset; to permit an entity to measertathvalue of certain financial instruments onea
basis rather than based on its gross exposure thkeeporting entity manages its financial instratsen the basis of such net exposure; that irlisence of a Level 1 input, a reporting entity $thou
apply premiums and discounts when market parti¢gpaould do so when pricing the asset or liabitibnsistent with the unit of account; and that prens and discounts related to size as a charaat
of the reporting entity’s holding are not permitiaca fair value measurement. Adopting these amemtsrhad no effect on the financial statements.

On January 1, 2011, we adopted FASB ASU 2009-13A81d 2009-14, amendments to ASC 6B®&venue Recognitiand ASC 985Software, respectively, (ASU 2009-13 &14). ASU 20083-require!
the allocation of consideration to separate comptanef an arrangement based on the relative selliivg of each component. ASU 2009-14 requiresagesoftwareenabled products to be accounted
under the general accounting standards for mul@pfaponent arrangements. These amendments wecé\aff®r new revenue arrangements entered intoaierially modified on or subsequent to
January 1, 2011.

Although the adoption of these amendments eliméhtte allocation of consideration using residudlies, which was applied primarily in our Healthcaegment, the overall impact of adoption was
insignificant to our financial statements. In adwit there are no significant changes to the nurobeomponents or the pattern and timing of revereegnition following adoption.

On July 1, 2011, we adopted FASB ASU 2011-02, aaradtment to ASC 31®Receivables This ASU provides guidance for determining whethe restructuring of a debt constitutes a TDR ieauglires
that such actions be classified as a TDR when ilsdyeth a concession and the debtor is experigrfaiancial difficulties. The amendment also cligsfguidance on a creditor’s evaluation of whether
has granted a concession. The amendment appliesttacturings that have occurred subsequent wadgarl, 2011. As a result of adopting these amentsren July 1, 2011, we have classified an
additional $271 million of financing receivablesEBRs and have recorded an increase of $77 mifiasur allowance for losses on financing receivabl8ee Note 23.

On January 1, 2010, we adopted ASU 2009-16 and 2®9-17, amendments to ASC 880ansfers and Servicingand ASC 810Consolidation, respectively (ASU 2009-16 & 17). ASU 2009-16
eliminated the Qualified Special Purpose Entity F&pconcept, and ASU 2009-17 required that all srthies be evaluated for consolidation as VIEdoption of these amendments resulted in the
consolidation of all of our sponsored QSPEs. Initamitl we consolidated assets of VIEs related tedliinvestments in entities that hold loans arddiincome securities, a media joint venture and a
small number of companies to which we have extemal®us in the ordinary course of business and sulesely were subject to a TDR.
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We consolidated the assets and liabilities of tieggities at amounts at which they would have breported in our financial statements had we alweaysolidated them. We also deconsolidated certain
entities where we did not meet the definition & grimary beneficiary under the revised guidancevéver, the effect was insignificant at Januargd10. The incremental effect on total assets and
liabilities, net of our investment in these engti@vas an increase of $31,097 million and $33,08Bm respectively, at January 1, 2010. The reluction of total equity (including noncontrolling
interests) was $1,945 million at January 1, 20tidcfpally related to the reversal of previouslgagnized securitization gains as a cumulative efidfustment to retained earnings. See Note 24 for
additional information.

NOTE 2. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF BUSINESSES HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Assets and Liabilities of Businesses Held for Sale

In the third quarter of 2012, we completed the séleur CLL business in South Korea for proceed$1d8 million.

In the second quarter of 2012, we committed toaselbrtion of our Business Properties portfolio §Bess Property) in Real Estate, including certammercial loans, the origination and servicing
platforms and the servicing rights on loans presipsecuritized by GECC. We completed the salewusfiBess Property on October 1, 2012 for procee&2 @06 million. We deconsolidated
substantially all Real Estate securitization eesitin the fourth quarter of 2012 as servicing sgietated to these entities were transferred tdtyer at closing.

Summarized financial information for businessesllfiet sale is shown below.

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Assets

Cash and equivalen $ 74 $ 149
Financing receivable- net a7 412
Property, plant and equipme- net 31 81
Other 59 69
Assets of businesses held for < $ 211 $ 711
Liabilities

Shor-term borrowings $ 138 $ 252
Other 19 93
Liabilities of businesses held for s: $ 157 $ 345
NBCU

In December 2009, we entered into an agreement®@athcast Corporation (Comcast) to transfer thetasdehe NBCU business to a newly formed entigmeprising our NBCU business and Comcsst’
cable networks, regional sports networks, certagital properties and certain unconsolidated investts, in exchange for cash and a 49% intereseiméwly formed entity.

On March 19, 2010, NBCU entered into a three-yeaditagreement and a 364-day bridge loan agreet®enfpril 30, 2010, NBCU issued $4,000 millionsghior, unsecured notes with maturities
ranging from 2015 to 2040 (interest rates rangingif3.65% to 6.40%). On October 4, 2010, NBCU ids$® 100 million of senior, unsecured notes withurities ranging from 2014 to 2041 (interest
rates ranging from 2.10% to 5.95%). Subsequertteset issuances, the credit agreement and bridgexpaements were terminated, with a $750 mill®mlving credit agreement remaining in effect.
Proceeds from these issuances were used to rep¥8#illion of existing debt and pay a dividend$af394 million to GE.

On September 26, 2010, we acquired approximately 88Vivendi S.A.’s (Vivendi) 20% interest in NBC(F.7% of NBCU'’s outstanding shares) for $2,000igmill In January 2011 and prior to the
transaction with Comcast, we
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acquired the remaining Vivendi interest in NBCU.@% of NBCU's outstanding shares) for $3,673 milland made an additional payment of $222 millidatesl to the previously purchased shares.

On January 28, 2011, we transferred the asselediBCU business and Comcast transferred certats afsets to a newly formed entity, NBCUnivetdaC (NBCU LLC). In connection with the
transaction, we received $6,176 million in casimfi@omcast (which included $49 million of transactielated cost reimbursements) and a 49% interd$Bi@U LLC. Comcast holds the remaining 5
interest in NBCU LLC.

In connection with the transaction, we also entémémla number of agreements with Comcast govertfiagperation of the venture and transitionalises; employee, tax and other matters. In addition,
Comcast is obligated to share with us potentiaktaxings associated with Comcast’s purchase dfBSU LLC member interest, if realized. We did netognize these potential future payments as
consideration for the sale, but will record suchiments in income as they are received.

Following the transaction, we deconsolidated NB@id we account for our investment in NBCU LLC untter equity method. We recognized a pre-tax gaithersale of $3,705 million ($526 million
after tax). In connection with the sale, we recdriieome tax expense of $3,179 million, reflectihg low tax basis in our investment in the NBCUibess and the recognition of deferred tax lialeiiti
related to our 49% investment in NBCU LLC. As oavestment in NBCU LLC is structured as a partngrébi U.S. tax purposes, U.S. taxes are recordearately from the equity investment.

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, thgingramount of our equity investment in NBCU LLGv$18,887 million and $17,955 million, respectjyeéported in the “All other assets”
caption in our Statement of Financial Position D&cember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, defaxeihbilities related to our NBCU LLC investmenere $4,937 million and $4,699 million,
respectively, and were reported in the “Deferremime taxes” caption in our Statement of Financasifion.

On February 12, 2013, we entered into an agreemiémComcast to sell our remaining 49% common sgjuiterest in NBCU LLC. In connection with this figaction, we expect to receive a total
consideration of approximately $ 16.7 billion, cisting of $ 12.0 billion in cash, $ 4.0 billion Pomcast guaranteed debt and $ 0.7 billion of prefestock. The $4.0 billion of debt and the $0liidpi

of preferred shares will both be issued by a whollned subsidiary of Comcast. In addition, GE wdllonger be responsible for certain deferred taxesComcast will be obligated to share with us
potential tax savings associated with Comegstirchase of our NBCU LLC interest. GECC also rexténto a transaction to sell real estate commgisertain floors located at 30 Rockefeller Cerltaw
York and the CNBC property located in Englewoodf€|iNew Jersey to affiliates of NBCU for $ 1.4ltih in cash. Both transactions are subject toamsry closing conditions and we expect to close
by the end of the first quarter of 2013.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations primarily comprised GE Mpdapan (our Japanese personal loan business, dradkeur Japanese mortgage and card businesskgliegour investment in GE Nissen Credit
Co., Ltd.), our U.S. mortgage business (WMC), BA@ddmatic GECF Inc. (BAC) (our Central American bamd card business), our U.S. recreational velietemarine equipment financing business
(Consumer RV Marine), Consumer Mexico, Consumeg&wore, our Consumer home lending operations irrAliesand New Zealand (Australian Home Lending) @onsumer Ireland. Associated
results of operations, financial position and cémivs are separately reported as discontinued tipesafor all periods presented.

Summarized financial information for discontinuggeaations is shown below.

(112)



(In millions) 2012 2011 2010

Operations
Total revenues and other income (expel $ (485 $ 329 $ 2,060
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati

before income taxe $ (612 $ (189 $ 114
Benefit (provision) for income taxt 169 91 101
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatic

net of taxes $ (443 $ (98) $ 215
Disposal
Gain (loss) on disposal before income te $ (792, $ (329 $ (1,420
Benefit (provision) for income taxt 197 351 236
Gain (loss) on disposal, net of ta; $ (595 $ 22 $ (1.184
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatic

net of taxes(a $ (1,038 $ (76) $ (969
(a) The sum of GE industrial earnings (loss) from digowed operations, net of taxes, and GECC earr{logs) from discontinued operations, net of taxeseported as GE earnings (loss) fr

discontinued operations, net of taxes, on the Si@i¢ of Earnings

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Assets

Cash and equivalen $ 103 $ 121
Financing receivable- net 3 521
Other 1,029 1,079
Assets of discontinued operatic $ 1135 $ 1721
Liabilities

Deferred income taxe $ 372 $ 205
Other 1,973 1,424
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol $ 2,345 $ 1,629

Assets at December 31, 2012 and December 31, péitriarily comprised cash, financing receivables amt&ferred tax asset for a loss carryforward, veipires principally in 2017 and in part in 2C
related to the sale of our GE Money Japan business.

GE Money Japan

During the third quarter of 2007, we committed tolan to sell our Japanese personal loan busihake, upon determining that, despite restructurdagpanese regulatory limits for interest charges on
unsecured personal loans did not permit us to @amcceptable return. During the third quarterQff& we completed the sale of GE Money Japan, wihidbded Lake, along with our Japanese
mortgage and card businesses, excluding our inesgtm GE Nissen Credit Co., Ltd. In connectionhvitie sale, we reduced the proceeds from the saksfimated interest refund claims in excess of
the statutory interest rate. Proceeds from thewate to be increased or decreased based on thed aletims experienced in accordance with lossisderms specified in the sale agreement, with all
claims in excess &58 billion Japanese yen (approximately $3,000iomi)lremaining our responsibility. The underlyingrifolio to which this obligation relates is in rffiand interest rates were capy
for all designated accounts by mid-2009. In thedtiquarter of 2010, we began making reimbursememder this arrangement.
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Overall, excess interest refund claims experierasedeveloped unfavorably. We believe that the lef/ekcess interest refund claims has been affdntate challenging global economic conditions ¢
the last few years, in addition to the financialss of other Japanese personal lenders and conbetmevior. In 2010, a large independent persazal tompany in Japan filed for bankruptcy, which
precipitated a significant amount of publicity ssunding excess interest refund claims in the Jaggamarketplace, along with substantial ongoinglladeertising. These factors led to substantial
increases in claims in 2010 and early 2011 andfgignt volatility in claims patterns. We recordagrovision of $630 million during 2012, includig86 million in the fourth quarter, as a resulaaf
excess of claims activity over our previous estgsand revisions to our assumptions about the té\feture claim activity. At December 31, 2012y oeserve for these claims was $700 million. In
determining reserve levels, we consider analysesagnt and historical claims experience, as veeflending and estimated future refund requestastat] for the estimated percentage of customers who
present valid requests and associated estimatederay. We determined our reserve assuming theqfaceoming claims will decelerate, that averagpasure per claim remains consistent with recent
experience, and that we continue to see the ingfdoss mitigation efforts. Since our dispositiditioe business, incoming claims have continuedetdide, however, it is highly variable and diffittd
predict the pace and pattern of that decline aect assumptions have a significant effect on thel @mnount of our liability. Holding all other assptions constant, an adverse change of 20% and 60% i
assumed incoming daily claim rate reduction (résglin an extension of the claim period and higheoming claims), would result in an increase to mserve of approximately $75 million and $400
million, respectively. We continue to closely mamitind evaluate claims activity.

Based on the uncertainties discussed above, arsidenimg other environmental factors in Japan uidiclg the runoff status of the underlying book osimess, challenging economic conditions, the
impact of laws and regulations (including consitieraof proposed legislation that could imposeaarfework for collective legal action proceedings) ¢he financial status of other local personal
lending companies, it is difficult to develop a memyful estimate of the aggregate possible clairposure. These uncertainties and factors could haadverse effect on claims development.

GE Money Japan losses from discontinued operatiwtsf taxes, were $ 649 million, $238 million at671 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivel
wMC

During the fourth quarter of 2007, we completedshke of WMC, our U.S. mortgage business. WMC sautiilly discontinued all new loan originationsthg second quarter of 2007, and is not a loan
servicer. In connection with the sale, WMC retaigedain representation and warranty obligatioteted to loans sold to third parties prior to tigpdsal of the business and contractual obligations
repurchase previously sold loans as to which thex®an early payment default. All claims receivgd\MC for early payment default have either beesoheed or are no longer being pursued.

Pending repurchase claims based upon represerstatimhwarranties made in connection with loan sats $5,357 million at December 31, 2012, $708ionilat December 31, 2011 and $347 million

at December 31, 2010. Pending claims represeng ihatsve repurchase claims that identify the spelifins tendered for repurchase and, for each tbaralleged breach of a representation or warrant
As such, they do not include unspecified repurcluéaiens, such as the Litigation Claims discussddvieeWWMC believes that these types of unspecifigalirchase claims do not meet the substantive and
procedural requirements for tender under the gangragreements or are otherwise invalid. The anregorted in pending claims reflect the purchager unpaid principal balances of the loans at
the time of purchase and do not give effect tog@yns, accrued interest or fees, or potential redes based upon the underlying collateral. Histily, a small percentage of the total loans WMC
originated and sold have qualified as “validly teretl,” meaning the loans sold did not satisfy a@mitral obligations. The volume of claims since the second quarter @2@flects increased industry-
wide activity by securitization trustees and ineestn residential mortgageacked securities (RMBS) issued in 2006 and 200d, WMC believes, reflect applicable statutes wiitations consideratior

Reserves related to WMC pending claims were $63iBomat December 31, 2012, reflecting an incre@aseserves
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in the fourth quarter of 2012 of $25 million duehigher pending claims. The amount of these resds/based upon pending and estimated future E@urchase requests and WMC's historical loss
experience on loans tendered for repurchase. Gheesignificant recent activity in pending clainrslaelated litigation filed in connection with suclaims, it is difficult to assess whether futupedes
will be consistent with WMC's past experience. Atseechanges to WMC's assumptions supporting trervesor pending and estimated future repurchasesimay result in an increase to these
reserves. For example, a 50% increase to the dstofiduture loan repurchase requests and a 106Péage to the estimated loss rate on loans tendecedd result in an increase to the reserves of
approximately $700 million.

WMC is a party to 15 lawsuits involving repurchat&ms on loans included in 12 securitizations hich the adverse parties are securitization trgste@arties claiming to act on their behalf, fofir
which were initiated by WMC. In eight of these kuits, the adverse parties allege that WMC is eetually required to repurchase mortgage loansrzgiose included in WMG'previously discuss:
pending claims at December 31, 2012 (Litigationii8&). These Litigation Claims consist of samplim@sed claims in two cases on approximately $900omibf mortgage loans and, in the other six
cases, claims for repurchase or damages base@ aifleged failure to provide notice of defectivaris, breach of a corporate representation and mgy@nd/or non-specific claims for rescissionary
damages on approximately $3,100 million of mortgiages. These claims reflect the purchase prieepaid principal balances of the loans at the tififgurchase and do not give effect to pay downs,
accrued interest or fees, or potential recoveraset upon the underlying collateral. As noted ap@C believes that the Litigation Claims are disalked by the governing agreements and applicable
law. As a result, WMC has not included the LitigatiClaims in its pending claims or in its estimaiéfuture loan repurchase requests and holdslatetereserve as of December 31, 2012.

At this point, WMC is unable to develop a meanihgfstimate of reasonably possible loss in conneatiith the Litigation Claims described above due taumber of factors, including the extent to
which courts will agree with the theories suppagtihe Litigation Claims. Specifically, while sevecaurts in cases not involving WMC have suppodethe of those theories, other courts have rejected
them. In addition, WMC lacks experience resolvingtsclaims, and there are few public industry setéints that may serve as benchmarks to estimagsamably possible loss. An adverse court
decision allowing plaintiffs to pursue such claiomuld increase WMG' exposure in some or all of the 15 lawsuits asdltén additional claims and lawsuits. However, \@Melieves that it has defen

to all the claims asserted in litigation, includicgusation and materiality requirements, limitasiom remedies for breach of representations ancanties, and the applicable statutes of limitatidresthe
extent WMC is required to repurchase loans, WM@sslalso would be affected by several factorsuding pay downs, accrued interest and fees, andatlie of the underlying collateral. It is not
possible to predict the outcome or impact of thiefenses and other factors, any one of which cmaterially affect the amount of any loss ultimatielgurred by WMC on these claims.

WMC has also received unspecified indemnificatiemends from depositors/underwriters/sponsors of RMBconnection with lawsuits brought by RMBS intees to which WMC is not a party. W
believes that it has strong defenses to these d#snan

The reserve estimates reflect judgment, based wertly available information, and a number of asptions, including economic conditions, claim aityivpending and threatened litigation and
indemnification demands, estimated repurchase,ratesother activity in the mortgage industry. Adtiosses arising from claims against WMC couldeextthe reserve amount if actual claim rates,
governmental actions, litigation and indemnificatactivity, actual repurchase rates or losses WhQris on repurchased loans differ from its assumptilt is difficult to develop a meaningful estitma
of aggregate possible claims exposure becauseceftainties surrounding economic conditions, thiétaland propensity of mortgage holders to preseaiid claims, governmental actions, mortgage
industry activity, as well as pending and threatelitegation and indemnification demands against WM

WMC revenues and other income (expense) from disuoed operations were $(500) million, $(42) mitliand $(4) million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respedyi In total, WMC's losses from
discontinued operations, net of taxes, were $33lfomi $34 million and $7 million in 2012, 2011 a@610, respectively.
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Other Financial Services

In the first quarter of 2012, we announced the péahdisposition of Consumer Ireland and classifiedbusiness as discontinued operations. We coeaptbe sale in the third quarter of 2012 for
proceeds of $227 million. Consumer Ireland reveraresother income (expense) from discontinued djperwere $7 million, $13 million and $25 millign 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Consumer Ireland losses from discontinued operstioet of taxes, were $195 million (including a $gillion loss on disposal), $153 million and $98lion in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

In the second quarter of 2011, we entered intogaeeanent to sell our Australian Home Lending openatand classified it as discontinued operatiéissa result, we recognized an after-tax loss o8$14
million in 2011. We completed the sale in thedtquarter of 2011 for proceeds of approximatel$$4,million. Australian Home Lending revenues atiter income (expense) from discontinued
operations were $4 million, $250 million and $51lion in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Aubara Home Lending earnings (loss) from discontinopérations, net of taxes, were $6 million, $(
million and $70 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010,pestively.

In the first quarter of 2011, we entered into areagent to sell our Consumer Singapore businest6f2 million. The sale was completed in the seaqpratter of 2011 and resulted in the recognition of
a gain on disposal, net of taxes, of $319 milli@onsumer Singapore revenues and other income (s&p&opm discontinued operations were an insigaiff@mount, $30 million and $108 million in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Consumer Singagarnings from discontinued operations, netxdsawere $2 million, $333 million and $36 millien2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

In 2010, we sold our interest in BAC and recogniaadafter-tax gain of $780 million. BAC revenuesl @otal earnings from discontinued operations afi¢axes, were $983 million and $854 million,
respectively, in 2010.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, we entered into egrents to sell our Consumer RV Marine portfolio &whsumer Mexico business. The Consumer RV MamgeGonsumer Mexico dispositions were
completed during the first quarter and the secaraitgr of 2011, respectively, for proceeds of $2,86llion and $1,943 million, respectively. Consur®/ Marine revenues and other income (expense)
from discontinued operations were $1 million, $1liliom and $210 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, pestively. Consumer RV Marine earnings (loss) frdistontinued operations, net of taxes, were an
insignificant amount, $2 million and $(99) milliém 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Consumer btesévenues and other income (expense) from diseatt operations were $2 million, $67 million
and $228 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respebtiv@onsumer Mexico earnings (loss) from discorgithwperations, net of taxes, were $(12) milliorQ #8llion and $(59) million in 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

GE Industrial
GE industrial earnings (loss) from discontinuedrafiens, net of taxes, were $148 million, $(2) ailland $(4) million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, res$ivety. During the third quarter of 2012, we resed
with the Internal Revenue Service the tax treatroéithe 2007 disposition of our Plastics businessylting in a tax benefit of $148 million. The sofMGE industrial earnings (loss) from discontinued

operations, net of taxes, and GECC earnings (foss) discontinued operations, net of taxes, is rggbas GE industrial earnings (loss) from discargd operations, net of taxes, on the Statement of
Earnings.
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NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Substantially all of our investment securities @essified as available-for-sale. These comprismipnavestment grade debt securities supportiniggabions to annuitants, policyholders and holdsrs
guaranteed investment contracts (GICs) in our ffiilmsurance operations and Trinity, investmentsigéies at our treasury operations and investmieeld in our CLL business collateralized by senior
secured loans of high-quality, middle-market comesim a variety of industries. We do not have segurities classified as held-to-maturity.

2012 2011
Grost Grost Grost Gros:t
Amortizec unrealizer unrealize Estimate: Amortizec unrealize unrealize Estimate:
December 31 (In millions COS gains losse fair value COS gains losse: fair value
GE
Debt
U.S. corporat $ 39 % - $ - $ 39 3% - $ - $ - 3 -
Corporate- nor-U.S. 6 - - 6 - - - -
Equity
Available-for-sale 26 - - 26 18 - - 18
Trading 3 - - 3 - - - -
74 — - 74 18 - - 18
GECC
Debt
U.S. corporat 20,233 4,201 (302 24,132 20,748 3,432 (410; 23,770
State and municips 4,084 575 (113 4,546 3,027 350 (143) 3,234
Residential mortga(-
backed(a) 2,198 183 (119, 2,262 2,711 184 (286, 2,609
Commercial mortga¢-backec 2,930 259 (95) 3,094 2,913 162 (247, 2,828
Asse-backec 5,784 31 @7) 5,738 5,102 32 (164, 4,970
Corporate- nor-U.S. 2,391 150 (126, 2,415 2,414 126 (207, 2,333
Governmen- nor-U.S. 1,617 149 3) 1,763 2,488 129 (86) 2,531
U.S. government and fedel
agency 3,462 103 - 3,565 3,974 84 - 4,058
Retained interes: 76 7 - 83 25 10 - 35
Equity
Available-for-sale 513 86 3) 596 713 75 (38) 750
Trading 245 — — 245 241 — — 241
43,533 5,744 (838 48,439 44,356 4,584 (1,581 47,359
Eliminations (3) - - (3) (3) - - (3)
Total $ 43,604 $ 5744 $ (838 $ 48,510 $ 44,371 $ 4584 $ (1,581 $ 47,374

(a) Substantially collateralized by U.S. mortgagesoQftotal RMBS portfolio at December 31, 2012, #1,4nillion relates to securities issued by govemi-sponsored entities and $821 milli
relates to securities of private label issuersuBtes issued by private label issuers are caltdied primarily by pools of individual direct nmgage loans of financial institutior

The fair value of investment securities increase$48,510 million at December 31, 2012, from $44,81llion at December 31, 2011, primarily due te ttnpact of lower interest rates and improved
market conditions.
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The following tables present the estimated faiugaland gross unrealized losses of our availalbisdie investment securities.

In loss position for

Less than 12 month: 12 months or more
Grost Grost
Estimate: unrealize Estimate: unrealize
December 31 (In millions fair value losse(a) fair value losse(a)
2012
Debt
U.S. corporati $ 434 $ ) $ 813 $ (295)
State and municip: 146 2) 326 (111)
Residential mortga¢-backec 98 1) 691 (118;
Commercial mortga¢-backec 37 - 979 (95)
Asse-backec 18 1) 658 (76)
Corporate- nor-U.S. 167 (8) 602 (118;
Governmen- nor-U.S. 201 1) 37 )
U.S. government and federal agel - - - -
Retained interest 3 - - -
Equity 26 (3) - -
Total $ 1,130 $ (23) $ 4,106 $ (815
2011
Debt
U.S. corporati $ 1,435 $ (241, $ 836 $ (169)
State and municip: 87 1) 307 (142;
Residential mortga-backec 219 9) 825 277,
Commercial mortga¢-backec 244 (23) 1,320 (224,
Asse-backec 100 7) 850 (157,
Corporate- nor-U.S. 330 (28) 607 179,
Governmen- nor-U.S. 906 (5) 203 (81)
U.S. government and federal agel 502 - - -
Retained interest - - - -
Equity 440 (38) — —
Total $ 4,263 $ (352 $ 4,948 $ (1,229
(a) Includes gross unrealized losses at December 32, @0$(157) million related to securities that ltble-thar-temporary impairments previously recogniz

We regularly review investment securities for inpent using both qualitative and quantitative cideWe presently do not intend to sell the vasjomiig of our debt securities that are in an unizsal
loss position and believe that it is not more kilan not that we will be required to sell theseusities before recovery of our amortized cost. Mkeve that the unrealized loss associated with o
equity securities will be recovered within the feeeable future.

Substantially all of our U.S. corporate debt se@siare rated investment grade by the major ragegcies. We evaluate U.S. corporate debt sexubiised on a variety of factors, such as thediahn
health of and specific prospects for the issueluiing whether the issuer is in compliance with terms and covenants of the security. In the ex&hsS. corporate debt security is deemed to beroth
than-temporarily impaired, we isolate the credittjpm of the impairment by comparing the presertieaf our expectation of cash flows to the amedizost of the security. We discount the cash flows
using the original effective interest rate of teewity.

(118)



The vast majority of our RMBS have investment grealit ratings from the major rating agencies arelin a senior position in the capital structurthe deal. Of our total RMBS at December 31, 2012
and 2011, approximately $471 million and $515 milirespectively, relate to residential subprineslitr primarily supporting our guaranteed investtreamtracts. These are collateralized primarily by
pools of individual, direct mortgage loans (a miyoof which were originated in 2006 and 2005), otiter structured products such as collateralizgt dbligations. In addition, of the total residaht
subprime credit exposure at December 31, 2012 and, Zpproximately $219 million and $277 millioespectively, was insured by Monoline insurers (Mim&s) on which we continue to place
reliance.

Our commercial mortgage-backed securities (CMBS${fqii is collateralized by both diversified poalé mortgages that were originated for securit@aiiconduit CMBS) and pools of large loans
backed by high-quality properties (large loan CMBs&inajority of which were originated in 2007 arf@®@. The vast majority of the securities in our C8MBortfolio have investment grade credit ratings
and the vast majority of the securities are inra®eposition in the capital structure.

Our asset-backed securities (ABS) portfolio isateltalized by senior secured loans of high-quatitigldle-market companies in a variety of industreswell as a variety of diversified pools of asse
such as student loans and credit cards. The vgstitp@f our ABS are in a senior position in thepital structure of the deals. In addition, subtssdly all of the securities that are below investrhgrade
are in an unrealized gain position.

For ABS and RMBS, we estimate the portion of Iasshaitable to credit using a discounted cash fiowadel that considers estimates of cash flows géedfeom the underlying collateral. Estimates of
cash flows consider credit risk, interest rate prepayment assumptions that incorporate managesnesst estimate of key assumptions of the undeylyailateral, including default rates, loss seyerit
and prepayment rates. For CMBS, we estimate thiopasf loss attributable to credit by evaluatingential losses on each of the underlying loarteénsecurity. Collateral cash flows are considémed
the context of our position in the capital struetof the deals. Assumptions can vary widely dependpon the collateral type, geographic concemtnatand vintage.

If there has been an adverse change in cash flewRMBS, management considers credit enhancemeadiisas monoline insurance (which are featuressplegific security). In evaluating the overall
credit worthiness of the Monoline, we use an anslyst is similar to the approach we use for coabonds, including an evaluation of the sufficieof the Monoline’s cash reserves and capital,
ratings activity, whether the Monoline is in defand default appears imminent, and the potentiairftervention by an insurance or other regulator.

During 2012, we recorded pre-tax, other-than-tempoimpairments of $193 million, of which $141 rrolh was recorded through earnings ($39 milliontesldo equity securities) and $52 million was
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive ind@@€l). At January 1, 2012, cumulative impairmergsognized in earnings associated with debt séesistill held were $726 million. During 201
we recognized first-time impairments of $27 milliand incremental charges on previously impairedrsies of $40 million. These amounts included $21i8ion related to securities that were
subsequently sold.

During 2011, we recorded pre-tax, other-than-tempoimpairments of $467 million, of which $387 rioh was recorded through earnings ($81 milliontesldo equity securities) and $80 million was
recorded in AOCI. At January 1, 2011, cumulativ@ainments recognized in earnings associated with skcurities still held were $500 million. Duri@g11, we recognized first-time impairments of
$58 million and incremental charges on previousipaired securities of $230 million. These amountfided $62 million related to securities that waubsequently sold.

During 2010, we recorded pre-tax, other-than-termpoimpairments of $460 million, of which $253 rolh was recorded through earnings ($35 milliontesldo equity securities) and $207 million was

recorded in AOCI. At January 1, 2010, cumulativ@ainments recognized in earnings associated with skcurities still held were $340 million. Duri@g10, we recognized first-time impairments of
$164 million and incremental charges on previoirsigaired securities of $38 million. These amountdtided $41 million related to securities that waubsequently sold.
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Contractual Maturities of Investment in Available-for-Sale Debt Securities (Excluding
Mortgage-Backed and Asse-Backed Securities!

Amortized Estimated
(In millions) cos! fair value
Due in
2013 $ 1,937 $ 1,960
20142017 7,191 7,204
201¢-2022 4,803 5,304
2023 and late 17,901 21,998
We expect actual maturities to differ from contwadtmaturities because borrowers have the righalicor prepay certain obligations.
Supplemental information about gross realized gaimslosses on available-for-sale investment siesifiollows.
(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
GE
Gains $ - $ - $ -
Losses, including impairmen 1) - -
Net €] - -
GECC - - -
Gains 177 205 190
Losses, including impairmen (211 (402 (281
Net (34) (97, o1
Total $ (35) $ (197 $ (91)

Although we generally do not have the intent td @ey specific securities at the end of the perindhe ordinary course of managing our investnsecurities portfolio, we may sell securities pitior
their maturities for a variety of reasons, inclylifiversification, credit quality, yield and liqutig requirements and the funding of claims andgations to policyholders. In some of our bank
subsidiaries, we maintain a certain level of puselsaand sales volume principally of non-U.S. govemnt debt securities. In these situations, fain@approximates carrying value for these securities

Proceeds from investment securities sales and estgmptions by issuers totaled $12,745 milliorg,$06 million and $16,238 million in 2012, 2011 &M, respectively, principally from the sales of
short-term securities in our bank subsidiaries taeglsury operations.

We recognized pre-tax gains (losses) on tradingriggs of $20 million, $22 million and $(7) millioin 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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NOTE 4. CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Consolidated(a) GE(b)

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Power & Watel $ 3,809 $ 4,240 $ 2532 $ 3,498
Oil & Gas 5,421 4,224 2,637 2,269
Energy Managemel 1,600 1,484 800 791
Aviation 4,756 4,355 2,493 2,658
Healthcare 4,253 4,306 2,012 1,943
Transportatior 485 441 324 347
Home & Business Solutior 1,286 1,330 186 184
Corporate Items & eliminatior 352 550 344 563

21,962 20,930 11,328 12,253
Less Allowance for Loss¢ (462 (452 (456, (446,
Total $ 21,500 $ 20,478 $ 10,872 $ 11,807
(a) Included GE industrial customer receivables factdheough a GECC affiliate and reported as finageeceivables by GECC. See Note
(b) GE current receivables balances at December 312 26dl 2011, before allowance for losses, include@&. million and $8,994 million, respectively, finosales of goods and service:

customers, and $70 million and $65 million at DebenB1, 2012 and 2011, respectively, from transastivith associated compani

GE current receivables of $114 million and $112iomlat December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivetseafrom sales, principally of Healthcare and Aivia goods and services, on open account to
various agencies of the U.S. government. As a péage of GE revenues, approximately 4% of GE s#flg®ods and services were to the U.S. governnme2®12, compared with 4% and 5% in 2011
and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 5. INVENTORIES

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011

GE

Raw materials and work in proce $ 9,295 $ 8,735

Finished good 6,020 4,971

Unbilled shipment: 378 485
15,693 14,191

Less revaluation to LIF( (398 (450)
15,295 13,741

GECC

Finished good 79 51

Total $ 15,374 $ 13,792
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NOTE 6. GECC FINANCING RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWANCE FO R LOSSES ON FINANCING RECEIVABLES

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Loans, net of deferred income: $ 241,465 $ 256,895
Investment in financing leases, net of deferredine 32,471 38,142

273,936 295,037
Less allowance for loss (4,985 (6,190
Financing receivable- net(b) $ 268,951 $ 288,847

(a) Deferred income was $2,182 million and $2,329 willat December 31, 2012 and December 31, 201lgcteply.

(b) Financing receivables at December 31, 2012 andieee31, 2011 included $750 million and $1,062 ionil] respectively, relating to loans that had baequired in a transfer but have b
subject to credit deterioration since originatiar ASC 310Receivable.

GECC financing receivables include both loans amaicing leases. Loans represent transactiongamiety of forms, including revolving charge aneédit, mortgages, installment loans, intermediate-
term loans and revolving loans secured by busiasssts. The portfolio includes loans carried aptirecipal amount on which finance charges aredifyeriodically, and loans carried at gross book
value, which includes finance charges.

Investment in financing leases consists of direztrfcing and leveraged leases of aircraft, railnmdiéhg stock, autos, other transportation equiptndata processing equipment, medical equipment,
commercial real estate and other manufacturing.ep@eneration, and commercial equipment and faeslit

For federal income tax purposes, the leverage@easd the majority of the direct financing leamesleases in which GECC depreciates the leasetsasd is taxed upon the accrual of rental income.
Certain direct financing leases are loans for faldecome tax purposes. For these transactions,GGiE@xed only on the portion of each payment doastitutes interest, unless the interest issteemp!
(e.g., certain obligations of state governments).

Investment in direct financing and leveraged leaspsesents net unpaid rentals and estimated uagtesd residual values of leased equipment, Iéstededeferred income. GECC has no general
obligation for principal and interest on notes atiter instruments representing thjdrty participation related to leveraged leasesh swtes and other instruments have not been iedlidliabilities bu
have been offset against the related rentals ralkivThe GECC share of rentals receivable on é®ext leases is subordinate to the share of othécipants who also have security interests inlézeer
equipment. For federal income tax purposes, GEG@tiled to deduct the interest expense accruingan-recourse financing related to leveraged ease
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Net Investment in Financing Leases

Total financing leases

Direct financing leases(a

Leveraged leases(h

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Total minimum lease payments receiva $ 36,451 $ 44,157  $ 29,416 $ 33,667 $ 7,035 $ 10,490
Less principal and interest on tt-party
nor-recourse dek (4,662 (6,812 - - (4,662 (6,812
Net rentals receivable 31,789 37,345 29,416 33,667 2,373 3,678
Estimated unguaranteed residual valu
leased asse 6,346 7,592 4,272 5,140 2,074 2,452
Less deferred inconr (5,664‘ (6,795‘ (4,453‘ (5,219‘ (1,2111 (1,576'
Investment in financing leases, net
deferred incom: 32,471 38,142 29,235 33,588 3,236 4,554
Less amounts to arrive at net investrr
Allowance for losse (198, (294, (193, (281, (5) (13)
Deferred taxe (4,506 (6,718 (2,245 (2,938 (2,261 (3,780
Net investment in financing leas $ 27,767 $ 31,130 $ 26,797 $ 30,369 $ 970 $ 761
(@) Included $330 million and 413 million of initial direct costs on direct fineimg leases at December 31, 2012 and 2011, resekt.
(b) Included pr-tax income of $81 million and $116 million and imee tax of $32 million and 45 million during 2012 and 2011, respectively. hetestment credits recognized on leveraged l¢
during 2012 and 2011 were insignifica
Contractual Maturities
Total Net rentals
(In millions) loans receivable
Due in
2013 $ 56,668 $ 8,700
2014 22,076 6,633
2015 19,889 5,235
2016 18,214 3,751
2017 17,114 2,234
2018 and late 48,593 5,236
182,554 31,789
Consumer revolving loar 58,911 -
Total $ 241,465 $ 31,789

We expect actual maturities to differ from contwadtmaturities.
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The following tables provide additional informatiabout our financing receivables and related agtivithe allowance for losses for our Commerdreal Estate and Consumer portfolios.

Financing Receivables — net

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Commercial

CLL

Americas $ 72,517 $ 80,505
Europe 37,035 36,899
Asia 11,401 11,635
Other 605 436
Total CLL 121,558 129,475
Energy Financial Services 4,851 5,912
GE Capital Aviation Services (GECAS) 10,915 11,901
Other 486 1,282
Total Commercial financing receivables 137,810 148,570
Real Estate

Debt 19,746 24,501
Business Properties( 1,200 8,248
Total Real Estate financing receivable 20,946 32,749
Consumer

Non-U.S. residential mortgag: 33,451 35,550
Non-U.S. installment and revolving cret 18,546 18,544
U.S. installment and revolving crel 50,853 46,689
Non-U.S. autc 4,260 5,691
Other 8,070 7,244
Total Consumer financing receivables 115,180 113,718
Total financing receivables 273,936 295,037
Less allowance for loss: (4,985 (6,190
Total financing receivables- net $ 268,951 $ 288,847
(@) In 2012, we completed the sale of a portion of Business Properties portfoli
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Allowance for Losses on Financing Receivables

Balance a Provision Balance a
January 1, charged tc Gross December 31

(In millions) 2012 operations Other(a) write -offs(b) Recoveriei(b) 2012
Commercial
CLL
Americas $ 889 $ 109 $ (51) $ (568, $ 111 $ 490
Europe 400 374 3) (390; 64 445
Asia 157 37 3) (134 23 80
Other 4 13 (1) (10) — 6
Total CLL 1,450 533 (58) (1,102 198 1,021
Energy Financial

Services 26 4 - (24) 3 9
GECAS 17 4 - (13) - 8
Other 37 1 (20) (17) 2 3
Total Commercial 1,530 542 (78) (1,156 203 1,041
Real Estate
Debt 949 29 (6) (703, 10 279
Business Properties( 140 43 (38) (107 3 41
Total Real Estate 1,089 72 (44) (810 13 320
Consumer
Non-U.S. residentia

mortgage: 546 111 8 (261, 76 480
Non-U.S. installmen

and revolving

credit 717 350 26 (1,046 576 623
U.S. installment an

revolving credit 2,008 2,666 (24) (2,906 538 2,282
Nor-U.S. autc 101 18 (4) (146 98 67
Other 199 132 18 (257 80 172
Total Consumer 3,571 3,277 24 (4,616 1,368 3,624
Total $ 6,190 $ 3,891 $ (98) $ (6,582 $ 1,584 $ 4,985
(a) Other primarily included transfers to h-for-sale and the effects of currency exchai
(b) Net write-offs (gross writ-offs less recoveries) in certain portfolios mayeeda the beginning allowance for losses as our véxglcredit portfolios turn over more than once pear or, in a

portfolios, can reflect losses that are incurreldssguent to the beginning of the fiscal year duefermation becoming available during the currgear, which may identify further deteriorat
on existing financing receivable
(c) In 2012, we completed the sale of a portion of Business Properties portfoli
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Balance a Provision Balance a
January 1, charged tc Gross December 31

(In millions) 2011 operations(a) Other(b) write -offs(c) Recoverie(c) 2011
Commercial
CLL
Americas 1,288 281 $ (96) (700} $ 116 889
Europe 429 195 (5) (286) 67 400
Asia 222 105 13 (214, 31 157
Other 6 3 (3) (2) — 4
Total CLL 1,945 584 (91) (1,202 214 1,450
Energy Financial

Services 22 - 1) 4) 9 26
GECAS 20 - - 3) - 17
Other 58 23 - (47) 3 37
Total Commercial 2,045 607 (92) (1,256 226 1,530
Real Estate
Debt 1,292 242 2 (603) 16 949
Business Propertie 196 82 — (144 6 140
Total Real Estate 1,488 324 2 (747, 22 1,089
Consumer
Non-U.S. residentia

mortgage: 689 117 (13) (296, 49 546
Non-U.S. installmen

and revolving credi 937 490 (30) (1,257 577 717
U.S. installment an

revolving credit 2,333 2,241 1 (3,095 528 2,008
Non-U.S. autc 168 30 (4) (216) 123 101
Other 259 142 (20) (272) 90 199
Total Consumer 4,386 3,020 (66) (5,136 1,367 3,571
Total 7,919 3,951 $ (156) (7,139 $ 1,615 6,190
(a) Included a provision of $77 million at Consumetet to the July 1, 2011 adoption of ASU 2-02.
(b) Other primarily included transfers to h-for-sale and the effects of currency exchai
(c) Net write-offs (gross writ-offs less recoveries) in certain portfolios mayeed the beginning allowance for losses as our vinglcredit portfolios turn over more than once pear or, in a

portfolios, can reflect losses that are incurrelossguent to the beginning of the fiscal year dueftrmation becoming available during the currgear, which may identify further deteriorat

on existing financing receivable
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Balance a Provision Balance a

January 1, charged tc Gross December 31

(In millions) 2010(a operations Other(b) write -offs(c) Recoveries(c 201(
Commercial
CLL
Americas $ 1,246 $ 1,059 $ 11 $ (1,136 $ 130 $ 1,288
Europe 575 269 (37) (440, 62 429
Asia 234 153 (6) (181 22 222
Other 10 (2) (1) (1) — 6
Total CLL 2,065 1,479 (55) (1,758 214 1,945
Energy Financial

Services 28 65 - (72) 1 22
GECAS 104 12 - (96) - 20
Other 34 33 — (9) — 58
Total Commercial 2,231 1,589 (55) (1,935 215 2,045
Real Estate
Debt 1,355 764 10 (838; 1 1,292
Business Propertie 181 146 (8) (126 3 196
Total Real Estate 1,536 910 2 (964 4 1,488
Consumer
Non-U.S. residentia

mortgage: 825 165 (38) (338; 75 689
Non-U.S. installmen

and revolving credi 1,106 1,047 (68) (1,733 585 937
U.S. installment an

revolving credit 3,153 3,018 (6) (4,300 468 2,333
Non-U.S. autc 292 91 (61) (313 159 168
Other 292 265 5 (394 91 259
Total Consumer 5,668 4,586 (168 (7,078 1,378 4,386
Total $ 9,435 $ 7,085 $ (221, $ (9,977 $ 1597 $ 7,919

(@) Reflects the effects of our adoption of ASU 2-16 & 17 on January 1, 201
(b) Other primarily included the effects of currencyleange
(c) Net write-offs (gross writ-offs less recoveries) in certain portfolios maye®ad the beginning allowance for losses as our vexgktredit portfolios turn over more than once pear or, in al

portfolios, can reflect losses that are incurreosgguent to the beginning of the fiscal year duaftrmation becoming available during the curngedr, which may identify further deterioration
on existing financing receivable

See Note 23 for supplemental information abouttieeit quality of financing receivables and allowarfor losses on financing receivables.
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NOTE 7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Depreciable
lives-new
December 31 (Dollars in million: (in years) 2012 2011
Original cost
GE
Land and improvemen 8(a) $ 612 $ 611
Buildings, structures and related equipmr 8-40 8,361 7,823
Machinery and equipme 4-20 24,090 22,071
Leasehold costs and manufacturing p
under constructio 1-10 2,815 2,538
35,878 33,043
GECC (b)
Land and improvements, buildings, structu
and related equipme 1-36(a) 2,624 3,110
Equipment leased to othe
Aircraft 19-21 49,954 46,240
Vehicles 1-28 17,574 15,278
Railroad rolling stocl 4-50 4,210 4,324
Construction and manufacturil 1-30 3,055 2,644
All other 3-27 3,427 3,438
80,844 75,034
Eliminations 41 40
Total $ 116,763 $ 108,117
Net carrying value
GE
Land and improvemen $ 582 $ 584
Buildings, structures and related equipmr 4,003 3,827
Machinery and equipme 9,061 7,648
Leasehold costs and manufacturing p
under constructio 2,387 2,224
16,033 14,283
GECC (b)
Land and improvements, buildings, structu
and related equipme 1,074 1,499
Equipment leased to othe
Aircraft(c) 36,231 34,271
Vehicles 9,263 8,772
Railroad rolling stocl 2,746 2,853
Construction and manufacturil 2,069 1,670
All other 2,290 2,354
53,673 51,419
Eliminations 37 37
Total $ 69,743 $ 65,739
(a) Depreciable lives exclude lan
(b) Included $1,467 million and $1,570 million of omgil cost of assets leased to GE with accumulatesitaration of $452 million and $445 million at Denber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivi

(c) The GECAS business of GE Capital recognized impamtriosses of $242 million in 2012 and $301 millior2011 recorded in the capti”Other costs and expen” in the Statement ¢
Earnings to reflect adjustments to fair value basedn evaluation of average current market valoletined from third parties) of similar type argkanircraft, which are adjusted for the
attributes of the specific aircraft under lee

Consolidated depreciation and amortization relawgaroperty, plant and equipment was $9,346 mijlé®185 million and $9,786 million in 2012, 2011de2010, respectively.
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Amortization of GECC equipment leased to others $6243 million, $6,253 million and $6,786 milliam2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Noncancedl&lture rentals due from customers for

equipment on operating leases at December 31, 204235 follows:

(In millions)

Due in

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018 and late
Total

NOTE 8. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31 (In millions
Goodwill
GE

GECC
Total

December 31 (In millions
Other intangible assets
GE

Intangible assets subject to amortizal
Indefinite-lived intangible assets(.

GECC
Intangible assets subject to amortizal

Eliminations

Total

7,507

6,168

4,946

3,863

3,000

8,286

33,770

2012 2011
46,143 45,395
27,304 27,230
73,447 72,625
2012 2011
10,541 10,317
159 205
10,700 10,522
1,294 1,546
)] -
11,987 12,068

(@) Indefinite-lived intangible assets principally comprise-process research and development, trademarksadehaimes
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Changes in goodwill balances follow.

2012 2011

Dispositions Dispositions

currenc) currenc)
Balance ¢ exchang Balance ¢ Balance ¢ exchang Balance ¢
(In millions) January Acqguisitions and othe December 3 January Acquisitions and othe December 3
Power & Watel $ 8,769 $ - $ 52 $ 8,821 $ 8,632 $ 227 % (90) $ 8,769
Oil & Gas 8,233 113 19 8,365 3,569 4,791 (127, 8,233
Energy Managemel 4,621 - (11) 4,610 1,136 3,928 (443, 4,621
Aviation 5,996 55 (76) 5,975 6,073 - 77) 5,996
Healthcare 16,631 221 (90) 16,762 16,338 305 (12) 16,631
Transportatior 551 445 3 999 554 - 3) 551

Home & Busines

Solutions 594 11 6 611 578 24 (8) 594
GE Capital 27,230 - 74 27,304 27,508 6 (284 27,230
Total $ 72,625 $ 845 $ (23) $ 73,447 $ 64,388 $ 9,281 $ (1,044 $ 72,625

Upon closing an acquisition, we estimate the falugs of assets and liabilities acquired and cathestel the acquisition as quickly as possible. Gitrentime it takes to obtain pertinent informatton
finalize the acquired company’s balance sheet, thewjust the acquired company’s accounting pesicprocedures, and books and records to our stidiis often several quarters before we are abl
to finalize those initial fair value estimates. Acdingly, it is not uncommon for our initial estitea to be subsequently revised.

Goodwill balances increased $822 million in 2012ngrily as a result of the weaker U.S. dollar (636illion) and acquisitions of Industrea Limited?@®2 million) and Railcar Management, Inc. ($136
million) at Transportation.

On March 27, 2012, we contributed a portion of ciuil avionics systems business to a newly form@dtjventure in exchange for 50% of this entityisTiesulted in deconsolidation of this business and
the recording of the interest in the new avionaistjventure at fair value. As a result, we recagdia pre-tax gain of $274 million ($152 millionieftax) in the first quarter of 2012.

Goodwill balances increased $8,237 million in 2Qdrimarily as a result of the acquisitions of Coream ($3,411 million) and Lineage Power Holdirligs, ($256 million) at Energy Management and
Dresser, Inc. ($1,932 million), the Well Supportision of John Wood Group PLC ($2,036 million) anelistream PLC ($810 million) at Oil & Gas, parljebffset by the stronger U.S. dollar ($650
million).

On September 2, 2011, we purchased a 90% inter€triverteam for $3,586 million. In connection witle transaction, we entered into an arrangememirtthase the remaining 10% at the two-year
anniversary of the acquisition date for 343 millBaros (approximately $470 million). This amountswacorded as a liability at the date of acquisitio

We test goodwill for impairment annually and marequently if circumstances warrant. We determimevialues for each of the reporting units usingrasome approach. When available and approp
we use comparative market multiples to corrobodégeounted cash flow results. For purposes ofrtherne approach, fair value is determined baseti@present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at an appropriate risk-adjusted rateug¢eour internal forecasts to estimate future dasfs and include an estimate of long-term futgrewth rates based on our most recent views of the
long-term outlook for each business. Actual reswiéy differ from those assumed in our forecasts.détéve our discount rates using a capital asseingrmodel and analyzing published rates for
industries relevant to our reporting units to estienthe cost of equity financing. We use discoates that are commensurate with the risks and taiesrinherent in the respective businesses amdiin
internally developed forecasts. Discount rates us@dir reporting unit valuations ranged from 8.@%4.3.0%. Valuations using the market approactecefrices and other relevant observable
information generated by market transactions inwmgh\comparable businesses.
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Compared to the market approach, the income appmace closely aligns each reporting unit valuatmour business profile, including geographic netslserved and product offerings. Required rates
of return, along with uncertainty inherent in tioeefcasts of future cash flows, are reflected instflection of the discount rate. Equally importamiger this approach, reasonably likely scenanmaks a
associated sensitivities can be developed forretime future states that may not be reflectechinlaservable market price. A market approach allimvsomparison to actual market transactions and
multiples. It can be somewhat more limited in ipplication because the population of potential caraples is often limited to publicly traded comganivhere the characteristics of the comparative
business and ours can be significantly differeratrkat data is usually not available for divisionghim larger conglomerates or non-public subsidisithat could otherwise qualify as comparable,taad
specific circumstances surrounding a market traiwage.g., synergies between the parties, terrdscanditions of the transaction, etc.) may be déffe or irrelevant with respect to our businessat

also be difficult, under certain market conditiotzsidentify orderly transactions between marketipipants in similar businesses. We assess theatiah methodology based upon the relevance and
availability of the data at the time we perform ttaduation and weight the methodologies appropsiate

We performed our annual impairment test of goodfeillall of our reporting units in the third quartesing data as of July 1, 2012. The impairmeritdessists of two steps: in step one, the carryalge
(including goodwill) of the reporting unit is cormea with its fair value, as if it were being aceuirin a business combination; in step two, whicipiglied when the carrying value (including goodiwil

of the reporting unit is more than its fair valtlee amount of goodwill impairment, if any, is dexivby deducting the fair value of the reportingt'srassets and liabilities from the fair value tsfequity

(net assets) as determined in step one to derviertplied fair value of goodwill, and then comparihat implied amount with the carrying amount obdwill. In performing the valuations, we used cash
flows that reflected management’s forecasts antbdist rates that included risk adjustments consistéth the current market conditions. Based onréisilts of our step one testing, the fair values o
each of the GE industrial reporting units and thé @Consumer, Energy Financial Services and GECdrting units exceeded their carrying values;dftee, the second step of the impairment test
was not required to be performed and no goodwillairment was recognized.

Our Real Estate reporting unit had a goodwill bedaaf $926 million at December 31, 2012. As of Julp012, the carrying amount exceeded the estéhfatevalue of our Real Estate reporting unit by
approximately $1.8 billion. The estimated fair \abf the Real Estate reporting unit is based onrabrer of assumptions about future business perficenand investment, including loss estimates fe
existing finance receivable and investment porfatiew debt origination volume and margins, anikzation of the real estate market allowing faies of real estate investments at normalized msu
Our assumed discount rate was 11% and was derivagglying a capital asset pricing model and casrated using equity analyst research reports aptiechcost of equity based on forecasted price to
earnings per share multiples for similar compar&sen the volatility and uncertainty in the cutreommercial real estate environment, there is dairgy about a number of assumptions upon which
the estimated fair value is based. Different Icgsmtes for the existing portfolio, changes in tleev debt origination volume and margin assumpfiohanges in the expected pace of the commerait
estate market recovery, or changes in the equityrrexpectation of market participants may resutthanges in the estimated fair value of the Rstdte reporting unit.

Based on the results of the step one testing, wWerpeed the second step of the impairment testrieest above as of July 1, 2012. Based on the stithe second step analysis for the Real Estate
reporting unit, the estimated implied fair valuegobdwill exceeded the carrying value of goodwlldpproximately $1.7 billion. Accordingly, no gooilvimpairment was required. In the second step,
unrealized losses are reflected in the fair vabfemn entity’s assets and have the effect of reduor eliminating the potential goodwill impairmedentified in step one. The results of the secsteg
analysis were attributable to several factors. gifi@ary drivers were the excess of the carryingiealver the estimated fair value of our Real E<Eaigity Investments, which approximated $2.6 hillio
at that time, and the fair value premium on thel [Es#ate reporting unit allocated debt. The resofithe second step analysis are highly sensititeése measurements, as well as the key assummption
used in determining the estimated fair value ofRleal Estate reporting unit.
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Estimating the fair value of reporting units regsithe use of estimates and significant judgméatsare based on a number of factors includingahciperating results. If current conditions perkisger
or deteriorate further than expected, it is reablynpossible that the judgments and estimates idestabove could change in future periods.

Intangible Assets Subject to Amortization

Gross

carrying Accumulated
December 31 (In millions amount amortization Net
GE
2012
Custome-related $ 5,751 $ (1,353 $ 4,398
Patents, licenses and trademe 5,981 (2,435 3,546
Capitalized softwar 5,411 (3,010 2,401
All other 360 (164 196
Total $ 17,503 $ (6,962 $ 10,541
2011
Custome-related $ 5,638 $ 1,117 $ 4,521
Patents, licenses and trademe 5,797 (2,204 3,693
Capitalized softwar 4,743 (2,676 2,067
All other 176 (140" 36
Total $ 16,354 $ (6,037 $ 10,317
GECC
2012
Custome-related $ 1,227 $ (808; $ 419
Patents, licenses and trademe 191 (160, 31
Capitalized softwar 2,126 (1,681 445
Lease valuation 1,163 (792 371
Present value of future profits( 530 (530) -
All other 283 (255) 28
Total $ 5,520 $ (4,226 $ 1,294
2011
Custome-related $ 1,186 $ (697, $ 489
Patents, licenses and trademe 250 (208, 42
Capitalized softwar 2,048 (1,597 451
Lease valuation 1,470 (944, 526
Present value of future profits( 491 (491) -
All other 327 (289 38
Total $ 5,772 $ (4,226 $ 1,546
(a) Balances at December 31, 2012 and 2011 reflecstd@nts of $353 million and $391 million, respeelyy to the present value of future profits in aum-off insurance operations to reflect 1

effects that would have been recognized had tlemlunrealized investment securities holding gaislosses actually been realized in accordanteABC 32(-10-S9¢-2.

During 2012, we recorded additions to intangibleess subject to amortization of $1,302 millionnpatiily from the capitalization of new software a&s®everal business platforms as well as from the
acquisitions of Industrea Limited and Railcar Magragnt, Inc. at Transportation and the acquisitiod-&ystems, Inc. at Healthcare. The componenfmibé-lived intangible assets acquired during
2012 and their respective weighted-average ambtézzeriod are: $83 million — Customer-related (gears); $135 million — Patents, licenses and tretks (12.3 years); $896 million — Capitalized
software (5.9 years); and $188 million — All otl{@r6 years).

Consolidated amortization related to intangibleetssvas $1,615 million, $1,748 million and $1,75Miam for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Wéneate annual pre-tax amortization for intangible
assets over the next five calendar years to bellasvk: 2013 — $1,528 million; 2014 — $1,333 milid2015 — $1,205 million; 2016 — $1,075 million;da2017 — $928 million.
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NOTE 9. ALL OTHER ASSETS

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
GE
Investments
Associated companies( $ 22,169 $ 20,463
Other 445 607
22,614 21,070
Contract costs and estimated earning 9,443 9,008
Long-term receivables, including notes 714 1,316
Derivative instrument 383 370
Other 4,782 4,911
37,936 36,675
GECC
Investments
Real estate(d)(e 25,154 28,255
Associated companie 19,119 23,589
Assets held for sale( 4,205 4,525
Cost method(e 1,665 1,882
Other 1,446 1,722
51,589 59,973
Derivative instrument 3,557 9,671
Advances to suppliel 1,813 1,560
Deferred borrowing costs(i 940 1,327
Deferred acquisition costs( 46 55
Other 4,272 3,026
62,217 75,612
Eliminations (77) (586
Total $ 100,076 $ 111,701

(@) Included our investment in NBCU LLC of $18,887 naifi and 17,955 million at December 31, 2012 andl2@dspectively. At December 31, 2012 and 2011alse had $4,937 million ar
$4,699 million, respectively, of deferred tax ligi®s related to this investment. See Note

(b) Contract costs and estimated earnings reflect i@&naarned in excess of billings on our -term contracts to construct technically complexipanent (such as power generation, airc
engines and aeroderivative units) and long-terndypecbmaintenance or extended warranty arrangemenése amounts are presented net of related fsillimgxcess of revenues of $1,498
million and $1,305 million at December 31, 2012 &0d 1, respectively

(c) Included loans to GECC of $3 million and $388 mifliat December 31, 2012 and 2011, respecti

(d) GECC investments in real estate consisted pringipltwo categories: real estate held for investtvend equity method investments. Both categoesained a wide range of propert
including the following at December 31, 2012: doffisuildings (48%), apartment buildings (14%), fdeilities (9%), franchise properties (9%), inthied properties (8%) and other (12%). At
December 31, 2012, investments were located ilthericas (45%), Europe (28%) and Asia (27

(e) The fair value of and unrealized loss on cost meihwestments in a continuous loss position fos lgn 12 months at December 31, 2012, were $1Hidmand $37 million, respectively. Tt
fair value of and unrealized loss on cost meth@gsitments in a continuous loss position for 12 meiwr more at December 31, 2012, were $2 milliahaminsignificant amount, respectively.
The fair value of and unrealized loss on cost metihwestments in a continuous loss position fos lsn 12 months at December 31, 2011, were $4#6mand $61 million, respectively. The
fair value of and unrealized loss on cost meth@gstments in a continuous loss position for 12 e more at December 31, 2011, were $65 millimh$8 million, respectively

) Assets were classified as held for sale on thealdecision was made to dispose of them throughawabther means. At December 31, 2012 and 20th, assets consisted primarily of loa
aircraft, equipment and real estate properties veareé accounted for at the lower of carrying amaurgstimated fair value less costs to sell. Tlaseunts are net of valuation allowances of
$200 million and $122 million at December 31, 2@h2 2011, respectivel

(9) Included $329 million at December 31, 2011, of unetined fees related to our participation in theriperary Liquidity Guarantee Program (TLGP). At Deateer 31, 2012, our debt under TL
was fully repaid

(h) Balances at December 31, 2012 and 2011 reflecsad@nts of $764 million and $810 million, respeelyy to deferred acquisition costs in our-off insurance operations to reflect the effe
that would have been recognized had the relateshlined investment securities holding gains ansdesctually been realized in accordance with AST-10-S9¢-2.
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NOTE 10. BORROWINGS AND BANK DEPOSITS

Short-term Borrowings 2012 2011
Average Average

December 31 (Dollars in million: Amount rate(a) Amount rate(a)
GE
Commercial pape $ 352 0.28% $ 1,801 0.13%
Payable to bank 23 3.02 88 1.81
Current portion of lon-term

borrowings 5,068 5.11 41 4.89
Other 598 254
Total GE shorterm borrowings 6,041 2,184
GECC
Commercial pape

u.S. 33,686 0.22 33,591 0.23

Nor-U.S. 9,370 0.92 10,569 1.67
Current portion of lon-term

borrowings(b)(c)(d)(e 44,264 2.85 82,650 2.72
GE Interest Plus notes| 8,189 1.20 8,474 1.32
Other(d) 431 1,049
Total GECC sho-term borrowings 95,940 136,333
Eliminations 589, 906,
Total shor-term borrowings $ 101,392 $ 137611
Long-term Borrowings 2012 2011

Average Average

December 31 (Dollars in millions Maturities Amount rate(a) Amount rate (a)
GE
Senior note: 2015-2042 $ 10,963 3.63% $ 8,976 5.21%
Payable to banks, principally U. 201¢4-202: 13 1.79 18 2.89
Other 452 411
Total GE lonterm borrowings 11,428 9,405
GECC
Senior unsecured notes 2014-205¢% 199,646 2.95 210,154 3.49
Subordinated notes( 2014-2037 4,965 2.92 4,862 3.42
Subordinated debentures: 206¢€-2067 7,286 5.78 7,215 6.66
Other(d) 12,879 12,160
Total GECC lon-term borrowings 224,776 234,391
Eliminations 120; (337,
Total lon¢-term borrowings $ 236,084 $ 243,459
Non-recourse borrowings of

consolidated securitization

entities(h) 2015-201¢ $ 30,123 1120 8 29,258 1.40%
Bank deposits(i) $ 46,461 $ 43115
Total borrowings and bank

deposits $ 414,060 $ 453,443
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@
(b)

©

()

(e)

()
()]
(h)

@

Based on yerend balances and y-end local currency effective interest rates, intigdhe effects from hedgin

GECC had issued and outstanding $35,040 millioseofor, unsecured debt that was guaranteed byeither&l Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) unterfemporary Liquidity Guarant
Program at December 31, 2011. No such debt wataodiag at December 31, 20:

Included in total lon-term borrowings were $604 million and $1,845 miiliof obligations to holders of GICs at DecemberZ1,2 and 2011, respectively. These obligationsided condition:
under which certain GIC holders could require imratrepayment of their investment should the Iterga credit ratings of GECC fall below AA-/Aa3. Fawing the April 3, 2012 Moody’s
downgrade of GECC's long-term credit rating to Adibstantially all of these GICs became redeemabthdir holders. In 2012, holders of $386 milliongrincipal amount of GICs redeemed
their holdings and GECC made related cash payme€hesremaining outstanding GICs will continue tosbéject to their scheduled maturities and indiglderms, which may include provisic
permitting redemption upon a downgrade of one orenad GEC('s ratings, among other thing

Included $9,757 million and $8,538 million of fundisecured by real estate, aircraft and otherteoflhat December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectieéhyhich $3,294 million and $2,983 millic
is nor-recourse to GECC at December 31, 2012 and 201decteely.

Included $300 million and $417 million of subordied notes guaranteed by GE at December 31, 2012Qi1 respectively, of which $117 million was indtd in current portion of lo-term
borrowings at December 31, 20:

Entirely variable denomination floati-rate demand note
Subordinated debentures receive rating agencyyequtlit and were hedged at issuance to the Ulrdmuivalent of $7,725 millior

Included at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were $90BBn and $10,714 million of current portion afric-term borrowings, respectively, and $21,028 milleovd $18,544 million of lor-term
borrowings, respectively. See Note

Included $16,157 million and $16,281 million of dsjis in no-U.S. banks at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respigtand $17,291 million and $17,201 million of tifizates of deposits wit
maturities greater than one year at December 312 26d 2011, respectivel

On October 9, 2012, GE issued $7,000 million oksatomprising $2,000 million of 0.850% notes du#52( 3,000 million of 2.700% notes due 2022 an@®2 million of 4.125% notes due 2042. On
February 1, 2013, we repaid $ 5,000 million of 5.6% senior unsecured notes.

Additional information about borrowings and asstadlaswaps can be found in Note 22.

Liquidity is affected by debt maturities and our abilityépay or refinance such debt. Long-term debt magsrdver the next five years follow.

(In millions) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
GE $ 5,068 $ 80 $ 2,055 $ 41 $ 4,015
GECC 44,264(a) 38,783 36,252 23,047 24,775
(a) Fixed and floating rate notes of $914 million comfaut options with exercise dates in 2013, andciiiiave final maturity beyond 201

Committed credit lines totaling $48.2 billion haeldm extended to us by 51 banks at year-end 20120Gfan borrow up to $48.2 billion under all of taesedit lines. GE can borrow up to $12.0 billion
under certain of these credit lines. The GECC linekide $30.3 billion of revolving credit agreeneennder which we can borrow funds for periods erlagg one year. Additionally, $17.9 billion are
364-day lines that contain a term-out feature #iflatvs GE or GECC to extend the borrowings for onéwo years from the date of expiration of thedieg agreement.
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NOTE 11. INVESTMENT CONTRACTS, INSURANCE LIABILITIE S AND INSURANCE ANNUITY BENEFITS

Investment contracts, insurance liabilities andifaace annuity benefits comprise mainly obligatismannuitants and policyholders in our run-offurence operations and holders of guaranteed
investment contracts.

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Investment contraci $ 3,321 $ 3,493
Guaranteed investment contra 1,644 4,226
Total investment contrac 4,965 7,719
Life insurance benefits(: 20,427 19,257
Other(b) 3,304 3,222
28,696 30,198
Eliminations (428 (424,
Total $ 28,268 $ 29,774
(a) Life insurance benefits are accounted for mainlyalme-level-premium method using estimated yields generallgiranfrom 3.0% to 8.5% in both 2012 and 20
(b) Substantially all unpaid claims and claims adjusttexpenses and unearned premit

When insurance affiliates cede insurance risk ital tharties, such as reinsurers, they are notwetdi®f their primary obligation to policyholders.Héh losses on ceded risks give rise to claims for
recovery, we establish allowances for probablegl®sm such receivables from reinsurers as requReidsurance recoverables are included in theaapBther GECC receivables" on our Statement of
Financial Position, and amounted to $1,542 milkowl $1,411 million at December 31, 2012 and 20ddpectively.

We recognize reinsurance recoveries as a reductitire Statement of Earnings caption “Investmemtiaxts, insurance losses and insurance annuigfiteh Reinsurance recoveries were $234 million,
$224 million and $174 million for the years endegcBmber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 12. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Pension Benefits

We sponsor a number of pension plans. Principaiparplans, together with affiliate and certainesthension plans (other pension plans) detailédisnnote, represent about 99% of our total pension
assets. We use a December 31 measurement date folans.

Principal Pension Plansare the GE Pension Plan and the GE SupplementasidPePlan.

The GE Pension Plan provides benefits to certath Bmployees based on the greater of a formulgnéoag career earnings or a formula recognizimgte of service and final average earnings.
Certain benefit provisions are subject to colleetpargaining. Salaried employees who commencecgeovi or after January 1, 2011 and any employeecohunences service on or after January 1,
will not be eligible to participate in the GE PamsiPlan, but will participate in a defined conttibn retirement program.

The GE Supplementary Pension Plan is an unfundedlbviding supplementary retirement benefits grily to higher-level, longer-service U.S. employee
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Other Pension Plansn 2012 included 40 U.S. and non-U.S. pension pleitts pension assets or obligations greater thanrfllion. These defined benefit plans generallgvide benefits to employees
based on formulas recognizing length of serviceeardings.

Pension Plan Participants

Principal Other
pensior pensior
December 31, 201 Total plans plans
Active employee: 136,000 101,000 35,000
Vested former employe¢ 236,000 192,000 44,000
Retirees and beneficiari 257,000 226,000 31,000
Total 629,000 519,000 110,000
Cost of Pension Plan:
Total Principal pension plans Other pension plans
(In millions) 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Service cost for benefits earn $ 1,779 $ 1,498 $ 1,426 $ 1,387 $ 1,195 $ 1,149 $ 392 $ 303 $ 277
Prior service cost amortizatic 287 207 252 279 194 238 8 13 14
Expected return on plan ass (4,394 (4,543 (4,857 (3,768 (3,940 (4,344 (626, (603, (513)
Interest cost on benefit obligatio 2,993 3,176 3,179 2,479 2,662 2,693 514 514 486
Net actuarial loss amortizatic 3,701 2,486 1,546 3,421 2,335 1,336 280 151 210
Pension plans co $ 4,366 $ 2,824 $ 1546 $ 3,798 $ 2,446 $ 1,072 $ 568 $ 378 $ 474

Actuarial assumptionsare described below. The actuarial assumptioneaémber 31 are used to measure the year-end bebléjitions and the pension costs for the subseqesr.

Principal pension plans Other pension plans (weighted average
December 3: 2012 2011 2010 2009 2012 2011 2010 2009
Discount rate 3.96% 4.21% 5.28% 5.78% 3.92% 4.42% 5.11% 5.31%
Compensation increas 3.90 3.75 4.25 4.20 3.30 4.31 4.44 4.56
Expected return on asst 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.50 6.82 7.09 7.25 7.29

To determine the expected long-term rate of returpension plan assets, we consider current agdttasset allocations, as well as historical apeteted returns on various categories of plan adsets
developing future return expectations for our ppatpension plans' assets, we formulate viewserfuture economic environment, both in the U.$l @loroad. We evaluate general market trends and
historical relationships among a number of keyalalgs that impact asset class returns such astexipearnings growth, inflation, valuations, yietd®l spreads, using both internal and external ssurc
We also take into account expected volatility byed€lass and diversification across classes &rméie expected overall portfolio results givenrent and target allocations. Based on our anabfsis
future expectations of asset performance, pastregsults, and our current and target asset ditotg we have assumed an 8.0% long-term expeetathron those assets for cost recognition in 2013.
For the principal pension plans, we apply our eigxcate of return to a market-related value oé&ssvhich stabilizes variability in the amountsiioich we apply that expected return.

We amortize experience gains and losses, as wiikasffects of changes in actuarial assumptiodspéam provisions, over a period no longer thanaerage future service of employees.
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Funding policy for the GE Pension Plan is to contribute amounffécgent to meet minimum funding requirements asfeeth in employee benefit and tax laws plus sadtitional amounts as we may

determine to be appropriate. We contributed $43Bamito the GE Pension Plan in 2012. The ERISAimimm funding requirements do not require a contitsuin 2013. In addition, we expect to pay
approximately $230 million for benefit payments endur GE Supplementary Pension Plan and admitiigrexpenses of our principal pension plans aneixto contribute approximately $735 milli

to other pension plans in 2013. In 2012, compagaimounts were $209 million and $737 million, resipely.

Benefit obligationsare described in the following tables. Accumuladed projected benefit obligations (ABO and PBOYespnt the obligations of a pension plan for pestise as of the measurement
date. ABO is the present value of benefits earnethte with benefits computed based on current eosgtion levels. PBO is ABO increased to reflepieexed future compensation.

Projected Benefit Obligation

Principal pension plans Other pension plans
(In millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Balance at January $ 60,510 $ 51,999 $ 11,637 $ 9,907
Service cost for benefits earn 1,387 1,195 392 303
Interest cost on benefit obligatio 2,479 2,662 514 514
Participant contribution 157 167 16 37
Plan amendmen - 804 (6) (58)
Actuarial loss(a 2,021 6,803 890 1,344
Benefits paic (3,052 (3,120 (425 (424,
Acquisitions (dispositions) / oth- net - - 230 122
Exchange rate adjustmer - - 336 (108
Balance at December 31( $ 63,502 $ 60,510 $ 13,584 $ 11,637

(a) Principally associated with discount rate chan

(b) The PBO for the GE Supplementary Pension Plan,wisian unfunded plan, was $5,494 million and $3 2llion at yea-end 2012 and 2011, respective

Accumulated Benefit Obligation

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
GE Pension Pla $ 55,664 $ 53,040
GE Supplementary Pension P 4,114 3,643
Other pension plar 12,687 10,722

Plans With Assets Less Than ABC

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Funded plans with assets less than A
Plan asset $ 53,276 $ 49,284
Accumulated benefit obligatior 66,069 61,582
Projected benefit obligatior 69,234 64,879
Unfunded plans(e
Accumulated benefit obligatior $ 5,390 $ 4,563
Projected benefit obligatior 6,828 6,161

(a) Primarily related to the GE Supplementary Pensian |
Plan Assets

The fair value of the classes of the pension plars'stments is presented below. The inputs angatiah techniques used to measure the fair valtleeofssets are consistently applied and desciribed
Note 1.
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Fair Value of Plan Assets

Principal pension plans Other pension plans
(In millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Balance at January $ 42,137 $ 44,801 $ 8,381 $ 7,803
Actual gain on plan asse 4,854 88 720 227
Employer contribution 642 201 737 713
Participant contribution 157 167 16 37
Benefits paic (3,052 (3,120 (425) (424,
Acquisitions (dispositions) / oth- net - - - 101
Exchange rate adjustmet — — 273 (76)
Balance at December ! $ 44,738 $ 42,137 $ 9,702 $ 8,381

Asset Allocation
Other pension plans

Principal pension plans (weighted average’
2012 2012 2012 2012
Target Actual Target Actual
allocation allocation allocation allocation
Equity securitiet 32-72% (a) 44% (b) 47% 55%
Debt securities (including cash equivalet 10- 4C 30 33 34
Private equitie: 5-1F 15 2 1
Real estat: 4-14 7 6 5
Other 1-1€ 4 12 5
(a) Target allocations were -36% for both U.S. equity securities and -U.S. equity securitie:
(b) Actual allocations were 25% for U.S. equity sedesitand 19% for n-U.S. equity securitie:

Plan fiduciaries of the GE Pension Plan set investrpolicies and strategies for the GE PensiontEnud oversee its investment allocation, whichudek selecting investment managers, commissioning
periodic asset-liability studies and setting lorgat strategic targets. Lortgrm strategic investment objectives take into m@ration a number of factors, including the fundeatus of the plan, a balar
between risk and return and the plan’s liquiditgd® Target allocation percentages are establesthaa asset class level by plan fiduciaries. Taafjetation ranges are guidelines, not limitaticars]
occasionally plan fiduciaries will approve allocats above or below a target range.

Plan fiduciaries monitor the GE Pension Plan’sitigiy position in order to meet the near term bérgyment and other cash needs. The GE PensiorhBlds short-term debt securities to meet its
liquidity needs.

GE Pension Trust assets are invested subject foltbeing additional guidelines:

(139)



« Shor-term securities must generally be rate-1/F-1 or better, except for 15% of such securities thay be rated -2/F-2 and other shc-term securities as may be approved by the plarcifidies.
« Real estate investments may not exceed 25% ofdesats
« Investments in restricted securities (excluding estate investments) that are not freely tradatdg not exceed 30% of total assets (actual19% of trust assets at December 31, 20

According to statute, the aggregate holdings ofjadllifying employer securities (e.g., GE commarck} and qualifying employer real property may exteed 10% of the fair value of trust assets at the
time of purchase. GE securities represented 4.2¥8#% of trust assets at year-end 2012 and 2@$fpectively.

The GE Pension Plan has a broadly diversified pliotbf investments in equities, fixed income, pitir equities, real estate and hedge funds; thesstments are both U.S. and non-U.S. in naturafAs
December 31, 2012, U.S. government direct andeotimbligations represented 18% of total GE PenBlan assets. No other sector concentration ofsaeseeeded 15% of total GE Pension Plan as
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The following tables present GE Pension Plan imaests measured at fair value.

(In millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
December 31, 201
Equity securities
U.S. equity securities(i $ 8,876 2,462 - $ 11,338
Non-U.S. equity securities(i 6,699 1,644 - 8,343
Debt securities
Fixed income and cash investment fu - 1,931 50 1,981
U.S. corporate(h - 2,758 - 2,758
Residential mortga-backec - 1,420 3 1,423
U.S. government and federal agenc) - 5,489 - 5,489
Other debt securities(l - 2,053 22 2,075
Private equities(a) - - 6,878 6,878
Real estate(a) - - 3,356 3,356
Other investments(e) — 44 1,694 1,738
Total investments $ 15,575 17,801 12,003 45,379
Other (f) (641
Total assets $ 44,738
December 31, 201
Equity securities
U.S. equity securities(: $ 10,645 191 - $ 10,836
Non-U.S. equity securities(i 7,360 644 - 8,004
Debt securities
Fixed income and cash investment fu - 2,057 62 2,119
U.S. corporate(b - 2,126 3 2,129
Residential mortgar-backec - 1,276 5 1,281
U.S. government and federal agency - 3,872 - 3,872
Other debt securities(t - 1,566 146 1,712
Private equities(a) - - 6,786 6,786
Real estate(a) - - 3,274 3,274
Other investments(e) - - 1,709 1,709
Total investments $ 18,005 11,732 11,985 41,722
Other (f) 415
Total assets $ 42,137
(a) Included direct investments and investment fundS. Equity and nc-U.S. equity investment funds were added in 2!
(b) Primarily represented investment grade bonds of idsBers from diverse industrit
(c) Included sho-term investments to meet liquidity nee
(d) Primarily represented investments in -U.S. corporate bonds and commercial mort-backed securitie:
(e) Substantially all represented hedge fund investm
) Primarily represented net unsettled transactiolase® to purchases and sales of investments amdeatmcome receivable
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The following tables present the changes in Leviev8stments for the GE Pension Plan.

Changes in Level 3 Investments for the Year Endeddzember 31, 201.

Purchases Transfers
issuance in and/or
January 1, Net realizec Net unrealizec and out of December 31
(In millions) 2012 gains (losse: gains (losse: settlement: Level ¥(a) 2012
Debt securities
Fixed income and cas
investment fund $ 62 $ - $ 9 3 1) $ - 3 50
U.S. corporat 3 1) - 2) - -
Residential mortga-backec 5 2) - - - 3
Other debt securitie 146 2) - (122 - 22
Private equities 6,786 133 438 479, - 6,878
Real estate 3,274 20 279 (217, - 3,356
Other investments 1,709 32 72 (71) (48) 1,694
$ 11,985 $ 180 $ 798 $ (912 $ 48) $ 12,003
(a) Transfers in and out of Level 3 are consideredctupat the beginning of the peric
Changes in Level 3 Investments for the Year Endedézember 31, 201
Purchases Transfers
issuance in and/or
January 1, Net realizec Net unrealized and out of December 31
(In millions) 2011 gains (losse: gains (losse: settlement: Level §(a) 2011
Debt securities
Fixed income and ca:
investment fund $ 65 $ @ $ 4 $ 2 3% - $ 62
U.S. corporat 5 - - 5) 3 3
Residential mortgar-backec 21 1) 1) 4) (10) 5
Other debt securitie 283 4 6 (145, ) 146
Private equities 6,014 311 701 (240 - 6,786
Real estate 3,373 (70) 320 (217, (132 3,274
Other investments 1,687 (41) (87) 150 — 1,709
$ 11,448 $ 202 $ 935 $ (459 $ (141 $ 11,985

(a) Transfers in and out of Level 3 are consideredctupat the beginning of the peric

Other pension plans’ assets were $9,702 million&B8¢B881 million at December 31, 2012 and DecerBlieR011, respectively. Equity and debt securai@sunting to $8,497 million and&284 million
represented approximately 89% of total investmantsoth December 31, 2012 and December 31, 20¥lplEmsinvestments were classified as 14% Level 1, 75%elL2wand 11% Level 3 at Decem
31, 2012. The planshvestments were classified as 13% Level 1, 76%eL2wand 11% Level 3 at December 31, 2011. Thegdmim Level 3 investments were insignificant fog years ended Decem
31, 2012 and 2011.
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Pension Asset (Liability)

Principal pension plans Other pension plans
December 31 (In millions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Funded status(a)(l $ (18,764 $ (18,373 $ (3,882 $ (3,256
Pension asset (liability) recorded in 1
Statement of Financial Positit
Pension assi $ - $ - $ 141 $ 158
Pension liabilities
Due within one year(c (159; (148; (62) (52)
Due after one yes (18,605 (18,225 (3,961 (3,362
Net amount recognize $ (18,764 $ (18,373 $ (3,882 $ (3,256
Amounts recorded in shareowr’
equity (unamortized
Prior service cos $ 1,406 $ 1,685 $ (4) $ 4
Net actuarial los 24,437 26,923 3,962 3,294
Total $ 25,843 $ 28,608 $ 3,958 $ 3,298

(a) Fair value of assets less PBO, as shown in theegieg tables
(b) The GE Pension Plan was underfunded by $13.3 bi#lied $13.2 billion at December 31, 2012 and Deegrb, 2011, respectivel

(c) For principal pension plans, represents the GE Bapgntary Pension Plan liabilit

In 2013, we estimate that we will amortize $245liomil of prior service cost and $ 3,650 million @ftractuarial loss for the principal pension plawsnf shareowners’ equity into pension cost. Formothe
pension plans, the estimated prior service cosnandctuarial loss to be amortized in 2013 willi@ million and $ 350 million, respectively. Comalale amortized amounts in 2012, respectively, were
$279 million and $ 3,421 million for the principagnsion plans and $8 million and $280 million féney pension plans.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

2018-
(In millions) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2022
Principal pensiol $ 3,040 $ 3,100 $ 3,170 $ 3,230 $ 3,275 $ 17,680
plans
Other pensiol
plans $ 455 $ 465 $ 475 $ 485 $ 495 $ 2,670

Retiree Health and Life Benefits

We sponsor a number of retiree health and liferavsce benefit plans (retiree benefit plans). Ppiakietiree benefit plans are discussed below;ratheh plans are not significant individually ortire
aggregate. We use a December 31 measurement dater folans.

Principal Retiree Benefit Plansprovide health and life insurance benefits to éergdigible participants and these participantsrstia the cost of healthcare benefits. In 2012amended our principal

retiree benefit plans such that, effective JandaB015, our post-65 retiree medical plans wiltlmsed to salaried and retired salaried employd®save not enrolled in the plans as of that date vee
will no longer offer company-provided life insuranin retirement for certain salaried employees vétive after that date. These plans cover appraeiin205,000 retirees and dependents.
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Cost of Principal Retiree Benefit Plans

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Service cost for benefits earn $ 219 $ 216 $ 241
Prior service cost amortizatic 518 647 631
Expected return on plan ass (73) 97) (116
Interest cost on benefit obligatio 491 604 699
Net actuarial loss (gain) amortizati 32 (110 (22)
Net curtailment/settlement ga (101 — —
Retiree benefit plans ca $ 1,086 $ 1,260 $ 1,433

Actuarial assumptionsare described below. The actuarial assumptionsaémber 31 are used to measure the year-end bebléjitions and the retiree benefit plan costsliersubsequent year.

December 3: 2012 2011 2010 2009
Discount rate 3.74% 4.09%(b) 5.15% 5.67%
Compensation increas 3.90 3.75 4.25 4.20
Expected return on asst 7.00 7.00 8.00 8.50
Initial healthcare trend rate( 6.50 7.00 7.00 7.40

(a) For 2012, ultimately declining to 5% for 2030 aheéreafter

(b) Weighted average discount rate3.94% was used for determination of costs in 2!

To determine the expected long-term rate of returmetiree life plan assets, we consider curredttarget asset allocations, historical and expeteans on various categories of plan assets e/
expected benefit payments and resulting assetsleietieveloping future return expectations foireetbenefit plan assets, we formulate views orfuhge economic environment, both in the U.S. and
abroad. We evaluate general market trends andricstoelationships among a number of key varialties impact asset class returns such as expeateihgs growth, inflation, valuations, yields and
spreads, using both internal and external souWesalso take into account expected volatility byeaglass and diversification across classes trmaie expected overall portfolio results givenrent
and target allocations. Based on our analysistoféuexpectations of asset performance, past re¢suits, our current and target asset allocatisngell as a shorter time horizon for retiree fifen

assets, we have assumed a 7.0% long-term expetted pn those assets for cost recognition in 2048 apply our expected rate of return to a mar&kstted value of assets, which stabilizes variagbilit
in the amounts to which we apply that expectedrnetu

We amortize experience gains and losses, as weieasffects of changes in actuarial assumptiodspéem provisions, over a period no longer thanatherage future service of employees.

Funding Policy. We fund retiree health benefits on a pay-as-yobagis. We expect to contribute approximately $6@bam in 2013 to fund such benefits. We fund tleginee life insurance trust at our
discretion.
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Changes in the accumulated postretirement bergfgation for retiree benefit plans follow.

Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation (APBQ

(In millions) 2012 2011
Balance at January 13,056 12,010
Service cost for benefits earn 219 216
Interest cost on benefit obligatio 491 604
Participant contribution 54 55
Plan amendmen (832 25
Actuarial loss (gain (60) 911(a)
Benefits paic (758, (765,
Net curtailment/settlemel (366 —
Balance at December 31( 11,804 13,056
(@) Primarily associated with discount rate char
(b) The APBO for the retiree health plans was $9,218aniand $10,286million at yea-end 2012 and 2011, respective
A one percentage point change in the assumed basgdtkost trend rate would have the following affec

1% 1%
(In millions) Increase Decreas!
APBO at December 31, 20: $ 1,017 $ (860)
Service and interest cost in 20 76 (63)

Plan Assets

The fair value of the classes of retiree benefihpl investments is presented below. The inputsvahition techniques used to measure the fairevalassets are consistently applied and desciibed

Note 1.

Fair Value of Plan Assets

(In millions) 2012 2011
Balance at January $ 1,004 $ 1,125
Actual gain on plan asse 98 15
Employer contribution 548 574
Participant contribution 54 55
Benefits paic (758 (765)
Balance at December . $ 946 $ 1,004
Asset Allocation
December 3: 2012 2012
Target Actual

allocation allocation
Equity securitiet 35-75 % (a) 35% (b)
Debt securities (including cash equivaler 11-41 40
Private equitie: 3-1:3 17
Real estat 2-12 6
Other 0-1C 2
(a) Target allocations were -38% for U.S. equity securities and-37% for no-U.S. equity securitiet
(b) Actual allocations were 22% for U.S. equity sedesitand 13% for n-U.S. equity securitie:
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Plan fiduciaries set investment policies and striatefor the trust and oversee its investment atlon, which includes selecting investment managadssetting long-term strategic targets. The pryma
strategic investment objectives are balancing itmuest risk and return and monitoring the plan’siliity position in order to meet the near term Hieqperyment and other cash needs. Target allocation
percentages are established at an asset clas®jepkin fiduciaries. Target allocation rangesguilelines, not limitations, and occasionally pfialuciaries will approve allocations above or belaw
target range.

Trust assets invested in short-term securities gersérally be invested in securities rated A-1/-better, except for 15% of such securities thay ive rated A-2/P-2 and other short-term securdges
may be approved by the plan fiduciaries. Accordmgtatute, the aggregate holdings of all qualdy@mployer securities (e.g., GE common stock) aradifying employer real property may not exceed
10% of the fair value of trust assets at the tifpurchase. GE securities represented 5.8% and df7fést assets at year-end 2012 and 2011, reselyct

Retiree life plan assets were $946 million and @4 @illion at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respelgtiEquity and debt securities amounting to $74lfion and $760 million represented
approximately 75% and 74% of total investments etdnber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The plamestments were classified as 28% Level 1, 47% L2 and 25% Level 3 at December 31,
2012. The planshvestments were classified as 32% Level 1, 42%elL2wand 26% Level 3 at December 31, 2011. Thegdmim Level 3 investments were insignificant fug years ended December
2012 and 2011.

Retiree Benefit Asset (Liability)
December 31 (In millions 2012 2011

Funded status(¢ $ (10,858 $ (12,052
Liability recorded in the Statement of FinanciakRion
Retiree health plar

Due within one yea $ (589) $ (602)
Due after one yes (8,629 (9,684
Retiree life plan: (1,640 (1,766
Net liability recognizec $ (10,858 $ (12,052

Amounts recorded in shareowners' equity (unamat}i

Prior service cos $ 1,356 $ 2,901

Net actuarial los 182 401
Total $ 1,538 $ 3,302
(@) Fair value of assets less APBO, as shown in theeplieg tables

In 2013, we estimate that we will amortize $395liomil of prior service cost and $ 15 million of rettuarial loss from shareowneesjuity into retiree benefit plans cost. Comparaitertized amounts
2012 were $518 million of prior service cost an@ $dillion of net actuarial loss.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

2018-
(In millions) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2022
$ 780 $ 785 $ 785 $ 785 $ 785 $ 3,800
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Postretirement Benefit Plans

2012 Cost of Postretirement Benefit Plans and Chaeg in Other Comprehensive Income

Total Principal Other Retiree
postretirement pensior pensior benefit
(In millions) benefit plans plans plans plans
Cost of postretirement benefit pla $ 5,452 $ 3,798 $ 568 $ 1,086
Changes in other comprehensive incc
Prior service cost (credi- current yea (838; - (6) (832)
Net actuarial loss (gair- current yea 1,804 935 954 (85)
Net curtailment/settleme (297, - - (297,
Prior service cost amortizatic (805; (279; (8) (518,
Net actuarial loss amortizatic (3,733 (3,421 (280} (32)
Total changes in other comprehensive inct (3,869 (2,765 660 (1,764
Cost of postretirement benefit plans ¢
changes in other comprehensive incc $ 1,583 $ 1,033 $ 1,228 $ (678

NOTE 13. ALL OTHER LIABILITIES

This caption includes liabilities for various itemngluding non-current compensation and benefi$gided income, interest on tax liabilities, unmgriaed tax benefits, environmental remediationetss
retirement obligations, derivative instruments,duct warranties and a variety of sundry items.

Accruals for noreurrent compensation and benefits amounted to $89yllion and $39,430 million at December 31, 2@H2l 2011, respectively. These amounts includeg@asiment benefits, pensi
accruals, and other compensation and benefit alscsuah as deferred incentive compensation. See Nbt

We are involved in numerous remediation actionsléan up hazardous wastes as required by fededatate laws. Liabilities for remediation costslege possible insurance recoveries and, when dates
and amounts of such costs are not known, are sobdnted. When there appears to be a range obpessists with equal likelihood, liabilities areslea on the low end of such range. It is reasonably
possible that our environmental remediation exposiill exceed amounts accrued. However, due tetainties about the status of laws, regulaticeshnology and information related to individual
sites, such amounts are not reasonably estimabtal feserves related to environmental remediatraryding asbestos claims, were $ 2,988 milliobatember 31, 2012.
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NOTE 14. INCOME TAXES

Provision for Income Taxes

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010

GE

Current tax expens $ 2,307 $ 5,166 $ 2,401

Deferred tax expense (benefit) from temporary diffees (294 (327, (377
2,013 4,839 2,024

GECC

Current tax expense (bene 1,368 775 (2,292

Deferred tax expense (benefit) from temporary diffees (877 124 1,307

491 899 (985

Consolidated

Current tax expens 3,675 5,941 109

Deferred tax expense (benefit) from temporary diffees (1,171 (203 930

Total $ 2,504 $ 5,738 $ 1,039

GE and GECC file a consolidated U.S. federal inctemeeturn. This enables GE to use GECC tax dézhetind credits to reduce the tax that otherwiseldvhave been payable by GE. The GECC
effective tax rate for each period reflects thedfi¢rof these tax reductions in the consolidatedrre GE makes cash payments to GECC for theseethuctions at the time G&tax payments are due. ~
effect of GECC on the amount of the consolidatedigbility from the formation of the NBCU joint wvieure will be settled in cash no later than wherOGHax deductions and credits otherwise would
have reduced the liability of the group absenttéfxeon joint venture formation.

Consolidated U.S. earnings (loss) from continuipgrations before income taxes were $8,430 millioad12, $10,116 million in 2011 and $5,458 milliar2010. The corresponding amounts for non-
U.S.-based operations were $8,976 million in 2B, 141 million in 2011 and $8,729 million in 2010.

Consolidated current tax expense (benefit) incliedesunts applicable to U.S. federal income taxe®66fL million in 2012, $1,037 million in 2011 an¢B8$22) million in 2010, including the benefit
from GECC deductions and credits applied againss @&irent U.S. tax expense. Consolidated cur@nekpense amounts applicable to non-U.S. jurisdistwere $2,895 million, $4,657 million and
$3,132 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectiv€lgnsolidated deferred taxes related to U.S. tddecome taxes were an expense (benefit) of $(atikipn, $1,529 million and $1,994 million in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and amountscaié to non-U.S. jurisdictions of an expense @ignof $(792) million, $(2,076) million and $(178) million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Deferred income tax balances reflect the effectemiporary differences between the carrying amooihéssets and liabilities and their tax basesyelbas from net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards, and are stated at enacted tax exqascted to be in effect when taxes are actually marecovered. Deferred income tax assets repteseounts available to reduce income taxes payable
on taxable income in future years. We evaluataeheverability of these future tax deductions aretlits by assessing the adequacy of future expéatadhble income from all sources, including reversa
of taxable temporary differences, forecasted opggaarnings and available tax planning stratedieshe extent we do not consider it more likelgrtmot that a deferred tax asset will be recovezed,
valuation allowance is established.

(148)



Our businesses are subject to regulation undeda wariety of U.S. federal, state and foreign taxd, regulations and policies. Changes to these ¢tawegulations may affect our tax liability, netwon
investments and business operations. For examplis, @fective tax rate is reduced because actiwiness income earned and indefinitely reinvestesiael the United States is taxed at less than the
U.S. rate. A significant portion of this reductidapends upon a provision of U.S. tax law that defilee imposition of U.S. tax on certain active fio@l services income until that income is repétdao
the United States as a dividend. This provisioroissistent with international tax norms and periditS. financial services companies to compete ratfeztively with foreign banks and other foreign
financial institutions in global markets. This pigien, which had expired at the end of 2011, wasstated in January, 2013 retroactively for tworgehrough the end of 2013. The provision had been
scheduled to expire and had been extended by Camgresix previous occasions, but there can beswurance that it will continue to be extendedhinévent the provision is not extended after 2013,
the current U.S. tax imposed on active financialises income earned outside the United Statesdvoclease, making it more difficult for U.S. fir@al services companies to compete in global
markets. If this provision is not extended, we extpmeir effective tax rate to increase significarfter 2014.

We have not provided U.S. deferred taxes on cuivel@arnings of non-U.S. affiliates and associa@upanies that have been reinvested indefiniteles€ earnings relate to ongoing operations and, at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, were xippately $108 billion and $102 billion, respectiyeMost of these earnings have been reinvestedtineanon-U.S. business operations and we do
not intend to repatriate these earnings to fund bp8rations. Because of the availability of U@efgn tax credits, it is not practicable to detiererthe U.S. federal income tax liability that watde

payable if such earnings were not reinvested indefy. Deferred taxes are provided for earninge@i-U.S. affiliates and associated companies wieeplan to remit those earnings.

Annually, we file over 5,900 income tax return®irer 250 global taxing jurisdictions. We are uneleemination or engaged in tax litigation in manyh#fse jurisdictions. During 2011, the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) completed the audit of onsebdated U.S. income tax returns for 2006-20@¢ept for certain issues that remain under exanenaburing 2010, the IRS completed the audit of
our consolidated U.S. income tax returns for 200852 At December 31, 2012, the IRS was auditingcomsolidated U.S. income tax returns for 2008-200@ddition, certain other U.S. tax deficiency
issues and refund claims for previous years weresafved. The IRS has disallowed the tax loss ar2603 disposition of ERC Life Reinsurance CorpioratWe expect to contest the disallowance of
this loss. It is reasonably possible that the wivesl items could be resolved during the next 12tims which could result in a decrease in our lEasf “unrecognized tax benefits” — that is, the
aggregate tax effect of differences between taxmgpositions and the benefits recognized in quarftial statements. We believe that there are mer garisdictions in which the outcome of unresdlve
issues or claims is likely to be material to owsulés of operations, financial position or casiwfio We further believe that we have made adequatdspon for all income tax uncertainties. Resauntdf
audit matters, including the IRS audit of our cditkded U.S. income tax returns for 2006-2007, ceduour 2011 consolidated income tax rate by 2r8ep¢age points. Resolution of audit matters,
including the IRS audit of our consolidated U.S:dme tax returns for 2003-2005, reduced our 20b8alaated effective tax rate by 5.9 percentagetpoi

The balance of unrecognized tax benefits, the amafurelated interest and penalties we have pralated what we believe to be the range of reasormdsigible changes in the next 12 months, were:

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Unrecognized tax benefi $ 5,445 $ 5,230

Portion that, if recognized, would reduce tax exggeand effective tax rate( 4,032 3,938
Accrued interest on unrecognized tax bent 961 1,033
Accrued penalties on unrecognized tax ben 173 121
Reasonably possible reduction to the balance afaagynized tax benefi

in succeeding 12 montl 0-80C 0-90C

Portion that, if recognized, would reduce tax exggeand effective tax rate( 0-70C 0-50C
(a) Some portion of such reduction might be reportedissontinued operation
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amaswitunrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

(In millions) 2012 2011
Balance at January $ 5,230 $ 6,139
Additions for tax positions of the current ye 293 305
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 882 817
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei (723] (1,828
Settlements with tax authoritit (191) 127,
Expiration of the statute of limitatior (46) (76)
Balance at December ! $ 5,445 $ 5,230

We classify interest on tax deficiencies as inteegpense; we classify income tax penalties asigimvfor income taxes. For the years ended DeceBibe2012, 2011 and 2010, $(45) million, $(197)

million and $(75) million of interest expense (imee), respectively, and $33 million, $10 million &bl million of tax expense (income) related to pees, respectively, were recognized in the Statgme
of Earnings.

A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory inwe tax rate to the actual income tax rate is pexvidelow.
Reconciliation of U.S. Federal Statutory Income TaRate to Actual Income Tax Rate

Consolidated GE GECC
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

U.S. federal statutory incon
tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase (reduction) in ra
resulting from
inclusion of afte-tax
earnings of GECC i

before-tax earnings of Gl - - - (15.4 (12.0 (7.2 - - -
Tax on global activitie
including exports 12.7 (10.6 (19.8 4.2) (5.2) (10.7 (18.9, (15.0 (54.8
NBCU gain - 9.3 - - 9.8 - - - -
Business Property dispositi (1.9 - - - - - (4.2) - -
U.S. business credits( (2.6 3.2 (4.4) 0.7 (1.5 2.2 (4.3 4.7) (13.5
All other - net (3.4 (2.2, (3.5) (2.8 (0.9 (1.5, (1.4) (3.5) (12.5;
(20.6 (6.7 (27.7 (23.1 (9.8) (21.6 (28.8 (23.2 (80.8
Actual income tax rat 14.4% 28.3% 7.3% 11.9% 25.2% 13.4% 6.2% 11.8% (45.8%
(a) U.S. general business credits, primarily the criedimanufacture of energy efficient appliances, ¢thedit for energy produced from renewable soutbesadvanced energy project credit,
low-income housing credit and the credit for researifopmed in the U.<
Deferred Income Taxes
Aggregate deferred income tax amounts are sumnugbieew.
December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Assets
GE $ (19,745 $ (19,769
GECC (12,185 (10,919
(31,930 (30,688
Liabilities
GE 13,799 12,586
GECC 18,056 17,971
31,855 30,557
Net deferred income tax liability (ass $ (75) $ (131
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Principal components of our net liability (assef)resenting deferred income tax balances are lasviol

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
GE
Investment in NBCU LLC $ 4,937 $ 4,699
Contract costs and estimated earni 3,087 2,834
Intangible asset 2,269 1,701
Investment in global subsidiari 921 780
Depreciatior 698 574
Provision for expenses( (6,503 (6,745
Principal pension plar (6,567 (6,431
Retiree insurance plai (3,800 (4,218
Non-U.S. loss carryforwards(} (942] (1,039
Other- net (46) 662
(5,946 (7,183
GECC
Financing lease 4,506 6,718
Operating lease 5,939 5,030
Intangible asset 1,657 1,689
Investment in global subsidiari (1,451 85
Allowance for losse (1,964 (2,949
Non-U.S. loss carryforwards(} (3,115 (2,861
Cash flow hedge 119 (104,
Net unrealized gains (losses) on secur 321 (64)
Other- net (141 (492
5,871 7,052
Net deferred income tax liability (ass $ (75) $ (131,
(@) Represented the tax effects of temporary differemekted to expense accruals for a wide varietieofs, such as employee compensation and berafies, pension plan liabilities, interest

tax liabilities, product warranties and other syritems that are not currently deductit

(b) Net of valuation allowances of $1,712 million arid 183 million for GE and $628 million and $613 riaifi for GECC, for 2012 and 2011, respectively. k& het deferred tax asset as
December 31, 2012, of $4,057 million, $98 milli@ates to net operating loss carryforwards thairexp various years ending from December 31, 2@i®ugh December 31, 2015; $232
million relates to net operating losses that exjpirearious years ending from December 31, 201®udih December 31, 2029 and $3,727 million relada®et operating loss carryforwards that
may be carried forward indefinitel
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NOTE 15. SHAREOWNERS’ EQUITY

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Preferred stock issuec P - P - P -
Common stock issuec y 702 y 702 y 702
Accumulated other comprehensive incom

Balance at January 1( $ (23,974 $ (17,855 $ (15,530
Other comprehensive income before reclassifical 329 (9,601 (5,073
Reclassifications from other comprehensive inct 3,415 3,482 2,748
Other comprehensive income, net, attributable tc 3,744 (6,119 (2,325
Balance at December : $ (20,230 $ (23,974 $ (17,855
Other capital

Balance at January $ 33,693 $ 36,890 $ 37,729
Gains (losses) on treasury stock dispositions dmeir (623, (703; (839;
Preferred stock redemptic - (2,494 -
Balance at December ! $ 33,070 $ 33,693 $ 36,890
Retained earnings

Balance at January 1( $ 137,786 $ 131,137 $ 124,655
Net earnings attributable to the Compi 13,641 14,151 11,644
Dividends(c) (7,372 (7,498 (5,212
Other(d) - (4) 50
Balance at December : $ 144,055 $ 137,786 $ 131,137
Common stock held in treasury

Balance at January $ (31,769 $ (31,938 $ (32,238
Purchase (5,295 (2,067 (1,890
Dispositions 2,493 2,236 2,190
Balance at December : $ (34,571 $ (31,769 $ (31,938
Total equity

GE shareowners' equity balance at Decembe $ 123,026 $ 116,438 $ 118,936
Noncontrolling interests balance at Decembe 5,444 1,696 5,262
Total equity balance at December $ 128,470 $ 118,134 $ 124,198

(a) The 2010 opening balance was adjusted as of Ja@u@@10, for the cumulative effect of changesdocainting principles of $265 million related to theoption of ASU 20(-16 & 17.
(b) The 2010 opening balance was adjusted as of Jaau2010, for the cumulative effect of changesdeaainting principles of $1,708 million related betadoption of ASU 20(-16 & 17.
(c) Included $1,031 million ($806 million related torqureferred stock redemption) and $300 million ividends on preferred stock in 2011 and 2010, retbydy.

(d) Included the effects of accretion of redeemableisees to their redemption value of $38 million2010.

Shares of GE Preferred Stock

On October 16, 2008, we issued 30,000 shares ofciOftilative perpetual preferred stock (par valded® per share) having an aggregate liquidationevaf $3,000 million, and warrants to purchase
134,831,460 shares of common stock (par value $e08hare) to Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (Berkshiathidway) for net proceeds of $ 2,965 million infcakhe proceeds were allocated to the preferred
shares ($2,494 million) and the warrantgl{# million) on a relative fair value basis andaeted in other capital. The warrants are exertistiivough October 16, 2013, at an exercise pric28.25 pe
share of common stock and were to be settled thrphgsical share issuance. The terms of the wiriaere amended in January 2013 to allow for neteskettlement where the total number of issued
shares is based on the amount by which the avenageet price of GE common stock over the 20 tradiags preceding the date of exercise exceeds #reis& price of $22.25.

The preferred stock was redeemable at our opti@ethears after issuance at a price of 110% oidation value plus accrued and unpaid dividendsS@ptember 13, 2011, we provided notice to
Berkshire Hathaway that we would redeem the sHarehe stated redemption price of $3,300 milliphys accrued and unpaid dividends. In connectidh this notice, we recognized a preferred

dividend of $806 million (calculated as the diffece between the carrying value and redemption wafitiee preferred stock), which was recorded adaction to earnings attributable to common
shareowners and common shareowners’ equity. THerped shares were redeemed on October 17, 2011.
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GE has 50 million authorized shares of preferredis{$1.00 par value). No shares are issued arsfaputing as of December 31, 2012.

Shares of GE Common Stock

On December 14, 2012, we increased the existirtgpaaation by $10 billion to $ 25 billion for ouhare repurchase program and extended the prograimhwould have otherwise expired on
December 31, 2013) through 2015. Under this progmana book basis, we repurchased 248.6 millioneshor a total of $,185 million during 2012 and 111.3 million shafessa total of $1,968 milliol

during 2011. On February 12, 2013, we increaseeéxiging authorization by an additional $10 biflicesulting in authorization to repurchase up total of $35 billion of our common stock through
2015.

GE has 13.2 billion authorized shares of commooks($ 0.06 par value).

Common shares issued and outstanding are summanizee following table.

December 31 (In thousanc 2012 2011 2010
Issued 11,693,841 11,693,841 11,693,841
In treasury (1,288,216 (1,120,824 (1,078,465
Outstandinc 10,405,62¢ 10,573,017 10,615,37¢
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Investment securities

Balance at January $ (30) $ (636) $ (652)
OCI before reclassificatior- net of deferred taxes of $387, $341 and $7 683 577 43)
Reclassifications from OC- net of deferred taxes of $13, $1 and : 22 31 59
Other comprehensive incomel 705 608 16
Less: OCI attributable to noncontrolling intere (2) 2 —
Balance at December . $ 677 $ (30) $ (636)
Currency translation adjustments

Balance at January $ 133 $ (86) $ 3,788
OCI before reclassificatior- net of deferred taxes of $(266), $(717) and $3 474 (201) (3,939
Reclassifications from OC- net of deferred taxes of $54, $357 and (174 381 63
Other comprehensive incomel 300 180 (3,876
Less: OCI attributable to noncontrolling intere 21 (39) (2)
Balance at December . $ 412 $ 133 $ (86)
Cash flow hedge:

Balance at January $ (1,176 $ (1,280 $ (1,734
OCI before reclassificatior- net of deferred taxes of $217, $238 and $(* (127, (860) (552)
Reclassifications from OC- net of deferred taxes of $(70), $202 and $ 580 978 1,057
Other comprehensive incomel 453 118 505
Less: OCI attributable to noncontrolling intere (1) 14 51
Balance at December . $ (722) $ (1,176 $ (1,280
Benefit plans

Balance at January $ (22,901 $ (15,853 $ (16,932
Prior service credit (cos- net of deferred taxes of $304, $(276) anc 534 (495 ?3)
Net actuarial los- net of deferred taxes of $(574), $(4,746) and $|. (1,396 (8,637 (498,
Net curtailment/settlemer net of deferred taxes of $1. 174 - -
Prior service cost amortizatic- net of deferred taxes of $326, $341 and $ 497 514 513
Net actuarial loss amortizatic- net of deferred taxes of $1,278, $811 and 2,490 1,578 1,056
Other comprehensive incomel 2,299 (7,040 1,068
Less: OCI attributable to noncontrolling intere (5) 8 (11)
Balance at December : $ (20,597 $ (22,901 $ (15,853
Accumulated other comprehensive income at Decemb@&d $ (20,230 $ (23,974 $ (17,855
(a) Includes adjustments of $527 million, $786 milliand $1,171 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respebti to deferred acquisition costs, present valfuiiture profits, and investment contra

insurance liabilities and insurance annuity begéfitour runeff insurance operations to reflect the effects thauld have been recognized had the related uneshinvestment securities hold
gains and losses actually been realized in accoedaith ASC 32-10-S9¢-2.

(b) Total other comprehensive income was $3,757 mill§{6,134) million and $(2,287) million in 2012, PDand 2010, respectivel

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests in equity of consolidagtiliates includes common shares in consolidafétizées and preferred stock issued by GECC. Rreteshares that we are required to redeen
specified or determinable date are classifiedasliiies. The balance is summarized as follows:

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
GECC preferred stoc $ 3,960 $ -
Other noncontrolling interests in consolidated|iaffes(a) 1,484 1,696
Total $ 5,444 $ 1,696
(a) Consisted of a number of individually insignificar@ncontrolling interests in partnerships and ctidated affiliates
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Changes to noncontrolling interests are as follows.

Years ended December 3

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Beginning balanc $ 1,696 $ 5,262 $ 7,845
Net earning: 223 292 535
GECC issuance of preferred stc 3,960 - -
Repurchase of NBCU shares - (3,070 (1,878
Dispositions(b! - (609, (979,
Dividends (42) (34) (317,
Other(c) (393, (145 56
Ending balanc: $ 5,444 $ 1,696 $ 5,262
(@) In January 2011 and prior to the transaction withn€ast, we acquired 12.3% of NB'’s outstanding shares from Vivendi for $3,673 milland made an additional payment of $222 mil

related to previously purchased shares. Of thesiats, $3,070 million reflects a reduction in cargyvalue of noncontrolling interests. The remagnamount of $825 million represents the
amount paid in excess of our carrying value, whiels recorded as an increase in our basis in NE

(b) Includes noncontrolling interests related to tHe s GE SeaCo of $311 million and the redemptibhieller Financial preferred stock of $275 million2011, as well as the deconsolidatior
Regency Energy Partners L.P. (Regency) of $979amilh 2010.

(c) Primarily eliminations

During 2012, GECC issued 40,000 shares of non-catimel perpetual preferred stock with a $ 0.01 @dne for proceeds of $3,960 million. Of these s§a2@,500 bear an initial fixed interest rate of
7.125% through June 12, 2022, bear a floatingegtal to three-month LIBOR plus 5.296% thereaftet are callable on June 15, 2022 and 17,500 shagesan initial fixed interest rate of 6.25%
through December 15, 2022, bear a floating rataleguhree-month LIBOR plus 4.704% thereafter arelcallable on December 15, 2022. Dividends orGEEC preferred stock are payable semi-
annually, with the first payment made in Decemt&2 GECC preferred stock is presented as nondbmgrinterests in the GE consolidated statemeriinancial position.

During the 2012, GECC paid dividends of $1,926imilland special dividends of $4,500 million to G dividends were paid during 2011 or 2010.

NOTE 16. OTHER STOCK-RELATED INFORMATION

We grant stock options, restricted stock units (RSahd performance share units (PSUs) to emplayedsr the 2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan. This pkplaced the 1990 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
In addition, we grant options and RSUs in limité@emstances to consultants, advisors and indepemdatractors under a plan approved by our BoaBirectors in 1997 (the Consultanlan). Shar
requirements for all plans may be met from eith@ssued or treasury shares. Stock options expisgeeafs from the date they are granted and vestsareice periods that range from one to five years.
RSUs give the recipients the right to receive shafeour stock upon the vesting of their relatestrietions. Restrictions on RSUs vest in various@ments and at various dates, beginning afteyyeae
from date of grant through grantee retirement. édigh the plan permits us to issue RSUs settlealtash, we have only issued RSUs settleable ireshudrour stock. PSUs give recipients the right to
receive shares of our stock upon the achievemergrtdin performance targets.

All grants of GE options under all plans must bpraped by the Management Development and Compens@ommittee, which consists entirely of independirectors.
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Stock Compensation Plan:

Securities

to be Weighted Securities

issuec average available

upon exercise for future
December 31, 2012 (Shares in thousat EXercise price issuanct
Approved by shareowners
Options 467,503 19.27 (a)
RSUs 14,741 (b) (a)
PSUs 550 (b) (a)
Not approved by shareowners (Consultan’ Plan)
Options 334 25.38 (c)
RSUs 137 (b) (c)
Total 483,265 19.27 459,338
(a) In 2007, the Board of Directors approved the 200/c-Term Incentive Plan (the Plan), which replaced1®80 Lon-Term Incentive Plan. During 2012, an amendmentapgsoved tc

increase the number of shares authorized for issuander the Plan from 500 million shares to 92ianishares. No more than 230 million of the tatamber of authorized shares may be
available for awards granted in any form provideder the Plan other than options or stock apprieciaights. Total shares available for future isseaunder the Plan amounted to 431.1 mil

shares at December 31, 20

(b) Not applicable

(©) Total shares available for future issuance undeQbnsultan’ Plan amount to 28.2 million shar

Outstanding options expire on various dates thrddgtember 13, 2022.

The following table summarizes information abowaic&toptions outstanding at December 31, 2012.

Stock Options Outstanding
(Shares in thousands)

Exercise price range

Under $10.0(
10.02-15.00
15.02-20.00
20.01-25.00
25.02-30.00
30.02-35.00
Over $35.0(
Total

Qutstanding Exercisable
Average Average
Average exercis¢ exercise
Share: life(a) price Shares price
45,957 5.8 9.57 27,855 9.57
67,018 6.1 11.98 42,963 11.97
191,17¢ 7.8 17.43 65,988 17.08
83,204 9.7 21.57 266 20.84
21,550 5.1 28.22 18,411 28.21
44,455 2.2 33.25 44,420 33.25
14,474 4.2 38.70 14,474 38.70
467,837 6.9 19.27 214,377 20.85

At year-end 2011, options with a weighted averagease price of $22.47 were exercisable on 188anikhares.

(a) Average contractual life remaining in yee
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Stock Option Activity

Weighted

Weighted average Aggregate

average remaining intrinsic

Shares exercise contractual value

(In thousands' price term (In years) (In millions)
Outstanding at January 1, 20 449,861 $ 18.87
Grantec 83,179 21.56
Exercisec (29,672 11.97
Forfeited (7,464 17.31
Expired (28,067 27.86

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 467,837 g 19.27 6.9 g 1,810

Exercisable at December 31, 2( 214,377 g 20.85 5.3 g 964

Options expected to ve 235,849 g 17.82 8.2 g 814

We measure the fair value of each stock optiontgrathe date of grant using a Black-Scholes oppigacing model. The weighted average grant-dateviaue of options granted during 2012, 2011 and
2010 was $3.80, $4.00 and $4.11, respectively.fdllmving assumptions were used in arriving atfiie value of options granted during 2012, 2011 2640, respectively: risk-free interest rates of
1.3%, 2.6% and 2.9%; dividend yields of 4.0%, 388 3.9%; expected volatility of 29%, 30% and 3%3d1d expected lives of 7.8 years, 7.7 years, angiéass. Risk-free interest rates reflect the yield
on zero-coupon U.S. Treasury securities. Expeadtedahd yields presume a set dividend rate and seela historical five-year average for the dividgiedd. Expected volatilities are based on implied
volatilities from traded options and historical &blity of our stock. The expected option lives besed on our historical experience of employeecsebehavior.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgr2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to $265 millios, élion and $23 million, respectively. As of Deuber 31, 2012, there was $734 million of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvegtohs. That cost is expected to be recognized aweighted average period of 2 years, of whpgraimately $198 million after tax is expectec
be recognized in 2013.

Stock option expense recognized in net earningsgl@012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to $220 milli@g0million and $178 million, respectively. Caskewed from option exercises during 2012, 2
and 2010 was $355 million, $89 million and $37 ruil| respectively. The tax benefit realized fromcktoptions exercised during 2012, 2011 and 2019$@8 million, $21 million and $7 million,
respectively.

Other Stock-based Compensatior

Weighted

Weighted average Aggregate

average remaining intrinsic

Shares grant date contractual value

(In thousands’ fair value term (In years) (In millions)
RSUs outstanding at January 1, 2( 15,544 $ 25.18
Grantec 5,379 20.79
Vested (5,692 28.32
Forfeited (353 22.74

RSUs outstanding at December 31, 2 14,878 $ 22.45 3.0 $ 312

RSUs expected to ve 13,556 $ 22.46 2.9 $ 285
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The fair value of each restricted stock unit istierket price of our stock on the date of grant Weighted average grant date fair value of RSldatgd during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $20.79, $16.74
and $15.89, respectively. The total intrinsic vaifi®kSUs vested during 2012, 2011 and 2010 amouot&d16 million, $154 million and $111 million,geectively. As of December 31, 2012, there was
$190 million of total unrecognized compensationtcelated to nonvested RSUs. That cost is expeotee recognized over a weighted average peri@yefars, of which approximately $47 million a

tax is expected to be recognized in 2013. As ofebdzer 31, 2012, 0.6 million PSUs with a weightedrage remaining contractual term of 2 years, ameggde intrinsic value of $12 million and $1
million of unrecognized compensation cost were taniing. Other share-based compensation expen&Sids and PSUs recognized in net earnings amotmt&¢d million, $84 million and $116

million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The income tax benefit recognized in earnings basetthe compensation expense recognized for aledb@sed compensation arrangements amounted tondillis®, $163 million and $143 million in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The excesstoébi@ax deductions over amounts assumed, whicheaagnized in shareowners’ equity, were insigaificin 2012, 2011 and 2010.

When stock options are exercised and restrictark stests, the difference between the assumed taefiband the actual tax benefit must be recognimesiir financial statements. In circumstances in

which the actual tax benefit is lower than thereated tax benefit, that difference is recordedquity, to the extent there are sufficient accunedatxcess tax benefits. At December 31, 2012, our
accumulated excess tax benefits are sufficienbsoi any future differences between actual anichastd tax benefits for all of our outstanding optand restricted stock grants.

NOTE 17. OTHER INCOME

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
GE
Associated companies( $ 1,545 $ 894 $ 413
Purchases and sales of business interes 574 3,804 319
Licensing and royalty incomr 290 304 364
Interest income from GEC 114 206 133
Marketable securities and bank depo 38 52 40
Other items 96 10 16
2,657 5,270 1,285
Eliminations (94) (206 (134
Total $ 2,563 $ 5,064 $ 1,151
(a) Included income of $1,416 million and $789 millifsom our equity method investment in NBCU LLC in120and 2011, respectivel
(b) Included a pr-tax gain of $3,705 million ($526 million after tasglated to our transfer of the assets of our NBiDsiness to a newly formed entity, NBCU LLC, in 208ee Note Z
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NOTE 18. GECC REVENUES FROM SERVICES

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Interest on loan $ 19,074 $ 20,056 $ 20,810
Equipment leased to othe 10,855 11,343 11,116
Fees 4,732 4,698 4,734
Investment income(e 2,630 2,500 2,185
Financing lease 1,888 2,378 2,749
Associated companies( 1,538 2,337 2,035
Premiums earned by insurance activi 1,714 1,905 2,014
Real estate investmer 1,709 1,625 1,240
Other items 1,780 2,078 2,440

45,920 48,920 49,323
Eliminations (1,273 (1,219 (1,343
Total $ 44,647 $ 47,701 $ 47,980
(a) Included net oth+thar-temporary impairments on investment securitieslgiosmillion, $387 million and $253 million in 2012011 and 2010, respectively. See Not

(b) During 2011, we sold an 18.6% equity interest ima®& Bank and recorded a -tax gain of $690 million. During 2012, we sold @amaining equity interest in Garanti Bank, whichs\
classified as an availal-for-sale security

NOTE 19. SUPPLEMENTAL COST INFORMATION

We funded research and development expenditur$4,620 million in 2012, $4,601 million in 2011 a$#,939 million in 2010. Research and developmestscare classified in cost of goods sold in the
Statement of Earnings. In addition, research anéldpment funding from customers, principally th&SUgovernment, totaled $680 million, $788 millimnd $979 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Rental expense under operating leases is showmwbelo

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
GE $ 1,170 $ 968 $ 1,073
GECC 561 615 637

At December 31, 2012, minimum rental commitmentsasmoncancellable operating leases aggregated@4lion and $1,583 million for GE and GECC, resfively. Amounts payable over the next
five years follow.

(In millions) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
GE $ 567 $ 499 $ 393 $ 331 $ 274
GECC 318 245 201 164 136

GE’s selling, general and administrative expenstgdd $17,672 million in 2012, $17,556 million2011 and $16,340 million in 2010. The increasedfhis primarily due to increased acquisition-
related costs, offset by the effects of global cedtiction initiatives. The increase in 2011 israily due to higher pension costs, increased adepri-related costs and increased costs to sugpaival
growth, partially offset by the disposition of NBGlud lower restructuring and other charges.
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Our Aviation segment enters into collaborative agements with manufacturers and suppliers of compizrused to build and maintain certain enginedeuwhich GE and these participants share in
risks and rewards of these product programs. Utisie arrangements, participation fees earnedemotded as other income totaled $35 million, $1Honiand $4 million for the years 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively. GE's payments to participanesracorded as costs of services sold ($593 mjliéi12 million and $563 million for the years 202911 and 2010, respectively) or as cost of goods
sold ($2,506 million, $1,996 million and $1,751 wih for the years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respegtjvel

NOTE 20. EARNINGS PER SHARE INFORMATION

2012 2011 2010

(In millions; per-share amounts in dollars) Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic
Amounts attributable to the Company:
Consolidated
Earnings from continuing operations for -share

calculation(a)(b $ 14,659 $ 14,659 $ 14,206 $ 14,205 $ 12,588 $ 12,588
Preferred stock dividends declarec — — (1,031 (1,031 (300 (300
Earnings from continuing operations attributabli

common shareowners for |-share calculation(a)(t 14,659 14,659 13,174 13,174 12,288 12,288
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations

per-share calculation(a)(t (1,035 (1,036 (74) (75) (964, (965,
Net earnings attributable to GE common shareow

for pe-share calculation(a)(t $ 13,623 $ 13,622 $ 13,098 $ 13,098 $ 11,322 $ 11,322
Average equivalent share!
Shares of GE common stock outstanc 10,523 10,523 10,591 10,591 10,661 10,661
Employee compensati-related shares, includir

stock options 41 - 29 - 17 -
Total average equivalent sha 10,564 10,523 10,620 10,591 10,678 10,661
Per-share amounts
Earnings from continuing operatio $ 139 $ 139 $ 124 $ 124 $ 115 $ 1.15
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati (0.10 (0.10 (0.01; (0.01; (0.09 (0.09
Net earning: 1.29 1.29 1.23 1.24 1.06 1.06

Our unvested restricted stock unit awards thatainmton-forfeitable rights to dividends or divideeguivalents are considered participating secsréigd, therefore, are included in the computatfon o
earnings per share pursuant to the two-class mefpplication of this treatment has an insignifitaffect.

(a) Included an insignificant amount of dividend equeves in each of the three years preser
(b) Included an insignificant amount related to acoretf redeemable securities in 20
(c) Included $806 million related to the redemptioroaf 10% cumulative preferred stock in 2011. Se&eNS.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ari®] #8&re were approximately 292 million, 321 mifliand 325 million, respectively, of outstandingc&tawards that were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share becéese ¢ffect was antidilutive.

Earnings-per-share amounts are computed indepéyndenearnings from continuing operations, earsitipss) from discontinued operations and net egmiAs a result, the sum of per-share amounts
from continuing operations and discontinued operstimay not equal the total per-share amountseoearnings.

(160)



NOTE 21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

For a description of how we estimate fair value, Sete 1.

The following tables present our assets and liddslimeasured at fair value on a recurring bas&udled in the tables are investment securitiemamily supporting obligations to annuitants and
policyholders in our run-off insurance operations gupporting obligations to holders of GICs innltsi (which ceased issuing new investment contraeginning in the first quarter of 2010), investinen

securities held at our treasury operations andsimvents held in our CLL business collateralizedgégior secured loans of high-quality, middiarket companies in a variety of industries. Swegusties
are mainly investment grade.
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Netting

(In millions) Level 1(a) Level 2(a) Level & adjustment(b) Net balance
December 31, 201
Assets
Investment securitie
Debt
U.S. corporatt - 20,580 3,591 - 24,171
State and municip: - 4,469 77 - 4,546
Residential mortga-backec - 2,162 100 - 2,262
Commercial mortga¢-backec - 3,088 6 - 3,094
Asse-backed(c - 715 5,023 - 5,738
Corporate- nor-U.S. 71 1,132 1,218 - 2,421
Governmen- nor-U.S. 702 1,019 42 - 1,763
U.S. government and fedel
agency - 3,288 277 - 3,565
Retained interes: - - 83 - 83
Equity
Available-for-sale 590 16 13 - 619
Trading 248 - - - 248
Derivatives(d) - 11,432 434 (7,926 3,940
Other(e) 35 - 799 - 834
Total 1,646 47,901 11,663 (7,926 53,284
Liabilities
Derivatives - 3,434 20 (3,177 277
Other(f) — 908 — — 908
Total - 4,342 20 (3,177 1,185
December 31, 201
Assets
Investment securitie
Debt
U.S. corporat - 20,535 3,235 - 23,770
State and municip: - 3,157 77 - 3,234
Residential mortga-backec - 2,568 41 - 2,609
Commercial mortga¢-backec - 2,824 4 - 2,828
Asse-backed(c - 930 4,040 - 4,970
Corporate- nor-U.S. 71 1,058 1,204 - 2,333
Governmen- nor-U.S. 1,003 1,444 84 - 2,531
U.S. government and fede!
agency - 3,805 253 - 4,058
Retained interes: - - 35 - 35
Equity
Available-for-sale 730 18 17 - 765
Trading 241 - - - 241
Derivatives(d) - 15,252 393 (5,604 10,041
Other(e) — — 817 — 817
Total 2,045 51,591 10,200 (5,604 58,232
Liabilities
Derivatives - 5,010 27 (4,308 729
Other(f) - 863 - - 863
Total - 5,873 27 (4,308 1,592
(a) There were no securities transferred between Lewagld Level 2 during 201
(b) The netting of derivative receivables and payaffesuding the effects of any collateral postedexeived) is permitted when a legally enforceabdester netting agreement exis
(c) Includes investments in our CLL business in &backed securities collateralized by senior secloads of higlquality, middle-market companies in a variety of industri
(d) The fair value of derivatives included an adjusttfennor-performance risk. The cumulative adjustment waaia (joss) of $(15) million at December 31, 2012 $(13) million at Decembe
31, 2011. See Note 22 for additional informatiortieecomposition of our derivative portfoli
(e) Included private equity investments and loans degid under the fair value optic
) Primarily represented the liability associated vaiéntain of our deferred incentive compensatiomg!
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The following tables present the changes in LeviesBuments measured on a recurring basis foy¢lhes ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respgctired majority of our Level 3 balances consist
of investment securities classified as availablesfle with changes in fair value recorded in strareers’ equity.

Changes in Level 3 Instruments for the Year Ended Bcember 31, 201

Net
(In millions) change ir
Net realized. unrealized
Net unrealized gains
realized gains (losset (losses
unrealized included in relating to
Balance gains accumulatec Balance instruments
at (losses other Transfers Transfers at still held at
January 1, included comprehensivt into out of December 31 December 31
2012  in earnings(a) income Purchase! Sale:  Settlement: Level 3(b) Level 3(b) 2012 2012(c)
Investment securities
Debt
U.S. Corporat $ 3,235 $ 66 $ 32 $ 483 $ (214, $ (110, $ 299 % (200, $ 3591 | $ -
State and municip: 77 - 10 16 - 1) 78 (103; 77 -
Residentia
mortgag-backed 41 3) 1 6 - 3) 135 77) 100 -
Commercial
mortgag-backed 4 - Q) - - - 6 3) 6 -
Asse-backed 4,040 1 (25) 1,490 (502; - 25 (6) 5,023 -
Corporate- nor-U.S. 1,204 (11) 19 341 (51) 172 24 (136, 1,218 -
Governmen
—nor-U.S. 84 (33) 38 65 (72) (40) - - 42 -
U.S. government ar
federal agenc 253 - 24 - - - - - 277 -
Retained interes! 35 1) 3) 16 (6) (12) 54 - 83 -
Equity
Available-for-sale 17 - 1) 3 3) 1) 2 4) 13 -
Trading - - - - - - - - - -
Derivatives(d)(e 369 29 1) @) - 112 190 (58) 416 160
Other 817 50 2 159 (137 - - (92) 799 43
Total $ 10,176 $ 98 $ 95 $ 2,578 $ (985 $ (451 $ 813 $ 679 $ 11,645 | $ 203
(a) Earnings effects are primarily included in “GECC revenues from servi(’ and“Interest and other financial char” captions in the Statement of Earnin
(b) Transfers in and out of Level 3 are consideredctupat the beginning of the period. Transfersafutevel 3 were a result of increased use of quistes independent pricing vendors basec
recent trading activity
(c) Represented the amount of unrealized gains orddssé¢he period included in earning
(d) Represented derivative assets net of derivatibditias and included cash accruals of $2 milliat reflected in the fair value hierarchy tat
(e) Gains (losses) included in net realized/unrealgaids (losses) included in earnings were offsethleyearnings effects from the underlying items thette economically hedged. See Note
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Changes in Level 3 Instruments for the Year Ended Bcember 31, 201

Net
(In millions) change ir
Net realized, unrealized
Net unrealized gains
realized gains (losses (losses
unrealized included in relating to
Balance gains accumulatec Balance instruments
at (losses other Transfers Transfers at still held at
January 1, included comprehensive into out of December 31 December 31
2011 in earnings(a) income Purchase: Sale:  Settlement: Level 3b)__Level &(b) 2011 2011(c)
Investment securities
Debt
U.S. corporatt $ 3,199 $ 78 % (157, $ 235 $ (183 $ (112, $ 182 % 7 3% 3,235 -
State and municip: 225 - - 12 - 8) - (152 77 -
Residentia
mortgag-backed 66 3) 1 2 (5) 1) 71 (90) 41 -
Commercial
mortgag-backed 49 - - 6 - 4) 3 (50) 4 -
Asse-backed 2,540 (10) 61 2,157 (185 (11) 1 (513 4,040 -
Corporate- nor-U.S. 1,486 (47) (91) 25 (55) (118; 85 (81) 1,204 -
Governmen
—nor-U.S. 156 (100} 48 41 ) @27 107 (140, 84 -
U.S. government ar
federal agenc 210 - 43 500 - - - (500 253 -
Retained interes! 39 (28) 26 8 5) 5) - - 35 -
Equity
Available-for-sale 24 - - - - - 4 (11) 17 -
Trading - - - - - - - - - -
Derivatives(d)(e 265 151 2 ) - (207, 150 10 369 130
Other 906 95 (9) 152 (266 (6) - (55) 817 34
Total $ 9,165 $ 136 $ (76) $ 3,136 $ (700 $ (499 $ 603 $ (1589 $ 10,176 164
(a) Earnings effects are primarily included in “GECC revenues from servi(’ and“Interest and other financial char” captions in the Statement of Earnin
(b) Transfers in and out of Level 3 are consideredctupat the beginning of the period. Transfersadutevel 3 were a result of increased use of quistes independent pricing vendors basec
recent trading activity
(c) Represented the amount of unrealized gains orddsse¢he period included in earning
(d) Represented derivative assets net of derivatibditias and included cash accruals of $3 milliat reflected in the fair value hierarchy tat
(e) Gains (losses) included in net realized/unrealgaids (losses) included in earnings were offsethleyearnings effects from the underlying items thette economically hedged. See Note
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Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following table represents non-recurring fatue amounts (as measured at the time of the aujms} for those assets remeasured to fair valuermn-recurring basis during the fiscal year aild st
held at December 31, 2012 and 2011. These asseisatade loans and long-lived assets that have beguced to fair value when they are held for,daipaired loans that have been reduced based on
the fair value of the underlying collateral, costl@quity method investments and long-lived asbetisare written down to fair value when they anpaired and the remeasurement of retained
investments in formerly consolidated subsidiaripsrua change in control that results in deconstdidaf a subsidiary, if we sell a controlling intst and retain a noncontrolling stake in the entit
Assets that are written down to fair value whenaimgd and retained investments are not subsequadithgted to fair value unless further impairmerduos.

Remeasured during the year ended December :

2012 2011

(In millions) Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 Level 3
Financing receivables and loans held for: $ 366 $ 4,094 $ 158 $ 5,159
Cost and equity method investments 8 313 - 403
Long-lived assets, including real est: 702 2,184 1,343 3,282
Total $ 1,076 $ 6,591 $ 1,501 $ 8,844
(a) Includes the fair value of private equity and resthte funds included in Level 3 of $84 million &1®3 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, retbedy.
The following table represents the fair value atipents to assets measured at fair value on a roumrieg basis and still held at December 31, 20i®2011.

Year ended December 3
(In millions) 2012 2011
Financing receivables and loans held for: $ (595) $ (857)
Cost and equity method investments (53] (274,
Long-lived assets, including real estate (624 (1,424
Total $ (1,372 $ (2,555
(a) Includes fair value adjustments associated withapei equity and real estate funds of $(33) milkow $(24) million during 2012 and 2011, respecyiv
(b) Includes impairments related to real estate equritperties and investments recorded in other @eisexpenses of $218 million and $976 million dgr2012 and 2011, respective
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Level 3 Measurements

The following table presents information relatiogte significant unobservable inputs of our Ledeécurring and non-recurring measurements.

Fair value at Range
December 31 Valuation Unobservable (weighted
(Dollars in millions) 2012 technique inputs average)
Recurring fair value measurements
Investment securitie
Debt
U.S. corporat $ 1,652 Income approac Discount rate(a 1.3%-29.9% (11.1%
Asse-backec 4,977 Income approac Discount rate(a 2.1%-13.1% (3.8%
Corporate Nc-U.S. 865 Income approac Discount rate(a 1.5%-25.0% (13.2%
Other financial asse 360 Income approac Weighted averag 8.7%-10.2% (8.7%
cost of capita
273 Market comparable EBITDA multiple 4.9X-10.6X (7.9X
Non-recurring fair value measurements
Financing receivables and loans held for : $ 2,633 Income approac Capitalization rate(k 3.8%-14.0% (8.0%
202 Business enterpris EBITDA multiple 2.0X-6.0X (4.8X
value
Cost and equity method investme 72 Income approac Capitalization rate(k 9.2%-12.8% (12.0%
Long-lived assets, including real est. 985 Income approac Capitalization rate(k 4.8%-14.6% (7.3%
(a) Discount rates are determined based on inputsnihstet participants would use when pricing investtseincluding credit and liquidity risk. An incrgain the discount rate would result
decrease in the fair valu
(b) Represents the rate of return on net operatingniecwhich is considered acceptable for an investdria used to determine a prop’s capitalized value. An increase in the capitaliratate

would result in a decrease in the fair val

Other Level 3 recurring fair value measurement$3y146 million and non-recurring measurements 242 million are valued using non-binding brokeotgs or other third-party sources. For a
description of our process to evaluate third-partging servicers, see Note 1. Other recurring falue measurements of $370 million and non-recgrfair value measurements of $287 million were

individually insignificant and utilize a number different unobservable inputs not subject to megfuinaggregation.
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NOTE 22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table provides information about eesets and liabilities not carried at fair valueum Statement of Financial Position. Consistertih WiSC 825 Financial Instruments the table excludes
finance leases and non-financial assets and ligsiliSubstantially all of the assets discusseovbare considered to be Level 3 in accordance ABE 820. The vast majority of our liabilities’ faialue
can be determined based on significant observapléts and thus considered Level 2 in accordande ABC 820. Few of the instruments are activelyedhadnd their fair values must often be determ
using financial models. Realization of the fairu@bf these instruments depends upon market ftwegend our control, including marketplace liquidity

2012 2011
Assets (liabilities) Assets (liabilities)
Carrying Carrying
Notional amount Estimated Notional amount Estimated
December 31 (In millions amount (net) fair value amount (net) fair value
GE
Assets
Investments and not
receivable $ (@) $ 222 $ 222 % (@) $ 285 % 285
Liabilities
Borrowings(b) (@) (17,469 (18,619 (@) (11,589 (12,535
GECC
Assets
Loans (@) 236,678 239,084 (@) 250,999 251,433
Other commercial mortgag (a) 2,222 2,249 (a) 1,494 1,537
Loans held for sal (a) 1,180 1,181 (a) 496 497
Other financial instruments(: (a) 1,858 2,276 (a) 2,071 2,534
Liabilities
Borrowings and ban
deposits(b)(d (a) (397,300 (414,533 (a) (443,097 (449,403
Investment contract benefi (@) (3,321 (4,150 (@) (3,493 (4,240
Guaranteed investme
contracts (a) (1,644 (1,674 (a) (4,226 (4,266
Insurance- credit life(e) 2,277 (120; (104, 1,944 (106} (88)
(@) These financial instruments do not have notionadamts.
(b) See Note 1C
(c) Principally cost method investmen
(d) Fair values exclude interest rate and currencyédtvies designated as hedges of borrowings. Hadliéen included, the fair value of borrowings at&maber 31, 2012 and 2011 would hi

been reduced by $7,937 million and $9,051 milli@spectively

(e) Net of reinsurance of $2,000 million at both Decem®1, 2012 and 201

A description of how we estimate fair values follow

Loans

Based on a discounted future cash flows methodolagipg current market interest rate data adjusteihherent credit risk or quoted market priced agcent transactions, if available.
Borrowings and bank deposits

Based on valuation methodologies using current atankerest rate data which are comparable to rapketes adjusted for our non-performance risk.
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Investment contract benefits

Based on expected future cash flows, discountedragntly offered rates for immediate annuity caots or the income approach for single premiumrdedeannuities.
Guaranteed investment contracts

Based on valuation methodologies using current etdriterest rate data, adjusted for our non-peréoree risk.

All other instruments

Based on observable market transactions and/oatiatumethodologies using current market interats data adjusted for inherent credit risk.

Assets and liabilities that are reflected in theoaepanying financial statements at fair value arteimcluded in the above disclosures; such iterokide cash and equivalents, investment securitids a
derivative financial instruments.

Additional information about certain categoriegtie table above follows.
Insurance — credit life

Certain insurance affiliates, primarily in Consumissue credit life insurance designed to pay #iarize due on a loan if the borrower dies befaeddhn is repaid. As part of our overall risk masragn
process, we cede to third parties a portion ofdk&ociated risk, but are not relieved of our prmabligation to policyholders.

Loan Commitments
Notional amount

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Ordinary course of business lending commitment $ 3,708 $ 3,756
Unused revolving credit lines(|
Commercial(c 17,929 18,757
Consume- principally credit card 271,387 257,64€

(a) Excluded investment commitments of $1,276 milliowl 2,064 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2@ddpectively
(b) Excluded inventory financing arrangements, whicly fne withdrawn at our option, of $12,813 millionda$12,354 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2@dgpectively

(c) Included commitments of $12,923 million and $14,0&Wion as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respelstj associated with secured financing arrangesniivait could have increased t
maximum of $15,731 million and $17,344 million atd@mber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, basedsat aolume under the arrangem:

Derivatives and hedging

As a matter of policy, we use derivatives for nisknagement purposes, and we do not use deriv@tivepeculative purposes. A key risk managemergativie for our financial services businesses is to
mitigate interest rate and currency risk by seekingnsure that the characteristics of the debtimtite assets they are funding. If the form (fixedsus floating) and currency denomination of tebtdve
issue do not match the related assets, we typieatigute derivatives to adjust the nature and tehfumding to meet this objective. The determioatof whether we enter into a derivative transactio
issue debt directly to achieve this objective dejsesn a number of factors, including market reldéetors that affect the type of debt we can issue.
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The notional amounts of derivative contracts regmethe basis upon which interest and other paysremet calculated and are reported gross, excepffiatting foreign currency forward contracts that
are executed in order to manage our currency fisiebinvestment in foreign subsidiaries. Of théstanding notional amount of $325,000 million, appmately 87% or $282,000 million, is associated
with reducing or eliminating the interest rate,remcy or market risk between financial assets &tmlities in our financial services businessese Témaining derivative activities primarily relage
hedging against adverse changes in currency exehrates and commodity prices related to anticipstéels and purchases and contracts containingrceléases which meet the accounting definitio

a derivative. The instruments used in these aigt#vitre designated as hedges when practicable. Wéane not able to apply hedge accounting, or vthemlerivative and the hedged item are both
recorded in earnings concurrently, the derivataresdeemed economic hedges and hedge accountingagpplied. This most frequently occurs when wagleea recognized foreign currency transaction
(e.g., areceivable or payable) with a derivat®iace the effects of changes in exchange rateefieeted concurrently in earnings for both theid®ive and the transaction, the economic hedge doé
require hedge accounting.

The following table provides information about faé value of our derivatives by contract type, @eqing those accounted for as hedges and thosarthaot.

2012 2011
Fair value Fair value
December 31 (In millions Asset: Liabilities Asset: Liabilities
Derivatives accounted for as hedge
Interest rate contrac $ 8,443 $ 719 $ 9,446 $ 1,049
Currency exchange contras 890 1,777 3,750 2,325
Other contract 1 - 1 11
9,334 2,496 13,197 3,385
Derivatives not accounted for as hedge
Interest rate contrac 452 195 319 241
Currency exchange contrau 1,797 691 1,748 1,274
Other contract 283 72 381 137
2,532 958 2,448 1,652
Netting adjustments(a) (2,801 (2,786 (3,294 (3,281
Cash collateral(b)(c) (5,125 (391 (2,310 (1,027
Total $ 3,940 $ 277 $ 10,041 $ 729

Derivatives are classified in the captions “All ettassets” and “All other liabilities” in our finaial statements.

(a) The netting of derivative receivables and payaisigermitted when a legally enforceable mastelingeigreement exists. Amounts included fair valdigstments related to our own a
counterparty nc-performance risk. At December 31, 2012 and 20X cthmulative adjustment for n-performance risk was a gain (loss) of $(15) millar $(13) million, respectivel

(b) Excludes excess cash collateral received of $4omind $579 million at December 31, 2012 and 20&4pectively. Excludes excess cash collaterabpasf $10 million at December 3
2012.
(c) Excludes securities pledged to us as collater§bg86 million and $10,574 million at December 2212 and 2011, respectively, which includes exsessrities collateral of $359 million

December 31, 201:

Fair value hedges
We use interest rate and currency exchange dendgtd hedge the fair value effects of interes eatd currency exchange rate changes on local@nfunctional currency denominated fixed-rate debt.

For relationships designated as fair value heddemages in fair value of the derivatives are reedridh earnings within interest and other financlarges, along with offsetting adjustments to the
carrying amount of the hedged debt. The followialgi¢ provides information about the earnings effectour fair value hedging relationships for tleags ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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2012 2011

(In millions) Gain (loss Gain (loss Gain (loss’ Gain (loss’
on hedginc¢ on hedget on hedginc¢ on hedget
derivatives items derivatives items

Interest rate contrac $ 708 $ (1,041 $ 5,888 $ (6,322

Currency exchange contrau (169, 199 119 (144,

Fair value hedges resulted in $(303) million ardb®) million of ineffectiveness in 2012 and 201dspectively. In both 2012 and 2011, there wergi§cant amounts excluded from the assessment of
effectiveness.

Cash flow hedges
We use interest rate, currency exchange and contyndediivatives to reduce the variability of expetteture cash flows associated with variable ratedwings and commercial purchase and sale
transactions, including commodities. For derivaitteat are designated in a cash flow hedging oelghiip, the effective portion of the change in failue of the derivative is reported as a componént

AOCI and reclassified into earnings contemporanigcarsd in the same caption with the earnings effe€the hedged transaction .

The following table provides information about #mmounts recorded in AOCI, as well as the gain {loasorded in earnings, primarily in interest atioeo financial charges, when reclassified out of
AOCI, for the years ended December 31, 2012 and.201

Gain (loss) recognizet Gain (loss) reclassified from
in AOCI AOCI into earnings
(In millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Interest rate contrac $ (158, $ (302; $ (499, $ (820;
Currency exchange contrau 317 (292, (6) (370;
Commodity contract 6 (13) (5) 10
Total $ 165 $ (607 $ (510; $ (1,180

The total pre-tax amount in AOCI related to casiwfhedges of forecasted transactions was a $79%@miibss at December 31, 2012. We expect to tear&391 million to earnings as an expense in the
next 12 months contemporaneously with the earrgfigets of the related forecasted transaction&0l2, we recognized insignificant gains and losskged to hedged forecasted transactions and firm
commitments that did not occur by the end of thgially specified period. At December 31, 2012 &9d 1, the maximum term of derivative instrumehtt hedge forecasted transactions was 20 years
and 21 years, respectively.

For cash flow hedges, the amount of ineffectivenmesise hedging relationship and amount of the glearin fair value of the derivatives that are netuded in the measurement of ineffectiveness are
both reflected in earnings each reporting peridtese amounts are primarily reported in GECC reveifroen services and totaled $5 million and $29ionmilfor the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

Net investment hedges in foreign operations

We use currency exchange derivatives to protechetinvestments in global operations conductetbimU.S. dollar currencies. For derivatives that@esignated as hedges of net investment in a
foreign operation, we assess effectiveness basetlanmges in spot currency exchange rates. Changg®i rates on the derivative are recorded asnapent of AOCI until such time as the foreign
entity is substantially liquidated or sold. The e in fair value of the forward points, which egfis the interest rate differential between the ¢awantries on the derivative, is excluded from the
effectiveness assessment.

The following table provides information about #@ounts recorded in AOCI for the years ended Deee®b, 2012 and 2011, as well as the gain (loss)yrded in GECC revenues from services when
reclassified out of AOCI.
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Gain (loss) recognizet Gain (loss) reclassifiec

(In millions) in CTA from CTA
2012 2011 2012 2011
Currency exchange contras $ (2,905 $ 1,232 $ 27 $ (716,

The amounts related to the change in the fair vafube forward points that are excluded from theasure of effectiveness were $(874) million and33) million for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively, and are recordediémast and other financial charges.

Free-standing derivatives

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that aredesignated as hedges are recorded in earniogesod. As discussed above, these derivativesypically entered into as economic hedges of
changes in interest rates, currency exchange i@gsnodity prices and other risks. Gains or losskged to the derivative are typically recorde@iECC revenues from services or other income, based
on our accounting policy. In general, the earnieffscts of the item that represent the economiceigosure are recorded in the same caption adetfivative. Losses for the year ended December 31,
2012 on derivatives not designated as hedges wgidBmillion composed of amounts related to irgerate contracts of $(297) million, currency exuf@ contracts of $(342) million, and other
derivatives of $126 million. These losses more thiiset the earnings effects from the underlyimgris that were economically hedged. Losses for¢ae gnded December 31, 2011 on derivatives not
designated as hedges were $(876) million compokathounts related to interest rate contracts of $(ion, currency exchange contracts of $(817lion, and other derivatives of $(54) million. Tiees
losses were more than offset by the earnings sffeein the underlying items that were economichéyged.

Counterparty credit risk

Fair values of our derivatives can change signifilgafrom period to period based on, among othetdiss, market movements and changes in our posititYle manage counterparty credit risk (the risk
that counterparties will default and not make payts¢o us according to the terms of our agreememtg)n individual counterparty basis. Where we heyreed to netting of derivative exposures with a
counterparty, we net our exposures with that copatéy and apply the value of collateral postedgdo determine the exposure. We actively monites¢ net exposures against defined limits and take
appropriate actions in response, including reqgigdditional collateral.

As discussed above, we have provisions in ceratuomaster agreements that require counterpddipsest collateral (typically, cash or U.S. Tragssecurities) when our receivable due from the
counterparty, measured at current market valuesegisa specified limit. At December 31, 2012, ogosure to counterparties, including interest e of collateral we hold, was $559 million. Tlaér
value of such collateral was $10,352 million, ofieéh$5,125 million was cash and $5,227 million ithe form of securities held by a custodian for benefit. Under certain of these same agreements,
we post collateral to our counterparties for ouiddive obligations, the fair value of which wa3% million at December 31, 2012.

Additionally, our master agreements typically camt@utual downgrade provisions that provide thdighof each party to require termination if thenfpterm credit rating of the counterparty wereath f

below A-/A3. In certain of these master agreemezdsh party also has the ability to require termiamaif the short-term rating of the counterpartgre to fall below A-1/P-1. The net amount relating
our derivative liability subject to these provisipmfter consideration of collateral posted byams outstanding interest payments, was $337 miltddecember 31, 2012.
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NOTE 23. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCING RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOSSES ON FINANCING RECEIVABLES

We provide further detailed information about thedit quality of our Commercial, Real Estate anch€oner financing receivables portfolios. For eagtifplio, we describe the characteristics of the
financing receivables and provide information abmlitateral, payment performance, credit qualiigators, and impairment. We manage these por#faiging delinquency and nonearning data as key
performance indicators. The categories used witli;misection such as impaired loans, TDR and nonattinancing receivables are defined by the auitiftive guidance and we base our categorization
on the related scope and definitions containetierrélated standards. The categories of noneaamdglelinquent are defined by us and are usedriprogess for managing our financing receivables.
Definitions of these categories are provided ineNbt

COMMERCIAL

Financing Receivables and Allowance for Losses

The following table provides further informational general and specific reserves related to Cowrialdinancing receivables.

Financing receivables

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
CLL
Americas $ 72,517 $ 80,505
Europe 37,035 36,899
Asia 11,401 11,635
Other 605 436
Total CLL 121,558 129,475
Energy Financial Services 4,851 5,912
GECAS 10,915 11,901
Other 486 1,282
Total Commercial financing receivables, before allwance for losse! $ 137,810 $ 148,57C
Nor-impaired financing receivable $ 132,741 $ 142,908
General reserve 554 718
Impaired loan: 5,069 5,662
Specific reserve 487 812

Past Due Financing Receivables

The following table displays payment performanc€ommercial financing receivables.
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2012 2011

Over 30 day: Over 90 day:! Over 30 day: Over 90 day:
December 3: past due past due past due past due
CLL
Americas 1.1% 0.5% 1.3% 0.8%
Europe 3.7 2.1 3.8 2.1
Asia 0.9 0.6 1.3 1.0
Other 0.1 - 2.0 0.1
Total CLL 1.9 1.0 2.0 1.2
Energy Financial Services - - 0.3 0.3
GECAS - - - -
Other 2.8 2.8 3.7 35
Total 1.7 0.9 1.8 11

Nonaccrual Financing Receivables

The following table provides further informationatt Commercial financing receivables that are dfi@ssas nonaccrual. Of our $4,166 million and 94 Tillion of nonaccrual financing receivables at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplyct&647 million and $1,227 million are currenfigying in accordance with their contractual terraspectively.

Nonaccrual financing Nonearning financing
receivables receivables

December 31 (Dollars in million: 2012 2011 2012 2011
CLL

Americas $ 1,951 $ 2,417 $ 1,333 $ 1,862

Europe 1,740 1,599 1,299 1,167

Asia 395 428 193 269

Other 52 68 52 11
Total CLL 4,138 4,512 2,877 3,309
Energy Financial Services - 22 - 22
GECAS 3 69 - 55
Other 25 115 13 65
Total $ 4,166 $ 4,718 $ 2,890 $ 3,451
Allowance for losses percentag 25.0% 32.4% 36.0% 44.3%
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Impaired Loans

The following table provides information about Isariassified as impaired and specific reservese@t Commercial.

With no specific allowance With a specific allowance
Recordec Unpaid Average Recordec Unpaid Average
investment principal investment in investment principal Associatet investment
December 31 (In millions in loans balance loans in loans balance allowance in loans
2012
CLL
Americas $ 2,487 $ 2,927 $ 2,535 $ 557 $ 681 $ 178 $ 987
Europe 1,131 1,901 1,009 643 978 278 805
Asia 62 64 62 109 120 23 134
Other - - 43 52 68 6 16
Total CLL 3,680 4,892 3,649 1,361 1,847 485 1,942
Energy Financial Services - - 2 - - - 7
GECAS - - 17 3 3 - 5
Other 17 28 26 8 8 2 40
Total $ 3,697 $ 4,920 $ 3,694 $ 1372 $ 1,858 $ 487 $ 1,994
2011
CLL
Americas $ 2,136 $ 2,219 $ 2,128 $ 1,367 $ 1,415 $ 425 $ 1,468
Europe 936 1,060 1,001 730 717 263 602
Asia 85 83 94 156 128 84 214
Other 54 58 13 11 11 2 5
Total CLL 3,211 3,420 3,236 2,264 2,271 774 2,289
Energy Financial Services 4 4 20 18 18 9 87
GECAS 28 28 59 - - - 11
Other 62 63 67 75 75 29 97
Total $ 3,305 $ 3,515 $ 3,382 $ 2,357 $ 2,364 $ 812 $ 2,484

We recognized $253 million and $193 million of irgst income, including $92 million and $59 million a cash basis, for the years ended Decembe032,&hd 2011, respectively, principally in our
CLL Americas business. The total average investrimeimipaired loans for the years ended Decembe2@12 and 2011 was $5,688 million and $5,866 nmilli@spectively.

Impaired loans classified as TDRs in our CLL busghevere $3,872 million and $3,642 million at Deceni®l, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and were pifynaitributable to CLL Americas ($2,577
million and $2,746 million, respectively). For thear ended December 31, 2012, we modified $2,98®mobf loans classified as TDRs, primarily in ClAmericas ($1,739 million) and CLL EMEA
($992 million). Changes to these loans primarilyluded debt to equity exchange, extensions, intemdy payment periods and forbearance or otheomstwhich are in addition to, or sometimes i lie
of, fees and rate increases. Of our $2,935 miltibmodifications classified as TDRs during 20121 %2nillion have subsequently experienced a paymefault in 2012. Of our $1,856 million of
modifications classified as TDRs during 2011, $ifillion have subsequently experienced a paymerstulieih 2011.
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Credit Quality Indicators

Substantially all of our Commercial financing re@les portfolio is secured lending and we assessverall quality of the portfolio based on theguaial risk of loss measure. The metric incorpesat
both the borrower’s credit quality along with amyated collateral protection.

Our internal risk ratings process is an importanirse of information in determining our allowance fosses and represents a comprehensive, stlfistialidated approach to evaluate risk in our
financing receivables portfolios. In deriving oantérnal risk ratings, we stratify our Commerciattfaios into 21 categories of default risk andéor categories of loss given default to group iht@e
categories: A, B and C. Our process starts by dgirg) an internal risk rating for our borrowers,igthare based upon our proprietary models using detived from borrower financial statements,
agency ratings, payment history information, eqpiiges and other commercial borrower charactesstVe then evaluate the potential risk of losgHerspecific lending transaction in the event of
borrower default, which takes into account suchdiecas applicable collateral value, historicaslasd recovery rates for similar transactions,@mdcollection capabilities. Our internal risk regs
process and the models we use are subject to regolatoring and validation controls. The frequendyating updates is set by our credit risk palisjich requires annual Risk Committee approval.
The models are updated on a regular basis andtitally validated annually, or more frequentlycaisumstances warrant.

The table below summarizes our Commercial financaugivables by risk category. As described abfinancing receivables are assigned one of 21 &thgs based on our process and then these are
grouped by similar characteristics into three catieg in the table below. Category A is characegtily either high credit quality borrowers or traetfons with significant collateral coverage which
substantially reduces or eliminates the risk o$ liosthe event of borrower default. Category Bharacterized by borrowers with weaker credit gyalian those in Category A, or transactions with
moderately strong collateral coverage which minamsibut may not fully mitigate the risk of loss lretevent of default. Category C is characterizetidiyowers with higher levels of default risk rétat

to our overall portfolio or transactions where at#ral coverage may not fully mitigate a loss ia ¢évent of default.
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Secured

December 31 (In millions A B C Total
2012
CLL
Americas $ 68,360 $ 1,775 $ 2,382 $ 72,517
Europe 33,754 1,188 1,256 36,198
Asia 10,732 117 372 11,221
Other 161 - 94 255
Total CLL 113,007 3,080 4,104 120,191
Energy Financial Services 4,725 - - 4,725
GECAS 10,681 223 11 10,915
Other 486 — — 486
Total $ 128,899 $ 3,303 $ 4,115 $ 136,317
2011
CLL
Americas $ 73,103 $ 2,816 $ 4,586 $ 80,505
Europe 33,481 1,080 1,002 35,563
Asia 10,644 116 685 11,445
Other 345 - 91 436
Total CLL 117,573 4,012 6,364 127,949
Energy Financial Services 5,727 24 18 5,769
GECAS 10,881 970 50 11,901
Other 1,282 — — 1,282
Total $ 135,463 $ 5,006 $ 6,432 $ 146,901

For our secured financing receivables portfolia, callateral position and ability to work out prebh accounts mitigates our losses. Our asset manhgee deep industry expertise that enables us to
identify the optimum approach to default situationg price risk premiums for weaker credits atim@gon, closely monitor changes in creditworths@sough our risk ratings and watch list process,
and are engaged early with deteriorating creditsitomize economic loss. Secured financing recdealwithin risk Category C are predominantly in @il businesses and are primarily composed of
senior term lending facilities and factoring pragsasecured by various asset types including invgnéecounts receivable, cash, equipment and telaisiness facilities as well as franchise finance
activities secured by underlying equipment.

Loans within Category C are reviewed and monitoegilarly, and classified as impaired when it ishable that they will not pay in accordance withtcactual terms. Our internal risk rating process
identifies credits warranting closer monitoringdas such, these loans are not necessarily ckbsi§i nonearning or impaired.

Our unsecured Commercial financing receivablesfiatis primarily attributable to our Interbancg3A. and GE Sanyo Credit acquisitions in Europe Asia, respectively. At December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, these financing receivablesidee] $458 million and $325 million rated A, $583limih and $748 million rated B, and $452 millionda#596 million rated C, respectively.
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REAL ESTATE

Financing Receivables and Allowance for Losses

The following table provides further informationat general and specific reserves related to Retalt& financing receivables.

Financing receivables

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Debt $ 19,746 $ 24,501
Business Properties( 1,200 8,248
Total Real Estate financing receivables, before alvance for losse $ 20,946 $ 32,749
Non-impaired financing receivable $ 15,253 $ 24,002
General reserve 132 267
Impaired loan: 5,693 8,747
Specific reserve 188 822

(@) In 2012, we completed the sale of a portion of Business Properties portfoli

Past Due Financing Receivables

The following table displays payment performanc®eél Estate financing receivables.

2012 2011
Over 30 day: Over 90 day: Over 30 day: Over 90 day:
December 3 past due past due past due past due
Debt 1.7% 1.7% 2.4% 2.3%
Business Propertie 10.8 10.2 3.9 3.0
Total 2.3 2.2 2.8 25

Nonaccrual Financing Receivables

The following table provides further informational Real Estate financing receivables that aresiflad as nonaccrual. Of our $4,885 million and#®, million of nonaccrual financing receivables at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplyctB4461 million and $6,061 million are currenfigying in accordance with their contractual terraspectively.

Nonaccrual financing Nonearning financing
receivables receivables
December 31 (Dollars in millions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Debt $ 4,576 $ 6,351 $ 321 $ 541
Business Propertie 309 598 123 249
Total $ 4,885 $ 6,949 $ 444 $ 790 ~790
Allowance for losses percentag 6.6% 15.7% 72.1% 137.8%
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Impaired Loans

The following table provides information about Isariassified as impaired and specific reservese@l® Real Estate.

With no specific allowance With a specific allowance

Recordec Unpaid Average Recordec Unpaid Average

investmen principal investment investmen principal Associate( investment

December 31 (In millions in loans balance in loans in loans balance allowance in loans
2012

Debt $ 3294 % 3515 % 3575 % 2,077 % 2682 % 156 % 3,455

Business Propertie 197 197 198 125 125 32 297

Total $ 3491 § 3712 § 3773 § 2202 $ 2,807 $ 188 $ 3,752
2011

Debt $ 3558 % 3,614 $ 3,568 % 4,560 $ 4,652 $ 717 $ 5,435

Business Propertie 232 232 215 397 397 105 460

Total $ 379 $ 3846 $ 3783 $ 4957 $ 5049 $ 822 $ 5,895

We recognized $329 million and $399 million of irgst income, including $237 million and $339 mitlion a cash basis, for the years ended Decemb@032,and 2011, respectively, principally in our
Real Estate-Debt portfolio. The total average itmesit in impaired loans for the years ended Decer@bg2012 and 2011 was $7,525 million and $9,6W8om, respectively.

Real Estate TDRs decreased from $7,006 millionestenber 31, 2011 to $5,146 million at Decembe812, primarily driven by resolution of TDRs thrdugaydowns, restructurings, foreclosures and
write-offs, partially offset by extensions of loassheduled to mature during 2012, some of whictewetassified as TDRs upon modification. We deem loadifications to be TDRs when we have
granted a concession to a borrower experiencirapéiial difficulty and we do not receive adequatmpensation in the form of an effective interese ridiat is at current market rates of interest given
risk characteristics of the loan or other consitdenathat compensates us for the value of the casioer. The limited liquidity and higher return régments in the real estate market for loans widginér
loan-to-value (LTV) ratios has typically resultedthe conclusion that the modified terms are nauatent market rates of interest, even if the fiediloans are expected to be fully recoverabler the
year ended December 31, 2012, we modified $4,38ibmof loans classified as TDRs, substantiallyimlour Debt portfolio. Changes to these loansnarily included maturity extensions, principal
payment acceleration, changes to collateral ormaveterms and cash sweeps, which are in addiioor sometimes in lieu of, fees and rate increa®ésur $4,351 million of modifications classifies
TDRs during 2012, $210 million have subsequentlyegienced a payment default in 2012. Of our $3888on of modifications classified as TDRs durigg11, $140 million have subsequently
experienced a payment default in 2011.

Credit Quality Indicators
Due to the primarily non-recourse nature of our Qmdtfolio, loan-to-value ratios provide the bisticators of the credit quality of the portfoliBy contrast, the credit quality of the Businesspertes

portfolio is primarily influenced by the strengthtbe borrower’s general credit quality, which éflected in our internal risk rating process, cetesit with the process we use for our Commercial
portfolio.
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Loan-to-value ratio

2012 2011
Less thar 80% to Greater than Less thar 80% to Greater than
December 31 (In millions 80% 95% 95% 80% 95% 95%
Debt $ 13,570 $ 2,572 $ 3,604 $ 14,454 $ 4,593 $ 5,454

At December 31, 2012, Business Properties receigadfl $ 956 million, $25 million and $ 219 millievere rated A, B and C, respectively. At December2R1L1, Business Properties receivables of
$7,628 million, $ 110 million and $510 million werated A, B and C, respectively.

Within Real Estatdebt, these financing receivables are primarilyosmrated in our North American and European Lemg@iatforms and are secured by various propertggyp substantial majority

the Real Estate-Debt financing receivables witmitmvalue ratios greater than 95% are paying @oatance with contractual terms. Substantiallypfthese loans and the majority of the Real Estate-
Business Properties financing receivables includegategory C are impaired loans which are sulifetiie specific reserve evaluation process destiibélote 1. The ultimate recoverability of impaii
loans is driven by collection strategies that domexessarily depend on the sale of the underlytigteral and include full or partial repaymentsough third-party refinancing and restructurings.
CONSUMER

At December 31, 2012, our U.S. consumer financaugivables included private-label credit card aldssfinancing for approximately 57 million custamacross the U.S. with no metropolitan area
accounting for more than 6% of the portfolio. Oé tiotal U.S. consumer financing receivables, apprately 66% relate to credit card loans, whichaften subject to profit and loss-sharing
arrangements with the retailer (which are recoidegvenues), and the remaining 34% are salesdmegceivables, which provide financing to cust@rierareas such as electronics, recreation, medical
and home improvement.

Financing Receivables and Allowance for Losses

The following table provides further informationalt general and specific reserves related to Coestimancing receivables.

Financing receivables

December 31 (In millions 2012 2011
Non-U.S. residential mortgag: $ 33,451 $ 35,550
Non-U.S. installment and revolving cret 18,546 18,544
U.S. installment and revolving crer 50,853 46,689
Non-U.S. autc 4,260 5,691
Other 8,070 7,244
Total Consumer financing receivables, before allowsce for losse: $ 115,180 $ 113,718
Non-impaired financing receivable $ 111,960 $ 110,825
General reserve 2,950 2,891
Impaired loan: 3,220 2,893
Specific reserve 674 680

Past Due Financing Receivables

The following table displays payment performanc€ohsumer financing receivables.
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2012 2011

Over 30 day: Over 90 day: Over 30 day: Over 90 day:
December 3 past due past due(a past due past due(a
Non-U.S. residential mortgagr 12.0% 7.5% 12.3% 7.9%
Nonr-U.S. installment and revolving cret 3.9 1.1 4.1 1.2
U.S. installment and revolving cres 4.6 2.0 5.0 2.2
Non-U.S. autc 3.1 0.5 3.1 0.6
Other 2.8 1.7 35 2.0
Total 6.5 34 6.9 3.7

(@) Included $24 million and $45 million of loans atd@enber 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectiwbigh are over 90 days past due and accruingeisitemainly representing accretior
loans acquired at a discou

Nonaccrual Financing Receivables

The following table provides further informationatt Consumer financing receivables that are cliessds nonaccrual.

Nonaccrual financing Nonearning financing
receivables receivables
December 31 (Dollars in million: 2012 2011 2012 2011
Non-U.S. residential mortgagr $ 2,600 $ 2,995 $ 2,569 $ 2,870
Nonr-U.S. installment and revolving cret 224 321 224 263
U.S. installment and revolving cres 1,026 990 1,026 990
Non-U.S. autc 24 43 24 43
Other 427 487 351 419
Total $ 4,301 $ 4,836 $ 4,194 $ 4,585
Allowance for losses percentag 84.3% 73.8% 86.4% 77.9%
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Impaired Loans

The vast majority of our Consumer nonaccrual fimagceceivables are smaller balance homogeneous eluated collectively, by portfolio, for impaient and therefore are outside the scope of the
disclosure requirement for impaired loans. Accogtlinimpaired loans in our Consumer business rgmtagstructured smaller balance homogeneous loaesing the definition of a TDR, and are
therefore subject to the disclosure requiremenimpaired loans, and commercial loans in our Corese@ther portfolio. The recorded investment of éhiespaired loans totaled $3,220 million (with an
unpaid principal balance of $3,269 million) and @ised $105 million with no specific allowance,rparily all in our Consumer—Other portfolio, and &B; million with a specific allowance of $674
million at December 31, 2012. The impaired loanthwi specific allowance included $309 million wéttspecific allowance of $83 million in our Consurf@ther portfolio and $2,806 million with a
specific allowance of $591 million across the remived Consumer business and had an unpaid princglahce and average investment of $3,152 milliah%h956 million, respectively, at December
2012. We recognized $169 million and $141 millidrinderest income, including $5 million and $15 lioih on a cash basis, for the years ended Dece@ihe?012 and 2011, respectively, principally in
our Consumer —Non-U.S. and U.S. installment andlvéng credit portfolios. The total average investrhin impaired loans for the years ended Decer@be2012 and 2011 was $3,056 million and
$2,623 million, respectively.

Impaired loans classified as TDRs in our Consunueirtess were $3,053 million and $2,723 million acBmber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. We etiertain loan modification programs for
borrowers experiencing financial difficulties inrdDonsumer loan portfolio. These loan modificatwagrams primarily include interest rate reductiand payment deferrals in excess of three months,
which were not part of the terms of the originahiact, and are primarily concentrated in our naS-Uesidential mortgage and U.S. credit card plios. For the year ended December 31, 2012, we
modified $1,756 million of consumer loans for bavers experiencing financial difficulties, which aflassified as TDRs, and included $1,186 milliomof-U.S. consumer loans, primarily residential
mortgages, credit cards and personal loans and ®8F6n of U.S. consumer loans, primarily credérds. We expect borrowers whose loans have beeifietbdnder these programs to continue to be
able to meet their contractual obligations upondeclusion of the modification. Of our $1,756 lioih of modifications classified as TDRs during 20$334 million have subsequently experienced a
payment default in 2012, primarily in our installmend revolving credit portfolios. Of our $1,924llran of modifications classified as TDRs durin@21, $240 million have subsequently experienced a
payment default in 2011.

Credit Quality Indicators

Our Consumer financing receivables portfolio corsgsiboth secured and unsecured lending. Secugsttiitg receivables comprise residential loans endihg to small and medium-sized enterprises
predominantly secured by auto and equipment, imrgrinance and cash flow loans. Unsecured finanoateivables include private-label credit car@ficing. A substantial majority of these cards are
not for general use and are limited to the prodantsservices sold by the retailer. The privatellplortfolio is diverse with no metropolitan are&aunting for more than 5% of the related portfolio
Non-U.S. residential mortgages

For our secured non-U.S. residential mortgage boekassess the overall credit quality of the pédfihrough loan-to-value ratios (the ratio of thetstanding debt on a property to the value of that

property at origination). In the event of defauitlaepossession of the underlying collateral, weetihe ability to remarket and sell the propertgesliminate or mitigate the potential risk of lo3fe
table below provides additional information about non-U.S. residential mortgages based on loaratoe ratios.
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Loan-to-value ratio

2012 2011
80% or Greater than Greater than 80% or Greater than Greater than
December 31 (In millions less 80% to 90% 90% less 80% to 90% 90%
Non-U.S.
residential
mortgage: $ 18,613 $ 5,739 $ 9,099 $ 19,834 $ 6,087 $ 9,629

The majority of these financing receivables areunU.K. and France portfolios and have re-indeleedi-to-value ratios of 83% and 56%, respectivélig have third-party mortgage insurance for about
35% of the balance of Consumer non-U.S. residemttatgage loans with loan-to-value ratios greatant90% at December 31, 2012. Such loans were piyroaiginated in Poland, France and the U.K.

Installment and Revolving Credit
For our unsecured lending products, including thie-b.S. and U.S. installment and revolving credi aon-U.S. auto portfolios, we assess overallictpaility using internal and external credit score

Our internal credit scores imply a probability efalult which we consistently translate into thrppraximate credit bureau equivalent credit scotegmaies, including (a) 681 or higher, which are
considered the strongest credits; (b) 615 to 68@sidered moderate credit risk; and (c) 614 or, ekich are considered weaker credits.

Internal ratings translated to approximate credit bureau equivalent score

2012 2011
681 or 615 to 614 or 681 or 615 to 614 or

December 31 (In millions higher 680 less higher 680 less
Nor-U.S.

installment anc

revolving credit $ 10,493 $ 4,496 $ 3,557 $ 9,913 $ 4,838 $ 3,793
U.S. installmen

and revolving

credit 33,204 9,753 7,896 28,918 9,398 8,373
Non-U.S. autc 3,141 666 453 3,927 1,092 672

Of those financing receivable accounts with crbditeau equivalent scores of 614 or less at DeceBhe012, 96% relate to installment and revoldnedit accounts. These smaller balance accounts
have an average outstanding balance less tharnonsand U.S. dollars and are primarily concentratexir retail card and sales finance receivabiighé U.S. (which are often subject to profit anskk
sharing arrangements), and closed-end loans outgdd.S., which minimizes the potential for loggtie event of default. For lower credit scores,asequately price for the incremental risk at
origination and monitor credit migration throughr sisk ratings process. We continuously adjustaredit line underwriting management and collecgtnategies based on customer behavior and risk
profile changes.

Consumer — Other

Secured lending in Consumer — Other comprises ltmsmall and mediursized enterprises predominantly secured by autaegaoghment, inventory finance and cash flow lo&kis.develop our intern:
risk ratings for this portfolio in a manner consistwith the process used to develop our Commecoialit quality indicators, described above. Wethseborrower's credit quality and underlying
collateral strength to determine the potential ofloss from these activities.

At December 31, 2012, Consumer — Other financiegivables of $6,873 million, $451 million and $7aélion were rated A, B, and C, respectively. Atd@enber 31, 2011, Consumer — Other financing
receivables of $5,580 million, $757 million and $9dillion were rated A, B, and C, respectively.
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NOTE 24. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

We use variable interest entities primarily to s#ize financial assets and arrange other formasset-backed financing in the ordinary course sfriess. Except as noted below, investors in these
entities only have recourse to the assets ownebebgntity and not to our general credit. We dohate implicit support arrangements with any VIEe Wd not provide non-contractual support for
previously transferred financing receivables to ¥ in 2012 or 2011.

In evaluating whether we have the power to direetdctivities of a VIE that most significantly imgtats economic performance, we consider the pwroswhich the VIE was created, the importanc
each of the activities in which it is engaged anddecision-making role, if any, in those activatidat significantly determine the entity’s economérformance as compared to other economic interes
holders. This evaluation requires consideratioallofacts and circumstances relevant to decisiokinggthat affects the entity’s future performance ghe exercise of professional judgment in degdin
which decision-making rights are most important.

In determining whether we have the right to recd&igaefits or the obligation to absorb losses thatdpotentially be significant to the VIE, we evate all of our economic interests in the entity,
regardless of form (debt, equity, management andcseg fees, and other contractual arrangemefits}s evaluation considers all relevant factorshef éntity’s design, including: the entity’s capital
structure, contractual rights to earnings (lossaf)prdination of our interests relative to thokether investors, contingent payments, as wetitasr contractual arrangements that have potenotizé
economically significant. The evaluation of eachhefse factors in reaching a conclusion about thential significance of our economic interesta imatter that requires the exercise of professional
judgment.

Consolidated Variable Interest Entities

We consolidate VIEs because we have the poweréatdhe activities that significantly affect théB¢ economic performance, typically because ofrole as either servicer or manager for the VIE. Our
consolidated VIEs fall into three main groups, Whiéze further described below:

« Trinity comprises two consolidated entities thaldhimvestment securities, the majority of which areestment grade, and were funded by the issuah@Cs. The GICs included conditions un
which certain holders could require immediate repayt of their investment should the long-term drealings of GECC fall below AA-/Aa3 or the shoerin credit ratings fall below A-1+/B-
Following the April 3, 2012 Moody's downgrade of GE’s longterm credit rating to Al, substantially all of tke§ICs became redeemable by their holders. In 20di@ers of $1,981 million
principal amount of GICs redeemed their holdingse Tedemption was funded primarily through advarfices GECC. The remaining outstanding GICs will toue to be subject to their schedt
maturities and individual terms, which may inclygtevisions permitting redemption upon a downgradene or more of GEC's ratings, among other thing

Consolidated Securitization Entities (CSEs) congopsmarily our previously unconsolidated QSPES$ tere consolidated on January 1, 2010 in conneetith our adoption of ASU 20(-16 & 17
These entities were created to facilitate secatitn of financial assets and other forms of abseked financing which serve as an alternative ifmdource by providing access to variable fun
notes and term markets. The securitization traimacexecuted with these entities are similar ts¢hused by many financial institutions and sulbstéynall are nonrecourse. We provide servici
for substantially all of the assets in these erdi

The financing receivables in these entities hawelai risks and characteristics to our other finagaeceivables and were underwritten to the saaredard. Accordingly, the performance of th
assets has been similar to our other financingvabkes; however, the blended performance of thespof receivables in these entities reflects figtslity criteria that we apply to determine whic
receivables are selected for transfer. Contragttladl cash flows from these financing receivablestfirst be used to pay third-party debt holdersvall as other expenses of the entity. Excess cash
flows are available to GE. The creditors of theséities have no claim on other assets of
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« Other remaining assets and liabilities of consaéidaVIEs relate primarily to three categories ofites: (1) joint ventures that lease light indisdtequipment of $1,438 million of assets and {
million of liabilities; (2) other entities that aiavolved in power generating and leasing actisitid $891 million of assets and no liabilities; a3 insurance entities that, among other line
business, provide property and casualty and wc' compensation coverage for GE of $1,193 million sxfedis and $588 million of liabilitie

The table below summarizes the assets and li@sildf consolidated VIEs described above.

Consolidated Securitization Entities

Credit Real Trade

December 31 (In millions Trinity (a) cards(p) Equipment(b) estate(c) receivable: Other Total
2012
Assets(d)
Financing

receivables, ne $ - $ 24,169 $ 12,456 $ 50 $ 2,339 $ 1,902 $ 40,916
Investment securitie 3,435 - - - - 1,051 4,486
Other asset 217 29 360 — — 2,428 3,034
Total $ 3,652 $ 24,198 $ 12,816 $ 50 $ 2,339 $ 5,381 $ 48,436
Liabilities(d)
Borrowings $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 711 $ 711
Non-recourse

borrowings - 17,208 9,811 54 2,050 - 29,123
Other liabilities 1,656 146 11 2 8 1,213 3,036
Total $ 1,656 $ 17,354 $ 9,822 $ 56 $ 2,058 $ 1,924 $ 32,870
2011
Assets(d)
Financing

receivables, ne $ - $ 19,229 $ 10,523 $ 3,521 $ 1,614 $ 2,973 $ 37,860
Investment securitie 4,289 - - - - 1,031 5,320
Other asset 389 17 283 210 — 2,636 3,535
Total $ 4,678 $ 19,246 $ 10,806 $ 3,731 $ 1,614 $ 6,640 $ 46,715
Liabilities(d)
Borrowings $ - $ - $ 2 $ 25 $ - $ 821 $ 848
Non-recourse

borrowings - 14,184 8,166 3,659 1,769 980 28,758
Other liabilities 4,456 37 — 19 23 1,071 5,606
Total $ 4,456 $ 14,221 $ 8,168 $ 3,703 $ 1,792 $ 2,872 $ 35,212

(a) Excludes intercompany advances from GECC to Trimityich are eliminated in consolidation of $2,44illion and $1,006 million at December 31, 2012 28d 1, respectively

(b) We provide servicing to the CSEs and are contrélgtparmitted to commingle cash collected from casérs on financing receivables sold to CSE investsth our own cash prior to payme
to a CSE, provided our short-term credit ratingsioet fall below A-1/P-1. These CSEs also owe usuats for purchased financial assets and schedhtiest and principal payments. At
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the amounts of comadngish owed to the CSEs were $6,225 million ap@B$million, respectively, and the amounts owedsdy CSEs were $6,143 million
and $5,165 million, respectivel

(c) On October 1, 2012, we completed the sale of osirss Property business, which included servidgtgs for its CSEs. We deconsolidated the Busifsperties CSEs in the fourth qual
of 2012 as we no longer have the power to direzgtttivities of these entitie

(d) Asset amounts exclude intercompany receivablesdsh collected on behalf of the entities by GEemsiser, which are eliminated in consolidation. Bueceivables provide the cash to repay

entities’ liabilities. If these intercompany recailes were included in the table above, assetsdmrihigher. In addition, other assets, borrowenys other liabilities exclude intercompany
balances that are eliminated in consolidat
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Total revenues from our consolidated VIEs were 37 fillion, $6,326 million and $7,122 million in 20, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Related expermesisted primarily of provisions for losses of
$1,171 million, $1,146 million and $1,596 million 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and interebtogher financial charges of $541 million, $594liom and $767 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. These amounts do not include intepzomy revenues and costs, principally fees andestdretween GE and the VIEs, which are eliminatezbnsolidation.

Investments in Unconsolidated Variable Interest Enties

Our involvement with unconsolidated VIEs considtthe following activities: assisting in the fornmt and financing of the entity, providing recouesw®l/or liquidity support, servicing the assets and
receiving variable fees for services provided. Weret required to consolidate these entities bee#he nature of our involvement with the actigitad the VIEs does not give us power over decisions
that significantly affect their economic performanc

Prior to June 30, 2012, the largest unconsolidgt&dwith which we were involved was Penske Truclakiag Co., L.P. (PTL), a joint venture and limitgattnership formed in 1988 between Penske
Truck Leasing Corporation (PTLC) and GE. PTLC is $iole general partner of PTL and an indirect wholined subsidiary of Penske Corporation. PTL igagred in truck leasing and support services,
including full-service leasing, dedicated logiststgport and contract maintenance programs, asawe#ntal operations serving commercial and corseostomers. Our direct and indirect interest in
PTL is accounted for using the equity method. Dyitime second quarter of 2012, PTL effected a réaigation and subsequently acquired third-pamgricing which, through the fourth quarter of 2012,
was used to repay $5,392 million of its outstandirbt owed to GECC. At December 31, 2012, our daad indirect investment in PTL of $2,080 milliprimarily comprised partnership interests of
$825 million and loans and advances of $1,218 amllDuring the first quarter of 2013, PTL repaiblddlits outstanding debt owed to GECC.

Our largest exposure to any single unconsolidatéta? December 31, 2012 is an investment in assekdul securities issued by a senior secured loah fuhich invests in high quality senior secured
debt of various middle-market companies ($5,030ani). Other significant unconsolidated VIEs inctuithvestments in real estate entities ($2,639 oni)liwhich generally consist of passive limited
partnership investments in tax-advantaged, muftiffareal estate and investments in various Eurnpeal estate entities; and exposures to jointurestthat purchase factored receivables ($2,218
million). The vast majority of our other unconsalidd entities consist of passive investments ifouarasset-backed financing entities.

The classification of our variable interests instaentities in our financial statements is basethemature of the entity and the type of investmwemhold. Variable interests in partnerships amgborate
entities are classified as either equity methodost method investments. In the ordinary courdausfness, we also make investments in entitieshiclwwe are not the primary beneficiary but maydhol
a variable interest such as limited partner intsres mezzanine debt investments. These investraeatslassified in two captions in our financiatements: “All other assets” for investments actedn
for under the equity method, and “Financing receles — net” for debt financing provided to thesgtis. Our investments in unconsolidated VIEs at@mber 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 follow.

2012 2011

December 31 (In millions PTL All other Total PTL All other Total
Other assets and investm:

securities $ 2,080 $ 7,947 $ 10,027 $ 7,038 $ 6,954 $ 13,992
Financing receivable- net - 2,654 2,654 - 2,507 2,507
Total investment 2,080 10,601 12,681 7,038 9,461 16,499
Contractual obligations to fur

investments or guarante 140 2,468 2,608 600 2,253 2,853
Revolving lines of credi - 41 41 1,356 92 1,448
Total $ 2,220 $ 13,110 $ 15,330 $ 8,994 $ 11,806 $ 20,800
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In addition to the entities included in the tabb®ee, we also hold passive investments in RMBS, GMBd ABS issued by VIEs. Such investments wereldsjgn, investment grade at issuance and held
by a diverse group of investors. Further informa@out such investments is provided in Note 3.

NOTE 25. COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

Commitments

In our Aviation segment, we had committed to previihancing assistance on $2,116 million of futcmstomer acquisitions of aircraft equipped with engines, including commitments made to airlines
in 2012 for future sales under our GE90 and GEmirencampaigns. The GECAS business of GE Capithpleced multiple-year orders for various BoeingbAs and other aircraft with list prices
approximating $25,735 million and secondary ordeth airlines for used aircraft of approximately,38 million at December 31, 2012.

Product Warranties

We provide for estimated product warranty expemgesn we sell the related products. Because warestisnates are forecasts that are based on thenmktble information — mostly historical claims
experience — claims costs may differ from amountsiged. An analysis of changes in the liability fpoduct warranties follows.

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Balance at January $ 1,507 $ 1,405 $ 1,641
Curren-year provision 611 866 491
Expenditure (723, (881 (710
Other change (12) 117 (17)
Balance at December ! $ 1,383 $ 1,507 $ 1,405
Guarantees

At December 31, 2012, we were committed underaheving guarantee arrangements beyond those pedvith behalf of VIEs. See Note 24.

« Credit Support. We have provided $3,292 million of credit suppartlzehalf of certain customers or associated conegapredominantly joint ventures and partnershipsg arrangements suct
standby letters of credit and performance guaranfBieese arrangements enable these customers souiadsd companies to execute transactions orrob&sired financing arrangements with t
parties. Should the customer or associated comfaahto perform under the terms of the transactrfinancing arrangement, we would be requirededgsm on their behalf. Under most si
arrangements, our guarantee is secured, usualliyebgisset being purchased or financed, or possibhertain other assets of the customer or assac@impany. The length of these credit suy
arrangements parallels the length of the relatehfiing arrangements or transactions. The lialfitysuch credit support was $41 million at Deceniig 2012

Indemnification Agreements.We have agreements that require us to fund up 46 #iillion at December 31, 2012 under residual @ajuarantees on a variety of leased equipment. tindst o
our residual value guarantees, our commitmentdarsel by the leased asset. The liability for tiHedemnification agreements was $25 million at Deben81, 2012

In connection with the transfer of the NBCU busm&s Comcast, we have provided guarantees, onftefdBCU LLC, for the acquisition of sports prognaning that are triggered only in the event
NBCU LLC fails to meet its payment commitments.D¢cember 31, 2012, our indemnification under trasangements was $7,468 million. This amount wasrdened based on our current
ownership share of NBCU LLC and will change projmorately based on any future changes to our owipesstare. Comcast has agreed to indemnify us f88 $8illion related to their proportionz
share of pre-existing NBCU LLC guarantees. Theiliigtfor our NBCU LLC indemnification agreementsaw $151 million at December 31, 2012.
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At December 31, 2012, we also had $2,771 milliontber indemnification commitments, substantiallyoawhich relate to standard representations\aadanties in sales of other businesses or
assets.

« Contingent Consideration. These are agreements to provide additional coratiderto a buyer or seller in a business combinaificontractually specified conditions relatedthe acquisition ¢
disposition are achieved. Adjustments to the prdsefeom our sale of GE Money Japan are furtherudised in Note 2. All other potential payments eglato contingent consideration
insignificant.

Our guarantees are provided in the ordinary cooffeisiness. We underwrite these guarantees coirgideconomic, liquidity and credit risk of the euarparty. We believe that the likelihood is remote
that any such arrangements could have a signifedwerse effect on our financial position, resaftsperations or liquidity. We record liabilitiesrfguarantees at estimated fair value, generadly th
amount of the premium received, or if we do noeree a premium, the amount based on appraisalnedbenarket values or discounted cash flows. Aspaisited expected recoveries from third parties
are recorded as other receivables, not netted stghim liabilities.

NOTE 26. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

Changes in operating assets and liabilities arehatquisitions and dispositions of principal mesises.

Amounts reported in the “Proceeds from sales afafiinued operations” and “Proceeds from principainess dispositions” lines in the Statement afilows are net of cash disposed. Amounts
reported in the “Payments for principal businega@shased” line is net of cash acquired and indukebt assumed and immediately repaid in acquisitio

Amounts reported in the “All other operating adi®s” line in the Statement of Cash Flows congisimarily of adjustments to current and noncuretruals and deferrals of costs and expenses,

adjustments for gains and losses on assets anstmejots to assets. GECC had non-cash transactiated to foreclosed properties and repossessetbastaling $ 839 million, $859 million and $1,915
million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Certain supplemental information related to GE &mCC cash flows is shown below.

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
GE
Net dispositions (purchases) of GE shares for treasy
Open market purchases under share repurchase pr $ (5,005 $ (2,065 $ (1,715
Other purchase (110 (100} 77)
Dispositions 951 709 529
$ (4,164 $ (1,456 $ (1,263
GECC
All other operating activities
Net change in other assi $ 203 $ 215 $ 28
Amortization of intangible asse 450 566 653
Net realized losses on investment secur 34 197 91
Cash collateral on derivative contra 2,900 1,247 -
Change in other liabilitie 524 (1,229 (2,709
Other 1,281 2,286 4,419
$ 5,392 $ 3,282 $ 2,482
Net decrease (increase) in GECC financing receiveds
Increase in loans to customs $ (308,727 $ (322,853 $ (309,548
Principal collections from custome- loans 307,711 332,548 327,139
Investment in equipment for financing lea (9,192 (9,610 (10,065
Principal collections from custome- financing lease 10,976 12,431 14,743
Net change in credit card receivah (8,027 (6,263 (4,554
Sales of financing receivabl 12,642 8,117 5,331
$ 5,383 $ 14,370 $ 23,046
All other investing activities
Purchases of securities by insurance activ $ (2,645 $ (1,786 $ 1,712
Dispositions and maturities of securities
insurance activitie 2,999 2,856 3,136
Other asset- investment: 7,714 5,822 1,536
Change in other receivabl 123 (128 525
Other 3,510 537 6,475
$ 11,701 $ 7,301 $ 9,960
Newly issued debt (maturities longer than 90 day:
Shor-term (91 to 365 day: $ 59 $ 10 $ 2,496
Long-term (longer than one ye: 55,782 43,257 35,475
$ 55,841 $ 43,267 $ 37,971

Repayments and other reductions (maturitie:
longer than 90 days,

Shor-term (91 to 365 day: $ (94,114 $ (81,918 $ (95,170
Long-term (longer than one ye: (9,368 (2,786 (1,571
Principal payment- nor-recourse, leveraged leas (426 (732 (638

$ (103,908 $ (85,436 $ (97,379

All other financing activities

Proceeds from sales of investment contr $ 2,697 $ 4,396 $ 5,337
Redemption of investment contra (5,515 (6,230 (8,647
Other (50) 42 (8)

$ (2,868 $ (1,792 $ (3,318

(188)



NOTE 27. INTERCOMPANY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between related companies are made armsength basis, are eliminated and consist primafilGECC dividends to GE; GE customer receivabléd ®0GECC; GECC services for tra
receivables management and material procuremeitdjrims and equipment (including automobiles) leblsetween GE and GECC; information technology éfigl other services sold to GECC by GE;
aircraft engines manufactured by GE that are ilestain aircraft purchased by GECC from third-pantyducers for lease to others; and various investsnéans and allocations of GE corporate
overhead costs.

These intercompany transactions are reported iGBand GECC columns of our financial statementsabe eliminated in deriving our consolidated fioial statements. Effects of these eliminations on
our consolidated cash flows from operating, investind financing activities are $(8,542) millior2,%28 million and $6,703 million for 2012, $(558)llion, $(373) million and $903 million for 2011

and $(124) million, $26 million and $293 millionrfa010, respectively. Dividends from GECC to GE»6f426 million have been eliminated from consokdatash from operating and financing
activities for 2012. There were no such dividerms2011 or 2010. Net decrease (increase) in GEmestreceivables sold to GECC of $(1,809) milli$a,005 million, and $(196) million have been
eliminated from consolidated cash from operatingesting and financing activities for 2012, respedy. Net decrease (increase) in GE customer vabés sold to GECC of $(601) million and $147
million have been eliminated from consolidated clssim operating and investing activities for 20k &010, respectively. Intercompany borrowingsl(ides GE investment in GECC short-term
borrowings) of $473 million, $903 million and $2&8llion have been eliminated from financing aciiet for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Othelassifications and eliminations of $(307) millic
$43 million and $(271) million have been eliminafemm consolidated cash from operating activitied 323 million, $(974) million and $173 million\ebeen eliminated from consolidated cash from
investing activities for 2012, 2011 and 2010, retipely.

NOTE 28. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Basis for presentation

Our operating businesses are organized based arathee of markets and customers. Segment accgumbiicies are the same as described in Note In8egresults for our financial services busine
reflect the discrete tax effect of transactions.

Results of our formerly consolidated subsidiary, 0B and our current equity method investment in NBQ.C are reported in the Corporate items and elations line on the Summary of Operating
Segments.

On February 22, 2012, we merged our wholly-owndsbiliary, GECS, with and into GECS’ wholly-ownedsidiary, GECC. Our financial services segment,@ipital, continues to comprise the
continuing operations of GECC, which now include thn-off insurance operations previously held arahaged in GECS. Unless otherwise indicated, nefeeto GECC and the GE Capital segment in
this Form 10-K Report relate to the entity or seghaes they exist subsequent to the February 22 grger.

Effective October 1, 2012, we reorganized the forBreergy Infrastructure segment into three segmeitswer & Water, Oil & Gas and Energy Managemeuwit\ae began reporting these as separate
segments beginning with this Form 10-K Report. Wée aeorganized our Home & Business Solutions segimetransferring our Intelligent Platforms busiaéo Energy Management. Results for 2012
and prior periods in this Form 10-K Report are régabon this basis.

A description of our operating segments as of Déxar81, 2012, can be found below, and details gingat profit by operating segment can be founthénSummary of Operating Segments table in
II, Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis-mancial Condition and Results of Operations.”
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Power & Water

Power plant products and services, including desigstallation, operation and maintenance senacessold into global markets. Gas, steam and agvadige turbines, generators, combined cycle
systems, controls and related services, includiteg tisset optimization solutions, equipment upgsaahd long-term maintenance service agreemensokakéo power generation and other industrial
customers. Renewable energy solutions include wirlines and solar technology. Water treatmentisesvand equipment include specialty chemical tneat programs, water purification equipment,
mobile treatment systems and desalination processes

Oil & Gas

Oil & Gas supplies mission critical equipment foetglobal oil and gas industry, used in applicatispanning the entire value chain from drilling andhpletion through production, liquefied naturasg
(LNG) and pipeline compression, pipeline inspectamd including downstream processing in refinesied petrochemical plants. The business designsnandifactures surface and subsea drilling and
production systems, equipment for floating produtplatforms, compressors, turbines, turboexpantiegh pressure reactors, industrial power germmagnd a broad portfolio of auxiliary equipment.

Energy Management

Energy Management is GE’s electrification busin€isbal teams design leading technology solutiongtfe delivery, management, conversion and opétiun of electrical power for customers across
multiple energy-intensive industries. GE has ineésh our Energy Management capabilities, withteg acquisitions and joint ventures that enatfetGincrease its offerings to the utility, induskr
renewables, oil and gas, marine, metals and minithgstries. Plant automation hardware, softwareeantdedded computing systems including controlleryedded systems, advanced software, motion
control, operator interfaces and industrial compuge also provided by Energy Management.

Aviation

Aviation products and services include jet engiaespspace systems and equipment, replacemengpartepair and maintenance services for all caegjof commercial aircraft; for a wide variety of
military aircraft, including fighters, bombers, tars and helicopters; for marine applications; fam@xecutive and regional aircraft. Products agmdises are sold worldwide to airframe manufactirer
airlines and government agencies.

Healthcare

Healthcare products include diagnostic imagingesystsuch as Magnetic Resonance (MR), Computed Tiaplog (CT) and Positron Emission Tomography (PEBnsers, X-ray, nuclear imaging,
digital mammography, and Molecular Imaging techgas. Healthcare-manufactured technologies inchatient and resident monitoring, diagnostic caafjg| ultrasound, bone densitometry,
anesthesiology and oxygen therapy, and neonatatrétichl care devices. Related services includémgent monitoring and repair, information techrgiés and customer productivity services. Products
also include diagnostic imaging agents used in oadicanning procedures, drug discovery, biophagotézal manufacturing and purification, and toals frotein and cellular analysis for
pharmaceutical and academic research, includingedipe of precision molecular diagnostics in depehent for neurology, cardiology and oncology aggtibns. Products and services are sold
worldwide to hospitals, medical facilities, pharreatical and biotechnology companies, and to thkeslifience research market.

Transportation
Transportation is a global technology leader armgpker to the railroad, mining, marine and drillimglustries. GE provides freight and passengemmtives, diesel engines for rail, marine and stesiyg

power applications, railway signaling and commutiges systems, underground mining equipment, mogdrdrive systems for mining trucks, energy stogems, information technology solutions
and high-quality replacement parts and value adéedces.
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Home & Business Solutions

Products include major appliances and related ses\ior products such as refrigerators, freezésirie and gas ranges, cooktops, dishwashersiedovashers and dryers, microwave ovens, room air
conditioners, residential water systems for filrat softening and heating, and hybrid water heafEnese products are distributed both to retdietaiand direct to consumers, mainly for the reghaent
market, and to building contractors and distribsifor new installations. Lighting products inclualvide variety of lamps and lighting fixtures, inding light-emitting diodes. Products and serviaes
sold in North America and in global markets underiaus GE and private-label brands.

GE Capital

CLL has particular mid-market expertise, and prityaffers collateralized loans, leases and othearfcial services to customers, including manuf&es) distributors and end-users for a variety of
equipment and major capital assets. These asshisiénindustrial-related facilities and equipmerghicles; corporate aircraft; and equipment usedany industries, including the construction,
manufacturing, transportation, media, communicati@mtertainment and healthcare industries.

Consumer offers a full range of financial produotduding privatelabel credit cards; personal loans; bank cards ains and leases; mortgages; debt consoliddtmmge equity loans; deposit and ot
savings products; and small and medium enterpeisdihg on a global basis.

Real Estate offers a comprehensive range of capithinvestment solutions and finances, with bathitg and loan structures, the acquisition, reftiag and renovation of office buildings, apartment
buildings, retail facilities, hotels and industqabperties.

Energy Financial Services offers financial produotthe global energy industry including structueeplity, debt, leasing, partnership financing, piidinance, and broad-based commercial finance.

GECAS provides financial products to airlines, aiftoperators, owners, lenders and investorsydiof leases, and secured loans on commercial pgessaircraft, freighters and regional jets; engine
leasing and financing services; aircraft parts tsmhs; and airport equity and debt financing.

Revenues
Total revenues(a) Intersegment revenues(b External revenues

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Power & Watel $ 28,299 $ 25,675 $ 24,779 $ 1,119 $ 794 3% 966 $ 27,180 $ 24,881 $ 23,813
Oil & Gas 15,241 13,608 9,433 314 302 206 14,927 13,306 9,227
Energy Managemel 7,412 6,422 5,161 487 504 380 6,925 5,918 4,781
Aviation 19,994 18,859 17,619 672 417 155 19,322 18,442 17,464
Healthcare 18,290 18,083 16,897 37 65 30 18,253 18,018 16,867
Transportatior 5,608 4,885 3,370 11 33 77 5,597 4,852 3,293
Home & Busines

Solutions 7,967 7,693 7,957 23 22 18 7,944 7,671 7,939

Total industrial 102,811 95,225 85,216 2,663 2,137 1,832 100,148 93,088 83,384
GE Capital 46,039 49,068 49,856 1,039 978 1,070 45,000 48,090 48,786
Corporate item

and eliminations(c (1,491 2,995 14,495 (3,702 (3,115 (2,902 2,211 6,110 17,397
Total $ 147,359 $ 147,288 $ 149,567 $ - $ - 3 - $ 147,359 $ 147,288 $ 149,567
(a) Revenues of GE businesses include income from sfgsods and services to customers and other iac
(b) Sales from one component to another generally @eegat equivalent commercial selling pric
(c) Includes the results of NBCU (our formerly consatied subsidiary) and our current equity methodstment in NBCUniversal LLC
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Revenues from customers located in the United Staeze $70,437 million, $69,807 million and $75,Milion in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Rawes from customers located outside the
United States were $76,922 million, $77,481 millaomd $74,464 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, retpely.

Property, plant and

Assets(a)(b) equipment additions(c) Depreciation and amortization
At December 31 For the years ended December 3 For the years ended December 3

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Power & Watel $ 27,174 $ 27,074 $ 26,544 $ 661 $ 770 $ 629 $ 647 $ 605 $ 537
Oil & Gas 20,099 18,855 9,340 467 904 246 426 434 229
Energy Managemel 9,253 9,835 3,733 155 414 85 287 239 179
Aviation 25,144 23,567 21,175 781 699 471 644 569 565
Healthcare 28,458 27,981 27,784 322 378 249 879 869 994
Transportatior 4,389 2,633 2,515 724 193 69 90 88 85
Home & Busines

Solutions 4,133 3,675 3,437 485 268 223 265 260 330
GE Capital 539,223 584,536 605,255 11,886 9,882 7,674 7,505 7,683 8,405
Corporate item

and elimination: 27,455 20,033 48,708 (99) 59 175 218 186 219
Total $ 685,328 $ 718,189 $ 748,491 $ 15,382 $ 13,567 $ 9,821 $ 10,961 $ 10,933 $ 11,543
(@) Assets of discontinued operations, NBCU (our fogneonsolidated subsidiary) and our current eqmigthod investment in NBCUniversal LLC are includeorporate items and eliminatio

for all periods presente

(b) Total assets of the Power & Water, Oil & Gas, Egavianagement, Aviation, Healthcare, Transportattdome & Business Solutions and GE Capital operatemments at December 31, 20
include investment in and advances to associatetpanies of $518 million, $82 million, $219 millio1,210 million, $652 million, $5 million, $449 ridn and $19,119 million, respectively.
Investments in and advances to associated compeonésbuted approximately $20 million, $15 millig®12 million, $67 million, $(48) million, $2 miltin, $52 million and $1,539 million to
segment pre-tax income of Power & Water, Oil & Gasergy Management, Aviation, Healthcare, Trangpiont, Home & Business Solutions and GE Capitatatiey segments, respectively,
for the year ended December 31, 2012. Aggregatensuired financial information for significant as&ted companies assuming a 100% ownership interelstled: total assets of $173,000
million, primarily financing receivables of $67,0illion; total liabilities of $107,520 million, pmarily debt of $54,638 million; revenues totalii§0,566 million; and net earnings totaling

$6,009 million.
(c) Additions to property, plant and equipment inclagieounts relating to principal businesses purchs
Interest and other financial charges Provision (benefit) for income taxes

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
GE Capital $ 11,697 $ 13,866 $ 14,510 $ 491 $ 899 $ (985
Corporate items and eliminations 811 662 1,027 2,013 4,839 2,024
Total $ 12,508 $ 14,528 $ 15,537 $ 2,504 $ 5,738 $ 1,039
(a) Included amounts for Power & Water, Oil & Gas, HjyeManagement, Aviation, Healthcare, Transportatidome & Business Solutions and NBCU (prior todéxonsolidation in 2011), f

which our measure of segment profit excludes istemad other financial charges and income te

Property, plant and equipment — net associated apiéitations based in the United States were $28y888n, $27,225 million and $25,806 million ataeend 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Property, plant and equipment — net associatedagiéitations based outside the United States welr@%@ million, $38,514 million and $40,406 milliat year-end 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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NOTE 29. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

First quarter Second quarter Third quarter Fourth quarter
(In millions; pershare amounts in dollar: 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Consolidated operations
Earnings from continuing operatio $ 3,289 $ 3,492 $ 3,691 $ 3,644 $ 3,471 $ 3,330 $ 4451 $ 4,053
Earnings (loss) from discontinui
operations (217 35 (553 194 37 (65) (305) (240,
Net earning: 3,072 3,527 3,138 3,838 3,508 3,265 4,146 3,813
Less net earnings attributable
noncontrolling interest (38) (94) (33) (74) (17) (41) (135) (83)
Net earnings attributable
the Company 3,034 3,433 3,105 3,764 3,491 3,224 4,011 3,730
Preferred stock dividends declai — (75) — (75) — (881 — —
Net earnings attributable to C
common shareowne $ 3,034 $ 3,358 $ 3,105 $ 3,689 $ 3,491 $ 2,343 $ 4,011 $ 3,730
Pel-share amount- earnings fron
continuing operation
Diluted earnings per sha $ 031 $ 031 $ 034 $ 033 $ 033 $ 023 $ 041 $ 0.37
Basic earnings per she 0.31 0.31 0.35 0.33 0.33 0.23 0.41 0.38
Per-share amount- earnings (loss
from discontinued operatiot
Diluted earnings per sha (0.02] - (0.05 0.02 - (0.01; (0.03 (0.02]
Basic earnings per she (0.02] - (0.05; 0.02 - (0.01; (0.03 (0.02]
Pershare amount- net earning:
Diluted earnings per sha 0.29 0.31 0.29 0.35 0.33 0.22 0.38 0.35
Basic earnings per she 0.29 0.32 0.29 0.35 0.33 0.22 0.38 0.35
Selected date
GE
Sales of goods and servic $ 23,687 $ 22,102 $ 25,138 $ 22,961 $ 24,749 $ 23,230 $ 27,301 $ 26,744
Gross profit from sale 5,653 5,273 5,800 5,488 6,025 6,376 8,240 9,095
GECC
Total revenue 11,442 13,036 11,458 12,440 11,369 12,015 11,770 11,577
Earnings from continuing operatio
attributable to the Compa 1,575 1,825 1,569 1,810 1,568 1,455 1,503 1,420

For GE, gross profit from sales is sales of goaubservices less costs of goods and services sold.

Earnings-per-share amounts are computed indepéyndeach quarter for earnings from continuing opere, earnings (loss) from discontinued operatems net earnings. As a result, the sum of each
quarter’s per-share amount may not equal the petakhare amount for the respective year; andutreaf per-share amounts from continuing operatams discontinued operations may not equal the
total per-share amounts for net earnings for tepeetive quarters.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Account&s on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Under the direction of our Chief Executive Offi@erd Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated our disalre controls and procedures and internal coatred financial reporting and concluded that (i) our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectvef ecember 31, 2012, and (ii) no change in makcontrol over financial reporting occurred dgrihe quarter ended December 31, 2012, that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, such internal control over finarlai@porting.

Management’s annual report on internal control divemcial reporting and the report of our indepemtdregistered public accounting firm appears irt Paltem 8. “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K Report.
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Item 9B. Other Information.

Not applicable

Part Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.
Executive Officers of the Registrant (As of Febyuay2013)
Date assumec
Executive

Name Position Age Officer Position
Jeffrey R. Immel Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi 56 January 199
Kathryn A. Cassid! Senior Vice President and GE Treaslt 58 March 2002
Pamela Dale' Senior Vice President, Corporate Business Develop 60 July 2004
Brackett B. Denniston Il Senior Vice President and General Coul 65 February 200-
John F. Lynct Senior Vice President, Human Resour 60 January 200
Jamie S. Millel Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting iCéf 44 April 2008
Michael A. Neal Vice Chairman of General Electric Compa

Chairman & CEO, GE Capit 59 September 200
John G. Rice Vice Chairman of General Electric Compa

President & CEO, Global Growth & Operatic 56 September 199
Keith S. Sherir Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Offic 54 January 199!

All Executive Officers are elected by the BoardDafectors for an initial term which continues uritie Board meeting immediately preceding the narual statutory meeting of shareowners, and
thereafter are elected for one-year terms or thnit successors have been elected. All Executifieeds have been executives of General Electrim@any for the last five years except for Ms. Miller
Prior to joining GE in April 2008, Ms. Miller serdeas the Senior Vice President, Chief Accountinfic®f and Controller of Wellpoint, Inc.

The remaining information called for by this itesnimcorporated by reference to “Election of Direstd“Corporate Governance” and “Board of Directarsl Committees” in our definitive proxy
statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareowmebe held April 24, 2013, which will be filedtin 120 days of the end of our fiscal year endeddnber 31, 2012 (the 2013 Proxy Statement).

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Incorporated by reference to “Compensation Disaunsand Analysis,” “Compensation Committee Repd012 Summary Compensation Table,” “2012 GrantBlah-Based Awards,” “2012
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End,” “20@ption Exercises and Stock Vested,” “2012 PenBienefits,” “2012 Nonqualified Deferred Compensatid2012 Potential Payments Upon
Termination at Fiscal Year-End ” and “2012 Non-mgeraent Directors’ Compensation” in the 2013 ProtatSnent.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial vners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Incorporated by reference to “Stock Ownership Infation” in the 2013 Proxy Statement. The remainiigrmation called for by this item relating to “Seities Authorized for Issuance under Equity
Compensation Plans” is provided in Note 16 to thesolidated financial statements in Part Il, ItemfifBnancial Statements and Supplementary DatahisfForm 10-K Report.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains, and Director Independence.

Incorporated by reference to “Related Person Tiiwsss” and “Corporate Governance” in the 2013 jrBtatement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Incorporated by reference to “Independent Audiinrthe 2013 Proxy Statement.

Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a)1. Financial Statements

Included in Part Il of this report:

Statement of Earnings for the years ended Decef1hez012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incomthtoyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statement of Changes in ShareownerstyEfor the years ended December 31, 2012, 20812810
Statement of Financial Position at December 312201d 2011
Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended Deceih@012, 2011 and 2010
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Ovieancial Reporting
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing
Other financial information:
Summary of Operating Segments
Notes to consolidated financial statements
Operating segment information

(a)2. Financial Statement Schedules

The schedules listed in Reg. 210.5-04 have beettamihecause they are not applicable or the redjiifermation is shown in the consolidated finahstatements or notes thereto.

(a)3. Exhibit Index

2(a)

2(b)

3(a)

3(ii)

4(a)

Master Agreement dated as of December 3, 2009 #yaaong General Electric Company, NBC Universal,,I@omcast Corporation and Navy, LLC. (Incorpadaig reference t
Exhibit 2(a) to General Elect’s Annual Report on Form -K (Commission file number 0(-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agnent of Navy, LLC. (Incorporated by reference shiBit 10.50 to Comcast Corporat’s Annual Report on Form -K
(Commission file number 0-32871) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

The Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, ofi@al Electric Company (Incorporated by referemcExhibit 3(a) of General Elect’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarte
ended September 30, 2011 (Commission file numb&-00035)).

The By-Laws, as amended, of General Electric Company (parated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) of Gener&dfric’s Current Report on Forn-K dated February 15, 20:
(Commission file number 0-00035)).

Amended and Restated General Electric Capital Catjpm (GECC) Standard Global Multiple Series Intdea Provisions dated as of February 27, 1997 (parated by reference
Exhibit 4(a) to GEC('s Registration Statement on Forl-3, File No. 33-59707 (Commission file number (-06461)).
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4(b)

4(c)

4(d)

4(e)

4(f)

4(9)

4(h)

4(7)

4()

4(k)

4()

Third Amended and Restated Indenture dated aslwfiBey 27, 1997, between GECC and The Bank of Nevk ¥lellon, as successor trustee (Incorporatecefgrence to Exhibit 4(c)
GECC's Registration Statement on Fori-3, File No. 33-59707 (Commission file number (-06461)).

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 3919@pplemental to Third Amended and Restated ludemlated as of February 27, 1997 (Incorporatedtfgrence to Exhibit 4(dd) 1
GECC's Pos-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statenmmform -3, File No. 33-76479 (Commission file number C-06461)).

Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of Julp®,,Zupplemental to Third Amended and Restateehitudle dated as of February 27, 1997 (Incorpotiayeference to Exhibit 4(f) 1
GECC's Pos-Effective Amendment No.1 to Registration StatemmenEorm $-3, File No. 33-40880 (Commission file number (-06461)).

Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of NovemBeRQ02, supplemental to Third Amended and Restatéehture dated as of February 27, 1997 (Incotpdrhy reference to Exhik
4(cc) to GEC('s Pos-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Stegat on Form -3, File No. 33-100527 (Commission file number (-06461)).

Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of Augus2@@7, supplemental to Third Amended and Restaidehture dated as of February 27, 1997 (Incorpdrhy reference to Exhibi
(g) to GECC('s Registration Statement on Fori-3, File number 33-156929 (Commission file number (-06461)).

Senior Note Indenture dated as of January 1, 2088/een General Electric and The Bank of New Yorlbh, as trustee for the senior debt securitiesdiiporated by reference
Exhibit 4(a) to General Elect’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 29, 2003 (Commission file num@i-00035)).

Indenture dated December 1, 2005, between Genleretie and The Bank of New York Mellon, as succedrustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibat) 4f General Electr's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 9,200ommission file number 001-00035)).

Senior Note Indenture dated as of October 9, 20d®yeen General Electric and The Bank of New Yoelbh, as trustee (Incorporated by reference taltitxhh.1 to General Electr's
Current Report on Forr-K filed on October 9, 2012 (Commission file numbed-00035)).

Form of GECC Global Mediu-Term Note, Series A, Fixed Rate Registered Noteofiporated by reference to Exhibit 4(r) to GE's Registration Statement on Fori-3, File No. 33-
156929 (Commission file number 001-06461)).

Form of GECC Global Mediu-Term Note, Series A, Floating Rate Registered Nloiorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(s) to tHeGQ®'s Registration Statement on Forl-3, File No.
333-156929 (Commission file number 001-06461)).

Eleventh Amended and Restated Fiscal and Paying@g&greement among GECC, GE Capital Australia fuméty Ltd., GE Capital European Funding, GE GapitK. Funding ant

The Bank of New York Mellon and The Bank of New Kdvellon (Luxembourg) S.A., as fiscal and payingaty, dated as of April 5, 2012 (Incorporated bgnence to Exhibit 4(yy) to
Pos-Effective Amendment No.1 to GE('s Registration Statement on Fori-3, File No. 33-178262 (Commission file number (-06461)).
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4(n)

4(0)

4(p)

(10

Letter from the Senior Vice President and Chiefafitial Officer of General Electric to GECC dategt®enber 15, 2006, with respect to returning divikerdistributions or othe
payments to GECC in certain circumstances desciib&e Indenture for Subordinated Debentures dSegtember 1, 2006, between GECC and the BankwfY¢ek, as successor
trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4§aFBECC’s Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 to Regtstin Statement on Form S-3, File No. 333-1328@h{@ission file number 001-
06461)).

Form of Warrants issued on October 16, 2008 (Inmarged by reference to Exhibit 4(a) of General fi€'s Current Report on Forn-K dated October 20, 2008 (Commission
number 00-00035)).

Amendment No. 1 to Warrants (originally issued aridber 16, 2008) dated January 14, 2013 betweeerr@leBlectric Company and each Warrantholder naimeekin.*

Agreement to furnish to the Securities and Exchag@mission upon request a copy of instrumentihefithe rights of holders of certain Ic-term debt of the registrant a
consolidated subsidiaries

Except for 10(x) and (y) below, all of the follovgrexhibits consist of Executive Compensation Pam&rrangements

@

(b)

©

()

(e)

®

()]

(h

0

General Electric Incentive Compensation Plan, asrated effective July 1, 1991 (Incorporated by fee to Exhibit 10(a) to General Electric Annuap8® on Form 1-K
(Commission file number 0-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1¢

General Electric Financial Planning Program, asrated through September 1993 (Incorporated by ne¢eréo Exhibit 10(h) to General Electric Annual Bemn Form 1-K
(Commission file number 0-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1¢

General Electric Supplemental Life Insurance Prnogras amended February 8, 1991 (Incorporated lyeece to Exhibit 10(i) to General Electric AnnRaport on Form 1-K
(Commission file number 0-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1¢

General Electric Directo’ Charitable Gift Plan, as amended through Decem®@2 2incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(i&eneral Electric Annual Report on Fornm-K
(Commission file number 0-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

General Electric Leadership Life Insurance Progreffective January 1, 1994 (Incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10(r) to General Electric Annual Repan Form 1-K
(Commission file number 0-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1¢

General Electric 1996 Stock Option Plan for FEmployee Directors (Incorporated by reference thiBik A to the General Electric Proxy StatementifsrAnnual Meeting o
Shareowners held on April 24, 1996 (Commissiontfilenber 00-00035)).

General Electric Supplementary Pension Plan, asidetkeffective January 1, 2011 (Incorporated bgregfce to Exhibit 10(g) to General Elec’'s Annual Report on Form -K
(Commission file number 001-00035) for the fiscehy ended December 31, 2010).

General Electric 2003 N-Employee Director Compensation Plan, Amended arstiafe as of January 1, 2009 (Incorporated byeréerto Exhibit 10(h) to General Electri
Annual Report on Form ~-K (Commission file number 0(-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Amendment to Nonqualified Deferred Compensatiom®ldated as of December 14, 2004 (Incorporateefeyence to Exhibit 10(w) to the General Elec&imual Report ot
Form 1(-K (Commission file number 0(-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(
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(k)

o

(m)

(n)

()

®)

(@

®

)

®

(1)

v

GE Retirement for the Good of the Company Progasramended effective January 1, 2009 (Incorpotatadference to Exhibit 10(j) to General Elec's Annual Report o
Form 1(-K (Commission file number 0(-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2

GE Excess Benefits Plan, effective January 1, Z0G®rporated by reference to Exhibit 10(k) to Gaih&lectric's Annual Report on Form-K (Commission file number O(-
00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

General Electric 2006 Executive Deferred SalarymPés amended January 1, 2009 (Incorporated bserefe to Exhibit 10(I) to General Electric's AnnRaport on Form 1-K
(Commission file number 0-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

General Electric Company 2007 L¢-Term Incentive Plan (as amended and restated 29yi2012) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibitl9®. General Electr's Registratior
Statement on Form-8, dated May 4, 2012, File number -181177 (Commission file number (-00035)).

Form of Agreement for Stock Option Grants to ExeeuOfficers under the General Electric Company72200nc-term Incentive Plan, as amended January 1, 20@9rfioratec
by reference to Exhibit 10(n) to General Electr&sual Report on Form -K (Commission file number 0-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Form of Agreement for Annual Restricted Stock Ubiiants to Executive Officers under the General tlile€ompany 2007 Lor-term Incentive Plan, as amended Janua
2009 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(ofseneral Electric's Annual Report on Form 10-K (@ussion file number 001-00035) for the fiscal yeaded December 31,
2008).

Form of Agreement for Periodic Restricted Stockt@rants to Executive Officers under the GeneratEic Company 2007 Lorterm Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refere
to Exhibit 10.4 of General Elect’s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 27, 2007 (Commission file number -00035)).

Form of Agreement for Long Term Performance Awardri@s to Executive Officers under the General Ele€@ompany 2007 Lor-term Incentive Plan (Incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of General EleC's Current Report on Forn-K dated April 27, 2007 (Commission file number -00035)).

Form of Agreement for Performance Stock Unit Graat&xecutive Officers under the General Electrizr(pany 2007 Lor-term Incentive Plan (Incorporated by referenc
Exhibit 10.6 of General Elect’'s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 27, 2007 (Commission file number -00035)).

First Restatement of the General Electric Inteomati Employee Stock Purchase Plan effective M&002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 #n€ral Electric"
Registration Statement on Forr-8, File No. 33-163106 (Commission file number (-00035)).

Form of Agreement for Long Term Performance Awardri@s to Executive Officers under the General Ele€@ompany 2007 Lor-term Incentive Plan (Incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10 of General Elec’s Current Report on Forn-K dated February 12, 2010 (Commission file numt84-00035)).

Time Sharing Agreement dated November 22, 2010dmtvGeneral Electric Company and Jeffrey R. Imhedorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(z) to Gehg&lectric's
Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file numbed-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 810P

GE Stock Option Grant Agreement Dated March 4, Z0tQeffrey R. Immelt Terms & Conditions as Ameddgoril 18, 2011 (Incorporated by reference to Eih10(h) of
General Electric’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-@tfee quarter ended June 30, 2011 (Commissiomgifaber 001-00035)).
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12(a)
12(b)
(1)
(23)
(24)
31(a)
31(b)

(32)

(w) Non-Competition Agreement between General Electric Camyand John Krenicki effective July 24, 2012 (ipowated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) of Genetattic's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enSleptember 30, 2012 (Commission file number 001367)0

(x) Amended and Restated Income Maintenance Agreemnhatel October 29, 2009, between the RegistranGameral Electric Capital Corporation (Incorporabgdeference ti
Exhibit 10 to General Electric Capital Corporat®@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartereen8eptember 30, 2009 (Commission file number @BI60)).

(y) Three-Year Credit Agreement dated March 19, 2010 among NBiversal, Inc., the Financial Institutions Paftyereto JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administeatigent
and Issuing Lender, Goldman Sachs Credit Partnésdnd Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., asS@udication Agents and Bank of America, N.A. antgBoup Global
Markets Inc., as Co-Documentation Agents (Incorfeatdy reference to Exhibit 10.1 to General ElerCurrent Report on Form 8-K dated March 19, 2@6mmission file
number 001-00035)).

Statement re Computation of Per Share Earnin¢

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Chargt

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fi#thrges and Preferred Stock Dividenc

Subsidiaries of Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.*

Power of Attorney.’

Certification Pursuant to Rules 7-14(a) or 15-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded.’

Certification Pursuant to Rules 1-14(a) or 15-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded.:

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13!

(199)



99(a)  Securities Purchase Agreement, dated October 08, B@tween General Electric Company and Berkstathaway Inc. (Incorporated by reference to ExHibita) of General Elect’'s
Current Report on Forr-K dated October 20, 2008 (Commission file numbei-00035)).

99(b)  Undertaking for Inclusion in Registration Statenseonn Form -8 of General Electric Company (Incorporated by nefiee to Exhibit 99(b) to General Electric Annuajprt on Form 1-
K (Commission file number 0-00035) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1¢

99(c) Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Chardasdrporated by reference to Exhibit 12(a) to GahEtectric Capital Corporation's Annual Reportform 1(-K for the fiscal yea
ended December 31, 2010 (Commission file numbe-06461)).

(101) The following materials from General Electric Compa Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2011, formatieXBRL (eXtensible Business Reporti
Language); (i) Statement of Earnings for the yeaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, (ii) Cateted Statement of Comprehensive Income for tlesyended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, (i) Consolidated Statemé@tmnges in Shareowners' Equity for the years @mEEember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, (iv) Statewfefinancial Position at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, (v) Statement of CkwstsHor the years ended December 31, 2012, 20d2@h0, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Findri&fatements

Filed electronically herewitt

Information required to be presented in Exhibitis provided in Note 20 to the consolidated finahstatements in Part Il, ltem “Financial Statements and Supplementary " of this Form 1-K
Report in accordance with the provisions of Finah&iccounting Standards Board Accounting Stand@aidification 260 Earnings Per Shar.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this annual report on Forri{ 1@-the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, aniddrcapacities indicated, thereunto duly authoriettie Town of Fairfield and State of Connecticatthe 26" day of February 2013.

General Electric Compar
(Registrant,

By /sl Keith S. Sheril
Keith S. Sherir
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf of the registrand in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signer Title Date

/s/ Keith S. Sheril Principal Financial Office February 26, 201
Keith S. Sherir

Vice Chairman and

Chief Financial Office

/s/ Jamie S. Mille Principal Accounting Office February 26, 201
Jamie S. Millel
Vice President and Controll

Jeffrey R. Immelt* Chairman of the Board of Directa
(Principal Executive Officer

W. Geoffrey Beattie’ Director
John J. Brennan Director
James |. Cash, Jr Director
Marijn E. Dekkers* Director
Ann M. Fudge* Director
Susan Hockfield’ Director
Andrea Jung’ Director
Alan G. Lafley* Director
Robert W. Lane’ Director
Ralph S. Larsen Director
Rochelle B. Lazarus Director
James J. Mulva Director
Sam Nunn* Director
Roger S. Penske Director
Robert J. Swieringa Director
James S. Tisch Director
Douglas A. Warner l1I* Director

A majority of the Board of Director

*By /sl Christoph A. Pereir
Christoph A. Pereir.
Attorney-in-fact
February 26, 201

(202)






Exhibit 4(0!

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO WARRANTS

The parties to this Amendment No. 1, dated Jan2013 (this “Amendment”), to each of the Warsadentified on Annex A hereto (the “Warrants”) &eneral Electric Company (the
“Corporation”) and each of the Warrantholders signahereto. Capitalized terms used in this Ameednwithout definition have the meanings givenhtenh in each of the Warrants.

The parties hereto wish to amend the exercise gi@mvif each Warrant to provide that the Warraatlde exercisable solely by means of a “cashlgescése.” Accordingly the parties hereto
agree as follows:

1.  Section 2 of each of the Warrants is herebgratad by inserting the following text immediatehjop to the words ‘provided, howevef, in the first sentence thereof:
payable by means of a “cashless exercise” in aaomelwith Section 3
2. Section 3 of each of the Warrants is herebgrated by deleting the first paragraph thereof aeditst sentence of the second paragraph thereb$abstituting the following text:
Subject to Section 2, to the extent permitted kpliapble laws and regulations, the right to acqthiee Shares represented by this Warrant is exéteisa whole but not in part, by the
Warrantholder at any time from and after the datebf but in no event later than 5:00 p.m., NewkY@ity time, on October 16, 2013 (thé&xpiration Time’) by means of a “cashless exercise”
in which the Warrantholder shall be entitled toeige a certificate for the number of Shares equéhé¢ quotient obtained by dividing [(A-B) (X)] B, where:
(A) = the average Market Price of the Common Stockhe twenty trading days preceding the Date xa#rEise;
(B) = the Exercise Price; ai
(X) = the number of Shares set forth in bold fatéhie first paragraph of Section 2, as adjustegbjficable
In order to exercise this Warrant, the Warranthofdast surrender this Warrant, a Notice of Exerdisly completed and executed on behalf of the Witinader, and, if applicable, the
certificate referred to in Section 2 to the priradipxecutive office of the Corporation located 883 Easton Turnpike, Fairfield, CT 06828-0001 (aetsother office or agency of the Corporation

in the United States as it may designate by nativeriting to the Warrantholder at the addresshef Warrantholder appearing on the books of the @atjpn). The first date on which all of
these documents have been delivered to the Coipoiatreferred to as theDate of Exercise’



3. The third sentence of Section 4 shall be délét its entirety and replaced by the followingtte

The Corporation agrees that the Shares so issueblerdeemed to have been issued to the Warrarghaklof the close of business on the Date of Esesrnotwithstanding that the stock tran
books of the Corporation may then be closed oifates representing such Shares may not be &ctglivered on such date.

4.  The form of Notice to Exercise attached tcheafcthe Warrants is hereby deleted and replacetidjorm of Notice of Exercise attached to thiseékdment as Annex B.

5.  Except as amended hereby, each Warrant imadlin unamended and in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has causedAhi®ndment to be duly executed by a duly authoriéider.

Dated: January 14, 2013

GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY

By: /sl Keith S. Sherin
Name: Keith S. Sherin
Title: Vice Chairman and CFO

Attest:

By: /sl Eliza W. Frazer
Name: Eliza W. Fraser
Title: Attesting Secretary

@



®

Accepted and Agreed by each of the Warrant-
holders as of the Date First Written Above:

Government Employees Insurance Company
By: /sl Michael H. Campbell

Name: Michael H. Campbell
Title: Senior Vice President and CFO

GEICO Indemnity Company

By: /sl Michael H. Campbell
Name: Michael H. Campbell
Title: Senior Vice President and CFO

General Star Indemnity Company

By: /s/ William G. Gasdaska, Jr.
Name: William G. Gasdaska, Jr.
Title: Treasurer

General Re Corporation

By: /s/ William G. Gasdaska, Jr.
Name: William G. Gasdaska, Jr.

Title: Senior Vice President, Treasurer & CFO

General Star National Insurance Company

By: /s/ William G. Gasdaska, Jr.
Name: William G. Gasdaska, Jr.
Title: Treasurer & CFO




Genesis Insurance Company

By: /s/ William G. Gasdaska, Jr.
Name: William G. Gasdaska, Jr.
Title: Treasurer

General Reinsurance Corporation (formerly
National Reinsurance Corporation)

By: /sl William G. Gasdaska, Jr.
Name: William G. Gasdaska, Jr.
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Finial Reinsurance Company

By: /sl Dale Geistkemper
Name: Dale Geistkemper
Title: Treasurer

Brilliant National Services, Inc.

By: /sl Dale Geistkemper
Name: Dale Geistkemper
Title: Treasurer

Columbia Insurance Company

By: /sl Dale Geistkemper
Name: Dale Geistkemper
Title: Treasurer & Controller

National Liability & Fire Insurance Company

By: /sl Dale Geistkemper
Name: Dale Geistkemper
Title: Treasurer & Controller

@



National Fire & Marine Insurance Company

By: /sl Dale Geistkemper
Name: Dale Geistkemper
Title: Treasurer & Controller

Berkshire Hathaway Assurance Corporation

By: /sl Dale Geistkemper
Name: Dale Geistkemper
Title: Treasurer

National Indemnity Company

By: /sl Dale Geistkemper
Name: Dale Geistkemper
Title: Treasurer & Controller

(®)






Exhibit 4(p)

Kathryn A. Cassidy

Senior Vice President and GE Treasurer
General Electric Company

3135 Easton Turnpike

Fairfield, CT 0682¢

Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, NE
Washington, DC 20549

February 26, 2013

Subject: General Electric Company Annual Report on Forr-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2- File No. 00:-00035
Dear Sirs:

Neither General Electric Company (1“Company”) nor any of its consolidated subsidiaties outstanding any instrument with respect tioitg-term debt, other than those filed as an ektotthe
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgahr ended December 31, 2012, under which theaotaunt of securities authorized exceeds 10%efdtal assets of the registrant and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. In accordaitbeparagraph (b)(4)(iii) of Item 601 of Regutai S-K (17 CFR Sec. 229.601), the Company herebgeago furnish to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, upon request, a copy of each instrumhentdefines the rights of holders of such lomgntelebt not filed or incorporated by referencemgxhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.

Very truly yours,
GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY

/s/ Kathryn A. Cassid

Kathryn A. Cassid!
Senior Vice President and GE Treaslt







General Electric Company

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charge:

Years ended December 3

Exhibit 12(a)

(Dollars in millions) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
General Electric Company and
consolidated affiliates
Earnings(a 15,583 19,046 13,726 9,752 19,680
Plus:
Interest and other financial charg
included in expense(l 12,508 14,528 15,537 17,667 24,121
One-third of rental expense(t 577 528 570 604 473
Adjusted“earning” 28,668 34,102 29,833 28,023 44,274
Fixed charges
Interest and other financial charg
included in expense(! 12,508 14,528 15,537 17,667 24,121
Interest capitalize 28 25 39 42 73
One-third of rental expense(i 577 528 570 604 473
Total fixed charge 13,113 15,081 16,146 18,313 24,667
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 2.19 2.26 1.85 1.53 1.79
(a) Earnings before income taxes, noncontrolling irtexediscontinued operations and undistributediegsrof equity investee

(b) Included interest on tax deficiencit

(c) Considered to be representative of interest fanteental expense






General Electric Company

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined FixedCharges and Preferred Stock Dividend:

Years ended December 3

Exhibit 12(b)

(Dollars in millions) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
General Electric Company and

consolidated affiliates
Earnings(a $ 15,583 19,046 $ 13,726 9,752 19,680
Plus:

Interest and other financial charg

included in expense(} 12,508 14,528 15,537 17,667 24,121

One-third of rental expense(i 577 528 570 604 473
Adjusted“earning” $ 28,668 34,102 $ 29,833 28,023 44,274
Fixed charges

Interest and other financial charg

included in expense(t $ 12,508 14,528 $ 15,537 17,667 24,121

Interest capitalize 28 25 39 42 73

One-third of rental expense(i 577 528 570 604 473
Total fixed charge $ 13,113 15,081 $ 16,146 18,313 24,667
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 2.19 2.26 1.85 1.53 1.79
Preferred stock dividend requireme $ - 1,031 $ 300 300 75
Ratio of earnings before provision 1

income taxes to earnings frc

continuing operation 1.17 1.40 1.08 0.90 1.07
Preferred stock dividend factor |

pre-tax basis $ - 1,443 $ 324 270 80
Fixed charge 13,113 15,081 16,146 18,313 24,667
Total fixed charges and preferred st

dividend requirement $ 13,113 16,524 $ 16,470 18,583 24,747
Ratio of earnings to combined fix

charges and preferred stock divide 2.19 2.06 1.81 1.51 1.79
(a) Earnings before income taxes, noncontrolling irtexediscontinued operations and undistributediegsrof equity investee

(b) Included interest on tax deficiencit

(c) Considered to be representative of interest fanteental expense






SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

Exhibit 21

General Electric’s principal affiliates as of Ded#en 31, 2012, are listed below. All other affiligté considered in the aggregate as a singleattfilwould not constitute a significant subsidiary

AFFILIATES OF REGISTRANT INCLUDED IN REGISTRANT'S F

Percentage of voting

securities directly or

indirectly owned by
registrant (1)

INANCIAL STATEMENTS

State or Country
of incorporation
or organization

Amersham Health Norge A

Bently Nevada, Inc

Cardinal Cogen, Inc

Caribe GE International of Puerto Rico, |
Date)-Ohmeda, Inc

Dresser, Inc

GE Aviation Service Operation LLI

GE Aviation Systems Group Limite

GE Aviation Systems North America, Ir
GE Aviation UK

GE Betz International, In

GE Caledonian Limitec

GE Capital Global Financial Holdings, Ir
GE Capital UK Financ

GE Drives & Controls, Inc

GE Druck Holdings Limited

GE Energy Europe B.V

GE Energy Netherlands, B.'

GE Energy Parts, Inc

GE Energy Power Conversion Group S
GE Energy Products France SN

GE Energy Services, Inc

GE Energy (USA), LLC

GE Engine Services, LL'

GE Engine Service- Dallas, LP

GE Engine Services Distribution, LL!
GE Engine Services UNC Holding I, In
GE Europe Holdings LL(

GE Financial Assurance Holdings, It
GE Financial Fundini

GE Financial Irelan

GE Gas Turbines (Greenville) L.L.t

GE Generators (Pensacola), L.L

GE Global Sourcing LLC

GE Healthcare A!

GE Healthcare Bi-Sciences AE

GE Healthcare BVB/

GE Healthcare European Holdings SA
GE Healthcare Finland O

GE Healthcare Japan Corporat

GE Healthcare Ltc

GE Healthcare Norge A

GE Healthcare USA Holding In

GE Holdings Luxembourg & Co. SAR
GE Hungary Kift.

GE Infrastructure Aviation Limite

GE Infrastructure, Inc

GE Infrastructure Technology International LL
GE Inspection and Repair Services Limi
GE Intelligent Platforms Embedded Systems,
GE Intelligent Platforms, Inc

GE Investments, Inc

GE lonics Inc

GE Jenbacher GmbH & Co C

GE Keppel Energy Services Pte. L

GE Maintenance Services, Ir

GE Medical Systems Global Technology Company, L
GE Medical Systems Information Technologies, |
GE Medical Systems Societe en Commandite Sit
GE Medical Systems, Inc

GE Medical Systems, LL(C

GE Medical Systems, Ultrasound & Primary Care Dasjics LLC
GE Military Systems

GE Osmonics, Inc

GE Pacific Holdings Pte. Lt

GE Pacific Pte Ltc

GE Packaged Power, Ir

GE Packaged Power, L.

GE Transportation Parts, LL!

GE Transportation Systems Global Signaling, L
GE UK Group Limitec

GE Water & Process Technologies Can
GE Wind Energy, LLC

GEA Parts, LLC

GEA Products LP

GEAE Technology, Inc

GEFH AS

GEH HOLDINGS

GENE Holding LLC

General Electric (Bermuda) Ltc

General Electric Canada Compe

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
50
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

Norway
Delaware
Delaware
Puerto Ricc
Delaware
Delaware
Singapore
United Kingdom and Northern Irelar
Delaware
United Kingdom and Northern Irelar
Pennsylvani:
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan
Connecticu
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan
Delaware
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan
Netherlands
Netherland:
Delaware
France
France
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Ireland
Ireland
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Norway
Sweder
Belgium
Luxembourg
Finland
Japar
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan
Norway
Delaware
Luxembourg
Hungary
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan
Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan
Delaware
Delaware
Nevade
Massachuset!
Austria
Singapore
Delaware
Delaware
Wisconsin
France
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Minnesote
Singapore
Singapore
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan
Canade
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Norway
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan
Delaware
Bermuda
Canade



General Electric Capital Corporati
General Electric CGR Europe SA

General Electric Europe Holdings C.
General Electric Finance Holding Gmt
General Electric Financing C.

General Electric Foreign Sales Corporat
General Electric International (Benelux) B
General Electric International, In

General Electric International Operations Compang,
General Electric Services (Bermuda) L
General Electric Services Luxembourg SA
Granite Services, In

IDX Systems Corporatio

Monogram Licensing Inc

Monogram Licensing International, Ir
MRA Systems, Inc

National Broadcasting Company Holding, |
Nuclear Fuel Holding Co., In

Nuovo Pignone Holding, S.p.A

Nuovo Pignone S.p./

OEC Medical Systems, Inc

Panametrics Ltc

Patent Licensing International, Ir

PII Limited

Reute-Stokes, Inc

Unison Industries, LLC

Vetco Gray U.K. Limitec

Viceroy, Inc.

Whatman Limitec

1) With respect to certain companies, shares in nafesminees and qualifying shares in names of thre@re included in above percentag

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
99
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

Delaware
France
Netherlands
Germany
Netherland:
The Bahamas and Eleuthera Isli
Netherlands
Delaware
Delaware
Bermuda
Luxembourg
Delaware
Vermont
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Italy
Italy
Delaware
Bermuda
Delaware
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan
Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan
Delaware
United Kingdom & Northern Irelan






Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
General Electric Company:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrélggstration statement on Form S-3 (Registratios.\83-50639, 33-29024, 333-59671, 333-72566, 33803 and 333-177804), on Form S-4
(Registration No. 333-107556), and on Form S-8 {&egion Nos. 333-01953, 333-42695, 333-74415;83864, 333-98877, 333-94101, 333-65781, 333-88233;117855, 333-99671, 333-102111,
333-142452, 333-155587, 333-158069, 333-15807B-183106, 333-177805, 333-179688, 333-181177 afRdl83792) of General Electric Company of our repated February 26, 2013, with resg

to the statement of financial position of GeneracEic Company and consolidated affiliates as e€&@mber 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related statemiesarnings, comprehensive income, changes in
shareowners’ equity and cash flows for each ofy#eg's in the three-year period ended December@®R,2nd the effectiveness of internal control diremncial reporting as of December 31, 2012,
which report appears in the December 31, 2012 dmepart on Form 10-K of General Electric Company.

Our report refers to a change in the method of aeitog for consolidation of variable interest eiesitin 2010.

/sl KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 26, 2013






Exhibit 24

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of thedensigned, being a director or officer of GeneralcEic Company, a New York corporation (the "Comy3, hereby constitut
and appoints Jeffrey R. Immelt, Brackett B. Deromidil, Keith S. Sherin, Jamie S. Miller, and Chojsh A. Pereira, and each of them, his or her angklawful attorney-irfact and agent, with full pow
of substitution and resubstitution, for him or laed in his or her name, place and stead in anyalrepacities, to sign one or more Annual Repfmtshe Company's fiscal year ended Decembe
2012 on Form 10-K under the Securities Exchangeofd934, as amended, or such other form as arly atiorney-infact may deem necessary or desirable, any amendrtrereto, and all additior
amendments thereto, each in such form as theyyoore of them may approve, and to file the samhb wlitexhibits thereto and other documents in cotioe therewith with the Securities and Exche
Commission, granting unto said attorneydant and agents, and each of them, full power arioaity to do and perform each and every act &mytrequisite and necessary to be done so th&
Annual Report shall comply with the Securities Exefe Act of 1934, as amended, and the applicablesRund Regulations adopted or issued pursuargttheas fully and to all intents and purpose
he or she might or could do in person, herebyyiatif and confirming all that said attorneysfact and agents, or any of them or their substitmteesubstitute, may lawfully do or cause to beelby
virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hasurgp set his or her hand this".8ay of February, 2013.

/s/ Jeffrey R. Immel
Jeffrey R. Immel
Chairman of the Boar
(Principal Executive
Officer and Director

/s/ Keith S. Sheril /s/ Jamie S. Mille

Keith S. Sherir Jamie S. Millel

Vice Chairma- Vice President and Controll
Chief Financial Office (Principal Accounting Officer

(Principal Financial Officer

(Page 1 of 2



/s| W. Geoffrey Beatti

W. Geoffrey Beatti¢
Director

/s/ John J. Brenne

John J. Brenna
Director

/s/ James |. Cash, .

James I. Cash, !
Director

/s/ Marijn E. Dekker:

Marijn E. Dekkers
Director

/s/ Ann M. Fudge

Ann M. Fudge
Director

/sl Susan Hockfiel

Susan Hockfielc
Director

/s/ Andrea Jun:

A ndrea Jun(
D irector

/s/Alan G. Lafley

Alan G. Lafley
Director

/s/ Robert W. Lan:

Robert W. Lane
Director

/s/ Ralph S. Larse

Ralph S. Larse
Director

/s/ Rochelle B. Lazart

Rochelle B. Lazaru
Director

/s/ James J. Mulv

James J. Mulv.
Director

/s/ Sam Nunt

Sam Nunr
Director

/sl Roger S. Pensl}

Roger S. Pensk
Director

/sl Robert J. Swiering

Robert J. Swiering
Director

/s/ James S. Tisc

James S. Tisc
Director

/s/ Douglas A. Warner II

Douglas A. Warner I
Director

A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Exhibit 31(a)

Certification Pursuant to
Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securitiescehange Act of 1934, as Amended

1, Jeffrey R. Immelt, certify tha

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of General Electric Compan

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéte a material fact necessary to make the staisrmade, in light of the circumstances ur
which such statements were made, not misleadirtgreitpect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ otimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial condition, results of operations and ¢
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the peripdssented in this repo

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contawld procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-15(e) and 15-15(e)) anc
internal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ¢esigned under our supervision, to ensureniggrial information relating to tt
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissnade known to us by others within those egjtparticularly during the period in which thipoet is being prepare:

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgy, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under our supervisiomprovide reasonable assurance regardin
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally accepted accountimgiples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions about the effectagnof the disclosure controls and proceduresf,
the end of the period covered by this report basesuch evaluation; ar

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registre’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regist's fourth fiscal quarter i
the case of an annual report) that has materiéfigtd, or is reasonably likely to materially affethe registrar's internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reporting, to the registr's auditors and the audit committee of
registran’s board of directors (or persons performing thevedent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which are reasonably likehyadversely affect the registr’s ability to
record, process, summatrize and report financiarimétion; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registra’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 26, 2013

/s/ Jeffrey R. Immel

Jeffrey R. Immel
Chief Executive Office






Exhibit 31(b)

Certification Pursuant to
Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securitiexéhange Act of 1934, as Amended

I, Keith S. Sherin, certify tha
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of General Electric Compan

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitéde a material fact necessary to make the sta'srmade, in light of the circumstances ur
which such statements were made, not misleadirtynetpect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial condition, results of operations and ¢
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the peripdssented in this repo

4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contemld procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-15(e) and 15-15(e)) anc
internal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ¢esigned under our supervision, to ensureniggrial information relating to t
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigriesnade known to us by others within those ejtparticularly during the period in which thipoet is being prepare:

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgy, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under our supervisiomprovide reasonable assurance regardin
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally accepted accountingiples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémthib report our conclusions about the effectesnof the disclosure controls and proceduresf,
the end of the period covered by this report basesuch evaluation; ar

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regig’'s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registre’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regist's fourth fiscal quarter i
the case of an annual report) that has materitfitgtd, or is reasonably likely to materially affethe registrar's internal control over financial reporting; ¢

5. The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reporting, to the registr’s auditors and the audit committee of
registran’s board of directors (or persons performing thevedent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢ofinancial reporting which are reasonably likelyadversely affect the registr’s ability to
record, process, summatrize and report financiarimétion; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 26, 2013

/s/ Keith S. Sheril
Keith S. Sherir
Chief Financial Office







Exhibit 32

Certification Pursuant to

18 U.S.C. Section 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of Generaldiie Company (the “registrant”) on Form 10-K fbietyear ending December 31, 2012 as filed wittStheurities and Exchange Commission on the
date hereof (the “report”), we, Jeffrey R. Immeiteeith S. Sherin, Chief Executive Officer and €tftinancial Officer, respectively, of the regisiracertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as aeldpt
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2€@& to our knowledge:

(1) The report fully complies with the requirementssettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; a
(2) The information contained in the report fairly pets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the registr

February 26, 201

/sl Jeffrey R. Immel
Jeffrey R. Immel
Chief Executive Office

/sl Keith S. Sheril
Keith S. Sherir
Chief Financial Office







